
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

February 22, 2011 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
FEBRUARY 22, 2011 

DEAR ATTENDEE ..... THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU. PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE ATTENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE. UNLESS INVITED BY THE MA YOR TO SPEAK. YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT. IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR. PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD. THANK YOU. 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

__ ~. ________________ ._. ____ a _________________________ • ___ • ____ .& ______________________________ • ____________________ • _____________________ _ 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~----.----------------------------~-------

AGENDA 
ROLLCALL 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 
(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 

1. REG MIN 218/Il-COW 218/11 

(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIPfHEALTH DISTRICf 
1. 2011 SEASONAL PLANTING & UPKEEP-CONTRACf AWARD 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
1. PROC-CHRISTIAN W. FLASZA-EAGLE SCOUT A WARD 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 

(H) COMMUNICATIONS FROM ( ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 

(1) REPORTS AND COMMUNICA TrONS FROM AI DERMEN. COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS 
1. SANTOY CUYLERJNBPDlKaBOOM! 
2. SMALL BUSINESS UTILZATION PROGRAM 
3. SKRYD·LEFTTURN ARROW SIGNAL LOCATED AT OGDEN & RIDGELAND FOR 

EAST BOUND TRAFFIC 
4, SKRYD- SOUTH BOUND HARLEM AVE SIGNAGE PLACEMENT ON W. BOUND 26TH ST 
5. SKRYD-8KRUNFORFUN 
6. F&P COMM-PROMOTE J. O'HALLORAN & R. ORTIZ TO SERGEANT 

(J) STAFF REPORTS 
1. CITY ATTNY-ORD ESTABLISHINGA FEE FOR BAIL BOND ADMINISTRATION 
2. CITY ADM-BPL-ELEVATOR REPLACEMENT ENGINEERING SERVICE CONTRACT 
3. FINANCE DIR-20ll APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
4. FINANCE DIR-AMERICAN EXPRESS COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT PROGRAM 
5. ASST FIRE CHIEF-ASBESTOS INSPECTION FOR 6619 16TH ST,GARAGE, & 1539 CLARENCE 
6. CITY ENGINEER-LIBRARY AIR CONDITIONING CHILLER REPLACEMENT 
7. TRAFFIC ENG-ADDITIONAL PRKNG SIGNAGE-V ACIN FAIR WAY & CERMAK RD PROJ. 



8. TRAFFIC ENG-8US. RESERVED PERMIT PRKNG-UPDATE ORD 480.05, 480.07 & 484.03 
9. TRAFFIC ENG-PRKNG REVISIONS FOR OAK PK AVE-UPDATE ORD 484.08A & 480.08 

10. BPD-COMMANDER-EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION SYSTEM 

(K) CONSENT AGENDA: ALL rrutS ON nlECONW/T AOENDA AR£ CONSIDERED TO BE ROIJTI1'IE IN NAniRE AND 
WIU. DE ENACTF.D IN ONE MOTlOtl. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISClJSS10N OI'ntESE IlEMS UNLf.5S A roUNC1L MEMIlI!R SO 
REOLIESTS.IN WfliCH BV&NT TltE InM WIU. 8£ UMO\lS) PROM TIlE CONSENT AO£NOA AND CONSIDERED AS no; FIRST ITEM AI'TF.R 
t\PPIIOV,\l OF TilE C'ONSEIfT ADENO" 

1. BUDGET CHAIR-PAYROLL-2116/11-$1,726,273.69 
2. BUDGET CHArR -PAY ABLES-2J22/11-$1,142.615.17 
3. BOYAJIAN-HANDICAP SIGN-C. GARANT-3615 ELMWOOD-APPROVE 
4. POLASHEK-HANDICAP SIGN-G. ALV AREZ-1834 GUNDERSON-DENY 
5. POLASHEK-HANDICAP SIGN-S. MORENO-1626 SCOVILLE-DENY 
6. SKRYD-HANDICAP SIGN-D. MARTELL -2509 ELMWOOD-APPROVE 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 25 

In accordance with lite provisions of Ihe Americans wiltl disabililies Act. any individual wtlo IS in l/te need of a reasooable accommodation in order 10 parciCipJle In or 
beJleflt from altendllJlCe at a public: meeting ofltle City of Berwyn should contact Thomas J Pavlik. City Cleric 81 1081788-2660 as soon as possible t>efon: the 
meeting dale. 



e Table of Contents 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ltem(s) 

ROUCAU 
A. Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C. Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
I. Minutes City Council- 218111 
2. Minutes Committee of Whole - 218/1 1 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E. Berwyn Development Corp - Berwyn TownshiplHealth District 
1. BOC-Seasonal Planting & Upkeep-Contract-Award 

F. Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
1. Proc-Christian W. Flasza-Eagle Scout Award 

G. Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Aopeals 

Pages 

1- 4 
1- 3 

1-2 

1- 1 

I. Reports and Communications from Aldermen. Committees. other Boards and Commissions 

1. Santoy CuylerlNBPDlKaBoom! 1- 8 
2. Small Business Utilization Program I- 1 
3. Skryd-Left Tum Arrow Signal Located at Ogden & Ridgeland for East 

Bound Traffic 1- 1 
4. Skryd-South bound Harlem Ave Signage Placement on W. Bound 26111 St 1- 1 
5. Skryd-8K Run for Fun 1- 8 
6. F & P Comm-Promote- I. O'Halloran & R. Ortiz to Sergeant 1- I 

I . Staff Reports 
I. City Attomey-Ord Establishing a Fee for Bail Bond Administration 
2. City Attomey-BPL-elevator Replacement Engineering Service Contract 
3. Finance Dir-20 11 Appropriation Ordinance 
4. Finance Dir-American Express Commercial Account Program 
5. Mst Fire Chief-Asbestos Inspection for 6619 16th St, Garage, & 

1539 Clarence 
6. City Engineer-Library Air Conditioning Chiller Replacement 
7. Traffic Eng-Additional Parking Signage-Vacin Fairway & Cermak Rd Proj. 
8. Traffic eng-Bus. Reserved Permit Parking -Update Ord 480.05,480.07 and 

484.03 
9. Traffic Eng-parking Revisions for Oak Park Ave-Update Ord.484.08A and 

480.08 
10. BPD-Commander-Emergency Notification System 

February 22. 2011 

1- 5 
1- 7 
1- 168 
1- I 

1- II 
1 -3 
1- 1 

1- 17 

1- 12 
1- 24 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

K. Consent Agenda 

1 . Budget Chair -PayroIl-2116/ 11-$1 .726,273.69 1- I 
2. Budget Chair-Payables - 2122111 -$1 ,142,615.17 1- 5 
3. Boyajian-Handicap Sign-C. Garant - 3615 Elmwood- APPROVE 1- 10 
4. Polashek-Handicap Sign-G. Alvarez-1834 Gunderson - DENY 1- 7 
5. Polashek-Handicap Sign-so Moreno-l 626 Scoville - DENY 1-7 
6. Skryd-Handicap Sign-D. Martell-2509 Elmwood - APPROVE 1- 6 

February 22, 201 I 



A Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



c. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



~/ ~BERT l. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

THOMAS 1. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FEBRUARY 8, 2011 

I. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by 
Mayor Lovero at 8: 00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following 
responded present: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy, Polashek 
Avila, Laureto. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was observed 
the deceased Milan Saibll Father-In-law of Police Chief James Ritz, the 
deceased Mary Cosentino, former Berwyn employee, and for the men and 
women on the streets of Berwyn protecting our safety. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The Mayor spoke 
regarding the recent snow storm and wanted to publicly thank the Public 
Works Director, Bob Schiller, public works crew and wanted all to know that 
the city followed the NIMS IncIdent Command procedures headed by Fire 
Chief Denis O/Halloran, Police Commanders Cimaglia and Paolucci and 
Included some 171 employees who came in voluntarily and aSSisted in the 
snow emergency, assistance was also provided by the Berwyn Park District, 
North Berwyn Park DistrIct, School Districts 201, 100, and 98. The Mayor 
wanted to thank the residences for their patience with the snow removal. 
The Mayor also noted that the city was awarded a certificate of 
achievement from GFOA (Government Finance Officers Association) 
recognizing John Wysocki and the City of Berwyn's Finance Department for 
excellence in financial reporting for the year ending December 31, 2009. 
Resident Sandi VanGoethem thanked all the volunteers, neighbors, and city 
employees who responded to the emergency of a deceased neighbor In the 
height of the storm and also expressed thanks from family members of the 
deceased. Alderman Skryd wished birthday wishes to Alderman Chapman 
on her upcoming birthday. Alderman Chapman accepted and wished City 
Administrator Brian Pabst and Clerk Pavlik birthday wishes. 

4. The minutes of the regular Berwyn City Council meeting, and the 
Committee of the Whole, for January 25, 2011 were submitted. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 8, 2011 

5. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication for Bid 
openings of the 2011 Seasonal Planting and Upkeep. Thereafter, Chapman 
made a motion, seconded by Avila to concur and authorize the corporate 
authorities and any Interested parties to adjourn to the conference room to 
open, tabulate and return same for reading. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

6. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item J-5. The motion carried. Item J-5 is a communication 
from the Finance Director submitting the 2010 draft Budget and requesting 
a public hearing be held regarding the matter on Tuesday, February 22, 
2011 at 5 :45 p.m. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by 
Boyajian, to authorize the public hearing and to defer and refer the 2011 
Budget to the Public Hearing on February 22, 2011, and the City Council 
meeting of February 22, 2011. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

7. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding the 2011 Integrated City Marketing Program. The Mayor 
recognized Anthony Griffin, Director of the Berwyn Development 
Corporation who revIewed same. Thereafter, Skryd made a motIon, 
seconded by Chapman, to concur and approve as submitted in an amount 
not to exceed $100,000. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

8. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a request for approval of 
their 2011 Annual Event dates. Anthony Griffin of the Berwyn Development 
Corporation noted that the Great American Mutt Show is tentatively 
scheduled to move to the Depot District on Stanley and Grove and also the 
Roosevelt Road Summer Street Fair is tentative and Is to be determined 
due to the construction of the streetscape. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motIon, seconded by Boyajian to concur and approve as submitted. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

g. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation declaring a DIsaster for the storm 
damage that occurred durIng the week of February 1, 2011, due to the 
blizzard. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur 
and adopt the Proclamation as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authoritIes to affix their Signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

10. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation honoring Edward Karasek on hIs 90th 

Birthday. Thereafter, the Clerk read the proclamation Into record and the 
Mayor presented Edward Karasek the proclamation and extended best 
wishes for continued success In all of his endeavors. Thereafter, Avila 

2 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 8.2011 

made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and adopt the proclamation 
as submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

11. The City Clerk submitted a communication requesting approval of closed 
Committee of the Whole minutes of December 28, 2010. Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

12. The City Clerk submitted a communication along with an ordinance 
entitled: 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF 
CERTAIN ORDINANCES AS PARTS OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENT 
CODES OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES; AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT THEREWITH 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their Signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

13. The City Attorney submitted a communication requesting the authorization 
to settle Case No. 10WC06473 in the amount of $3,675.65. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to concur and approve for 
payment. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

14. The City Attorney submitted a communication requesting the authorization 
to settle Case No. 09WC021397 In the amount of $71,474.02. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve for 
payment. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

15. The City Administrator submitted a communication regarding the Cermak 
Road Architectural and Historical Survey. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion, seconded by Chapman, to accept the matter as Informational. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

16. The Police Chief submitted a communication requestIng two (2) promotions 
to Pollee Sergeant to fill vacancies created by retirement. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur in the 
promotion of two (2) officers from the current City of Berwyn Police 
Department's Sergeant Eligibility LIst. The motion carried by a unanimous 
roll call vote. 

17. The Consent Agenda K-1 through K-6 was submitted: 
K-1-Budget Chair, payroll for February 2, 2011, $995,751.96. 
K-2-Budget Chair, payables for February 28, 2011, $8,026,690.71. 

3 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 8. 201 J 

K-3-Bullding Director, building permits Issued January, 201I. 
K-4-Licenslng & Collections, business permits issued January, 2011. 
K-S-Avila, handicap sign, R. Gullo, 6953 W. Riverside Dr., Approve 
K-6-Chapman, handicap sign, D. Didiana, 3308 Kenilworth, Approve 
Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and 
approve by Omnibus Vote Designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

18. During a brief recess, while awaiting return of bid proposals, Alderman 
Skryd announces that she is hosting a Board of Review, Tax Appeals on 
Wednesday, February 9, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. at the Berwyn Police 
Department, Community Room. 

19. The bid tabulation for Seasonal Planting and Upkeep was returned for 
reading. Bids were received from Beary, $60,356, T.l.e. Group, 
$74,999.97, Acres Group, $41,183.96, McAdam Landscaping, $38, 759.28, 
Landscape Concept Management, $42,842.90, City Escape Garden, 
$37,489, Kinsella Landscape Inc, $59,977.29, Christy Webber Landscape, 
$55,394.80, KGI Landscaping, $94,576, Yuritzy RC Landscaping Inc., 
$91,591, Brancato Landscaping Inc., $43,026, Yuritzy #2 $56,711.72, 
Medina, $67,291.51. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by 
Chapman, to refer the bids to the Berwyn Development Corporation and 
the Public Works Department. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

20. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Laureto, seconded by Avlla, to adjourn at the hour of 
8:30 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

4 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
FEBRUARY 8, 2011 

1. The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 6:05 
p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: Chapman, 
Boyajian, Paul, Polashek, Laureto. Absent: Skryd, Santoy, Avila. 

2. Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to excuse Aldermen Skryd, 
Santoy, and Avila. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3. Cermak Road Architectural and Historical Survey Presentation-The Mayor 
referred to Brian Pabst, member of the Cermak Road Preservation Steering 
Committee, who spoke regarding the Steering Committee's choIce of Lakota 
Group for the analysis of Cermak Road from a Historical Preservation 
standpoint and introduced Nick Kalogeresls of the Lakota Group who gave a 
power pOint presentation, see copy, noting that Lakota partnered with Harboe 
Architects. 
Alderman Santoy present at 6: 17 p. m. 
Alderman Skryd present at 6:19 p.m. 
Kalogeresls noted the Survey Project Purpose was to: 

• Conduct Preservation Planning for Cermak Road 
1. Indentify and document Important Cermak Road historic resources 
2. Buildings eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 

Individually or as a district 
3. Eligibility for listing as a Berwyn landmark or as part of a local district 

• Encourage historic preservation-based on economic development 
• Funding was provided by Certified Local Government Grant of $10,000 
• Survey Data Included 

1. General Building Information 
2. Architectural Description 
3. Significance Evaluation 
4. Archival Information 
5. Photographs 

• Significant Evaluation included: 
1. Significant Level I (National Register of Historic Places) 
2. Significant Level II (City of Berwyn Landmark Eligible) 
3. Contributing 
4. Non-Contrlbuting-Additlonal Investigation Needed 
5. Non-Contrlbutlng- No Merit 

• Eligibility Criteria included 
1. Existence In the National Register of Historic Places 
2. Site of a historic event important to Berwyn 
3. Significant person or persons associated with Berwyn's heritage 



Committee of The Whole 
February 8, 2011 

4. Significant architectural type, style or engIneering specimen 
5. Significant builder, architect, engineer or landscape architect 

• They researched over 155 buildings with the Projected Conclusion by 
Significance 

1. Significant Level I, 14 buildings 
2. Significant Level II, 12 buildings 
3. Contributing, 69 buildings 
4. Non-Contributing, Level I, 27 buildings 
5. Non-Contributing, Level II, 33 buildings 

• Survey Conclusions 
1. Seek National Register listing for Significant I properties 
2. Seek City Landmark designations for Significant I and II 

properties 
3. Consider Multiple Property National Register Nomination for banks 

and apartment blocks 
4. Explore National Register District with the IHPA 
5. Investigate Non-Contributing I properties 
6. Develop design guidelines 
7. Conduct additional archival research 
8. Keep survey updated 

After the presentation; 
• Alderman Santoy questioned page 225 of the Comprehensive Report 

regarding the Marik Funeral Home and it originally being listed as a 
Non-Contributing building, answer, It was a mistake in the draft and 
suggested seeing the supplement pages where It has Significant 
Status. 

• Alderman Paul questioned page 223 from the Comprehensive Report 
regarding 6500 Cermak Road and Its significance, answer, It has a 
Significant I level 

The Mayor then questioned if the committee had a chance to review all the 
pages of the Comprehensive Report. Brian Pabst answered yes and a 
general consensus was had on all of the properties listed. 
The Mayor then questioned If the next step would to design guidelines for 
the district. Mr. Kalogeresis answered, yes, these guidelines would be 
strictly voluntary, but also may be used as an educational tool to work with 
the property owners in making them aware of the grant dollars available to 
rehab their properties and or restore. 
The Mayor questioned If the Committee will meet again to come back with 
recommendations. Pabst answered, the committee can meet to go forward 
with recommendations but at this time the City Council needs to accept the 
matter as informational. 

Alderman Paul questioned If this was just an external survey of the 
properties, answer, they did not go Into properties however, they did 

[2J 



Committee of The Whole 
February B, 2011 

inspect the exterior front, back, and rear quite extensively and noted more 
research needs to be done regarding architects, significant occupants etc. 
or any other significant history related to these buildings and or 
properties. The Mayor thanked the Committee for all their hard work. 

4. The Mayor stated that there was no other business to be discussed for the 
open Committee of the Whole and asked for a motion to go Into closed for 
pending litigation. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to 
close the Committee of the Whole at 6:53 p.m. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

5. Avila made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to reopen the Committee of the 
Whole at 7: 17 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to adjourn the Committee of 
the Whole at 7:17 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

[3] 



D. Bid Openings Tabulations 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn TownshiplHealth District 



berwyn development 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.befWYn.net 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City CounclJ 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn. II.. 60402 

Re: 2011 Seasonal Planting and Upkeep - Contract Award 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

In accordance with the RFP that was issued at the January 11 th City Council 
Meeting, the contract for the 2011 Seasonal Planting and Upkeep contract is to be 
awarded at this City Council Meeting. 

After reviewing the thirteen submitted bids, the Berwyn Development 
Corporation is submitting the attached audited bid tab. 

After auditing the bids, checking references and verifying equipment. it is the 
recommendation of the Berwyn Development Corporation to select McAdam 
Landscaping at a bid price of $38,759.28. 

Upon your approval. Public Works will work with the selected company to 
perform the install and ongoing uplceep as detailed in the RFP. 

Respectfully submitted for your consideration. 

£:2: 
Evan K. Summers 
Project Manager 



2011 Seasonal Planting & Upkeep 
City of Berwyn, IL 

Tuesday, February 08, 2011 
Nam~ Ad!ll,e~ Am2unl 

It!e~ 15001 159th St. $ 60356.00 

Lockport, IL 60441 

1T.l.e. Group P.O. Box 127 $ 74,999.97 

Clarendon Hills, IL 60514 

Acres Grou p 610 W. Liberty St. S 41,483.96 
• Corrected from 

Wauconda,ll60084 $41,183.96 

McAdam landscaping 2001 DesPlalnes Ave $ 38,759.28 

Forest Park, IL 60130 

Landscape Concept Mgnt 31748 N. Alleghany Rd . $ 42,843.90 

Grayslake, IL 60030 

City Escape Garden 3022 W. lake St. $ 37,489.00 

Chicago, IL 60612 

Kinsella Landscape Inc 13821 Harrison St. S 59,927.00 
·Corrected from 

Blue Island, Il60406 $59,977.29 

~hrlsty Webber Landscape 2900 W. Ferdinand $ 55,394.80 

Chicago, IL 60612 

KGI landscaping P.O. Box 265 $ 94,576.00 

SkkokJe, Il60076 

Ivurltzy RC landscapIng 7030 W. Pershing Rd. $ 91,591.00 

Berwyn, Il 60402 

Brancato landscaping Inc. P.O. Box 481088 $ 41,166.00 
·Colrected from 

Niles, IL 60714 $43,026.00 

Yurltzy 112 7916 W. 45th PI $ 56,711.72 

lyons, Il60534 numerous pricing elrors 

Medina landscaping 3610 N Cicero Ave $ 67,291.51 
Chicago, Il 60641 



F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



The City of Berwyn 
Robert J. Lovero 

Mayor 

A Century of Procress with Pride 

6700 West 28'" Street Barwyn, DlJ.nois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-21567 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, The Scouts, Leaders and Committee Members of Boy Scout Troop 24 take great pleasure in 

announcing that having completed the requirements for, and having been examined by an Eagle Scout Board 

of Review, Christian William Flasza was found worthy of the rank of Eagle Scout; 

WHEREAS, Christian has earned 29 merit badges and served hIs troop in a variety of leadership roles. His 

Eagle Scout Service Project consisted of a major service project, construction of an herbal garden for the Save 

the Prairie Society at the 1850's Franzosenbusch Prairie House Nature Center and Museum in Westchester, 

Illinois; 

WHEREAS, Christian, a resident of Berwyn and a freshman at Morton College has previously received a black 

belt in Taekwondo, plays drums and received the Louis Armstrong Jazz Award and the President's Award from 

St. Joseph High School in Westchester, Illinois; 

WHEREAS, in honor of this achievement on Saturday. March 6,2011, the Eagle Scout Court of Honor will be 

presenting Christian William Flasza Scouting's highest honor, the Eagle Scout; 

NOW, THEREFORE, let it be proclaimed, that Mayor Robert J. Lovero and members of the Berwyn City Council 

congratulate Christian William Flasza on achieving the highest level of Eagle Scout, and dedare Saturday, 

March 6,2011 as Christian William Flasza day. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn this 22nd day of February, 2011 

~ al I' fl .. " 
: , l ., ... - • • • n )1 . ' 

, ... . 
<II, . ( 

I , , .\ 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



H. Communications From (Zoning) 

Board of Appeals 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



J City of Berwyn 

/' 
Cesar A. Santoy 

5 lh Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (70S) 749·6405 Fax: (708) 788·2675 

www .berwyn -il.gov 

February 17,2011 

Hon. Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th st. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

5thward@berwyn-il.gov 

Re: Cuyler Park / North Berwyn Park District / KaBOOMI 

Ladles and Gentlemen: 

I'd like to take this opportunity to inform the City Council of a potential grant opportunity for Cuyler Park 
(also known as Brocato Park) and the North Berwyn Park District and to request your approval to allow 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero to execute the attached Letter of Permission. 

Taken from KaBOOM l's website: NKaBOOMI is a national non-profit dedicated to saving play for America's 
children. Our mission is to create great playspaces through the partIcipation and leadershIp of communities. 
Ultimately, we envision a place to play within walking distance of every child in America. H See the attached 
pdfs for more information pertinent to Cuyler Park and visit www.kaboom.org for additional Information 

KaBOOM! matches corporate sponsors with community partners for the purpose of building playgrounds in 
urban areas. In this case, the North Berwyn Park District is the applicant and If selected would be 
responsible for the maintenance of the playground Including site preparation, fund raising and volunteer 
recruitment. Being that the City of Berwyn Is the landowner, KaBOOM! req ulres potential recipients to 
secure the approvals for land use prior to award announcements. 

This opportunity would be implemented at no cost to the City of Berwyn and would complement and 
en hance future plans for the ownership and development of Cuyler Park and adjacent public parcels. I have 
worked on two KaBOOMI builds recently and the process is energetic & engaging and the results are 
positive & enduring. 

It is my request that City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the attached Letter of Permission allowing the 
North Berwyn Park District to build a playground at Cuyler Park. 

Sincerely, 

c~~ 
5111 Ward Alderman 

Encl: KaBOOMI Conference Call Summary, Promotional Brochures 
Cc: NBPD Executive Director and Board of Commissioners 



i4 starts with a.. 
playgroUna. 

KaBOOM! Community Build Commitment Summary 

Date:1/1212011 
On the Call: 
Main POC on app - Joseph Vallez, Executive Director 
2nd POC on app - Nancy Woods, Admin Supervisor 
Facilities Rep - Joseph Vallez 
Community Reps/Parents: Alderman Cesar Santoy, Felipe Suarez, Cheryl Jessogne - parent 
Anyone else will Include park district Commissioners: Ann Mackin, Ralph Avila, Jeanmarle Hajer 

Community Partner Responsibilities 
Primary Contact (on site contact that would be accessible to the Project Manager and on every 
planning call)- Joseph Vallez, Executive Director 
Secondary Contact (would be up to date on project)· Nancy Woods, Administrative Supervisor 
Construction Co-Chair/Facilities Contact - Joseph Vallez, Executive Director 

Fundraised amount due 30 days before the Build Day: $8500 

The potential Community Partner would have 150 volunteers for build day. 

Could the Community Partner provide 15 volunteers for prep day one and two? (Including several that 
would be able to 11ft heavy objects and cut wood.) YES 

Most KaBOOM! BuUd Days take place during the week. Do you believe you could still recruit your 
volunteers If your build took place during the week? YES 

Does the potential Community Partner understand the Corporate Sponsorship Polley of KaBOOMI? 
YES 

Will the Community Partner fonn a planning committee of 12-15 adults that would have weekly 
planning calls with the Project Manager and help ~ad the planning for this build? (must 
constitute at least 50% parents) Yes, The Park District has an organized park volunteer program, 
have done volunteers for Earth Day and other events. They collaborate with the schools and the 
nleghboring park districts. The Parks District also has the support of the local Alderman and 
community members in the neighborhood that want to get involved in the creation of a new park. 

SITE DETAILS: 
Who owns the land? City of Berwyn 
Does the site need a penn It to be obtained at least 2 weeks before the Build Day? 
No permits needed. 
What are the exact dImensIons of the proposed playground area? 
45 x 121. 
Where would the volunteers store and assemble the eqUipment and side projects? 
The equipment would need to get stored in a storage unit (parks District has one) and the assembly could 
happen on the street (blocked off for the Prep Days and Build Day). 
What Is the history of the site (I.e. house used to be on site, etc.)? The site is a playground and spray
ground. Both installations will be removed and the pipes excavated 2 weeks before Build Day. 



The playground from 1998 and needs to be replaced. 
What, If any, are the obstacles on site (I.e. underground sprinklers, trees, etc.)? 
The area is fenced in and there are a number of trees on site. The sprayground seems to be the biggest 
installation that needs to be removed along with the underground piping. 
Where would water and electricity be accessed for the Build Day? 
Yes, the pool facility has both water and electrical access. 

The Community Partner would be responsible for completing the site preparation at least 2 weeks 
before the Build Day resulting in a flat dirt surface. Who would be responsible for this? 
Joseph Vallez, Executive Director, would oversee this work and is confident this can be done by the June 3/0 
Build Day. 

Would any current equipment be removed? Yes, see above. 
Who would do site prep? The Parks District can do most of the site prep work on their own with their own 
equipment but can also contract out any work as needed. 
If selected would you be willing to complete utillty and soli tests Immediately? (Knowing that If there 
are high levels of lead and arsenic the potential Community Partner would be responsible for 
remediation) Yes 

What. 11 any, specific requirements does your City. district, or organization have for a playground? 
No requirements out of the norm. Equipment from Playworld Systems is fine. 

In following the Federal Law mandating every playground has an accessIble pathway leading to It, Is 
the Community Partner willing to make sure this happens at their playground site? YES 

Are there other playgrounds In the area? 
There aren't any other playgrounds withing walking distance. Oak park is the closest but it is not very close. 
How close? Who uses them (public or private)? 
Public. 

DESIGN AND BUILD LOGISTICS: 
Does the potential Community Partner agree to having 20-30 parents/adults and 20-30 children for a 
Design Day that would happen during the week? (children for the first hour, adults the entire 3 hours, 
and the key decision makers for a site walk through before, potential Communfty Partner would need 
to provide chlldcare) YES 

The potential Community Partner agrees to: EACH ITEM LISTED BELOW 
• Using Playworld Systems Inc. as the vendor YES 
• Using Engineered Wood Fiber as the only safety surfacfng YES 
• Having a KaBOOMI standard permanent sign on site with the Funding Partner Logo YES 
• Having parents and community members Involved on the planning committee and throughout 

the planning and build process YES 
• Providing food, water and bathrooms for 200+ volunteers on the prep and build days YES 
• Having a recycling dumpster and trash dumpster at the build site for the prep and build days 

YES 
• Supplying the necessary tools for the build day (as found on the KaBOOMl Summary) YES 
• Keeping the atmosphere tun and enjoyable throughout the buUd day with music YES 
• Incorporating Service Learning for the children that will be using the playground YES 

o What children will be part of the Service Learning Curriculum? Parks District's program
enrolled kIds. 

o What adult will be responsible for the Service Learning? The Parks District will have to 
recruit someone. 

Garden Pro lect: 
Location for Garden: This is to be determined. The Parks District will go out to the site to determine the final 
location of the playground and the garden next week. 



Garden Co-Chalr: The Parks District already has a garden program and it should not be difficult to recruit 
someone to lead the Garden Team. 

Kids Involvement through garden learning activities: Yes, need to determine how this will play out but 
they are committed to getting the kids involved. 

WRAP UPI NEXT STEPS: 
What Is the complete contract approval process for the potential Community Partner? 
Send it for legal review takes 7-10 days to get it reviewed. It's already been sent, goes also to park district 
attorney. 
How long will it take? 
7-10s 
Who would sign a final Letter of Agreement If selected? (Name and Thle) 
Park District Board President. 
Draft letter of Agreement Approval Deadline/Letter of Intent due date: 
January 24th. 



BaBOOM!-led Builds 

Each year, HaBOOM! leads a number of playground builds 
across the country using our time-tested communlty
build model. 

These done-in-a-d8\V plB\Ygrounds, ice rinks and skateparka are 
dramatic, inspirational events that people come back for agaJn 
and again. 

The community-build process kicks off with Design DlW where 
locaJ. children help design the new pllWspaoe. After Design DSiY. the 
plB.nning period bagins. Each weak a Ka.BOOMI Project Manager 
works with the pla.nn1n.g committee to help them organize logistics 
for the day of the build. Th1a eight to ten week planning period 
culminates in Build D~, in which 160 to 500 community and 
corporate volunteers work side by side to build a plSiYground, 
ice rink or skatepark or refurbish a. sports field ... aJl1n one dSiY I 

These KaBOOMI-led projects are proven models of how building a 
plB\Yground can strengthen people's fa.1th in themselves and:ln their 
communities. Not only is a space transformed, but the people who 
made it possible also cha.:nge because of the experience a.nd walk 
awa;y knoWing they can make a difference I 

Sample Playground D_ign 

4466 Connecticut Ave. NW • Suite BlOO • Wa.shJngton, DC 20008 • 202.669.0216 

i~ starts with q, 
playgroUna.. 



i4 starts with Br 
playgroUna. 

kaboom.org 

Here's a snapshot of a typical Build Day: 
7:30 a.m. - Volunteers are welcomed to the build site by excited 
Build Captains donning purple and orange Ka.BOOM I gear. They 
distribute group assignments a.nd direct volunteers to the breakfB.Bt 
area where they can a.ll gather and meet before the da\Y gets started.. 

8:30 a.m. - The official Build D8\V kick-off begins I The Ka.BOOM I 
Project Managers, community leaders and Build Captains speak on 
the background of the project and the safety:!Bsues for the d~. They 
then lead the group in rounds of cheers and warm-up exercises. The 
Cupid Shuffle is one of our faVOrite wB(fs to get the blood flowing I 

10:00 a.m. - At this point in the d.a&', everyone is hard at work. Take 
a walk around the site and you'll find volunteers shoveling mulch 
to provide a. safe ground surface for the pl8iVgr(JUnd, or construct
ing rockblocks on which the cb1ldren will climb, or paJ.nt1ng mural 
pieces to bring some color to the plBNground. 

18:00 p.m.. - At lunchtime, volunteers ea.t in rotating groups. 
This allows aJl our volunteers to take a break: and ea.t a. well
deserved, hearty meaJ.. This system also allows the building 
process to stay on track, as there is never a moment when the 
build site is empty. 

1:30 p.m. - The p~ground is a.lmost complete I Volunteers who 
have completed the1r ass1gnments help others who aren't quite done 
yet or begin to olear the site of trash and debriS, :ma.king 

wBN for the fantastic ribbon-cutt1ng ceremony to followl 

2:30 p.m. - Celebration I After about six hours of hard work., the 
pl88ground is complete. The volunteers and community members 
ga.ther to celebrate this wonderful aocompliBhment of strengthenl.ng 
their community by build.ing a grea.t new place to plB(f1 



Farmers' Gardens 
Healthy Eating + Active Kids 

KaBOOM! is excited to partner with communities to support 

healthy lifestyles for children in two important ways: building 

great, safe places for kids to play; and growing and harvesting 

fresh fruits , vegetables and herbs. 

Farmers' Gardens 

• Will be next to the playground or accessible from the playground 

via a walking path 

• Will grow vegetables, fruits and herbs 

• Will be community-driven and site-specific, with a focus on native plants growing in their hardiness 

zones 

• Will incorporate service learning to engage children in the creation and maintenance of the garden: 

these activities should take place at least every two weeks during project planning. Examples include 

having children plant and tend seeds; teaching children to compost: and designing the garden with 

input from the kids based 

on what they've learned 

about plants in their local 

climate 

• Will include at least two 

raised, accessible plant

ers and will be reachable 

by an ADA accessible 

path 

i4 s "'tEl vv1th & 
playgroUna. 



Garden Maintenance 

• Community groups will need to create a mainte

nance plan for the garden tailored to the unique 

needs of the site. 

• The maintenance plan must address who will 

take the lead in garden upkeep and how often 

community members will spend time maintaining 

the garden. 

• Ongoing garden activities such as weeding, 

planting, winterizing and harvesting 

should engage children in the different 

aspects of caring for gardens. 

• For the six months following the build, 

groups should submit photographs 

and progress reports on childrens I 

involvement in gardening to KaBOOM! 

• There is an opportunity to win another 

grant for garden maintenance based 

on progress reports after six months. 

KaBOOM! is dedicated to saving play for our 

nation I s children. Our community-built 

playgrounds foster healthy families by creating 

safe spaces for outdoor activity. We recognize 

that active, moving kids need healthy 

nourishment to combat childhood obesity. 

Farmers I gardens will let kids get their hands 

dirty as they learn about the fundamentals of 

food cultivation: they can have fun, learn 

through their experience, and eat healthy all at 

the same time! 



~ CiQ Of Berwyn 
/ (t' 

Cesar A. Santoy 
5 th Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
Berwyn, Ulinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 749·6405 Fax: (?08) 788-2675 

w ... ,rw ,berwyn-il.gov 

February 17, 2011 

Hon. Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th St. 
Berwyn, I L 60402 

Re: Small Business Utilization Program 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

6thward@berwyn·il.gov 

The City of Berwyn Is has demonstrated a commitment to the business community through its support of the 
Berwyn Development Corporation, the establishment of TIF districts and the overall revitalization of our 
business corridors. It Is in this same spirit that I would like to initiate a study for the implementation of a Small 
Business Utilization Program for the City of Berwyn. 

It is my recommendation to refer this matter to the Business, License and Taxation Committee for further 
study. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Cesar A. Santoy 

5th Ward Alderman 



Obe~Lovero 
or 

\/. 

Michele D. Skryd 
Fourth Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

February 17,2011 

Hon. Robert J. Lovero 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 261h Street 
Berwyn, lL 60402 

RE: Left Tum Arrow Signal Located at Ogden and Ridgeland for East Bound Traffic 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

It has come to my attention that traffic patterns and vehicle counts on Ogden are steadily increasing. The 
opening of Paisan's Pizza, while a welcomed addition to Berwyn will also affect Ogden Avenue traffic. 

When properly used, traffic control signals are valuable devices for the control of vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. They assign the right-of-way to the various traffic movements and thereby profoundly influence 
traffic flow. 

Traffic control signals that are properly designed, located, operated, and maintained will have one or more of 
the following advantages: 

• They provide for the orderly movement of traffic. 
• They increase the traffic handling capacity of the intersection if proper physica11ayouts and control 

measures are used, and if the signal timing is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure 
that it satisfies current traffic demands. 

• They reduce the frequency and severity of certain types of crashes, especially right angle collisions. 
• They are coordinated to provide for continuous or nearly continuous movement of traffic at a definite 

speed along a given route under favorable conditions. 
• They are used to interrupt heavy traffic at intervals to permit other traffic, vehicular or pedestrian, to 

cross. 

It would be my recommendation to direct the traffic engineer to conduct a study and report and if warranted 
petition lOOT to allow installation of left tum arrow for east bound travel at the intersection of Ogden and 
Ridgeland Avenues. 

Respectfully, 

M~lJ.~ 
Michele D. Slayd 
Alderman 4th Ward 



!. ~rt J. Lovero 
/ Mayor 

Michele D. Skryd 
Fourth Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26110 Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

February 17,2011 

Han. Robert J. Lavero 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: South Bound Harlem Avenue Signage Placement on West Bound 26th Street 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

The west bound traffic on 26th Street at Harlem Avenue during peak travel periods needs to be addressed. I 
am not sure if MUTCD has signage to divert traffic from west bound 26th street to use Riverside Drive as a 
route to south bound Harlem Avenue. 

It would be my recommendation to refer this matter to the traffic engineer for study and report. 

Respectfully, 

~~ D. <1LJ. 
Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 4th Ward 



R/bert J. Lavero 
V)Mayor 

I 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Michele D. Skryd 
Fourth Ward Alderman 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 F8lI:: (708) 788'2675 
www.berwyn·ilgov 

February 17, 2011 

Hon. Robert J. Lovero 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: 8K RUN FOR FUN 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

Please review the attached information for a proposed 8K RUN FOR FUN. The LLC is a group of running 
enthusiast that have roots in Berwyn. They want to promote awareness of adult and childhood obesity and 
showcase the city of Berwyn through the joy of running. 

The fIrst hurdle needed for the group to proceed is the ability to have the street closures for the race route. 
They are aware that some of the streets are State Roads and others are County Roads. 

The LLC would work with the city to reach an agreement for additional services that they may require such 
as Police, Emergency Services and post-race clean up. 

It would be my recommendation to have the city of Berwyn facilitate through the proper channels the 
permission to secure the closures needed for the course of the race. 

Respectfully, 

['l\~ D, ~ 
Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 4th Wam 





~)t l'l}D ~lTl ~f§~D 
8K Run for Fun 

WelcolDe to the 1st Annual 
Cinco De Mayo 8k Run for Fun 

• Race will expose runners and families to Berwpl's business areas 
such as the 16th street business corridor, Cermak Main street and 
the Depot distric corridor. 

• The goal is to give the opportunity to runners and family 
merribers to come and see what this city has to offer. 

• This race will also promote exercise and good health practices to 
residents and visiting family members. 

• Buy Berwyn, Run Berwyn ... 

2 



~~ lU>D 
8K Run for Fun 

12th St 

CJ) ~-' 
J: 0 ('I) 
~ It) 
:. 7f:' 

~ 16th Sf : 
t ~ 
(fj t 

CD 

:ID 

CJ) 

3: 

I 
t 
$ 

r:J 
34th St eJ' ~.,e 

~~ 

,..",,~e 

Rc 

C/ 

~ 
)!l 
s 

~ 

\ 

( .. 

~TrL "'\~~~D 

8k race will cover 5 miles going 
from the Cermak Road Corridor to 

the Depot District. 

e Race will start and finish at the Morton 
West H.S. campus. 
e Important points throughout the race. 
eMile 0-1 : Cermak Main St Business 
corridor . 
-Mile 1-2: 16th Street Theatre & Lincoln Jr. 
High. 
eMile 2-3= Janura Park and Hiawatha 
Elem. School 
eMile 3-4: Depot District 
eMile 4-5: Proksa Park 

3 



~1t TtPo ~m. ~\~§~o 

8I( Run for Fun 

Races in BeM},n, IL 
Berwyn Facts 2009 

White alone • Adult diabetes rate: 
• Berwyn: 8.4% Illinois: 8.3% 

• Adult obesity rate: 

-- lather • Berwyn: 23.5% 
• Illinois: 25.2% 
• Low-income preschool obesity rate: 

Hispanic 
• Cook County:I6.3% 
• State: 14.5% 

So.urc.e: ~:I!wwwg~n¥SHcQm/city/Berwyn-
11 · ..... ·- IllinOl$,h #ixzZIE H 

4 



~* ll}D ~lTl ~{~90~D 

8I( Run for Fun 

Race Infortnation 

• Location 
Morton West High School, Berwyn, IL 

• Entry Fee: $35 
Includes: Free tech shirt and timing chip 

• Race Day Schedule 
7:00 - Race Number/Chip Pickup 
9 :00 - Race Start 
10:30 -Awards Ceremony 
11:00 - Courses Close 

• Additional information will follow regarding sponsorship opportunities at both 
beginning and end of race. 

• Proper insurance and permits fees will be provided by company in charge of 
race. 

5 



~}t·llPD ~11l ~\~~~D 

8K Run for Fun 

Beneficiaries 
Proceeds from the event will go towards the following: 
16th Street theatre 

6 



~* lTPD ~ITL ~\"90~D 
8K Run for Fun 

Services Needed 
• Security Services 
• Emergency Services 
• Cleaning Services 
• Street Closures 

Home Ave, Cermak Rd, East Ave, 16th St, Ridgeland Ave, 26th St, Stanley Ave and 
29th Place.) 

Questions: 
Contact: Ruben Medellin 

Phone: 7°8-932-0804 
medellinx@gmail.com 

7 



Board of 
Fire & Police Commissioners 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO 
ALD. RALPH AVILA, CHAIRMAN FIRE & POLICE COMMITTEE 
POLICE CHIEF JAMES RITZ 
CITY CLERK THOMAS PAVLIK 
CITY TREASURER JOSEPH KROC 
BER WYN CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FEBRUARY 11,2011 

RE: POLICE SERGEANT PROMOTIONS 

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT THE BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE 
COMMISSIONERS PROMOTED THE FOLLOWING TWO POLlCE OFFICERS TO 
SERGEANT IN THE BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 
22, 2011. SGTS. BRIGGS AND SKR YD RETIRED, THUS CREATING THE 
VACANCY. 

JOHN O'HALLORAN 

RAMON ORTIZ 

THE BOARD WISHES THE PROMOTEES AND RETIREES WELL IN THEIR NEW 
ENDEAVOR. 

BOARD OF FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 

ANTON ADOLF CARL REINA RICK TOMAN 



J. Staff Reports 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

Honorable Mayor, Robert 1. Lovero 

And Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Ordinance Establishing a Fee For Bail Bond Administration 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

I am submitting the attached Ordinance for your consideration. This Ordinance will establish a 

fee for bail bond administration. The Law Department, the Mayor's Office as well as the Police 

Department are requesting your concurrence in the approval of this Ordinance. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~J.4~ 
Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402.0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 FlIXl (708) 788.2567 www.berwyn.iI.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A FEE FOR BAIL BOND 

ADMINISTRATION BY AMENDING CHAPTER 801 BY 

ADDING 801.16 TO THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES TO THE 

CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 
RAF AEL A VILA 

NORA LAURETO 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet fann by authority of tbe Mayor and City Clerk of tbe City of Berwyn. illinois on 
2.22.11 



ORDINANCE NO. _____ _ 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A FEE FOR BAIL BOND ADMINISTRATION 

BY AMENDING CHAPTER 801 BY ADDING 801.16 TO THE CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule municipality 

pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as such 

may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs (the 

"Home RuLe Powers"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities") have adopted a Business Regulation Licensing and Fee Ordinance, which 

has been amended from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities recognize that it has become necessary to establish 

a Bail Bond Administration Fee; and 

WHEREAS. the Corporate Authorities declare that it is in the best interests of the 

residents of the City to amend the Codified Ordinances as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois. by and through its home rule powers as follows: 

SECTION 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated herein and 

made a part hereof, as if full y set forth in their entirety. 

SECTION 2: The Codified Ordinances of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois are hereby 

amended by adding the following new Chapter to read as follows: 

801.16 Fees For Bail Bond Administration 

The Police Department shall charge a mandatory administrative processing fee in the 
amount of fifty ($50.00) and nollOO dollars to any person (s) posting bailor bond in any legal 

2 



process, civil or criminal, or on any bookable arrest, including a warrant, to be levied and paid at 
the time of posting of said bailor bond. 

SECTION 3: All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance are 
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage approval and 
publication as provided by taw. 

INTENTIONALLY LEFt BLANK 

3 



ADOPfED this __ day of February 201l, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 
Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovere) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on February _____ , 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik: 

CITY CLERK 

4 

Robert J. Lovero 

MAYOR 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

Re: Berwyn Public Library - Elevator Replacement Engineering Services Contract 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

At the March 9, 2010 council meeting, the Berwyn City Council approved my recommendation 
regarding a priority list as it relates to the use of grant monies from the Federal Energy Efficient 
Conservation Block Grant. At that time, the council concurred that the air conditioning system is 
considered a top priority. Under separate cover / memo to council, this system was bid out and we are 
recommending the lowest bidder. 

Another item of concern is the condition of the library elevators. Fortunately, the Mayor was successful 
in obtaining a $160,000 grant for the library elevators from the Illinois Department of Commerce & 
Economic Opportunity (DCEO). This grant is structured to pay for hard costs (material and labor 
related to construction type expenses) associated with this project. I have since requested that the grant 
also incorporate the design and engineering for this project. Yesterday, I was informed that although 
DCEO has preliminarily approved these costs, I will not receive this in writing until the end of February. 

Al though in this case we have already received $40,000 of the $160,000, due to the financial condition 
of the State, we have inquired as to the reliability of funding. Through communications with the 
Mayor's office, we have been able to conflrm that the capital bill has the necessary funding for us to 
receive the full grant amount, though DCEO representatives are cautious and have indicated that future 
monies are not guaranteed. Due to the condition of the elevators and the fact that we were awarded the 
majority of costs related to this project, I recommend that we move forward as soon as possible. 

If approved, Novotny & Associates (contracted City Engineer) will prepare the related documents and 
conduct the necessary up front due diligence as indicated in the attached contract. As in the past, due to 
the complex.ity of the project, I have asked that the Engineering Agreement state the hourly wages rather 
than to try to accurately forecast total preliminary project costs. 

6700 West 2601. Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788.2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



Although I do not anticipate additional costs above and beyond the grant amount, I have placed $35,000 
in the 2007 bond budget in case the bids are higher than anticipated. Once we receive bid responses, we 
will have a better idea regarding the specific costs . 

Recommendation: Approval by the Council of the attached contract with Novotny & Associates for 
preliminary work associated with library elevator repairs to include preparing documents for bidding. 

Respectful1 y, 

3~13.:r-
Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 

- 2-



Frank Novotny &" Associate~ Inc. 
825 Miall'BJ DriYe • Willuwhl'Otlk, 1L • 60527 Telephonc': (6:JO) HB7-fJfl4O • p~ (6.'JO) 887-0/.'JJ:} 

Ciril fiJnpil)f¥m 
MrwieipHJ ('Oll..'ml/;wts 

Mr. Brian Pabst 
Ad min istrator 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: Ubrary Elevator Replacement 

Dear Brian: 

February 18, 2011 

Enclosed for your review and processing are two (2) copies of an Agreement for 
Preliminary Engineering Services for the above-referenced project. If you concur, please 
have both copies executed by the Mayor and the Clerk, and return both copies to our 
office. 

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

JEF/ce 
Enclosure 
cc: File No. 11082 

Sincerely, 

John E. Fitzgerald, P.E. 

,INC. 



OWNER: ENGINEER: 

City of Berwyn L AGREEMENT FOR 
0 ENGINEERING C Frank Novotny & Associates 

Address: C SERVICES 0 Address: 

6700 West 26th Street 
A N 
L FOR S 825 Midway Drive 

City: U City: 
A PRELIMINARY L 

Berwyn 60402 G ENGINEERING T Willowbrook 
E A 

Project No.: N N State: Zip: 
C T 

11082 Y Illinois 60527 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of February, 2011, by 

and between FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC., whose address Is 825 Midway Drive, 

Willowbrook, illinois, 60521, hereInafter called the "ENGINEER", and the CITY OF BERWYN, 

hereinafter called the "OWNER" covers certain professional Engineering services In COflnection 

with the proposed improvement designated as Library Elevator Replacement. consisting of 

elevator replacement at the City Ubrary, located at 2101 South Harlem Avenue. 

WITNESSETH THAT, in consideration of these premises and of the mutual covenants herein 

set forth. 

THE ENGINEER AGREES, 

I. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following Engineering Services 
for the Owner In connection with the proposed improvement hereinbefore described: 

~ a. Site Visitation - Perform site visitations, discuss the existing condItions with the 
stakeholders, and understand the proposed project expectations of the stakeholders. 

~ b. Scope - Define the exact scope of work for the project. 

[!) c. Define the requirements of the Grantor and the required communIcations so as to 
ensure that the City of Berwyn realizes the full $160,000.00 Grant. 

I!l d. Procurement Process - Define the most cost-effective procurement process for the City. 
Define the role of the project manager who will act as the City's agent for the project. 

[!J e. Cost - Develop a reasonably accurate and detaited cost-estimate for the entire project. 

(!] f. Schedule - Create the project schedule; realizing that all work is to be complete before 
12/31/2011. 

Page 1 of 4 Rev. 2010 

Inc 



I!l g. Report - Encapsulate the above topics. Prepare a succinct report for review by City 
Administration. 

I!J h. Assist with the development of a Request for Proposal to bid out the construction 
aspects of this project. 

II. To attend conferences to be held at the request of the Owner in addition to normal visits 
for observation purposes, and visit the site and review the work at any reasonable time when 
requested to do so by the Owner. 

III. That basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computatlons and other data prepared or 
obtained by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, will be made available, upon request, to 
the Owner without cost and without restriction or limitation as to their use. 

IV. The Engineer will carry General liability insurance in the amount of not less than 
$1,000,000; Workman's Compensation of not less than $500,000; and Professional liability 
insurance of not less than $1,000,000. The Engineer shall name the Owner as UAdditional 
Insuredft on the Engineer's General Liability policy. 

THE OWNER AGREES, 

I. To pay for the services stipulated in Paragraphs I-a, b, c, d, e, f, g and h of "THE 
ENGINEER AGREES", a sum of money: 

Based on the hourly rates stipulated below for personnel assigned to this project as 
payment in full to the Engineer for the actual time spent in providing these services, the 
hourly rates include profit. overhead, readiness-to-serve, insurance. social security and 
retirement deductions. The classifications of the employees used in the work should be 
consistent with the employee classifications for the services performed. 

Grade Classification of Employee 
Principal 
Project Manager 
Project Engineer 
Senior TechnIcian 
CAD Technician 
GIS Technician 
Technical Assistant 

Hourly Rate 
$143.00 - $152.00 
$110.00 - $138.00 
$100.00 - $112.00 
$109.00 - $143.00 
$ 95.00 - $105.00 
$ 65.00 - $ 77.00 
$ 40.00 - $ 65.00 

If the Engineer incurs and must pay his employees overtime at premium rates, the 
billable rate charged above for each respective employee so affected shall be increased by 
twenty-five percent (25%). 

The hourly rates itemized above shall be effective the date the parties, hereunto entering this 
Agreement, have affixed their hands and seals and shall remain in effect until December 31, 
2011. In event the services of the Engineer extend beyond that date, the hourly rates will be 
adjusted yearly by addendum to this Agreement to compensate for increases in the salary 
structure of the Engineer that are In effect at that time. 

Page 2 of 4 Rev. 2010 



II. To allow the Engineer to sublet parts of the services provided under Paragraphs 1-
a, b, c, d, e, f, 9 and h of "THE ENGINEER AGREES". The Owner will pay the actual cost to the 
Engineer. The Cost to Engineer is to be verified by furnishing the Owner with copies of paid 
invoices from the party doing the work. 
III. That payments due the Engineer for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement will 
be made as soon as practicable after the services have been performed. 

rv. That, should the improvement be abandoned at any time after the Engineer has 
perfonned any part of the services, the Owner will pay the Engineer for such changes at the 
hourly rates noted In Part I of the above, and for his sublet e)(penses as noted in Part I[ above. 

V. That, since the Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, material and equipment, 
the estimate of probable construction cost is not a guarantee of actual construction cost, but is 
the Engineer's professional opinion as to the probable cost of construction at the time of 
preparation of the estimate. 

VI. That should the Owner require the Engineer to purchase insurance over and above the 
coverage normally carried by the Engineer and noted In Part IV of the ~ENGINEER AGREES·, 
the OWner will reimburse the Engineer at his actual invoice cost for the additional insurance 
coverage requested. 

rr IS MUTUALLY AGREED, 

I. The laws governing this Agreement shall be the laws of the State of Illinois. 

II. This Agreement may be terminated by the Owner upon givIng notice in writing to the 
Engineer at his last known post office address. Upon such termination, the Engineer shall 
cause to be delivered to the Owner all completed estimates and data if any with the 
understanding that all such material becomes the property of the Owner. OWner acknowledges 
that if conflicts exist between electronically transmitted documents and hard copy documents. 
the hard copy documents prevail. 

Page 3 of 4 



EXECUTED BY THE OWNER, this ____ day of _________ , 2011 . 

ArreST: 

8y: _________________ __ 

Printed 
NamefTitle: Thomas J. PaVlik. Clerk. 

(S E A L) 

CITY OF BERWYN 
6700 WEST 26TH STREET 
BERWYN, ILLINOIS 60402 

By:. _____ ___________________ __ 

Printed 
NamemUe: Robert J . Lovero, Mayor 

•••• * ••••• 

EXECUTED BY THE ENGINEER, this, ___ day of ___________ , 2011. 

ATTEST: 

By&e f ~ 
Printed 
NamemtJe: John E. Fitzgerald, Secretary 

(S E A L) 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
825 MIDWAY DRIVE 
WILLOWBROOK, ILLINOIS 60527 

By: __________________ _ 

Printed 
NamefTitle: James L. Calnkar. President 

Page 4 of 4 Rev. 2010 



A Century OfProgres8 with Pride 

John Wysocki 
Finance Director 

6700 Weill 26,h Street Berwyn, I1linoia 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 (708) 788'0273 
www.berwyn-il.gov 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero and the City Council 

From: John Wysocki r-~ 
Subject: 2011 Appropriation Orainance 

Date: February 17, 2011 

Attached is the 20 II appropriation ordinance which includes the 2011 budget document. The budget 
document was also distributed at the last City Council meeting. I am requesting that you adopt the 
ordinance. An adopted appropriation ordinance must be filed with the County by March 31 of each 
year. Thank you. 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMrnER ________ _ 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, Clerk 

JOSEPH M. KROC, Treasurer 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 
CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODOREJ.POLASHEK 
RAFAEL AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn 



ORDINANCE NO. 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2011 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home 
rule municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the 
State of Illinois, and, as such, may exercise any power and perform any function 
pertaining to its goverrunent and affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the Codified Ordinances of the City of Berwyn and Section 8-2-9 of 
the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-2-9) require the adoption of an ordinance 
within the first quarter of each fiscal year, to be termed the annual appropriation 
ordinance, appropriating such sums of money as are deemed necessary to defray all 
necessary expenses and liabilities of the municipality and which specifies the objects and 
purposes for which these appropriations are made and the amount appropriated for each 
Object or purpose (the "Annual Appropriation Ordinance")~ and 

WHEREAS, as required by applicable law, notice of a public hearing on the 
proposed Annual Appropriation Ordinance was published in a newspaper published in 
the City at least ten (10) days before the time of the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, such public hearing was held on February 22, 2011, with all 
wishing to speak being heard; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable law, City staff prepared a proposed 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance or a formally prepared appropriation or budget 
document upon the which this Ordinance is based, which has been and is currently 
conveniently available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council have reviewed the Annual 
Appropriation Ordinance for fiscal year 2011 and have determined that said 
appropriations are in the best interests of the City and its residents; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the City Council 
of the City of Berwyn, County of Cook, State of Illinois, in the exercise of the City's 
home rule powers. as follows: 

SECTION 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

SECTION 2: The following sums of money for each City fund, or as much 
thereof as may be authorized by law, be and are hereby appropriated for the corporate 
purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for the fiscal year commencing 
January I, 20 II and ending on December 31, 201 1 . 



SECI'ION 3: All the appropriations herein made for any purpose shall be 
regarded only as a maximtun amount to be expended under the respective appropriation 
funds, shall not be construed as a commitment, agreement., obligation or liability of the 
City, and each such appropriation being subject to further approval as to the actual 
expenditure thereof by the Mayor and City Council of the City. 

SECTION 4: To the extent allowed by applicable law, any unexpended balance 
of the appropriations for the fiscal years prior hereto are hereby specifically re
appropriated for the same fund purposes for which they were originally made and may be 
expended in making up any insufficiency in any item or items provided in this Ordinance 
without supplemental appropriation. 

SECTION 5: The sums as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, or so much thereof as may be authorized by law and needed or 
deemed necessary J are hereby appropriated to defray and pay all necessary expenses and 
liabilities of the City and such appropriations are hereby made for the objects and 
purposes as set forth in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 6: The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish this 
Ordinance in pamphlet form or in a newspaper of general circulation within the City 
within thirty (30) days after its adoption. The City Clerk is further authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Cook County Clerk within 
trurty (30) days of its adoption and the Chief Fiscal Officer of the City is authorized to 
certify to the Cook County Clerk that the Estimate of Revenues by Source, incorporated 
herein by reference, is a true statement of said revenues, which Estimate of Revenues by 
Source shall also be filed with the Cook County Clerk within said thirty (30) day period. 
The officers, employees and/or agents of the City shall take all actions necessary or 
reasonably required to carry out, give effect to and consummate the intent of this 
Ordinance and shall take all actions in conformity therewith. The officers, employees 
andlor agents of the City are specifically authorized and directed to draft and disseminate 
any and all necessary forms to be utilized in connection with the terms and purpose of 
this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance 
shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

SECTION 8: All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 9: Any non-preemptive slate statute in conflict hereof with this 
Ordinance is hereby superseded to the full extent of such conflict pursuant to the exercise 
of the home rule powers of the City. 

SECTION 10: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 

2 



ADOPTED this 22"d day of February, 2011 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this 22nd day of February 2011. 

Robert 1. Lovero, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Clerk 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

4 



2011 
Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 



The City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26th Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www.bcrwyn-il.gov 

Nona Chapman 
Jeffrey Boyajian 
Margaret Paul 
Michele Skryd 
Cesar Santoy 
Theodore Polashek 
Rafael Avila 
Nora Laureto 

Robert Lovero 
Joseph Kroc 
Thomas Pavlik 
Brian Pabst 
Anthony Bertuca 
Robert Dwan 
James Frank 
Tammy Clausen 
Denis Q'Halloran 
James Ritz 
Charles Lazzara 
Anthony Martinucci 
Robert Schiller 
John Wysocki 

John Wysocki, CPA 

2011 Annual Budget 

Members of the City Council 

Administrators 

Alderman, 1 st Ward 
Alderman, 2nd Ward 
Alderman, 3rd Ward 
Alderman, 4th Ward 
Alderman, 5th Ward 
Alderman, 6th Ward 
Alderman, 7th Ward 
Aldermen, 8th Ward 

Mayor 
Treasurer 

Clerk 
City Administrator 

City Attorney 
Director, Community Development 

Director, Information Technology 
Director, Library Services 

Fire Chief 
Police Chief 

Director, Building Department 
Director, Recreation Department 

Director, Public Works 
Director, Finance 

Report Prepared By 

Director, Finance 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Table of Contents 

Description 

Organizational Chart 

Description of Budget Process 

Budget Message 

Community Profile 

Description of City Funds and Accounting Structure 

Budget Summary - All Funds 

General Fund Summary 

General Fund Revenues 

Significant Expenditures and Expenses 

General Fund Expenditures 

General Fund Department Budget Narratives and Expenditures 
General Government 

Office of the Mayor 
Office of the City Administrator 
Office of the City Clerk 
Office of the Treasurer 
City Council 
Legal Department 
Finance Department 
Information Technology 

Public Safety 
Fire Department 
Police Department 
Fire and Police Commission 

Public Works 
Building & Neighborhood Affairs 
Streets 

1 

2 

3 

4 -6 

7-9 

10- 11 

12 

13 - 19 

20-24 

25 

26 - 29 
30 - 33 
34 - 36 
37 - 38 
39 - 41 
42 -45 
46 - 50 
51 - 60 

61 -72 
73 - 91 
92 - 93 

94 - 97 
98 - 102 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Economic Development 
Zoning Board 
Committee and Planning 

Culture and Recreation 
Recreation 
Community Relations 

Other City Departments 

Special Revenue Funds 
Library 
Senior Citizen's Program Fund 
Community Development 
Foreign Fire Tax 
Motor Fuel Tax 
South Berwyn TIF 
Cermak TIF 
Roosevelt TIF 
Ogden TIF 

Capital Projects Fund 

Debt Service Fund 
Expenditures 

Proprietary Funds 
Water and Sewer Fund 
Parking Garage Fund 
Internal Service Fund 

Appendix A: Glossary 

103 - 104 
105 - 106 

107 - 112 
113-114 
115- 116 

117 - 124 
125 - 126 
127 - 134 
135 - 137 
138 - 139 
140 - 141 
142 - 143 
144 - 145 
146 - 147 

148 - 149 

150 - 151 

152 - 156 
157 -158 
159 - 160 

161 - 165 



City of Berwyn 
Organizational Chart 

Ubrary 
Board 

Ubrary 
Director I 

Treasurer 

b--
IT CDBG 

Director Director 

Citizens of 
Berwyn 

Mayor 

City 
AdmInistrator 

1 

1 

Aldermen 

City 
Attomey 

i±l Chief ~ Chief 

~ .. 
Dept 

1 
City Clerk 

G~ 
Setvices 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Description of Budget Process 

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budget. 

... The Mayor submits to the City Council Members a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year commencing on the following January 1. The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Public Hearings are conducted by the City to obtain taxpayer comments . 

• Subsequently, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of an 
ordinance 

.. Formal budgetary control is at the department level in the general fund or 
fund level for all other funds. 

Budgetary authority lapses at year end . 

• State law requires that "expenditures be made in conformity with the budget." 
Transfers between line items in cost centers may be made by administrative 
action. Any amount to be transferred between cost centers would require 
Council approval 

... Budgeted amounts are originally adopted, with the exceptions of Council 
approved budget amendments which are reflected in the financial statements. 

2 



City of Berwyn 
2010 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2010 

2011 Budget Message from Mavor Robert J. Lovero 

It is my privilege to present the 2011 Budget of the City of Berwyn for your review. The 
2011 Budget is the result of the combined efforts of all of the Department heads along 
with the Finance Director, City Administrator and me. The total expected revenue for the 
General Fund is $48,387,674 which will be offset by budgeted expenses of $48,331,778 
for a net budget surplus of $55,896. Due to the continued national economic downturn, 
staff took additional steps to lessen the severity of the recession. While other 
municipalities continue to weather the storm by utilizing their fund balance, we did not 
have that option. However, this administration's focus has been to establish and 
strengthen a fund balance. This will enable us to better respond to future economic 
challenges. 

Through a combination of measures, staff was not only able to maintain City services, 
throughout 2010, but we were able to present a balanced budget for 2011. This 
achievement was made possible by a continued series of strategic initiatives which 
included: cost cutting measures, unpaid staff furloughs, and a presentation of our 
financial plan to Standard and Poor's. This presentation resulted in an improved credit 
rating for the City, and subsequent lower financing charges allowing for lower cost debt 
restructuring and improved fiscal responsibility. These measures collectively allowed the 
City Council to minimize the impact of a tax increase. 

Included in the budget are the department directors' goals and objectives for 2011. In 
addition, the Library budget as approved by their Board is included. We are also 
pleased with the commercial ventures targeted to open in the next year which will 
provide much needed sales tax revenue. Although we are facing economic challenges, 
as illustrated in the objectives, the City is focused on maintaining services that affect our 
citizens' quality of life. 

Our economic prudence, as indicated above, has the City well positioned to address the 
present fiscal challenges. We believe that our 2011 budget responds appropriately to 
economic conditions. In addition, we are sensitive to the need to remain flexible to adapt 
to ever-changing economic conditions. In summary, my primary goal is to provide, in a 
cost effective manner, high quality services for the citizens of Berwyn. 

3 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Profile 

Berwyn, "The City of Homes" and a Centennial City, was incorporated June 6, 1908. 
Back then, Berwyn's population was approximately 5,000 and the community was 
established from a settlement called LaVergne on the south side and a portion of Oak 
Park on the north. It was mainly farmland with few roads and much vacant land 
between the first homes being built. 

During the 1920's and 1930's, the time of Berwyn's largest residential development, 
many solidly-built brick bungalows were built. That housing stock, along with the variety 
of homes built through the 1940's, established Berwyn's reputation as a stable, family
oriented community. Today, the city's population is well over 56,000 and Berwyn 
proudly boasts the largest collection of Chicago-style bungalows in the nation, as well 
as a SUbstantial stock of multi-family apartment buildings and condominiums. 

Location is one of Berwyn's greatest assets. It is less than ten miles west of Chicago's 
main business district, the "Loop," and is situated between two major expressways, the 
Eisenhower (1-290) on the north and the Stevenson (I-55) on the south. Berwynites 
have the convenience of railroad and bus transportation to Chicago and all its 
surrounding suburbs. METRA commuter railroad trains run directly through the heart of 
Berwyn's "Depot District," and the suburban PACE bus system serves all the main 
streets of the city. Residents and visitors find it easy to drive to and from the Chicago 
area's two main airports, O'Hare Field and Midway. 

The following chart illustrates a comparison of Berwyn and its surrounding suburbs: 

City of Berwyn 
Comparison to Surrounding Communities 

Land Area Pop Density Per Capita Avg Household Mean Home 

__ C_it_y __ Population ~~~~~ 

Berwyn 58,037 3.9 14,881 $ 19,113 $ 43,101 $ 143,100 
Cicero 85,616 5.8 14,761 12,489 38,044 125,322 
Oak Park 52,524 4.7 11,175 36,340 59,183 231,300 
Riverside 8,895 2.0 4,448 34,712 64,931 510,094 
North Riverside 6,688 1.5 4,459 24,034 43,856 150,000 

Berwyn enjoys a wide ethnic diversity of its residents. Large numbers of Czechs and 
Slovaks were part of the original settlers of the city, along with many Italians, Greeks, 
Poles, Yugoslavians and Ukrainians. In recent years, many people of Hispanic, African 
and Asian descent have settled in the city. Berwyn values its proud reputation as a 
residential community of hard-working, middle-class families. It's composed mainly of 

4 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Profile 
conservative, blue-collar families merged with young professionals and individuals who 
practice a variety of religions and alternative lifestyles. 

Residents and visitors pay homage to the city's rich cultural diversity during two annual 
festivals, the "Houby Day Parade" honoring Czechs and the food staple mushroom 
(houby), and the Italian Feast of Our Lady of Lauretana. For many years, the 
"Summerfaire" festival was presented featuring nationally-famous and local 
entertainment. 

Although there is almost no industry in the city, four main business districts feature 
thriving retail and service-oriented businesses. MacNeal Hospital and Turano Baking 
Company are two of the largest employers, along with Berwyn's municipal government. 
The four districts, all running east-to-west through the city, are (from north to south): 
Roosevelt Road, Cermak Road, Depot District and Ogden Avenue. 

More than one dozen public parks and community centers afford a wide variety of 
recreational opportunities. The Berwyn Park District and the North Berwyn Park District, 
along with the Berwyn Recreation Department, an arm of city government, provide 
recreation programs that involve all categories of sports for all ages as well as three 
swimming pools, a multitude of playgrounds, tennis courts, picnic I play areas and well
maintained green spaces throughout the city. 

Berwyn is home to many community service organizations that meet the needs of all 
residents. Many of these non-profit organizations receive funding through a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG). Berwyn operates the CDBG as a separate fund 
and several employees oversee its administration. The Berwyn Development 
Corporation is a private corporation established to work closely with city government to 
assist in administering four Tax Increment Financing Districts (TIF districts) to benefit 
businesses and residents and improve the city's economic status. The BDC also 
serves as a chamber of commerce for the city and operates a variety of programs that 
benefit residents and business people alike. 

Public safety is a top priority in Berwyn. The City boasts a regular, full-time fire 
department with more than 70 employees who work from three fire stations. The police 
department is well-staffed with more than 240 police personnel, as well as an auxiliary 
police department and an active group of citizen volunteers and a well-organized 
Neighborhood Watch Organization. 

The city of Berwyn's full-time Public Works Department fulfills the responsibilities of 
maintaining the city's streets and infrastructure and operates the water and sewer 
utilities as an enterprise fund. Other utilities that serve the city's residents, such as 
garbage collection, are operated privately under city contracts. 

5 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Community Profile 
Berwyn's city hall is located at 6700 W. 26th St., Berwyn, IL 60402. Phone: (708)788-
2660. 

The Berwyn Health Department operates independently of the city as a separate 
governmental entity and taxing body and serves the entire Berwyn area to meet the 
public health needs of the community. Other governmental and not-for-profit entities 
include schools, churches, parks and recreation, which are all-important in Berwyn. The 
public school system consists of Elementary School Districts #98 and #100 and Morton 
High School District #201, along with Morton Community College located in neighboring 
Cicero. Those schools are complemented by two parochial schools, St. Odilo and St. 
Leonard, which serve students from kindergarten through eighth grade. 

Berwyn's city government consists of the mayor, city clerk, city treasurer, eight 
aldermen and a city administrator, all of whom preside over 17 city departments that 
serve the needs of everyone who lives, works or visits in Berwyn, a community that is 
proud of its heritage and its future. 

6 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Description of City Funds and Accounting Structure 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The City's fiscal year is the calendar year. As 
required by Illinois Statutes, budgets are adopted for the City's funds, which are 
classified and defined as follows: 

The City has established the General Fund, the Cermak TIF Fund, the Debt Service 
Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund as the major funds for the purpose of financial 
reporting. The General Fund is always established as a major fund. The determination 
of other major funds is made by the following calculation: If assets, liabilities, revenues, 
or expenditures in any specific fund account for 10% or more of the total assets, 
liabilities, revenues, or expenditures in all governmental funds, then these funds are 
considered major. 

Governmental Fund Types 

These are the funds through which most of the functions of the City are financed. These 
funds are budgeted on a modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus of the 
modified accrual basis of accounting is on available spendable resources; that is, the 
flow of resources into and out of the organization in providing services. The reported 
fund balance of the City represents a measure of these resources. Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. 
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be 
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures, other than interest on long 
term debt, are recorded when the liability is incurred, if measurable. Following are the 
City's governmental funds: 

General Fund-

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources, except those required to be presented in another fund. The General 
Fund encompasses all of the primary functions for the City including: general 
government, police, fire, public works, garbage, economic development and culture and 
recreation. 

Special Revenue Funds -

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are designated or legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. 
Special revenue funds utilized by the City include the following: 

7 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Description of City Funds and Accounting Structure 

Special Revenue Funds - (continued) 

Librarv Fund - Used to account for all resources and expenditures related to the 
Berwyn Public Library. 

Senior Citizens Program Fund - Used to account for the spending of funds on various 
senior programs 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - Used to account for the operation of street maintenance 
programs and capital projects as authorized by the Illinois Department of 
Transportation. Financing is provided from the City's share of gasoline taxes. 

Cermak. Ogden. Roosevelt, and South Berwyn Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Funds -
Used to account for economic development and other projects within the boundaries of 
each tax increment district. The use of these funds is restricted by the project plan and 
for the repayment of principal and interest incurred for these projects. 

CDBG Fund - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures incurred 
under the City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. 

Foreign Fire Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds and spending of the foreign fire 
insurance tax. 

Other special revenue funds that appear in the City's audited financial statements but 
are not budgeted are the Grant Fund, Emergency 911 Fund, Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program (NSP) Fund and the Asset Forfeiture Fund. 

Debt Service Fund -

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the repayment of principal and interest on 
long-term obligations. Expenditures are financed through the annual property tax levy. 

Capital Projects Funds -

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition of equipment, construction of major capital facilities or other long term 
projects, not reported in the enterprise fund or the TIF funds. 

8 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Description of City Funds and Accounting Structure 

Proprietary Fund Types 

These fund types are used to account for activities funded primarily through user 
charges. The basis of accounting used for budgeting these funds is accrual basis, with 
the exception of depreciation which has not been budgeted for. The focus of accrual 
accounting is mainly upon the determination of net income and the maintenance of 
capita/. Therefore, included within these funds are all assets and liabilities associated 
with the fund's operations. Revenue are recognized under the accrual basis of 
accounting when earned and expenses are recorded as soon as they result in liabilities 
for benefits received, notwithstanding that the receipt or payment of cash may take 
place in another accounting period. For budgetary control purposes, the City also 
appropriates the capital expenditures for the proprietary funds. The City prepares 
budgets for the following proprietary fund types: 

Enterprise Funds -

Enterprise funds are used to account for service that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to a private business. The intention is for user fees to cover the cost of 
providing services, including depreciation. The City operates the Water and Sewer Fund 
and the Parking Garage Fund as Enterprise funds. 

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for all costs of 
providing water and sewer service to the residents and businesses within the City of 
Berwyn. This fund is supported solely by user charges for these services. 

Parking Garage Fund - The Parking Garage Fund is used to account for all costs of 
operating the municipal parking garage in the Depot TIF district. This fund is supported 
by user charges for parking in the garage. 

Internal Service Funds -

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department to other departments of the City. 

Insurance Fund - The Insurance Fund is used to account for all costs of providing 
workmen's compensation, general liability, boiler and property coverage for all of the 
City's employees and its equipment. The Insurance Fund then charges a fee to all of the 
other departments of the City based on claims history or other allocation method. 

9 



City of Berwyn 
Budget Summary - All Funds 

2011 Budget 

Special Revenue Funds 

Senior Community Foreign Motor 
General Library Citizen's Development Fire Tax Fuel Tax S.Berwyn 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund T1F Fund 

2011 Budget 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 31,863,456 $ 2,891,312 $ - $ - $ 34,152 $ - $ 1,231,143 
Licenses and Permits 2,644,420 
Charges for Services 5,831,798 500 17,500 20,000 
Fines 4,400,000 42,000 
Intergovemmental Revenues 95,000 80,000 58,000 2,343,534 1,420,000 
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,283,000 1,000 4,000 20,000 
Other Financing Sources 2,270,000 205,000 

Total Revenues 48,387,674 3,014,812 280,500 2,343,534 34,152 1,444,000 1,251,143 

Expenditures 
General Government 4,075,591 
Public Safety 33,825,436 18,000 
Public Works 4,650,685 1,125,000 
Economic Development 157,071 2,343,534 1,404,500 
Culture and Recreation 1,352,920 3,009,986 252,005 
Garbage 4,065,075 
Capital 
Debt Service 223,819 
Water and Sewer 
Municipal Garage 
Claims expense 
Other Financing Uses 205,000 200,000 401,824 

Total Expenditures 48,331,778 3,009,986 252,005 2,343,534 18,000 1,325,000 2,030,143 

Surplus I (Deficit) 55,896 4,826 28,495 16,152 119,000 (779,000) 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 601,866 (1,105) (56,173) 28,478 (22,006) 951,030 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance l_ 657,762 $ 3,721 $ (27,678) $ $ 44,630 $ 96,994 $ 172,030 

10 



City of Berwyn 
Budget Summary - All Funds 

2011 Budget 

S~clal Revenue Funds Capital Debt Water & Parking Internal Total 

Cermak Roosevelt Ogden Ave Projects Service Sewer Garage Service All 

Fund TIF Fund TIF Fund TIF Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

2011 Budget 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 2,170,000 $ 721,780 $ 1,464,000 $ - $ 4,744,643 $ - $ - $ - $ 45,120,486 
Licenses and Permits 2,644,420 
Charges for Services 6,375,050 149,746 3,191,192 15,585,786 
Fines 175,000 4,617,000 
Intergovernmental Revenues 3,996,534 
Miscellaneous Revenues 30,000 30,000 36,000 5,000 3,000 50,500 1,462,500 
Other Financing Sources 4,205,480 6,680,480 

Total Revenues 2,200,000 751,780 1,500,000 5,000 8,953,123 6,600,550 149,746 3,191,192 80,107,206 

Expenditures 
General Government 4,075,591 
Public Safety 33,843,436 
Public Works 5,775,685 
Economic Development 3,350,000 2,739,090 2,228,601 12,222,796 
Culture and Recreation 4,614,911 
Garbage 4,065,075 
Capital 2,784,569 2,784,569 
Debt Service 7,961,441 8,185,260 
Water and Sewer 7,223,215 7,223,215 
Municipal Garage 101,089 101,089 
Claims expense 2,857,000 2,857,000 
Other Financing Uses 289,710 473,282 830,000 1,000,000 3,399,816 

Total Expenditures 3,350,000 3,028,800 2,701,883 3,614,569 8,961,441 7,223,215 101,089 2,857,000 89,148,443 

Surplus I (Deficit) (1,150,000) (2,277,020) (1,201,883) (3,609,569) (8,318) (622,665) 48,657 334,192 (9,041,237) 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 6,099,816 3,657,567 5,333,524 3,955,153 1,405,079 38,597,222 9,991,907 (1,331,597) 69,210,763 

Estimated Ending Fund Balance $ _4,-949,816 $ 1,380,547 $ 4,131,641 $ 345,584 $ 1,396,761 $37,974,557 $10,040,564 $ (997,405) $ 60,169,527 

11 



City of Berwyn 
General Fund Summary 

2011 Budget 

Requested Budget Change 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 
Balance Balance ~ected Budget Budget Amount Percent 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 27,458,399 $ 26,958,252 $ 30,110,774 $ 31,055,150 $ 31,863,456 $ 808,306 3% 
Licenses and Permits 2,476,742 2,368,969 2,960,291 2,561,640 2,644,420 82,780 3% 
Charges for Services 6,345,259 5,937,315 5,611,899 5,965,100 5,831,798 (133,302) -2% 
Fines 4,145,086 3,766,895 3,943,582 3,770,000 4,400,000 630,000 17% 
Intergovemmental Revenues 91,203 375,515 136,743 94,382 95,000 618 1% 
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,491,352 1,183,380 1,059,877 1,251,764 1,283,000 31,236 2% 
Other Financing Sources 1,653,637 4,292,298 2,732,144 2,220,000 2,270,000 50,000 2% 

TOTAL REVENUES 43,661,678 44,882,623 46,555,310 46,918,036 48,387,674 1,469,638 3% 

Expenditures 
Mayor $ 159,919 $ 247,241 $ 160,916 $ 159,546 $ 162,922 $ 3,376 2% 
City Administrator 202,391 203,291 283,682 80,391 40% 
Clerk 170,980 185,597 214,992 215,686 219,490 3,804 2% 
Treasurer 15,435 17,674 28,665 38,918 26,272 (12,646) -32% 
Council 205,307 203,298 171,733 180,473 180,384 (89) 0% 
Legal 692,237 695,327 830,880 763,518 694,685 (68,833) -9% 
Finance 1,618,147 1,434,030 1,375,824 1,314,372 1,478,168 163,796 12% 
Information Technology 621,009 710,726 780,891 752,158 881,468 129,310 17% 
Statutory 99,265 303,421 516,784 223,520 148,520 (75,000) -34% 
Fire 11,776,444 11,856,738 11,972,433 12,251,392 13,272,932 1,021,540 8% 
Police 17,846,742 18,901,632 20,198,590 20,464,928 20,523,272 58,344 0% 
Fire and Police Commission 22,620 71,909 27,483 29,224 29,232 8 0% 
Building I Neighborhood Affairs 1,239,044 1,283,872 1,243,061 1,495,860 1,195,111 (300,749) -20% 
Public Works 2,883,899 2,942,936 3,198,198 3,256,682 3,455,574 198,892 6% 
Zoning 14,698 15,039 16,261 16,064 16,071 7 0% 
Committee and Planning 786,963 303,861 91,247 131,500 141,000 9,500 7% 
Recreation 1,208,352 1,257,808 1,271 ,984 1,283,590 1,346,034 62,444 5% 
Community Relations 6,387 5,960 6,622 6,883 6,886 3 0% 
Garbage 3,979,436 4,004,624 3,988,170 4,005,000 4,065,075 60,075 2% 
Capital 633,229 
Bond Issuance 32,144 
Community Outreach Fund subsidy 218,642 
Community Development Fund Subsidy 26,358 
Transfer to other funds 213,345 112,006 205,000 92,994 83% 

Total General Fund Expenditures 44,225,114 44,655,036 46,329,268 46,904,613 48,331,778 1,427,165 3% 

Revenues less Expenditures (563,436) 227,587 226,042 13,423 55,896 $ 42,473 ~% 

Fund Balance Beginning 711,673 148,237 375,824 601,866 601,866 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 148,237 $ 375,824 ~ 601,866 $ 615,289 $ 657,762 

12 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Revenue Streams 

The City relies on a variety of revenue streams to fund services. Many of these 
revenues are subject to economic fluctuations; however, expenditures are not. 

Property taxes -

Property taxes are levied upon all City property owners at a calculated rate per $1,000 
of assessed property valuation on both real and personal property. The tax levy is 
established by the City by December 31 each year to be collected the year after. 
Property taxes are collected by the County in two installments, the first in March and the 
second usually in September or October. The September bills are based on the 
previous December's levy. However the March collection is based on the levy from two 
years before. The chart below summarizes the General Fund's reliance on property 
taxes. 

Summary of General Fund Property Taxes 
Projected Budgeted 

Revenue Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Levy Year ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Property Taxes $ 6,749,063 $10,618,434 $12,294,809 $ 15,300,000 $16,122,956 
Total Revenues 50,963,719 43,661,679 44,882,623 46,555,310 48,387,674 
% of total 13% 24% 27% 33% 33% 

General Fund Property Taxes vs. Total Revenues 

$60,000,000 ..-----:::::::::.-.~;;;..;~;;:;-~~-~..;;; --=~-;..:.~-=- =:::::::::.::::::....-==:;;;;

$50,000,000 -t-------:::-=--------_-/ 
~ ~--------$40,000,000 -t--"'-------------/ 

$30,000,000 +-------------~ 

$20,000,000 +-----------___ ----; 

$10,000,000 +---=====::::==.--========--1 
$- ~-------------~ 

2007 2008 2009 20 I 0 20 II 

13 

- Property Taxesl 

- Total Revenue~ 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Revenue Streams 

The General Fund receives only a portion of the total property taxes levied in the City. 
The chart below shows the components of the total tax levy for the last five years 
including the tax rate for those years. All information was taken from the levy ordinances 
net of abatements. 

Composition of Property Taxes Levied 
, Revenue Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 
~ ~ ~ __ 20_0_8 _____ 20_0_9__ 2010 
Corporate $ 2,447,404 $ 6,783,899 $ 8,417,446 $ 11,443,806 $12,159,612 
Fire Pension 2,431,808 2,034,586 2,034,586 2,034,586 2,034,586 
Police Pension 2,236,154 1,928,758 1,928,758 1,928,758 1,928,758 
Total General Fund 7,115,366 10,747,243 12,380,790 15,407,150 16,122,956 
Library 1,408,076 2,497,312 2,497,312 2,497,312 2,891,312 
Bond and Interest 10,232,727 6,449,422 4,816,772 4,744,643 4,744,643 

Total Levy $ 18,756,169 $ 19,693,977 $ 19,694,874 $ 22,649,105 $ 23,758,911 

Tax rate 2.216 2.135 1.937 2.278 not available 

The City also receives revenue from other types of taxes. The amounts of these taxes 
and the process by which they are accrued and received by the City are described 
below. 

State Income Taxes -

Income tax is a state shared tax that is distributed on a per capita basis and is based on 
the average income statewide. This revenue account fluctuates annually depending on 
economic conditions. 

1 % State Sales and Home Rule Sales Taxes -

The City receives two types of sales taxes, one from the state and another from a sales 
tax imposed through the City's home-rule status. Both the state and the home rule sales 
taxes are 1 %. 

Municipal Utility Taxes -

Electric, telephone and natural gas taxes are all classified as utility taxes. These taxes 
are billed on utility bills as a percentage of the total bill. Local utilities then remit these 
amounts to the City. 

14 



City of Berwyn 
201 1 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Revenue Streams 

Real Estate Transfer -

Real Estate Transfer fees are accrued based on the sale price of property and remitted 
to the City. This tax is currently levied at 1 % of sale price. 

All Other Taxes -

This line encompasses taxes on liquor sales, gasoline sales, parking lot taxes, video 
taxes, and miscellaneous taxes. 

The following chart summarizes tax revenue for 2007 through 2011. Amounts for 2007-
2009 are actual, 2010 amounts are a projection based on actual receipts from the first 
three quarters of the year. The 2011 budget is based on 2010 projections, past years' 
trends and information provided by the Illinois Municipal League. 

Summary of Other Tax Revenue 
Revenue Year ~ __ 20_0_8__ 2009 Projected 2010 __ 2_0_11 __ 

State Income 
1 % State Sales 
Home Rule Sales 
Municipal Utility 
Real Estate Transfer 
All other 

Total Other Taxes 

Total General Fund 
Revenues 

Other taxes as a % 
of Total Revenues 

$ 5,518,357 $ 5,924,698 $ 5,036,828 $ 5,000,000 $ 5,100,000 
2,886,108 2,723,620 2,295,513 2,450,000 2,726,500 
2,011,687 2,000,041 1,688,743 1,850,000 1,991,500 
4,178,301 4,548,527 4,050,262 4,100,000 4,400,000 
1,565,735 989,133 1,028,125 913,411 1,000,000 

671,664 653,946 563,971 497,363 522,500 
$ 16,831,852 $ 16,839,965 $ 14,663,442 $ 14,810,774 $ 15,740,500 

$ 50,963,719 $ 43,661,678 $ 44,882,623 $ 46,555,310 $ 48,387,674 

33% 39% 33% 32% 33% 

As the table above shows the 2009 actual revenue from the state income tax, the state 
sales tax, the home rule sales tax and the municipal utility tax are Significantly less than 
received in past years. This decrease was due to the recession which effected the 
entire nation and Illinois in particular. Some improvement in these revenues seems to 
be taking place in 2010 and this is expected to continue in 2011. 

The following pages show the details of the 2011 budgeted revenue lines in the General 
Fund. 

15 



2008 
Revenue Actual 

Property Taxes $ 10,618,434 $ 
Other Taxes 16,839,965 
Licenses and Permits 2,476,742 
Charges for Services 6,345,259 
Fines 4,145,086 
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,491,352 
Intergovernmental Revenues 91,203 
Other Financing Sources 1,653,637 

Total General Fund Revenues $ 43,661,678 $ 

I General Fund Revenues by Type 

City of Berwyn 
Summary of General Fund Revenues 

2011 Budget 

2009 2010 2010 
Actual Projected Budget 

12,294,809 $ 15,300,000 $ 15,407,150 
14,663,443 14,810,774 15,648,000 
2,368,969 2,960,291 2,561,640 
5,937,315 5,611 ,899 5,965,100 
3,766,895 3,943,582 3,770,000 
1,183,380 1,059,877 1,251,764 

375,515 136,743 94,382 
4,292,298 2,732,144 2,220,000 

44,882,623 $ 46,555,310 $ 46,918,036 

Intergovernmental 
0% 

2011 
Budget 

$ 16,1 22,956 
15,740,500 
2,644,420 
5,831,798 
4,400,000 
1,283,000 

95,000 
2,270,000 

$ 48,387,674 

Miscellaneous ) Other Financing 

Fines 
9% _______ 

harges for Services 
12% 

Licenses and Permits 
5% 

3% 1 

-~ 

Other Taxes 
33% 

16 

Sources 
5% 

Requested Budget Change 

Amount Percent 

$ 715,806 5% 
92,500 1% 
82,780 3% 

(133,302) -2% 
630,000 17% 

31,236 2% 
618 1% 

50,000 2% 

$ 1,469,638 3% 
= 

-

l 
Property Taxes 

33% 



City of Berwyn 
General Fund Revenues 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 

Account Number Revenue Balance Balance Projected Budgel ~et Amount Percent 

Taxes 
Taxes, Property $ 10,618,434 $ 12,294,809 $ 15,300,000 $ 15,407,150 $16,122,956 $ 715,806 5% 

100-4005 Taxes, Personal Property Replacement 254,006 214,288 231,051 2SO,OOO 200,000 (50,000) -20% 
100-4010 Taxes, State Income 5,924,698 5,036,828 5,000,000 5,300,000 5,100,000 (200,000) -4% 
100-4015 Taxes, 1% State Sales 2,723,620 2,295,513 2,450,000 2,500,000 2,726,500 226,500 9% 
100-4020 Taxes, Home Rule Sales 2,000,041 1,688,743 1,850,000 1,825,000 1,991,500 166,500 9% 
100-4025 Taxes, Municipal Utility 4,548,527 4,050,262 4,100,000 4,400,000 4,400,000 0% 
100-4030 Taxes, liquor 154,261 165,310 121,493 155,000 155,000 0% 
100-4035 Taxes, Real Estate Transfer 989,133 1,028,125 913,411 1,030,000 1,000,000 (30,000) -3% 
100-4040 Taxes, Gasoline 174,869 146,188 124,765 140,000 140,000 0% 
100-4045 TaKes, Parking lot 11 ,382 7,497 3,877 8,000 2,500 (5,500) -69% 
100-40SO Taxes, Video 54,566 26,189 11 ,786 40,000 20,000 (20,000) -50% 
100-4060 Taxes, Mise 4,862 4,499 4,391 5,000 5,000 

Total Taxes 27,458,399 26,958,252 30,110,774 31 ,055,150 31 ,863,456 8Ql3d~ ~% 

Licenses and Permits 
100-4100 Passenger Vehide 955,490 942,939 1,076,927 1,063,520 1,063,520 0% 
100-4105 RV 2,880 2,222 1,918 3,000 3,000 0% 
100-4110 Trucks 137,595 131,878 146,706 145,000 145,000 0% 
100-4115 Motorcycle Transfer, Dealers 6,923 7,071 11,145 7,000 7,000 0% 
100-4120 Permits, Commuter Parking 106,385 146,488 165,766 161,000 161,000 0% 
100-4125 Permits, Municipal Parking 51,287 42,288 48,154 5,075 5,075 0% 
100-4130 Permits, Electric 46,775 34,902 54,875 41,990 45,000 3,010 7% 
100-4135 Permits, Building 93,973 40,898 18,873 50,000 75,000 25,000 50% 
100-4140 Permits, local Improvement 352,926 347,269 612,816 375,230 430,000 54,770 15% 
100-4145 License, Business 233,876 314,418 369,741 326,425 326,425 0% 
100-4150 License, liquor 193,810 178,626 224,203 204,400 204,400 0% 
100-4155 Rental Operating License 83,631 530 
100-4160 Pet Tags 7,630 7,374 14,160 14,000 14,000 0% 
100-4165 Service Charge Inspection 108,736 55,347 96,656 60,000 60,000 0% 
100-4170 Electrical Sign Inspection 47,528 62,367 61,385 55,000 55,000 0% 
100-4175 Certificate of Compliance 47,297 54,352 56,966 SO,OOO SO,OOO 0% 

Total licenses and Permits 2,476,742 2,368,969 2,960,291 2,561,640 2.644,420 82.780 ~% 

17 



City of Berwyn 
General Fund Revenues 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 

Account Number Revenue Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount Percent 

Charge for Services 
100-4200 Sale of Gas (from COB Pumps) 97,247 58,658 77,745 60,000 60,000 0% 
100-4210 Commuter Parking Meter 62,032 51,428 35,017 60,000 50,000 (10,000) -17% 
100-4240 Recycling Rebate 90,516 84,222 78,714 90,000 80,000 (10,000) -11% 
100-4245 Sidewalk Construction 25,790 14,820 
100-4299 Misc Charges for Service 58,555 12,358 9,987 44,000 12,000 (32,000) -73% 
100-18-4215 Paramedic Collections 851,990 747,924 626,649 900,000 750,000 (150,000) -17% 
100-18-4220 Paramedic MRI Transports 365,700 283,500 
100-18-4299 Other Fees for Services - Fire 500 445 500 5,500 5,000 1000% 
100-18-4299-09 CPR Training 1,050 1,865 2,000 2,000 0% 
100-20-4299-11 Report, Police 23,439 22,418 19,046 25,000 20,000 (5,000) -20% 
100-20-4299-13 False Alarms 14,950 15,645 1,350 16,000 16,000 0% 
100-20-4299-15 Range Rental 9,625 1,000 (1,000) -100% 
100-20-4299-17 Sex Offender Registration 280 380 400 400 0% 
100-20-4299-19 Fingerprinting 2,110 1,300 2,000 2,000 0% 
100-20-4299-21 Property Room 24 4,700 5,000 5,000 
100-20-4299-23 Other Fees for Services - Police 25,527 14,216 25,000 15,000 (10,000) -40% 
100-32-4225 Recreation Revenues 5,816 4,355 
100-32-4225-01 Athletics - Recreation 108,377 85,353 56,242 100,000 100,000 0% 
100-32-4225-02 Adult Programs - Recreation 31,300 51,630 25,718 55,000 55,000 0% 
100-32-4225-03 Children's Programs - Recreation 158,919 144,399 249,320 150,000 160,000 10,000 7% 
100-32-4225-04 Pool 74,191 83,423 80,342 85,000 85,000 0% 
100-32-4225-05 Concession Stand - Recreation 20,533 18,709 19,745 20,000 20,000 0% 
100-32-4255 Recreation - Special Event 253 252 
100-32-4270 Recreaion - Rental 1,035 3,735 
100-4255 Special Event Revenue 286,899 1,330 8,233 16,000 16,000 0% 
1 00-36-4300 Fees, Garbage 4,064,146 4,238,909 4,279,588 4,313,200 4,377,898 64,698 2% 

Total Charges for Services 6,345,259 5,937,315 5,611,899 5,965,100 5,831,798 (133,302) -~% 

Fines 
100-36-4355 Fines, Garbage 130,239 73,153 179,765 85,000 125,000 40,000 47% 
100-20-4310 Fees, Towing 27,760 20,814 25,000 25,000 0% 
100-20-4311 Fees, Impound Vehicles 587,868 476,000 675,500 475,000 1,100,000 625,000 132% 
1 00-20-4315 Fines, Parking TIckets 257,619 1,075 (1,280) 100,000 (100,000) -100% 
100-20-4320 Fines, Cook County Court 232,332 145,311 125,000 125,000 0% 
100-20-4325 Fines, Local Ordinance- Police 40,837 86,725 40,000 70,000 30,000 75% 
100-20-4330 Fines, Adjudication Court- Police 22,944 28,338 30,000 25,000 (5,000) -17% 
100-20-4340 Fines, Compliance -Police 2,197,404 1,860,011 2,037,084 2,000,000 2,100,000 100,000 5% 
100-20-4345 Red Speed Photo Enforcement 275,700 305,510 168,220 250,000 200,000 (50,000) -20% 
100-20-4355-09 Fines, Booting 31,921 35,840 35,000 35,000 0% 
100-20-4355-11 Fines, Cannabis 25,030 28,905 25,000 25,000 0% 
100-24-4335 After the Fact Permits 53,828 27,575 5,475 30,000 20,000 (10,000) -33% 
100-24-4325 Rnes, Local Ordinance - Building 288,953 552,247 529,785 450,000 550,000 100,000 22% 
100-24-4340 C Tickets (Compliance) - Building 197,510 51,177 2,550 50,000 (50,000) -100% 
100-24-4330 Fines, Adjudication Court 155,965 39,323 550 50,000 (50,000) -100% 

Total Fines 4,145,086 3,766,895 3,943,582 3,770,000 4,400,000 630,000 17% 

18 



City of Berwyn 
General Fund Revenues 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 

Account Number Revenue Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount Percent 

Intergovernmental Revenues 
100-4410 Stale Allotment/Highway Maint 91,203 94,382 97,753 94,382 95,000 618 1% 

Grants - Mise 281,133 38,991 

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 91,203 375,515 136,743 94,382 95,000 618 1% 

Miscellaneous Revenues 
100-12-4250 Reimbursements - Finance 2,413 
100-18-4250 Reimbursements - Fire 59,602 19,064 23,416 15,000 15,000 0% 
100-20-4250 Reimbursements - Police 65,094 55,944 21,021 70,000 20,000 (50,000) -71% 
100-24-4250-01 Reimbursements - Building 34,062 29,328 33,562 20,000 30,000 10,000 50% 

Reimbursements - 6545 W. Stanley 3,551 6,000 (6,000) -100% 
1 00-4250-02 Reimbursements - Elevators 7,466 9,050 6,263 1,000 9,000 8,000 800% 
100-16-4250 Reimbursements - IT 170 546 288 
100-26-35-4250 Reimbursements - Public Works 91 ,807 27,797 51,634 22,000 22,000 0% 
100-26-37-4250 Reimbursements - Fleet Labor 27,594 15,038 18,000 18,000 0% 
100-4800 Interest Income 59,446 50,359 26,019 40,000 30,000 (10,000) -25% 
100-4805 Franchises 410,717 403,922 241,877 395,000 395,000 0% 
100-4810 Cell Tower Rental 36,549 89,368 87,511 80,000 80,000 0% 
100-4690 Interdepartmental Charge 465,439 416,050 520,000 519,764 596,000 76,236 15% 
100-4830 City Property Damage 6,000 
100-4835 Other Mise Revenue 77,442 59,944 26,035 50,000 50,000 0% 
100-4815 Property Rental 6,969 11,000 10,000 13,000 3,000 30% 
100-4820 Sale of City Property 150,000 1 5,251 5,000 5,000 Q% 

Total Miscellaneous Revenues 1,491 ,352 1,183,380 1,059,877 1.251 ,764 1,283,000 31 ,236 ~% 

Other Financing Sources 
100-4915 Debt Proceeds 1,003,807 
100-4905 Lease Proceeds 345,930 430,594 
100-4917 Bond Issue Premium 28,337 
100-4900 Trans in from Debt Service 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0% 
100-4900 Trans in MFT Salaries 783,888 100,000 235,000 200,000 (35,000) -15% 
100-4900 Trans in Capital Projects 476,947 500,000 885,000 830,000 (55,000) -6% 
100-4900 Trans in 911 Fund 46,872 100,000 200,000 100,000 100% 
100-4900 Trans to/from other funds 3,861,704 100,000 40,000 40,000 

Total Other Financing Sources 1,653,637 4,292,298 2,732,144 2,220,000 2.270,000 50,000 ~% 

Total General Fund Revenues $ 43,661 ,678 $ 44,882,623 $ 46,555,310 $ 46.918,036 $ 48,387,674 $ 1.469.638 2% 

19 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Significant Expenditures and Expenses 

The City like many municipalities is primarily a service provider. As such the largest 
component of its expenditures and expenses are for salaries, benefits and related 
payments. The City has six unions, one non-represented class and elected officials as 
employees. 

Summary of Expenditures/Expenses by Type 
Projected 

Fiscal Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 ----- -- ----------------
Salaries $ 20,242,848 $ 21,148,785 $ 21,283,792 $ 22,213,864 $ 23,935,069 
Benefits 13,703,394 12,671,201 13,572,351 14,615,289 15,771,550 
Capital Projects 159,052 5,247,544 15,139,706 753,716 3,614,569 
Debt Service 33,013,573 12,429,323 19,769,169 10,477,873 8,961,441 
TIF 3,834,495 5,611,042 8,222,274 9,115,260 11,110,826 
Utility 9,406,507 9,219,236 9,675,324 9,719,903 5,904,192 
Intemal Service 2,387,818 3,898,512 4,123,190 2,774,930 2,857,000 
All other 26,113,407 17,591,818 16,654,795 16,094,835 16.993.796 
Total Expenditures $ 108.861.094 $ 87.817,461 $ 108,440.601 $ 85.765,670 $ 89.148,443 

The decrease in the Utility line from the 2010 projected of $9,719,903 to the 2011 
budgeted amount of $7,223,215 is due primarily to depreciation. As discussed in the 
section of the budget describing the City's Accounting Structure, the City does not 
budget depreciation within the Enterprise funds. However, for financial reporting 
purposing the Utility line includes approximately $4,000,000 of depreciation expense. 

In the analysis above as well as in the following tables, benefits include all non-base 
salary, salary and fringe benefit costs. This category includes overtime, health and 
dental insurance, FICA costs, education reimbursements, stipends for education, or 
clothing allowances as well as the costs for pension payments. 

20 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Significant Expenditures and Expenses 

General Fund Expenditures 

The breakdown of expenditures by category becomes more meaningful when reviewed 
for just the City's General Fund, as the primary operating fund of the City, there are 
fewer one-time expenditures which cause fluctuations in trend analysis. 

Summary of Expenditures/Expenses by Type 
Projected 

Fiscal Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 - - ----- -- --
Salaries $ 17,940,071 $ 18,832,324 $ 19,041,055 $ 19,728,491 $ 21,246,433 
Benefits 12,584,842 11,597,163 12,340,148 12,191,687 14,240,583 

Total Salaries and Benefits 30,524,913 30,429,487 31,381,203 31,920,178 35,487,016 

Total Expenditures $ 53,851,434 $ 44,225,113 $ 44,655,036 $ 46,329,268 $ 48,331,778 

Salaries and Benefits 
as a % of total 56.68% 68.81% 70.27% 68.90% 73.42% 

During 2007, the City's total expenditures included a bond refunding of $8,963,354 and 
a subsidy to the Library Fund of $1,036,394. Exclusive of these effects, salaries and 
benefits would have made up 70% of total General Fund expenditures. 

The following three pages summarize cost information for salaries, benefits and total 
costs for the last several years. 

21 



City of Berwyn 
Summary of Salary Expenses 

2011 Budget 
Requested 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Function Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Mayor $ 104,314 $ 97,001 $ 151,021 $ 91,152 $ 89,723 $ 92,459 $ 2,736 
Administrator 123,662 122,693 129,802 7,109 
Clerk 95,758 101,849 103,710 114,756 107,421 108,078 657 
Treasurer 10,061 10,055 10,731 20,615 24,615 18,000 (6,615) 
Council 72,016 79,999 79,704 80,000 78,423 80,000 1,577 
Legal 58,006 146,009 159,242 163,985 159,313 170,252 10,939 
Finance 667,932 722,659 627,378 526,094 521,579 617,067 95,488 
Human Resources 104,637 93,848 69,045 45,911 45,565 48,201 2,636 
Information Technology 113,224 209,226 210,474 241,197 229,818 313,530 83,712 

Total General Government 1,225,948 1,460,646 1,411,305 1,407,372 1,441,150 1,577,389 136,239 

Fire 5,440,064 5,431,618 5,318,575 5,739,190 5,712,644 6,577,554 864,910 
Police 8,848,951 9,558,046 9,866,460 10,180,912 10,234,104 10,501,309 267,205 
Fire and Police Commission 16,099 16,090 16,002 16,002 16,000 16,000 

Total Public Safety 14,305,114 15,005,754 15,201,037 15,936,105 15,962,748 17,094,863 1,132,115 

Building I Neighborhood Affairs 434,710 371,701 386,118 377,123 430,021 417,283 (12,738) 
Streets 1,346,589 1,396,033 1,417,964 1,359,828 1,366,538 1,439,297 72,759 

Total Public Works 1,781,299 1,767,734 1,804,083 1,736,951 1,796,559 1,856,580 60,021 

Zoning 6,181 16,090 6,144 11,709 12,600 12,600 

Total Economic Development 6,181 16,090 6,144 11,709 12,600 12,600 

Recreation 608,852 577,073 613,101 631,354 628,059 700,000 71,941 
Community Relations 12,677 5,028 5,385 5,000 5,000 5,000 

Total Culture and Recreation 621,529 582,101 618,485 636,354 633,059 705,000 71,941 

Total General Fund Salaries $ 17,940,071 $ 18,832,324 $ 19,041,055 $ 19,728,491 $ 19,846,116 $ 21,246,432 !...14OO,316 

Berwyn Public Library 1,281,060 1,301,365 1,296,662 1,346,360 1,363,905 1,491,386 127,481 
Community Outreach 179,900 162,185 
Senior Citizen's Program 125,889 113,854 120,000 129,903 9,903 
Community Development 280,840 272,418 229,772 289,871 279,605 271,329 (8,276) 
Water and Sewer 560,977 580,492 590,413 735,289 735,776 796,018 60,242 

City-Wide Salaries $ 20,242,848 $ 21,148,785 $ 21,283,792 $ 22,213,864 $ 22,065,797 $ 23,935,068 $ 1,589,666 

22 



City of Berwyn 
Summary of Benefits and Related Payments 

2011 Budget 
Requested Budget 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change Change 
Function Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget Budget Amount Percent 

Mayor $ 43,383 $ 38,558 $ 64,017 $ 48,998 $ 48,339 $ 51,602 $ 3,263 7% 
Administrator 66,339 61,794 72,366 10,572 17% 
Clerk 42,420 42,010 47,111 67,026 65,833 73,534 7,701 12% 
Treasurer 2,549 2,388 2,734 3,896 9,923 3,749 (6,174) -62% 
Council 85,010 93,799 94,781 58,999 58,500 57,863 (637) -1% 
Legal 24,125 58,518 65,941 41,518 50,000 50,676 676 1% 
Finance 295,114 295,678 268,474 297,632 286,432 330,793 44,361 15% 
Human Resources 43,547 37,304 29,507 38,502 19,978 33,546 13,568 68% 
Information Technology 51,036 88,251 91,547 86,505 92,064 156,889 64,825 70% 

Total General Government 587,184 656,506 664,112 709,415 692,863 831,018 138,155 20% 

Fire 4,266,256 3,926,577 4,008,178 4,337,081 4,561,961 5,017,571 455,610 10% 
Police 6,680,109 5,972,436 6,621,341 6,954,459 6,981,917 7,085,654 103,737 1% 
Fire and Police Commission 4,080 3,821 4,445 4,835 1,224 1,232 8 1% 

Total Public Safety 10,950,445 9,902,834 10,633,963 11,296,374 11,545,102 12,104,457 559,355 5% 

Building I Neighborhood Affairs 187,206 154,719 171,590 244,927 186,139 266,764 80,625 43% 
Streets 681,261 722,566 690,402 779,266 712,397 832,957 120,560 17% 

Total Public Works 868,467 877,285 861,992 1,024,193 898,537 1,099,721 201,184 22% 

Zoning 6,831 6,463 5,422 964 964 971 7 1% 

Total Economic Development 6,831 6,463 5,422 964 964 971 7 1% 

Recreation 170,949 153,690 174,209 183,991 173,594 204,030 30,436 18% 
Community Relations 966 385 449 942 383 386 4 1% 

Total Culture and Recreation 171,915 154,075 174,658 184,933 173,977 204,416 30,439 17% 

Total General Fund Benefits $ 12,584,842 $ 11,597,163 $ 12,340,148 $ 13,215,880 $ 13,311,443 $14,240,583 $ 929,140 7% 

Berwyn Public Library 569,011 536,172 602,737 737,309 602,737 833,343 230,606 38% 
Community Outreach 74,818 64,469 18,848 
Senior Citizen's Program 52,279 34,288 50,000 53,035 3,035 6% 
Community Development 118,872 110,962 103,404 150,515 72,500 121,584 49,084 68% 
Water and Sewer 355,851 362,435 407,824 477,296 393,954 523,005 129,051 33% 

City-Wide Benefits $ 13,703,394 $ 12,671,201 $ 13,525,240 $ 14,615,289 $14,430,634 $15,771,550 $ 1,340,916 9% 

23 



City of Berwyn 
Summary of Total ExpenditureslExpenses 

2011 Budget 

Requested Budget 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 

Fund Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget Budget Amount 

General Fund Expenditures 53,851,434 44,225,113 44,655,036 46,329,268 46,904,613 48,331,778 1,427,165 

Special Revenue Funds 
Berwyn Public Library 2,549,215 2,516,028 2,502,821 2,790,714 3,576,768 3,009,986 (566,782) 
Community Outreach 343,781 309,222 
Senior Citizen's Program 235,242 221,763 230,900 252,005 21,105 
Community Development 1,239,126 1,565,803 1,793,728 1,737,042 3,000,905 2,343,534 (657,372) 
Foreign Fire 16,553 17,136 25,934 32,269 32,269 18,000 (14,269) 
Motor Fuel Tax 2,059,540 2,778,501 2,193,859 1,667,969 1,576,500 1,325,000 (251,500) 

Tax Incremental Financing Districts 
S. Berwyn TIF 1,505,439 1,290,873 2,932,264 923,140 2,369,227 2,030,143 (339,084) 
Cermak TIF 691,071 2,053,750 2,093,616 6,135,991 4,869,324 3,350,000 (1,519,324) 
Roosevelt TIF 436,094 403,309 1,442,331 518,626 3,545,500 3,028,800 (516,700) 
Ogden TIF 1,201,891 1,863,110 1,754,063 1,537,502 1,984,300 2,701,883 717,583 

TotalTIF's 3,834,495 5,611,042 8,222,274 9,115,260 12,768,351 11,110,826 (1,657,525) 

Capital Projects 159,052 5,247,544 15,139,706 753,716 3,296,522 3,614,569 318,047 

Debt Service 33,013,573 12,429,323 19,769,169 10,477,873 9,434,906 8,961,441 (473,465) 

Water and Sewer 9,406,507 9,219,236 9,675,324 9,719,903 6,770,439 7,223,215 452,776 

Parking Garage 104,318 144,963 85,000 101,089 16,089 

Internal Service 2,387,818 3,898,513 4,123,190 2,774,930 3,231,996 2,857,000 (374,996) 

City-Wide Costs $ 108,861,094 $ 87,817,461 $ 108,440,601 $ 85,765,670 $ 90,909,170 $ 89,148,443 $ (1,760,727) 

24 



City of Berwyn 
Summary of General Fund Expenditures 

2011 Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 
Requested Budget 

Dept # Expenditures Balance Balance ~ected Budget Budget Amount Percent 

General Government 
02 Mayor $ 159,919 $ 247,241 $ 160,916 $ 159,546 $ 162,922 $ 3,376 2% 
03 City Administrator 202,391 203,291 283,682 80,391 40% 
04 Clerk 170,980 185,597 214,992 215,686 219,490 3,804 2% 
06 Treasurer 15,435 17,674 28,665 38,918 26,272 (12,646) -32% 
08 Council 205,307 203,298 171,733 180,473 180,384 (89) 0% 
10 Legal 692,237 695,327 830,880 763,518 694,685 (68,833) -9% 
12 Finance 1,618,147 1,434,030 1,375,824 1,314,372 1,478,168 163,796 12% 
16 Information Technology 621,009 710,726 780,891 752,158 881,468 129,310 17% 
36 Statutory 99,265 303,421 516,784 223,520 148,520 (75,000) -34% 

Public Safety 
18 Fire 11,776,444 11,856,738 11,972,433 12,251,392 13,272,932 1,021,540 8% 
20 Police 17,846,742 18,901,632 20,198,590 20,464,928 20,523,272 58,344 0% 
22 Fire and Police Commission 22,620 71,909 27,483 29,224 29,232 8 0% 

Public Works 
24 Building / Neighborhood Affairs 1,239,044 1,283,872 1,243,061 1,495,860 1,195,111 (300,749) -20% 
26 Public Works 2,883,899 2,942,936 3,198,198 3,256,682 3,455,574 198,892 6% 

Economic Development 
28 Zoning 14,698 15,039 16,261 16,064 16,071 7 0% 
30 Committee and Planning 786,963 303,861 91,247 131,500 141,000 9,500 7% 

Culture and Recreation 
32 Recreation 1,208,352 1,257,808 1,271,984 1,283,590 1,346,034 62,444 5% 
34 Community Relations 6,387 5,960 6,622 6,883 6,886 3 0% 

Health and Sanitation 
36 Garbage 3,979,436 4,004,624 3,988,170 4,005,000 4,065,D75 60,075 2% 

29 Capital 633,229 

Other Financing Uses/Other Depfs 
Bond Issuance 32,144 
Community Outreach Fund subsidy 218,642 
CDBG Subsidy 26,358 
Contigency 
Transfer to other funds 213,345 112,006 205,000 92,994 83% 

Total General Fund Expenditures $ 44,225,114 $ 44,655,036 $ 46,329,268 $ 46,904,613 $ 48,331,778 $ 1,427,165 ~% 

25 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Mayor 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Office of the Mayor 
02 

The Mayor is the Chief Executive Officer of the City who is responsible for providing 
leadership and ensuring all City ordinances, polices and state laws are observed, 
enforced and current. The Mayor is responsible for appointing all Department Heads as 
well as positions to Boards, Commissions and Committees as designated by ordinance. 
The Mayor presides at the City Council meetings voting only in case of a tie with the 
power to veto. The Mayor is elected at large to a four-year term of office. 

The Mayor is responsible for the operation of the City supported by department heads 
that report directly to the Mayor. Policy implementation and direction of all department 
heads is the responsibility of the Mayor. The Mayor prepares the executive budget with 
the Finance Director for submittal to the City Council and the Budget Committee. 

The Mayor will act as the contact person for the City for the Directors of the Berwyn 
Development Corporation, Main Street, as well as the emergency management 
systems. 

The Mayor or his designee represents the City at all gatherings where City 
representation is required. The Mayor also represents the City in Springfield regarding 
state grants and state policies that may affect the City and is considered the contact for 
all other elected officers of the Federal, State, County and other local governments 
including school and park districts. The Mayor represents and advocates on the City's 
behalf to all organizations and persons that consider issues and policies that would 
affect the future well being of the City. The Mayor is responsible for the development of 
initiatives and policies at the direction of the City Council for the benefit of the City of 
Berwyn. 

SERVICES: 

~ Represent all residents of the City of Berwyn. 

.. Implement a Strategic Plan for the City of Berwyn. 

Communicate with the City Council. The Mayor's office should assure that the 
agendas for the City Council meetings allow for an efficient progress on the 

26 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Office of the Mayor 
02 

issues important to the City. The Mayor's office should address Aldermanic 
concerns. 

* Communicate with other governmental bodies and agencies - The Mayor's office 
should communicate with Federal, State, County and other municipalities, School 
Districts, Park Districts and other agencies, as well as opportunities for the 
mutual benefit and cooperation of all concerned. 

~ Provide timely emergency notification to elected officials regarding events that 
may affect City residents. 

STAFFING: 

Mayor 1.00 1.00 1.00 
Secretary to the Mayor 1.00 ___ 1_.0_0 ___ 1_.0_0 

Total 2.00 2.00 2.00 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Balanced the 2010 Budget. This was accomplished by controlling spending and 
cutting positions and salaries. The cuts in payroll were accomplished without 
negatively affecting direct services to residents. 

• Success at lobbying legislators for stimulus funds and various grants. 
• Worked proactively with the fire department regarding NIMS (National Incident 

Management System) compliance. 
• Oversaw bidding out of the City's workers' comp, liability and other insurance 

policies resulting in lower rates. 
• Brought to closure employee contracts that had been unresolved for several 

years. 
• Worked proactively with the fire and police departments regarding NIMS 

(National Incident Management System) compliance. 
• Obtained substantial commercial development resulting in an increased sales tax 

base. 

27 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Office of the Mayor 
02 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Continue to control spending and assessing other areas that can be cut without 
cutting direct services to residents. 

• Continue lobbying legislators for stimulus funds and grants. 
• Integrate different governmental agencies in order to save money and prevent 

overlapping of services. 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Address all budgetary problems. 
• Refinance and establish reasonable payment schedules with the goal of leveling 

long term debt, therefore saving a substantial amount of money. 
• Integrate different governmental agencies in order to save money and prevent 

overlapping of services. 
• Oversee evaluation of better methods for cost saving opportunities. 

28 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Mayor 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change -

100-02-5000 Mayor - Salaries $ 97,001 $ 151,021 $ 91,152 $ 89,723 $ 92,459 $ 2,736 
100-02-5035 Mayor - Benefits 38,558 64,017 48,998 48,339 51,602 3,263 
100-02-5200 Mayor - Administrative expenses 7,535 5,988 5,610 7,500 7,500 
100-02-5225 Mayor - Supplies 2,295 3,627 2,750 1,600 (1,150) 
100-02-5235 Mayor - Postage & printing 686 1,688 1,600 700 (900) 
100-02-5290 Mayor - Other general expenses 2,131 9,423 2,087 2,100 2,100 
100-02-5400 Mayor - Repairs & maintenance 287 600 500 (100) 
100-02-5625 Mayor - Copier maintenance 10,607 11,940 3,361 3,000 2,800 (200) 
100-02-5625 Mayor - Internal service fund 4,087 1,585 4,393 3,934 3,661 (273) 

Department Total $ 159,919 $ 247,241 $ 160,916 $ 159,546 $ 162,922 $ 3,376 

29 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Office of the City Administrator 
03 

PROGRAM MANAGER: City Administrator 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: The City Administrator, under the direction of the Mayor, 
shall be the chief administrator of the City, and shall be responsible to the Mayor for the 
proper administration of the affairs of the City and policies adopted by City Council. 

The City Administrator may recommend appointments of such assistants, department 
heads, or employees as are necessary to the proper functioning of the City, with such 
recommendations to be made to the Mayor pursuant to the annual appointment of 
officers. 

The City Administrator shall have the following powers and duties: 

1. Assist with agenda items for meetings of the City Council and other official City 
Boards and Commissions as directed by the Mayor. 

2. Recommend to the City Council such measures as, in his or her judgment, he or 
she deems to be in the best interest of the City. 

3. Recommend to the Mayor the discipline, suspension or termination of any and all 
City employees, except the City Attorney and when otherwise provided by law or 
contract and to the extent permitted by law and subject to the City Administrator's 
discretion and direct supervision, to delegate to any employee any of these 
powers with respect to any subordinates of that employee. Pursuant to due 
process, the Mayor shall retain the final authority regarding the appeal by any 
employee of all discipline, suspension, or termination actions. 

4. Propose to the Mayor and City Council such personnel rules and regulations as 
the City Administrator deems necessary to manage the personnel of the City. 

5. Direct and supervise the activities of all departments (except legal), offices, and 
agencies of the City, except as otherwise provided by law, and to administer the 
affairs of the City to ensure that all City business is accomplished efficiently and 
economically. 

6. Recommend to the City Council the creating, consolidating, and combining of 
offices, positions, departments or units of the administrative and executive 
departments of the City. 

7. Investigate complaints in relation to matters concerning the administration of the 
government of the City. 

8. Assist the Mayor and Finance Director with the preparation and submittal of a 
recommended annual budget for City operations and recommended capital 
programs; and administer the approved budget after adoption. 

30 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Office of the City Administrator 
03 

9. Report to the Mayor regarding the administrative activities of the City on a regular 
basis. 

10. Represent the City in its dealings with other governmental agencies and officials, 
businesses, not-for-profit organizations, residents, and the general public as 
necessary. 

11. Evaluate City projects, programs, agreements and services and make 
recommendations on modifications and improvements thereto. 

12. Perform such other duties as may be required by the Mayor consistent with state 
statutes and the ordinances of the City. 

STAFFING: 

Position (FTE) 2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

1.00 1.00 1.00 City Administrator 
Administrative Assistant ______ 1_.0_0 ______ 1~.0~0 ______ 1~.0~0 

Total 2.00 2.00 2.00 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Made numerous budget improvement recommendations. 
• Conducted a presentation to Standard and Poor's. Due to the improvements 

made to the City's budget, we were able to secure an improved credit rating 
thereby saving the City hundred of thousands of dollars regarding debt. 

• Modified and updated several City of Berwyn contracts to make sure that they 
are properly administered. 

• Changed our animal impoundment services saving money and becoming more 
animal friendly. 

• Worked proactively with the fire and police departments regarding NIMS 
(National Incident Management System) compliance. 

• Staffed the Historic Preservation Steering Committee, Business License and 
Taxation Committee, and the Census Committee when appropriate. 

• Secured and administered a grant for the Historic Preservation Steering 
Committee to complete a historic building evaluation of Cermak corridor. 

• Secured a grant to purchase and install a building-wide UPS back-up electrical 
system at City Hall. 

• Secured a grant to install an HVAC system both at the Police Department and at 
City Hall. 

31 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Office of the City Administrator 
03 

• Secured a grant to install a building-wide generator at City Hall. 
• Secured a grant to replace the existing service and passenger elevators at the 

library. 
• Made hiring and disciplinary recommendations. 
• Oversaw the bidding out the City's workers' comp, liability and other insurance 

policies resulting in lower rates. 
• Did a presentation before the West Suburban Mass Transit Board and was 

awarded a grant for $27,000 to improve the Harlem and Oak Park Metra stations. 
• Monitor and streamline daily activities to ensure more efficient processes. 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Continue proactive, responsible, fiscal management in order to maintain our 
improved credit rating and better service the citizens. 

• Continue to analyze insurance and other policies in order to obtain better rates. 
• Administer the reporting as it relates to numerous grants. 
• Oversee the administration of application of capital projects related to grant 

awards. 
• Continue an on-going review of City of Berwyn contracts to make sure that they 

are properly administered. 
• Work proactively with the fire department to make the City NIMS (National 

Incident Management System) certified. 
• Continue to analyze the budget in order to make recommendations. 
• Continue to make hiring and disciplinary recommendations. 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• To prepare a five year capital plan for the City of Berwyn and provide reports to 
the City Council on the progress of the plan. 

• Analyze long term budget forecasting. 
• Evaluate better methods I efficiencies for cost saving opportunities. 
• Monitor long term contracts and recommend improvements when applicable. 
• Assist with the development of a Public Works capital plan. 
• Monitor long term debt and make recommendations. 

32 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

City Administration 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-03-5000 City Admin - Salaries $ - $ - $ 123,662 $ 122,693 $ 129,802 $ 7,109 
100-03-5035 City Admin - Benefits 66,339 61,794 72,366 10,572 
100-03-5220 City Admin - Training 1,645 5,954 5,953 (1 ) 
100-03-5225 City Admin - Supplies 378 750 1,600 850 
100-03-5235 City Admin - Postage & printing 1,062 2,200 700 (1 ,500) 
100-03-5290 City Admin - Other General Expenses 3,384 6,300 6,300 
100-03-5300 City Admin - Professional Services 60,000 
100-03-5400 City Admin - Repairs & maintenance 230 600 500 (100) 
100-03-5405 City Admin - Copier maintenance 1,297 3,000 2,800 (200) 
100-03-5625 City Admin - Internal service fund 4,393 3,661 3,661 

Department Total $ - $ - $ 202,391 $ 203,291 $ 283,682 $ 80,391 

33 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Office of the City Clerk 
04 

PROGRAM MANAGER: City Clerk 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The City Clerk's office is a statutory office. The City Clerk holds an elected position and 
is the "Keeper of the Records," the Official Seal of the City and archivist for the City. The 
Clerk's office is dedicated to meet the requirements and deadlines prescribed by the 
City, State, and Federal law to ensure proper function of government; to keep the official 
records of the City Council, such as proceedings, Resolutions, Ordinances, contracts, 
agreements and all other communications of the City Council. Responsibilities include; 
records management, local election administration, legal notification to the public, 
prepares City Council agendas, preparation and retention of official minutes of the City 
Council meetings. Clerk's office also provides administrative support to the City Council 
and its Aldermen, Aldermanic Committees, and the Zoning Board of Appeals. The 
Clerk's office also administers all requests under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA), maintains and codifies all local ordinances. 

SERVICES: 

~ Attend and prepare agendas, minutes, maintain records, referrals and 
correspondence for City Council meetings 

!!;. Prepare and post all meeting notices for council, and committees 

Ensures publication of all notices and Treasurers Report as prescribe by Law 

~ Receives and maintains all sealed bids 

.. Maintain and codify all local ordinances, resolutions 

~ Attest, Seal and certify documents for the City 

~ Administer and respond to all requests for public documents, records, (FOIA) 
requests 

Administer and maintains Oaths of Office 

Notary Public, voter registration, assists County Clerk with elections 

.. Oversee City records management, retention and destruction 

34 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Office of the City Clerk 
04 

• Provide block party, garage sales applications and coordinate for council 
approval 

* Files required documents with the State and County 

STAFFING: 

City Clerk 
Deputy City ClerkiFOIA Officer 

Secretary to the Clerk 

Total 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 

3.00 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 ----

3.00 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 ----

3.00 

• Completed Re-Codification process (complete review and up-date of City Code) and 
as of January 1, 2010, the on-line City Code was up-dated and changes are made 
monthly 

• 100% compliant with new Freedom of Information Act and Open Meetings Act laws 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Preserve and relocate all archival records of the City to new records storage facility 
• Continue digital scanning of City Council minutes 2000-2004 and make available on 

City Web site 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Web Cast of City Council meetings and digitally link/archive to City Web site 
• Digital scanning/archiving of City Council minutes 1939-2000 

35 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Clerk 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change -

100-04-5000 Clerk - Salaries $ 101,849 $ 103,710 $ 114,756 $ 107,421 $108,078 $ 657 
100-04-5010 Clerk - Overtime 60 
100-04-5030 Clerk - Sick day buy back 1,093 2,392 2,050 2,050 
100-04-5035 Clerk - Benefits 40,917 44,720 67,026 63,783 71,484 7,701 
100-04-5040 Clerk - Tuition Reimbursement 45 1,000 1,000 
100-04-5220 Clerk-Training, dues & publications 2,721 3,995 4,000 4,700 700 
100-04-5225 Clerk - Supplies 1,558 878 3,000 3,000 
100-04-5235 Clerk - Postage & printing 1,412 946 2,000 1,500 (500) 
100-04-5290 Clerk - Other general expenses 6,585 1,652 202 4,000 2,000 (2,000) 
100-04-5405 Clerk - Copier maintenance 10,339 9,604 6,254 4,700 6,000 1,300 
100-04-5610 Clerk - Codification 195 11,636 7,499 7,500 8,000 500 
100-04-5615 Clerk - Record Retention 2,994 1,331 3,153 6,000 3,000 (3,000) 
100-04-5625 Clerk - Internal service fund 7,008 4,803 10,238 10,232 8,678 (1,554) 

Department Total $ 170,980 $ 185,597 $ 214,992 $ 215,686 $219,490 $ 3,804 

36 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Office of the City Treasurer 
06 

PROGRAM MANAGER: City Treasurer 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The City's Treasurer is elected by City voters and is directly responsible to the people. 
The Treasurer serves a four year term, concurrent with the Mayor and Aldermen. The 
Treasurer attends Council meetings and acts as a City representative on several 
boards, such as the police and fire pension boards. 

The Treasurer is also responsible for preparation and publication of the City's 
treasurer's report. This report is compiled in accordance with state statutes and is 
required to be filed by June 30 of the following year. 

At the end of 2009, the position of Grants Writer/Administrator was added to the City 
Treasurer's budget. This position is responsible for seeking out grant opportunities, 
preparing grant proposals, and monitoring awarded grants for compliance with terms 
and conditions. A portion of this position is being paid for by CDBG funds. Therefore, 
only the portion paid for by the General Fund is reflected in the Treasurer's department. 

37 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Treasurer 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget _Change 

100-06-5000 Treasurer - Salaries $10,055 $ 10,731 $ 20,615 $ 24,615 $ 18,000 $ (6,615) 
100-06-5035 Treasurer - Benefits 2,388 2,734 3,896 9,923 3,749 (6,174) 
100-06-5225 Treasurer- Supplies 129 
100-06-5235 Treasurer - Postage, printing and publications 2,600 4,056 3,396 4,000 4,000 
100-06-5290 Treasurer - Other general expenses 
100-06-5625 Treasurer - Internal service fund 392 153 628 380 523 143 

Department Total $15,435 $ 17,674 $ 28,665 $ 38,918 $ 26,272 $ (12,646) 

38 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Council 
08 

The City Council is the legislative branch of the City government. The City Council 
meetings and Committee of the Whole meetings are the forums for review and debate 
of ordinances, resolutions, directives and policies proposed by standing committees, 
department heads, boards and commissions. The most important legislation is the 
annual City budget. The City Council determines the use of tax dollars and other 
funding sources to meet the needs of the City; holds public hearings to provide citizen 
input; participates in conferences, forums and meetings of legislative groups and 
associations; and keeps their constituents informed on City issues through ward 
meetings, newsletters and/or public forums. 

The City Council operates on a committee structure with the following committees: 
Building, Zoning, Planning Committee, Recreation Committee, Business, License and 
Taxation Committee, Budget Committee, Administration Committee, Public Works 
Committee, Parking and Traffic Committee, Police and Fire Committee and a liaison to 
the Library Board. 

In addition to the City Council committees, there are a number of boards and 
commissions that provide policy input to the City Council and are comprised of 
volunteer, citizen members. These boards include the Library Board, Fire and Police 
Commission, Community Relations Commission, 911 Board, Ethics Commission, 
Historic Preservation Commission, and Fire and Police Pension Board. 

SERVICES: 

... Represent all residents of Berwyn as well as their respective wards. 

Assist constituents with issues and requests relating to City Departments and 
services. 

... Approve the City budget and determine tax levy 

., Set Citywide short term and long term goals and policies. 

Provide advice and consent to Mayor for appointments to committees, boards, 
commissions and department heads. 

Research in committee and approve ordinances, polices and directives that will 
enhance the quality of life and improve the City of Berwyn. 
Approve contracts and major expenses through bidding process. 

39 



STAFFING: 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Council 
08 

The City Council is comprised of eight aldermen representing eight aldermanic wards. 
Each alderman serves a four year term which is served congruently with the Mayor, City 
Clerk and City Treasurer. 

Aldermen 8.00 8.00 8.00 

Total 8.00 8.00 8.00 

40 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Council 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change -

100-08-5000 Council - Salaries $ 79,999 $ 79,704 $ 80,000 $ 78,423 $ 80,000 $ 1,577 
100-08-5035 Council - Benefits 93,799 94,781 58,999 58,500 57,863 (637) 
100-08-5625 Council - Internal service fund 4,417 2,035 7,225 7,050 6,021 (1,029) 
100-08-5200-01 Council - Ward 1 4,482 4,050 4,500 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-02 Council - Ward 2 1,704 3,029 1,944 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-03 Council - Ward 3 1,285 555 581 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-04 Council - Ward 4 4,595 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-05 Council - Ward 5 4,272 4,312 4,422 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-06 Council - Ward 6 2,122 4,495 4,500 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-07 Council - Ward 7 4,134 1,032 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5200-08 Council- Ward 8 4,500 3,399 3,737 4,500 4,500 
100-08-5220 Council - Training, Dues, Publications 24 
100-08-5235 Council- Postage & Printing 1,078 
100-08-5290 Council - Other general expenses 305 1,324 500 500 

Department Total $ 205,307 $ 203,298 $ 171,733 $ 180,473 $180,384 $ (89) 

41 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Legal 
10 

PROGRAM MANAGER: City Attorney 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Law Department is an executive level department staffed by Illinois Licensed 
attorneys appointed by the Mayor and charged with the coordination of the law business 
of the City, including all litigation and actions filed on behalf of or against the City. The 
Law Department also supervises the drafting of all ordinances, resolutions, deeds, 
leases, contracts, and other documents required by the City, or when requested to do 
so by the Mayor or Council. The City Attorney is authorized by Ordinance to render 
opinions as required by the Mayor and Council, perform such other duties as may be 
assigned by the Mayor or the Council, and supervise the duties of the City's appointed 
prosecutors, litigation and corporate council, and the Associate City Attorney. 

SERVICES: 

.. Acts as legal counsel and parliamentarian at meetings of the City Council. 

i. Drafts and or reviews local ordinances and resolutions. 

~ Researches and writes legal opinions and memoranda for the Mayor and City 
Council. 

* Monitors all civil claims, litigation matters, regulatory actions and legal 
expend itu res. 

~ Oversees the prosecution of ordinance violations and the administration of the 
City's adjudication program. 

i. Negotiates, drafts, and/or reviews City contracts, leases, and indemnification 
agreements. 

~ Reviews and monitors real estate activity, including issuance of transfer stamps, 
tax exemption filings, property tax appeals, and the sale, lease or purchase of 
public property. 

~ Insures compliance with federal and state regulations . 

Provides assistance to other departments as requested. 

Coordinates the review of Freedom of Information requests with the Clerks office. 

42 



City of Berwyn 
201 1 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Legal 
10 

• Reviews and recommends changes to departmental policies and procedures. 

~ Reviews all real estate foreclosure transfer fees and lien collection. 

*- Is currently the attorney for both the Police and Fire Commission along with the 
Ethics Commission. 

STAFFING: 

Attorney ______ 1~.0~0 ______ 1~.0~0 

Total 1.00 1.00 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Continued to provide cost savings regarding management of litigation matters. 

• Revised and or Drafted Departmental Policies and Procedures. 

• Participated in Organizational Consolidation of applicable departmental 
operations. 

• Enhanced adjudication collections and procedures. 

• Developed and implemented comprehensive lien processing procedures. 

• Implemented inspection programs for food establishments and multi-family rental 
housing. 

• Continued to provide cooperation regarding special events. 

• Reviewed all fire department contracts for equipment purchases 

• Helped draw up crime free housing ordinances 

43 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Legal 
10 

• Reviewed in conjunction with the fire department all contracts for the 16th Street 
fire station 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011 : 

• Regulate and coordinate all traffic and parking signs and meters and ordinances 
along with the traffic engineer 

• Continue to reduce the amount of litigation expenses 

44 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Legal 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change -

1 00-1 0-5000 Legal - Salaries $ 146,009 $ 159,242 $ 163,985 $ 159,313 $ 170,252 $ 10,939 
100-10-5010 Legal - Overtime 343 
100-1 0-5035 Legal - Benefits 58,175 65,941 41,518 50,000 50,676 676 
100-10-5110 Legal - Adjudication program 27,000 12,950 22,663 35,000 35,000 
1 00-1 0-5225 Legal - Supplies 549 280 250 1,600 1,350 
100-10-5235 Legal - Postage & printing 20 121 300 700 400 
1 00-1 0-5290 Legal - Other general expenses 928 436 1,200 1,400 200 
1 00-1 0-5300 Legal - Professional service 436,117 437,932 564,248 482,000 400,000 (82,000) 
1 00-1 0-5405 Legal - Copier maintenance 2,800 2,800 
100-1 0-5625 Legal - Internal service fund 23,664 18,257 38,064 35,455 32,257 (3,198) 

Department Total $ 692,237 $ 695,327 $ 830,880 $ 763,518 $ 694,685 $ (68,833) 

45 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 
Finance Department 

12 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Finance Director 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Finance Department is responsible for the accounting and financial reporting of all 
City operations and is entrusted with collecting, depositing, and investing all City funds. 
This area includes: maintaining all financial records for the City; accounts payable; 
investment and cash management; coordinating the annual operating and capital 
budget process for all City operations; and the administration of the City's payroll 
processes. 

The City is audited annually by an external independent accounting firm. The auditors 
check the City's compliance with accounting standards and reporting along with local, 
state and federal regulations. Internal controls are reviewed to assure the safeguard of 
assets and to prevent irregularities. The Finance Department works throughout the year 
to ensure that the City is in compliance with financial and reporting regulations and 
ensuring internal controls are maintained. 

The Finance Department also encompasses the Collector's Office, which oversees the 
collection of cash receipts, parking, and the City receptionist. The goals of the 
Collector's Office are to continue to provide prompt, efficient and friendly service to all 
people who come in contact with the offices; to provide services in an accurate and 
professional manner; to provide the Finance Department with information in a timely 
and accurate manner; to provide quality service to all; to strive for self-improvement in 
all areas of responsibility. The Collector is also responsible for the issuance of business 
& contractors licenses, as well as, maintaining and updating all of the files for the 
permits and fees listed above. 

The Benefit Coordinator is responsible for administering the benefit plans for City 
employees and all related reporting issues. 

SERVICES: 

Disbursement of funds to vendors 

• Monitor the City's purchasing policies 

Processing of payroll checks to all employees 

• Verification of employee time in accordance with the City's employee handbook 
and applicable union contracts. 

46 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 
Finance Department 

12 

.. Payment of payroll taxes and preparation of related reports 

J. Preparation of financial information to department heads and elected officials. 

Coordination of the City's budget for submission to City Council 

... Preparation of financial information and schedules for the annual audit 

., Cash management and investment of City funds 

~ Cash collection and daily deposits 

l. Administration of City's debt program 

.. Questions and general assistance for business owners and residents on City 
fees 

... Tracking of payments received and balances owed for adjudication programs 

1 Grant tracking including monitoring of compliance with applicable state and 
federal regulations 

.. Establishing, monitoring and enforcement of City internal controls over financial 
processes and reporting 

:$. Liability and Workers Compensation risk management and claims review and 
processing 

~ Employee benefit evaluation, insurance review and administration 

47 



STAFFING: 

, 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 
Finance Department 

12 

~~~ 
Finance Director 1.00 1.00 
Assistant Finance Director 
Senior Accountant 1.00 1.00 
Staff Accountants 3.00 3.00 
City Collector 0.50 
Revenue Supervisor/Clerks 7.00 7.00 
Water Billing Supervisor/StaW 2.00 
Benefits Administrator 1.00 1.00 
Receptionist 1.00 1.00 

Total 16.50 14.00 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Activity Measures 2010 Projected 2011 Budget 

Bond Rating 
Accounts payable checks issued 
Payroll checks 
Payroll direct deposits issued 
Bond issuances 
Water bills issued 
Licenses issued 
Vehicle stickers issued 
Property transfer transactions 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

A-
5,088 
6,186 

10,770 
1 

13,430 
284 

26,129 
567 

A-
5,100 
6,200 

10,800 
1 

13,500 
300 

26,500 
600 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
3.00 

7.00 

1.00 
1.00 

15.00 

• Prepared the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that was awarded the 
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the first time in the history of 
the City 

• Went live with the New World payroll module on January 1, 2010 thereby 
eliminated the cost (over $25,000 per year) of the third party payroll vendor 
previously used 

48 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 
Finance Department 

12 

• Completed $10 million bond issue which included refunding of current debt 
payments as well as new money for the Roosevelt Road construction and water 
infrastructure 

• Completed, in conjunction with the mayor and city administrator, a successful 
presentation to Standard & Poors resulting in the removal of the negative outlook 
from our A- bond rating saving interest costs on our 2010 bond issue 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Implement the New World utility billing module and cash receipting module 
• Identify short term investment opportunities to provide higher yields 
• Implementation of risk assessment process including the assessment of existing 

internal controls and establishment of improved controls where needed 
• Document financial policies of the City 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Receive GFOA budget award 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

• Includes addition of an assistant finance director to allow for the accomplishment 
of a number of objectives including initiatives to improve internal controls and 
operational efficiency, improve oversight of other areas under the finance 
director's responsibility, improve monitoring of budget performance, identify 
revenue enhancements such as short term investment opportunities, and 
address the increased workload stemming from increasingly complex regulatory 
requirements and city initiatives. 

49 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Finance 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-12-5000 Finance - Salaries $ 722,659 $ 316,064 $ 296,793 $ 293,889 $ 380,611 $ 86,722 
100-12-5010 Finance - Overtime 1,086 810 
100-12-5030 Finance - Sick day buy back 4,940 1,302 1,300 1,500 200 
100-12-5035 Finance - Benefits 289,652 133,014 119,840 128,853 149,163 20,310 
100-12-5215 Finance - Telephone 51,649 35,227 55,135 30,000 40,000 10,000 
100-12-5220 Finance - Training, dues, & publications 3,016 2,180 4,500 5,000 500 
100-12-5225 Finance - Supplies 3,995 1,122 3,500 3,000 (500) 
100-12-5235 Finance - Postage, printing and publications 15,690 17,949 5,473 13,000 13,000 
100-12-5290 Finance - Other general expenses 42,301 33,428 35,323 35,000 35,000 
100-12-5300 Finance - Professional service 3,192 
100-12-5300-09 Finance - Payroll fees professional service 27,918 25,198 4,000 (4,000) 
100-12-5405 Finance - Copier maintenance 10,041 12,127 8,188 5,500 10,000 4,500 
100-12-5625 Finance - Internal service fund 40,353 16,178 48,912 38,810 40,836 2,026 

Total Finance 1,206,290 601,498 572,966 558,352 678,110 119,758 

100-12-11-5000 Collectors - Salaries $ - $ 311,315 $ 229,301 $ 227,690 $ 236,456 $ 8,766 
100-12-11-5010 Collectors - Overtime 208 
100-12-11-5030 Collectors - Sick day buy back 1,443 1,450 1,750 300 
100-12-11-5035 Collectors - Benefits 132,716 177,792 154,829 178,380 23,551 
100-12-11-5215 Collectors - Telephone 273 217 250 250 
100-12-11-5220 Collectors - Training, dues, & publications 250 250 (250) 
100-12-11-5225 Collectors - Supplies 1,477 2,517 1,500 2,000 500 
100-12-11-5235 Collectors - Postage & printing 15,530 17,038 9,000 9,000 
100-12-5300-02 Finance - Municipal revenue base fee and commission 245,735 221,226 247,940 250,000 250,000 
100-12-5300-03 Collector - Collection service fees 1,450 
1 00-12-5300-04 Finance - Vehicle registration service 23,496 33,919 31,202 35,000 30,000 (5,000) 
100-12-11-5290 Collectors - Other general expenses 2,589 1,000 1,000 
10012-5405 Collectors - Copier Maintenance 1,445 1,716 1,000 1,000 

Total Collectors 269,231 723,632 707,931 680,719 709,836 29,117 

100-14-5000 Benefits Coordinator - Salaries $ 93,848 $ 69,045 $ 45,911 $ 45,565 $ 48,201 $ 2,636 
100-14-5010 Benefits Coordinator - Overtime 
100-14-5030 Benefits Coordinator - Sick day buy back 
100-14-5035 Benefits Coordinator - Benefits 37,304 29,507 38,502 19,978 33,546 13,568 
100-14-5220 Benefits Coordinator - Training, dues & publications 950 1,000 (1,000) 
100-14-5225 Benefits Coordinator - Supplies 278 637 150 250 100 
100-14-5235 Benefits Coordinator - Postage & printing 238 4,522 100 1,000 900 
100-14-5290 Benefits Coordinator - Other general expenses 5,838 7,467 1,485 5,000 4,000 (1,000) 
100-14-5625 Benefits Coordinator - Internal service fund 3,739 1,414 3,870 3,508 3,225 (283) 

Benefits Coordinator - Advertising 1,896 

Total Benefits Coordinator 142,626 108,900 94,927 75,301 90,222 14,921 

Department Total $1,618,147 $ 1,434,030 $1,375,824 $1,314,372 ~168 $ 163,796 

Note: Water billing staff moved to water fund 

50 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Information Technology 
16 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Information Technology Director 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Department of Information Technology is working to put technology to its highest 
and best use throughout City government in order to improve the administration of City 
programs and services. 

The mission of the Department of Information Technology is to provide quality 
information technology (IT) services and solutions to principle users, effectively aligning 
business and technology objectives through collaboration, in order to provide the most 
cost-effective solutions that facilitate and improve the conduct of business for our City 
residents, businesses, visitors and government entities. 

This department maintains automated data processing systems to serve all City 
departments. The department is responsible for the integrity of information systems 
utilized by the Finance, Building, Collector, Clerk, HR, Fire, Police, CDBG, Public 
Works, Recreation and Library departments. 

SERVICES: 

The Department of Information Technology provides technology and services that fulfill 
the City's broad based information technology needs. IT plans resource commitments 
and provides a stable direction for the future. Further, IT strives to keep abreast of state
of-the-art innovations in the world of information technology. This department has co
responsibility for product purchases and development projects, which include initiation, 
management, and successful implementation. Daily duties include the responsibility and 
authority for review, control, Help Desk support, and improvements in such areas as: 

.. Desktop Services - Desktop services include functions that directly support the 
use of personal computers, laptops, and hand-held devices. This includes the 
Microsoft Office suite of tools, email, and packaged software application support. 

rk Web Services - Web services include hosting, designing, and administrating the 
City of Berwyn's external and internal set of websites. The website provides 
timely information regarding all aspects of the City. 

51 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Information Technology 
16 

.. Application Development Services - The IT department provides limited 
application design and development. Application development is used to fill in the 
gaps and integrate various purchased application packages. All development, at 
present, uses Microsoft Access-based technology 

.. Telecommunication Services - Includes all commercial and/or private voice 
communications systems and devices, commercial voice communications carrier 
services, telephones, Private Telephone Switches (PBX), call accounting, and 
voicemail. All network services from wall plugs to services, including wide area 
network (WAN) and local area network (LAN), broadband fiber and copper 
systems, and internet services 

~ Architecture and Infrastructure Services - Selection and management of PCs, 
gateways, firewalls, switches, routers, copy machines, fax machines, security 
services, domain name systems (DNS), file servers, print services, email 
systems, web site hosting, database administration, data center operations, 
backup, recovery, and performance planning 

.. Training Services - Provides Citywide technology related training including the 
Microsoft Office suite of tools, electronic mail, packaged and developed 
application training, and managing the given training areas. 

STAFFING: 

. . 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Information Technology Director 1.00 1.00 
Network Administrator 1.00 1.00 
Library IT Manager 1.00 1.00 
Service Technician 2.00 2.00 
Database administrator 1.00 1.00 

Total 6.00 6.00 

52 



City of Berwyn 
201 1 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Information Technology 
16 

Activity Measures 2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Workstations on LAN 
Laptops 
Police Mobile Data Computers 
Laser Printers 
*Network Switches 
*Routers 
Firewall 
Network Servers 
Software Applications 
*End-User Support Calls Handled (Est.) 
*Programming Projects 
Network Uptime 
Server Uptime (W2003, XP/2000 Workstations) 
Web Site Unique Visitors Daily 
Web Site Unique Visitors Monthly 
Web Site Unique Visitors Annually 

SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS: 

165.00 
22.00 
25.00 
60.00 
32.00 
11.00 
1.00 

27.00 
36.00 

2,200.00 
215.00 

1.00 
1.00 

1,856.00 
55,680.00 

668,160.00 

170.00 
25.00 
25.00 
55.00 
30.00 
12.00 

1.00 
25.00 
40.00 

2,350.00 
225.00 

1.00 
1.00 

1,900.00 
57,000.00 

684,000.00 

170.00 
25.00 
30.00 
40.00 
35.00 
14.00 
4.00 

28.00 
45.00 

2,450.00 
230.00 

1.00 
1.00 

2,000.00 
60,000.00 

700,000.00 

The day-to-day support of the City's end-users is a critical component of the Information 
Technology department. As such, we maintain and support a broad range of computer
based applications. The Department of Information Technology supports the following 
Enterprise-wide software packages: 

S ft A r r I ~ I ~ I License 
~ ~ i Est ~ 

Adobe Acrobat Standard ALL 6/1/2007 30.00 
Kronos Timekeeper ALL 1/1/2008 10.00 
Microsoft Office 2000 Pro ALL 1/1/2003 75.00 
Microsoft Office 2000 Std ALL 1/1/2003 75.00 
Microsoft Office 2003 Pro ALL 1/1/2007 100.00 
Microsoft Office 2003 Std ALL 1/1/2007 125.00 
Microsoft Windows XP Professional ALL 1/1/2003 200.00 
Scan Router PDF Distillation ALL 5/1/2007 2.00 
CORE Technologies Coli Software Collector 1/1/1990 4.00 
TMA Vehicle Sticker App Collector 1/1/2006 10.00 
GEMS Financial Mgmt Finance 1/1/2000 1.00 

53 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Information Technology 
16 

New World lOGOS .NET 5.3/6.0 Finance 1211/2008 45.00 
Paylocity Payroll Software Finance 2/1/2003 1.00 
Secure Check 1 Enterprise Mgr Finance 1/1/2003 1.00 
Firehouse V7 Fire 11/1/2007 16.00 
Fire Point V5 Fire 1/2001 15.00 
Shift Roster V6 Fire 1/1/2004 15.00 
Blackberry Professional Software IT 8/1/2008 20.00 
Cisco lOS V12 (Various releases) IT 10/1/2007 40.00 
Cisco PIX OS & Accompany Mgmt IT 10/1/2007 1.00 
Dameware Remote Mgmt IT 6/1/2006 2.00 
eCAS Call Accounting Software IT 5/1/2008 235.00 
Good Mobile Messaging IT 10/1/2006 10.00 
learning Tree Doc. Management IT 8/1/2008 15.0 
Microsoft Exchange 2003 Std IT 2/1/2001 185.00 
Microsoft ISA 2003 Std IT 2/1/2001 185.00 
Microsoft Share Point IT 1/1/2008 5.0 
Microsoft SOL 2000 MSDE IT 1/1/2003 15.00 
Microsoft SOL 2000 Std IT 1/1/2003 6.00 
Microsoft SOL 2005 Enterprise IT 1/1/2007 2.00 
Microsoft SOL 2005 MSDE IT 1/1/2006 10.00 
Microsoft SOL 2005 Std IT 1/1/2006 10.00 
Microsoft Windows Server 2003 Std IT 1/1/2006 25.00 
Microsoft Windows Server 2003 Ent IT 5/1/2007 6.00 
Microsoft Windows Server 2008 Std IT 3/1/2009 3.0 
MySOl (Open Edition) IT 1/1/2006 10.00 
Nortel Call Pilot V5 IT 5/1/2008 235.00 
Nortel OTM Management IT 5/1/2008 4.00 
Red Hat v6 IT 6/1/2007 1.00 
Surf Control SMTP Proxy Filtering IT 4/1/2004 250.00 
Surf Control Web Proxy IT 4/1/2003 250.00 
Symantec Antivirus Corporate Ed. IT 6/1/2007 200.00 
Symantec BackupExec V12 IT 6/1/2007 200.00 
Symantec Ghost V11 IT 1/1/2007 10.00 
What's Up V12 (Maintenance) IT 1/1/2007 1.00 
VMWare vCenter Management IT 5/3/2009 2.00 
VMWare ESX v3 and v4 IT 5/3/2009 6.00 
CAPERS CADIRMS Police 6/1/2007 25.00 
Datacom Software Police 4/1/2006 2.00 
DVD Maker Police 5/1/2003 5.00 
EMNet Mgmt Appliance Police 6/1/2007 2.00 
Eventide Voice Recorder Police 6/1/2007 5.0 
FACES Police 2/2003 10.0 

54 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

LEADS 
Live Scan 
MCR v1.5.2 
Midco Card Reader Software 
Midco DVR 
Scene PO 
Shift Roster V5 

Information Technology 
16 

Police 
Police 
Police 
Police 
Police 
Police 
Police 

The BEAST Evidence Collection Police 
Auto Tum PW 
Bentley Microstation v8 PW 
Google Earth PW 
HCS+ TSIS-CORSIM PW 
Highway Safety Analysis Software PW 
Traffic Management App PW 
GEMS Property Mgmt Water 
Sensus Water Meter Appl Water 
SWAN Library 
Millennium Circulation Library 
Quickbooks Library 

1/2000 
1/1/2003 
4/1/2002 
2/1/2001 
211/2001 
1/1/2003 
1/1/2003 
211/2001 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2008 
1/1/2000 
1/1/2003 
1/1/1998 
1/1/2002 
1/1/2004 

75.0 
2.00 
5.00 
1.00 
1.00 

20.00 
10.00 
5.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 

Approximately 2400 responses to user requests for assistance have been made for help 
with such things as: 

~ Computer Software upgrades 

~ Data Base modifications and corruption 

~ Microsoft MS-Access analysis 

~ Computer I Printer I Windows operations 

~ Help with Microsoft Office products (Email, Excel, Word, etc.) 

~ Office procedures 

~ Computerized System operations and procedures 

~ Phone System operations 

~ Cash Register operations 

55 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Information Technology 
16 

~ Computer System Software RFP process 

~ Computer program enhancement recommendations 

~ Assisting with IT components of Redlight Enforcement Photo processing 

~ Computer supplies 

~ Millennium Vehicle Sticker System operations 

~ GEMS System operations 

~ Employee Time Management 

~ Freedom of Information requests 

~ New World/Logos Suite Applications 

~ Ad Hoc reports 

~ Library-related service calls and support 

56 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAMMING PROJECTS: 

Information Technology 
16 

Programming projects for the following systems have been completed in 2010: 

Programming Projects 2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Local Ordinance System 30.00 30.00 30.00 
Building Department System 35.00 35.00 35.00 
Cash Register/Receipting System 7.00 8.00 8.00 
Collector's Office Sysetm 15.00 10.00 10.00 
Fine Collection Operations 6.00 6.00 6.00 
Blight System 16.00 15.00 15.00 
Water Utility System 10.00 12.00 12.00 
Bar Code Scanning 10.00 10.00 10.00 

GEMS Property Management System 10.00 5.00 5.00 
Crime Free / Multi-Tenant Housing 20.00 
IT System Functions 7.00 10.00 25.00 

Senior Garbage Discounts 1.00 1.00 1.00 
Audit-related project 4.00 4.00 5.00 
Library-related programming 10.00 
Freedom of Information 4.00 8.00 8.00 
Traffic Management 15.00 15.00 15.00 
New World Database Analysis 3.00 15.00 10.00 
Total 175.00 154.00 180.00 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Competed preparation, configuration and installation of power generator or City 
Hall and Center Fire House 

• Upgrade the City's Microsoft Exchange environment from a 32-bit Exchange 
2003 platform to a 64-bit robust Exchange 2007 platform 
Finalize and go live with website for processing of online water and vehicle 
sticker payments 

• Retire all remaining Windows 2000 workstations from city network 
• Begin Office 2007 conversion and compliance with production city databases 

• Explore feasibility of deploying Vista Business and Office 2007 in select 
production environments 

• Upgraded citywide enterprise backup system to robust L r05 tape library and 
BackupExec 2010. 

57 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Information Technology 
16 

• Creation of citywide helpdesk designed to facilitate and document support
related requests through the city staff and IT department 

• Restructured department to include necessary staff for operation" as well as 
integration of the library into city IT department 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Complete in its entirety New World General Ledger project 
• Finalize and go live with website for processing of online water and vehicle 

sticker payments 
• Complete integration of library into citywide IT environment 
• Complete conversion of all users for exchange 2003 into exchange 2010 

environment and retire old exchange server 
• Installation & configuration of City Hall generator/UPS system to secure 

uninterrupted supply of power to building / firehouse 
• Go live with redeveloped city website 
• Go live with unified community calendar, including integration of website with ten 

(10)+ outside organizations of the city 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Build out City-owned and operated fiber network, point-to-point, across all City 
locations, remove dependence on 3rd party provided for rated service and 
monthly service fees 

• Implemented a wireless radio network geared for Public Safety departments on 
the 4.9 GHz band for mobile facilitation of technical objectives 

• Design fully-fledged intranet incorporating standalone city applications into 
unified source with single front-end for authentication and entry 

• Migration of vintage applications into centralized repository of database driven 
unified applications 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

• 11-5-16-5000-- FY2011 included adjustments in personnel as needed to handle 
restructuring of department. FY2011 includes no additional requests for 
personnel. 

• 11-5-16-5530 -- FY2011 includes the necessary monies to continue funding the 
fiber optic connectivity and telephone system PRI connections for all eight (8) city 

58 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Information Technology 
16 

locations. These charges represent the largest monthly reoccurring charges 
within the department. 

• 11-5-16-5510- FY2011 includes funding necessary to handle the operating 
costs of all hardware purchases for department 

• 11-5-16-5515 - FY2011 includes an increase for software purchases. In 
FY2010, we completed an internal audit of our existing software licensing and 
brought everything up into compliance. In addition, in FY2010, the VMWare 
migration program expanded - this includes converting old physical servers into 
software-based virtual machines. As a newer server can run multiple virtual 
servers, we are recognizing a cost savings in equipment, and will continue to for 
as long as the City virtualizes its environment. 

• 11-5-16-5290 - FY2011 includes the necessary monies to acquire all necessary 
supplies to maintain the department, including cell phone and connectivity 
expenses, printer supplies, maintenance kits, as well as education 
reimbursements. 

59 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Information Technology 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget _Change 

1 00-16-5000 IT - Salaries $ 209,226 $ 210,474 $ 241,197 $ 229,818 $ 313,530 $ 83,712 
1 00-16-5030 IT - Sick day buy back 3,637 3,638 3,765 3,765 
1 00-16-5035 IT - Benefits 84,613 87,909 86,505 88,299 153,124 64,825 
100-16-5225 IT - Supplies 31 3,066 
1 00-16-5235 IT - Postage & printing 323 20 
1 00-16-5290 IT - Other general expenses 22,244 36,632 35,778 40,000 40,000 
100-16-5300 IT - Professional service 7,031 10,168 29,616 30,000 20,000 (10,000) 
100-16-5410 IT - Hardware maintenance 10,234 29,941 35,648 30,000 30,000 
100-16-5415 IT - Software maintenance 23,364 25,465 29,591 30,000 30,000 
100-16-5510 IT - Hardware purchases 68,538 75,331 80,236 80,000 60,000 (20,000) 
100-16-5515 IT - Software purchases 25,588 28,537 36,331 30,000 30,000 
1 00-16-5530 IT - Network Infrastructure 149,926 196,122 177,647 175,000 180,000 5,000 
100-16-5625 IT - Internal service fund 16,607 6,155 25,257 15,276 21,049 5,773 

Department Total $ 621,009 $ 710,726 $ 780,891 $ 752,158 $ 881,468 $ 129,310 

60 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Fire Chief 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Fire Department 
18 

The department operates three strategically located fire stations, each covering about 
one third of the City. The stations are manned by sixty-five full time fire personnel and 
eighteen member emergency medical staff. In March of 2011 the current firefighter 
hiring list will expire. Through an agreement with the Local 506 Union, the City of 
Berwyn has terminated the contract with Paramedic Services of Illinois and will be hiring 
an additional twelve certified firefighters/paramedics. Our primary response area is 
divided by two railroad right-of-ways. The majority of the personnel work 24 hours on 
duty followed by 48 hours off duty. We maintain mutual aid agreements with our 
neighboring communities through the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System. Our MABAS 
Division 11 group is affiliated state wide with other MABAS divisions. We are also 
associated with the Illinois Terrorism Task Force. We provide a variety of services; 
some of which are reactive or emergency in nature while others are proactive like fire 
prevention and inspection. 

The Berwyn Fire Department is committed to the following values: 

Customer Service: Prompt and professional delivery of service to the community 
is our ultimate commitment 

Safety: Emergency situations create dangerous work environments. Safety is our 
foremost consideration during performance of all tasks. 

Teamwork: A team oriented approach, which promotes excellence in the 
performance of all tasks. 

Outreach: Demonstrated by professional partnerships with the Police Department 
and other agencies enhancing delivery of emergency services to our community. 

SERVICES: 

At various times, crisis situations occur which can negatively impact persons or property 
in the City. The Fire Department's primary responsibility is "the saving of lives and 
property." To facilitate the accomplishment of these goals, the Department members 
provide such activities as: 

Fire prevention techniques 

61 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

~ Property conservation 

Fire Department 
18 

J. Fire prevention and inspection services 

.. Public education 

.. Rescue procedures 
Hazardous materials response 

• Emergency medical services 

.. Pre-incident and disaster planning 

~ Fire investigations 

During the performance of these tasks, the department members will not knowingly 
engage in any behavior which will compromise the safety of its members or the citizens 
to which it provides emergency services. The Berwyn Fire Department exists to meet 
the needs of a wide variety of crisis situations that require a quick, efficient and 
professional response. 

STAFFING: 

I 

Position (FTE) 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Chief 
Assistant Chief 
Deputy Chief 
Lieutenant 
Engineer 
Firefighter/paramedics 
Secretary 

Total 

1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 
4.00 4.00 

13.00 13.00 
12.00 12.00 
36.00 48.00 

1.00 1.00 ----
68.00 80.00 

Station 1 (South) - 6434 Windsor Ave. 

.. 1997 Seagrave Quint Engine 901 - fire vehicle staffed by a Lieutenant, Engineer, 
and two firefighters and includes the following services: 

o Aerial ladder 
o Full set of ground ladders 

62 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

o Water tank 
o Fire pump 
o Fire hose 
o EMS First Responders 
o Extrication tools 
o The 1997 Seagrave Quint Engine is at optimal time for trade-in value, 

estimated at $100,000.00. Trade-in value estimate in August 2009 will 
decrease with time. 

~ 2008 Wheeled Coach Ambulance 906 - Advanced Life Support (ALS) unit 
staffed by two Firefighter's/paramedics. 

~ 1992 Seagrave Reserve fire engine 911 - not staffed. Placed into service when 
other apparatus is out for repair or service. Reserve Engine provides positive 
points for an improved ISO classification . 

• 2004 Wheeled Coach Reserve Ambulance 910. A fully equipped reserve 
Advance Life Support Unit (ALS) that is not staffed. 

Station 2 (North) - 6615 16th St. 

2000 Pierce Fire Engine - fire vehicle staffed by a Lieutenant, Engineer, and a 
firefighter and includes the following services: 

o Water tank 
o Hose 
o Fire pump 
o EMS First Responders 

.. 2008 Wheeled Coach Ambulance 905 - an ALS Unit staffed by two 
firefighter/paramedics. 

Station 3 (Center) - 6700 W. 26th St. 

.. 2008 Crimson Fire Engine 903 - Unit staffed by a Lieutenant, an Engineer and 
firefighters and includes the following services 

o Water tank 
o Fire pump 

63 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

o Hose 

Fire Department 
18 

o EMS First Responders 

*' 2004 Seagrave Aerial Ladder Truck 904 - a fire vehicle staffed by a Lieutenant, 
Engineer, and two firefighters. This vehicle's primary duty is rescue and it 
transports a full complement of truck equipment. 

o 100 foot Aerial ladder 
o Ground Ladders 
o Rescue Equipment 
o EMS First Responders 

Ford Expedition command vehicle - operated by the shift commander or the 
Deputy Chief. This person fulfills the NIMS requirement for an "incident 
command" person for all incidents. 

:$. 2004 Wheel Coach Ambulance 907 staffed by 2 Firefighters/Paramedics 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

2009 2010 2011 

Activity Measures ~ Projected Projected 

Fire calls responded to 8431 
EMS calls responded to 4458 
Training Hours 11672 
* January 1, 2010 to June 30, 2010 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

*3001 
*2334 
*7329 

6200 
4668 
14650 

• Implemented the new Firehouse software capabilities and record management 
system. Increased detailed records for all incidents, inventory of equipment, and 
training. 

• Issued an updated revised Fire Department operations manual. (on going 
process) 

• Revised and implemented a process of Fire Department Respiratory Program. 
• Implemented, trained, and placed into service, new Scott Self Contained 

Breathing apparatus and pak tracker received from an AFG FEMA grant. 
• Implemented a Firefighter Rehabilitation process at Emergency Incidents. 
• Implemented Yearly physicals for each member covered under the revised 

respirator program. 

64 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Fire Department 
18 

• Implemented pre-fire planning for target hazards for Hospital, Schools and 
Nursing Home, assistant living facilities. 

• Implemented a regular schedule for Citizen CPR training. 
• Continued Facilitation of the plan for distribution of medications required by the 

Illinois Department of Public Health. 
• Working with the Cook County Sherriff's Office City of Chicago, Urban Area 

Security Initiative (USAI) on a Tactical Interoperable Communications Plan. 
• Updated the Firefighter Health and Safety Program and Blood Borne Pathogens 

Policy and Program 
• Increased in-house training and expanded outside training as well as Fire Officer 

development training through Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) 
o Developed a minimum qualification and certification policy for seniority 

rank and Acting out of class rank of Engineer, through CBA. 
o Developed a training and minimum qualification for Acting Lieutenant and 

Lieutenant's position through CBA 

• Comply with increase State and Federal mandated training. 
• Implemented a successful fuel reduction policy 
• Reduced ISO Rating from an ISO Class 4 to an ISO Class 2 
• Implement an improved Goal based Employee Evaluation program 
• Implement an upgrade to the EMS Service by adding 1 additional ALS unit in Fire 

Station 3. Broke down our 2 Districts for EMS and added 1 additional District in 
the Center of the City which will decrease EMS response times and requires less 
Mutual Aid responses for Ambulances 

• Design and develop a Silver Spanner program to supplements our EMS Service 
until we can hire twelve additionally pre trained and certified 
Firefighter/Paramedics 

• Increase EMS training for all members of the department. 
• Researched and obtain price quotes for replacement of the 2 - 2004 ambulances 
• Updated Portable radios for firefighter safety and for narrow banding requirement 

for 2012 
• Purchased 1 additional Cardiac Monitor and upgraded two other to 12-lead EKG 
• Increased in-house basic EMS training for all firefighter's 
• Purchase of Hydraulic stretchers to decrease duty related injuries for EMS 

personnel 
• Citizen Fire Academy Spring 2010 
• Develop and communication system with in the City, (Collectors office, Building 

Department) for a process for New Business licenses and fire inspections 
• Required multiple businesses to upgrade and sprinkler systems. 

65 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

• Reduced sick-day related overtime costs. 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Implement use of a City Web site to display Fire Department Activities 
o Display inspection tips and forms on the website 
o Display the history of Fire Department 
o Display of Vehicles and Equipment 
o Display of Services provided by the Fire Department and contact 

information 
o Display a Calendar of Event of Fire Department Activities 
o Display a frequently asked questions with answers and forms for Fire 

Department Activities 
o Display seasonal safety facts and tips 

• Continue the development of the EMS program and training of 12 new 
probationary Firefighter/paramedic 

• Implement the Fire House Mobile fire Inspection program for Fire Prevention 
• Revise and update the Fire Department Rules and regulations. 
• Implement Transfer of data from Fire House records management system into 

Fire House mobile 
• Update base station radios for the narrow banding requirement for 2012 
• Train and certify all EMS personnel on 12-lead EKG 
• Implement 12-lead EKG January 2011 
• Implement A risk Management program for Emergency Incidents to 
• Continue to improve Company Officer's and Acting Officer's Training and 

certifications 
• Continue to improve Engineer's and acting drivers certifications and training 
• Update and increase in-service inspections and pre-fire planning along with 

inputting the information into firehouse records management 
• Develop a communication policy between Collectors office, Building Department 

and police Department to exchange and keep Emergency contact information 
current in all records management systems. 

• Update data entry for NIMS cast 
• Update and comply with NIMS training 
• Update and improve the City of Berwyn Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) with 

Emergency Management Agency and Cook County 
• Replace Tornado warning Sirens City wide 

66 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Transition into Fire House mobile with lap top computers in all Fire Department 
vehicles to have real time information on all buildings in the City of Berwyn 

• Continue with the 4 year replacement plan for Ambulances 
• Continue with the 10 to 15 year replacement plan for fire apparatus 
• Continued participating in specific State, & MABAS Division 11 sponsored teams, 

i.e. Hazardous Materials, Technical Rescue, which provide reimbursable training 
and certification for Department personnel 

• Change over to Fire House Web version for incident reporting, inspections and 
records management system. 

• Develop, improve, and implement a Risk management program for Emergency 
Incidents, fire house activities to attempt to reduce worker compensation costs 
and incidents. 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

Fire Engine replacement 
1996 Quint pumper/aerial ladder at Station 1 (south) is a approaching 14 years of 
age, well beyond our 7 year replacement program for fire vehicles. Estimated trade
in value quote in August of 2008 is approximately $100,000.00. The quint 
pumper/aerial is a multi use vehicle stationed south due to railroad traffic. This 
quint/pumper has the option to provide water for extinguishment and aerial ladders 
for rescue. The concept of the quint is to provide a multi use fire apparatus to begin 
emergency operations due to delays in response time from railroad traffic. With 
increasing maintenance costs and decreasing trade-in value, it is time to begin the 
process of replacement. During the 2008 ladder testing and certification, it was 
brought to our attention that the ladder will need to be refurbished due to wear and 
usage, in the near future. The refurbishing of the ladder will cost approximately 
$120,000.00 and take 3 to 5 months to complete. This quint/pumper is used as a 
backup ladder for ISO fire insurance ratings. Replacement costs of a new 100' 
Quint will be approximately $800,000.00. A seven to 10 year lease/purchase 
program could be explored. Trade-in value for the existing quint could be used to 
reduce the overall cost of the vehicle. 

Ambulance Replacement 

To comply with the 4 year replacement program for ambulances, the 2 -2004 units, 
one a reserve and one front line ambulance are well past the 4 year cycle. This will 
bring us up to replacing the ambulances in a four year cycle . As experienced with 

67 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

the last ambulances purchased in 2008 the increased trade-in value reduced the 
overall costs of the ambulances. Maintenance cost should also decrease by the 
vehicle being covered by the manufacturer's warranty. The reserve unit 910 was 
involved in an accident on August 13, 2006 which has created additional 
maintenance costs and problems. The approximate cost of a new ambulance is 
approximately $133,239.00 each with a discount for purchasing 2 units at 
$130,839.00 each. Total cost for 2 ambulances $261,678.00. 

Replacement of the Fire Prevention 1996 Dodge Van 

Purchase of a SUV off the State Contract to replace the Current Assistant Chiefs 
2005 Chevy Impala. The Impala would replace the Dodge van and then be used for 
Fire prevention inspections. A new vehicle Approximate cost $34,000.00 which 
includes installation of lights, siren and radio's. The 1996 Dodge van can be utilized 
by another City Department for non emergency response. 

Replacement of 1993 Chevy Suburban SUV 

This vehicle is currently being used to assist the department in the fuel reduction 
policy. The unit has a plow attached to it and is used to plow snow from the 
firehouse driveways. The cost of a new Heavy Duty crew cab Pick-up truck is 
approximately $31,520. The vehicle would be used by the training Officer and for 
plowing the stations. The vehicle would also be used for multiple other uses for 
Training and transporting hose and Equipment to and from incidents. Currently the 
Berwyn Fire Department does not have a vehicle to tow the MABAS Division 11 Fire 
Safety Trailer. The Berwyn Police Department has allowed us to use the graffiti 
pick-up truck to transport the trailer. This works for us on the weekend, but during 
the week days we disrupt the graffiti truck's schedule to move the trailer around to 
schools. 

68 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Tornado Siren Upgrade 

Fire Department 
18 

• The Tornado warning siren currently in use by the City of Berwyn is in need of 
upgrading. The tornado siren locations in the City are 16th St fire station, the 
roof top of City Hall, and on top of the Windsor Ave fire station. The decibel 
coverage does not reach the entire city. The August 2010 estimated costs has 
two options: Option 1. Two sirens at two new locations for $33,772. Option 2. 3 
sirens at existing locations for $43,788.00 with new sirens, battery back up 
system, and integrated software system. The upgraded system is designed with 
the capability of remote activation from the dispatch station and three different 
signal types (tornado/weather, air raid, and all clear. Currently we have the 
capability of only one signal type. 

Berwyn Fire Department Budget wish list for 2011 

Fire Prevention and Inspection Employee 

• Prevention and inspection employee - Most Fire Departments have a minimum 
of 1 full time person in the division acting as a supervisor to the part time staff of 
the fire-prevention division or bureau. The person provides continuity. A staff 
person is available during regular business hours to coordinate fire prevention 
and public education warrant this position. My recommendation is to have a staff 
person assigned to fire prevention, inspection and public education. The 
anticipated increase in fire inspections, new business licenses, occupancy loads, 
yearly inspections of commercial property requirements and public education 
warrants this position. A creation of a fire inspector rank and or Fire Marshal's 
rank with qualifications and a requirement to stay in the 
Position for a period of time would be required. 

• In the Year 2008 The Fire prevention Inspectors conducted the following 
inspections: 24 New Business Licenses, 45 Annual inspections, 85 Re
inspections, 27 Special Inspections, 5 Occupancy inspections, 1 pre-inspection 
and 6 Freedom of Information requests. 

• In the Year of 2009 the Fire prevention Inspectors conducted 42 New Business 
licenses, 91 Annual inspections, 105 re-inspections, 28 Special inspection 9 
Occupancy Inspections, 23 Pre-Inspections and 10 Freedom of Information 
requests. 

• In the year of 2010 the Fire Prevention Inspectors conducted 71 new business 
inspection, 111 annual inspections, 123 re-inspections, 41 special inspections, 
14 occupancies inspections, 34 pre inspections, and 16 freedom of information 
requests up to November 2010 

69 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

• We are predicting a continual rise in New Business and Pre-inspections, along 
with Occupancy inspections. We are currently not charging for these 
inspections, but should consider charging especially for re-inspections. Many re
inspections are for owners not repairing the violations and the time frames 
allowed. This is taking time away from completing new annual inspections. 

• There are 1030 businesses in Berwyn, in 2008 and 2009 the inspectors 
completed 145 annual inspections, leaving 800 properties not inspected 
annually. 

• This could also be accomplished by hiring a civilian employee with qualifications 
and or an administrative assistant to assist in scheduling and record keeping. 
This position could be shared with the proposed training officer secretary listed 
below. 

Training Division Manager 

• The Office of the State Fire Marshal is recommending that fire departments in the 
state of Illinois move their departments training division towards the position of 
"Training Program Manager" (TPM). 

• Currently the Training Officer is the rank of Lieutenant and holds the OSFM 
Certification of Fire Officer 1. 

• Prerequisites for Lieutenant are: 10 years of service prior to participating in the 
promotional examination. 

• Prerequisites for Training Program Manager are: Fire Officer 1, Instructor 2 
certification and 5 years experience as an instructor or training officer. 

• The majority of the training officer's job is filling out the required paper work and 
filing it with the State. Mandated by State Law. 

Proposal 1 

• Create the Training Program Manager Position (Current Training Officer) 
• Utilize provisional training officers, 3 to 4 employees hired back similar to 

the fire prevention inspectors at a pay rate of $25.00 per hour to do the 
shift training. This would free up time for the Training Officer to schedule 
training and filling out the required paper work. 4 days a week part time 4 
hours a day. Estimated costs $6000.00 

70 



Proposal 2 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire Department 
18 

• Create a secretary Iclerk to the training division for the purposes of record 
keeping, data entry, filing, appointments of inspections, mailings, notices 
and disposal of records that can be disposed of. The disposal of records 
would create much needed space in the filing area of City Hall. The 
estimated costs involved would be from $15,000 to $20,000 salary range 
plus benefits. A part time position with 32 hours of work would also be 
possible eliminating the benefits costs. 

• We could explore the usage of a CETA worker to fulfill this position at no 
cost to the City. In 2009 The Fire Department through CETA used a Filing 
clerk to assist to straighten out all files in the department and compile old 
files for destruction. This assistant helped out tremendously in achieving 
the goals. 

71 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Fire 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-18-5000 Fire - Salaries $ 5,431,618 $ 5,318,575 $ 5,282,372 $ 5,252,744 $ 5,957,894 $ 705,150 
100-18-15-5000 Fire - Salaries for EMS 456,818 459,900 619,660 159,760 
100-18-5005 Fire - Out of class 71,808 38,175 104,242 76,350 80,999 4,649 
100-18-5010 Fire - Overtime 276,720 259,719 271,700 330,000 330,000 
100-18-15-5010 Fire - Overtime for EMS 40,832 30,000 (10,832) 
100-18-5015 Fire - Uniform stipend 50,952 53,640 51,375 53,600 53,600 
100-18-5020 Fire - Education stipend 25,250 19,750 22,500 26,000 26,000 
100-18-5025 Fire - Other stipend 6,250 8,802 8,700 8,700 
100-18-15-5025 Fire - Other stipend for EMS 72,000 72,000 
100-18-5030 Fire - Sick day buy back 53,736 131,849 45,602 146,750 255,925 109,175 
100-18-5035 Fire - Benefits 1,391,085 1,468,808 1,273,355 1,331,488 1,562,531 231,043 
100-18-15-5035 Fire - Benefits for EMS 40,033 3,655 48,230 44,575 
100-18-5040 Fire - Tuition reimbursement 7,267 5,159 19,472 10,000 15,000 5,000 
100-18-5045 Fire - Pension 2,049,758 2,024,829 2,500,000 2,534,586 2,534,586 
100-18-5205 Fire - Utilities 1,665 6,751 9,633 10,000 10,000 
100-18-5210 Fire - Vehicle Gas and Oil 64,568 31,127 55,660 65,000 55,000 (10,000) 
100-18-5215 Fire - Telephone 9,401 7,488 7,957 9,900 9,900 
100-18-5220 Fire - Training, dues and publications 24,134 44,882 42,358 54,050 85,000 30,950 
100-18-5225 Fire - Supplies 12,126 11,349 11 ,000 20,000 9,000 
100-18-5235 Fire - Postage and printing 523 671 500 500 
100-18-5290 Fire - Other general expenses 81,324 35,945 37,110 110,000 110,000 
100-18-5300 Fire - Professional service 1,337,849 1,177,866 510,310 510,417 (510,417) 
100-18-5300-03 Fire - Collection service fees 62,464 61,616 60,259 65,000 65,000 
100-18-5400 Fire - Repairs and maintenance 138,020 107,171 137,602 200,000 200,000 
100-18-5405 Fire - Copier maintenance 10,070 12,536 4,111 5,700 6,600 900 
100-18-5500 Fire - Equipment purchases 35,330 20,752 121,228 162,979 207,000 44,021 
100-18-5500-01 Fire - Turnout gear 15,706 6,855 12,264 29,500 50,000 20,500 
100-18-5505 Fire - Equipment lease 152,766 156,253 152,694 171,600 18,906 
100-18-5625 Fire - Internal service fund 637,718 302,467 729,397 590,048 620,207 30,159 
100-18-5800 Fire - Capital outlay 549,115 67,000 67,000 

Department Total $11,776.444 $ 11.856.738 $ 11.972,433 $ 12.251.392 $13.272.932 $ 1,021.540 

72 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Police Chief 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Police Department of the City of Berwyn is dedicated to protecting life and property 
through total quality professional police service rendered in an honest, fair, and 
courteous manner. 

The City of Berwyn is in a location which optimizes the best of suburban life while 
affording the conveniences of urban living. The mass transit and expressway systems 
afford easy commuting; unfortunately, these same systems, coupled with our proximity 
to the City of Chicago, adversely affect the crime rate in Berwyn. 

Recent developments in the City of Chicago have caused a ripple effect for many 
municipalities, including Berwyn. A migration of people leaving the City of Chicago 
seeking better housing stock, lower crime rates and better schools, unfortunately is 
joined by gang members fleeing increased enforcement and vigilance by Chicago 
Police. Members of both groups have arrived in Berwyn. 

While Berwyn changes and evolves, the Police Department is undergoing a paradigm 
shift. Responding to the needs of the community in a timely, courteous and 
professional manner is paramount; however, the need to respond professionally to 
crimes in progress and to thoroughly investigate those same crimes with prosecution of 
the offenders as the ultimate goal cannot be overlooked. 
The attached budget has been carefully crafted to enable the Department to continue to 
provide a very high level of effective and efficient service to the citizens of Berwyn. 

Organization 
The police department administration is comprised the Chief of Police, Deputy Chief of 
Police and four Division Commanders. The department is divided into four divisions 
each managed by a Division Commander: 

• Investigative Services 

Line Services 

~ Administrative Services 

• Support Services 

73 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

Department Description - Investigative Services 
The Investigative Services Division is comprised of the Criminal Investigations Unit, 
Youth Investigations/Community Relations Unit, and the Tactical/Drug Investigations 
Unit. These three units function as the primary source for follow up investigations to all 
major crimes committed in Berwyn. 

The Internal Affairs section of the police department also falls under auspices of the 
Investigative Services Division with all investigations being managed by the Deputy 
Chief of Police. This section is vital to the success of the organization in the fact that 
any and all complaints against officers being thoroughly investigated to either exonerate 
the officer or determine if in fact misconduct has taken place and that steps are put in 
place to prevent that from occurring again. 

The Berwyn Police department is currently part of several Task Force Programs on the 
federal, state, and local level. The Task Forces are, The Drug Enforcement 
Administration, U. S. Marshal's Service Great lakes Regional Fugitive Task Force, 
Chicago / Cook County High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area, and the local West 
Suburban Enhanced Drug Gang Enforcement Group. The officers assigned to these 
Task Forces are managed by the Deputy Chief of Police. 

Department Description - Line Services 
The Line Services Division is responsible for the administration of all aspects of the 
patrol division which includes supervision of the Watch Commanders and patrol officers 
for all three shifts, in addition to supervision of the Court CoordinatorlWarrant Officer. 
Departmental training standards for all sworn members, new officer recruit and lateral 
entry officers fall under line services, as well as the Auxiliary contingent, part time 
certified officers, and secondary employment for both Auxiliary and full time sworn 
members. 

The Line Services Division Commander also serves as the Departments Liaison for all 
mutual aid compacts the department participates in such as NIPAS (Northern Illinois 
Police Alarm System) a regional response team, and ILEAS (Illinois Law Enforcement 
Alarm System) a statewide mutual aid organization. 

Department Description - Administrative Services 
Under general direction of the Chief of Police, coordinates the development of the 
operating budget with Chief and other Division Heads. Organizes and manages the 
Police budget, including financial analyses, cost recovery programs, grants 
administration, and conducts on-going research into cost reduction measures. Designs 
and administers programs and organizational changes from variety of funding sources. 

74 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

Perform independent research and special studies involving data collection and analysis 
of departmental operations and structures. Prepare a wide variety of written reports and 
projects, including special projects for publication and/or submission to outside 
organizations. Performs or participate in comprehensive management analyses of 
Police Department policies, also serves as a member of the department administrative 
team in problem solving, decision-making, strategic planning. Develops and coordinates 
activities with other city departments, other government agencies and outside 
organizations; provides staff assistance and managerial services. Administrative 
Services also studies statistical crime data and other reports; analyzes levels of criminal 
activity; determines trends and makes recommendations for change in organization and 
operating procedures. 

The division commander of Administrative Services also serves as a liaison with City's 
Benefits Administration Department and oversees departmental Occupational Health & 
Safety issues and drug screening. 

Department Description - Support Services 
The primary responsibility of Support Services is to provide assistance to the other 
Divisions of the Police Department in the form of personnel and equipment. The 
Division Commander of Support Services is responsible for this service by carrying out 
the goals and objectives of this division which in turn allows the Berwyn Police 
Department to meet its mission. Support Services consists of the following units: 
Community Service, Graffiti Removal, Parking Enforcement and Collections, Traffic 
Enforcement, Department Motor Pool, Detention/Booking, and Canine Unit. 

SERVICES: 

Services -Investigative Services 

Criminal Investigations Unit 
The Criminal Investigations unit is led by a Unit Commander and a supervising 
Sergeant who are responsible for the management and supervision of the unit. 
The unit is currently comprised of nine investigators who handle all major criminal 
investigations for the department and one unit secretary. 
In addition to investigating crime committed within the City of Berwyn, 
Investigators are assigned and responsible for activity in several specialized 
areas. 

75 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

Specialty Assignments consist of the following: 

• Records Maintenance & Background • Electronic and paper record 
maintenance, including all Berwyn arrest files, liquor license files, new business 
files, criminal records checks, LEADS (Law Enforcement Agency Data Systems) 
validations, immigration checks, military background checks, responding to 
subpoena requests, processing expunge orders, Medical Examiner files and 
Cook County court computer updates. 

~ Evidence· Evidence processing, collection, and storage along with recovered 
property storage. Preparation of evidence for laboratory submission for analysis, 
and evidence records maintenance. Maintenance of evidence collection supplies, 
and Mobile Crime Scene Unit inventory and maintenance. 

~ Crime Scene Unit· The Crime Scene Unit consists of Patrol Officers assigned 
to routine Evidence Collection. These technicians work along side Investigators 
and are responsible for processing all crime scenes. CSU Technicians also 
provide assistance to Illinois State Police Crime Scene Investigators on all major 
local crime scenes. 

~ Employee Criminal Background Investigations • New Police Employee 
background checks (processing, reports, field interviews), photographs, 
fingerprint verification, FOlD, OIL, neighbor and former employer reference 
verifications, followed by a comprehensive written report. 

*' Photography • Photography maintenance, filing of negative print film and 
photographs, photography log records, and filling of subpoena requests for 
negative print film. 

• Sex Offender Files· Sex offender file maintenance, on-line photo maintenance, 
monthly residence checks, sex offender registrations and LEADS entry 
verification completed. 

J. Gypsy Crime File Maintenance - Gypsy crimes file maintenance, 
comprehensive list of all known Gypsy clan members and offenders (including 
photographs); maintain contacts with Illinois State Police and Chicago Police 
Department Gypsy crimes specialists. 

~ Financial District Liaison • Organize and host semi-annual meetings between 
the Police Department and all financial district leaders. Maintain direct contact 

76 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

with Bank Presidents, VPs and Managers, including Savings & Loans, Mortgage 
Providers, Lenders and Currency Exchanges. 

CPIC - Crime Prevention Information Center (CPIC) is a state of the art fusion 
center located on the 5th floor of the Chicago Police Headquarters at 35th & 
Michigan. The CPIC is a 24/7 operation and is staffed by Federal, State, County 
and Local Police Departments. Participating Suburban Agencies are required to 
staff the suburban desk with an investigator at least one a-hour shift per week. 

~ Pawn Shop Record Maintenance - Pawn Shop record maintenance involves 
collecting and filing of all Pawn Shop transactions, identifying stolen property, 
identifying possible offenders and date mapping transactions to burglaries. 
Maintain relationships with all pawn shop owners, including shops located in Oak 
Park, North Riverside and Chicago Area 5 . 

.. Digital Imaging - Digital Image Processing, Data Maintenance (downloading and 
copying of all digital images captured by Police Department Cameras). File all 
data on CD for permanent record maintenance, filling subpoena requests for 
digital images (in print and electronic format). Maintenance of all Police 
Department Digital Imaging Equipment (cameras, lenses, cases, batteries, and 
memory cards) 

Roll Call Training - Investigators participate in 10-15 minute roll call training 
sessions in conjunction with daily shift roll calls. Roll Call Training provided on 
an as-needed basis but no less that once a week. General Topics covered are to 
include Crime Scene Protection, Recovered Property, Evidence Collection, 
Documentation of Witness and Offender Statements, and other related topics of 
concern. 

~ ATF Trace - Investigators allowed access to the Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and 
Firearms Electronic Firearms Tracing Site are responsible for running checks on 
all firearms recovered by the Berwyn Police Department, including all firearms 
held in the possession of the Berwyn Police Department. Investigators maintain 
e-trace records for all firearms . 

• FBI Joint Terrorism Task Force Liaison - Investigators are assigned as 
liaisons between the Federal and State Terrorism Units and the Berwyn Police 
Department. Investigators receive specialized training from the FBI Joint 
Terrorism Task Force (JTIF) and from the Illinois State Police Terrorism Unit. 

77 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

Investigators receive and disseminate Homeland Security Briefings and terrorism 
updates throughout the Police Department on a daily basis. 

... FBI Human Intelligence Squad (HUM IT) - The Department, through the 
Criminal Investigations Unit, participates in the newly formed intelligence 
gathering/counter terrorism tool. Information and training shared between 
participants impacts all types of criminal activity. 

~ Detectives Associations - Investigators are members of the West Suburban 
Detectives Association and attend monthly meetings to share information and 
knowledge regarding crime patterns, criminal activity, known offenders, and 
leads with other area detectives and agencies. Investigators also participate in 
monthly meetings with Detectives from Chicago PO Area 5 to share and 
exchange crime related information. 

Services - Youth Investigations I Community Relations Unit 

Youth Investigations 

The police department Youth Investigations/Community Relations Unit is 
comprised the Unit Commander who serves as the supervisor for 6 investigators. 
All investigators are veteran officers with at least 13 years of service. The unit 
handles all incidents that involve minors who are either the victims of, or 
perpetrators in crimes committed. 

Each Investigator maintains a current caseload and is responsible for responding 
to the daily calls for service or assistance to the patrol, detective or tactical 
division: 

Youth investigators are called to the schools on a regular basis during the school 
year for criminal acts or Minors Requiring Authorities Intervention. 

Investigators also provide the schools with gang & drug awareness, bullying, and 
railroad safety programs, or any other specifically targeted program at the 
schools request. 

.. The unit maintains the 54-person school crossing guard program. This consists 
of hiring, scheduling, training, and payroll of all 54 members. 
The department has experienced a substantial increase in sex offenses against 
children. In many cases the victim & offender are either family members or are 

78 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

students at the same school. Victims under the age of 16 are required to have a 
"Victim Sensitive Interview" conducted by the Proviso Children's Advocacy 
Center, which, must be attended by a youth investigator. 

Community Relations 

The members of the unit are actively involved in Community Relations that affect 
the community and serve as the Public Relations arm of the department as well 
The unit acts as advisors and/or zone liaison officers in the following programs, 
which include but are not limited to: 

• Neighborhood Watch Program 

Speakers at community & ward meetings and other organizations with in the 
community. 

4, Citizen Police Academy 

• Volunteer program 

-i. National Night Out event 

.. Boy Scouts of America sponsored "Police Explorer Program" 

Investigators are actively involved in the schools where their increased presence 
has resulted in: 

o A Bullying Curriculum developed for the grade school students 
o More gang and drug assemblies were conducted 
o Railroad safety education programs were conducted 

Services· Tactical/Drug Investigations Unit 

The Deputy Chief of Police supervises the Tactical/Drug Enforcement unit which 
is comprised of a supervising Sergeant, (1) Detective Gang specialist, (8) 
Tactical Officers who are Gang Specialists, and (3) Detectives that are assigned 
to the State and Federal Task Forces being the Drug Enforcement Administration 
Narcotics Task Force, U.S. Marshal's Great lakes Regional Fugitive Task Force, 
and the Chicago/Cook County HIDTA (High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area). 
Tactical Officers focus on gang suppression and intelligence while disrupting 
street level drug sales. Two of the Task Force Officers conduct long term 

79 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

investigations into the major drug suppliers in the area and the third focuses on 
apprehending fugitives from justice. 

Other areas of responsibility for the Tactical Unit are as follows: 

~ West Suburban Gang Task Force 

~ Gang awareness, Graffiti patterns, and file maintenance 

~ Follow-up to Graffiti Hotline reports 

:1. Maintain Confidential Informant files 

~ Drug Trafficking analysis and enforcement 

~ Local, State, and Federal Drug Unit Liaisons 

.... Drug Awareness Seminars 

~ U.S. Marshalls Service Task Force Liaisons 

~ Short / Long Term Drug Investigations 

Services - Line Services 

Patrol Division 

The goal of the Patrol Division is to provide efficient deployment of uniformed 
patrol assets who can respond effectively and in a timely fashion to calls for 
police service. The Patrol Division provides proactive policing in a real time 
environment with prevention of crime as its foremost goal. In addition, the Patrol 
Division maintains a highly visible presence in the community which imparts a 
feeling of comfort and security to the community at large. 

1 The Patrol Division represents the first visible contact with the public, and 
provides primary first responder police service. 

~ The Patrol Division has a myriad of functions to include initial investigation of 
crimes. Patrol Officers are the eyes and ears of the investigators and in many 
cases the success or failure of cases rests on the shoulders of Patrol. 

80 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

i. The Patrol Officer's functions also include accident investigation, traffic 
enforcement, order maintenance, City Code enforcement, crime prevention and 
identification and apprehension of suspects in criminal events. 

.. Patrol Officers must be aware of trends in crime in their beats and are the 
primary emissaries of Department and City Policy in the community. 

.. Patrol Officers are also tasked with rapid deployment duties in the case of active 
shooter cases or armed assailant, in any environment and must be trained and 
equipped to deal with the most insidious of crimes. 

l. The Berwyn Police Department Patrol Division is currently staffed at 64 sworn 
personnel. 

Training Unit 

The Berwyn Police Department Training Unit is responsible for the formulation 
and implementation of training forecasts which serve as a blueprint for the 
training and development of the sworn officers of the department. The training 
consists of core skills such as firearms proficiency, officer survival, report writing 
and case preparation, judicious use of force and many other skills. The 
Training Unit is also responsible for upper level management development and 
skill path development for first line supervisors. 

Training is the lifeblood of a successful Police Agency, and it is the only thing that 
safeguards the officer's physical well being and guards the city from ruinous 
litigation. Some of the annual training components are as follows: 

~ CAPS Firearms Judgmental Training 

• Patrol Carbine training and Carbines deployed in front line patrol cars 

• Oleoresin Capsicum training and recertification 

:£,. Immediate Action Rapid Response re-certification 

~ Pistol and shotgun qualification 

~ PR-24 and Collapsible baton training 

81 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

J. T aser certification and re-certifications 

LEADS computer data base re-certifications 

.. Certification of DU I operators 

'* Use of Force and Constitution Law training 

Services - Administrative Services 

Building and Grounds 

• Directly responsible the police department's 43,000 + sq. foot facility and 
affiliated grounds, and all related equipment issues for the proper maintenance 
and operation of the facility as well as the immediate supervisor for the 
departments maintenance personnel and oversees contracted janitorial service. 

Records Unit 

The responsibilities of the records division are centered on extensive contact with 
the departmental patrol and investigative units and the public, in person and over 
the telephone. Successful performance of the work includes ensuring that police 
records are prepared, filed, maintained, distributed and destroyed in accordance 
with policies, procedures, and regulations of the department and a variety of 
state and federal regulations. Also to provide copies of those reports to persons 
authorized to obtain copies of them and to the court system pursuant to request 
by subpoena. Additional tasks are as follows: 

.. The collection, management and processing of Compliance, Impoundment, and 
Cannabis violations. As well as other various fees collected by this department. 

.. The issuing and the maintenance of the employee identification cards for all city 
employees. 

.. The production of both audio and video files used in court proceedings and 
internal investigations. 

.. The categorizing and filing of the Unified Crime Reports and the Municipal Jail 
and Lockup Quarterly Report to the State of Illinois in a timely manner. 

82 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

The Bi-Weekly tabulation and processing of the department payroll for 
submission to City Hall. 

The monthly tabulation of time accrued and/or used by all personnel. 

Unit personnel include one (1) Supervisor (Sergeant) who has collateral duties as 
Special Projects Facilitator, and three (4) full time records clerks. 

The Special Projects Facilitator is an initiative started in late 2006 and has been 
instrumental in fast tracking several projects that have benefited the department 
as well as the City, which needed immediate attention. 

Communications Unit 

The Emergency Communications Center is responsible for the receipt and 
transmission of emergency and non-emergency calls for Police, Fire and 
Emergency Medical assistance, responding to incoming alarm signals, providing 
emergency instructions to callers, central answering point for all wire line and 
wireless 9-1-1 calls originating from the City of Berwyn, recording and relaying 
sensitive information that may involve life and death situations. The Center 
operates 24 hours a day, 365 days a year and is currently staffed by one (1) full
time Communications Coordinator (15) full-time and three (2) part-time 
Telecommunicator's and (1) 9-1-1 Systems Administrator. 

Communications Coordinator is responsible for supervising and 
scheduling of the Telecommunicator Staff and all other personnel related 
issues. 

Accurate reporting of Emergency Communications Center operations 
including calls for service, 9-1-1 calls handled and non-emergency calls 
handled. 

Maintains Standard Operating Procedures specifically for the Emergency 
Communications Division. 

Standardized processing for citizen complaints and compliments as 
relating to the Emergency Communications Division and the assigned 
personnel. 

83 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

At the end of 2010 the Police Department in cooperation with the Fire 
Department and the city's Emergency Telephone Systems Board was 
successful in creating the position of 9-1-1 Systems Administrator. This 
position will be responsible for maintaining the city's Emergency 
Communications System and all related technology systems and software 
products. 

Services - Support Services 

Community Service Unit 

The Community Service Unit utilizes 12 officers who, during patrol duties, assist 
the patrol division, enforce parking ordinances and local ordinances throughout 
the City, including the business district, municipal parking lots, metered parking 
area, permit parking lots, overnight parking laws and all other posted areas 
requiring enforcement. Additional duties are as follows: 

.. Installation and removal of wheel locks. 

~ Assist the Patrol division by attending bond hearings. 

!$:. Transporting vehicles for maintenance and repair. 

~ Transport evidence and photos to the crime lab. 

.. School crossings, traffic control, and abandoned autos. 

.. Documentation, photography and removal of graffiti. 

• Animal control and front desk duty. 

... Process Handicap parking applications 

Parking Enforcement Unit 

The Parking Enforcement Officers are dedicated to the single task of enforcing 
the City's parking ordinances throughout the City, including business districts, 
municipal parking lots, and permit parking lots. They are assigned a specific 
geographical area within the City to identify vehicles violating parking regulations 

84 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

and restrictions and issue parking complaints. This allows us to consistently 
enforce parking ordinances which will ultimately result in compliance. Additional 
duties include: 

Identify and report abandoned autos and dangerous conditions. 

.. Report road hazards such as street light and traffic signal outages, 

.. Report defects or dangers on the streets or sidewalks. 

Traffic Unit 

The Traffic Unit is responsible for random and selective traffic enforcement 
throughout the City of Berwyn by utilizing their patrol knowledge and specialized 
traffic training. By utilizing departmental tools, they will aggressively enforce 
traffic laws in areas where there is a question of safety or where there are a high 
number of complaints of unsafe driving. Further responsibilities include: 

.. Trained in auto accident investigations and follow up to hit and run 
accidents 

.. Enforce drunken driving laws through patrol and checkpoints. 

Provide traffic studies and certified child seat installations. 

.. Speed radar enforcement, participated in click it or ticket" campaign. 

Motor Pool Unit 

The department motor pool is responsible for the purchase, equipping, repair, 
maintenance, licensing, and insuring of all police vehicles. The motor pool 
continually looks for ways to improve and maintain the equipment and to find 
ways to ensure the police department drives safe vehicles in its day to day 
activities. 

The following vehicles comprise the departments' motor pool all of which have 
been purchased at no cost to the City. 

.. 12 Ford Explorers 

85 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Police Department 
20 

.. 13 Ford Crown Victoria's 

.. 2 Ford Taurus 

.. 6 Chevy Aveos 

... 4 Dodge Chargers 

.. 2 Dodge Magnums 

*' 8 Assorted Vans 

J,. 22 Assorted unmarked vehicles 

Prisoner Detention Unit 

Prisoner Detention is an area staffed by part time civilian booking officers who 
are responsible for the processing, security, and safety of all prisoners while in 
custody. Additional responsibilities include: 

.t.. Assisting the arresting officer with arrest case file preparation. 

... Entering local ordinance, compliance and moving violations into the 
department's Record Management System. 

.. Prisoner property inventory and prisoner log maintenance. 

:.$. Non-criminal processing / identification for schools and liquor 
licenses. 

Canine Unit 

The primary goal of the Canine Unit is to assist all members of the department in 
the investigation of criminal activity by tracking and apprehending offenders, and 
the tracking and recovery of narcotics, weapons or currency associated with 
narcotic activity. Additional duties include: 

.. Canine Unit Currently consists of (3) Belgian Malinois 

86 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

Assisting the Berwyn Police Department with public relations by 
performing demonstrations at various schools, city functions and public 
events. 

STAFFING: 

p .. E 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Chief 1.00 1.00 
Deputy Chief of Police 1.00 1.00 
Division Commander 4.00 4.00 
Lieutenant 2.00 2.00 
Sergeant 14.00 16.00 
Detective 17.00 17.00 
Patrolman 69.00 69.00 
Crossing Guard 52.00 54.00 
Communications Coordinator 1.00 1.00 
Full Time Telecommunicators 15.00 16.00 
Part Time Telecommunicators 2.00 2.00 
9-1-1 System Administrator 1.00 
Booking Officers 14.00 14.00 
Records Clerk 4.00 4.00 
Secretary 2.00 2.00 
Community Service Officer 11 .00 11.00 
Graffiti Removal Tech. 1.00 1.00 
Custodian 1.00 1.00 
Parking Enforcement Officer 5.00 6.00 
Auxiliary Police 60.00 60.00 

Total 276.00 283.00 

87 



Activity Measures 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

_ ______ A_c_t_iv_it_y_M_e_a_s_u_re_s _______ 2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Wire Line 9-1-1 Calls Received 13,398 9,396 10,484 
Wireless 9-1 -1 Calls Received 16,468 18,596 20,750 
Seven Digit Emergency Calls 61,113 22,312 27,000 
Non Emergency Calls Received 131,297 112,553 134,000 
Outgoing Calls Made N/A 22,152 32,000 
Calls For Service Generated (CAD 68,073 58,421 65,188 
Police Incidents Created 16,104 14,623 16,317 
Criminal Investigations Initiated 1,709 1,804 2,013 
Criminal Investigations Cleared 932 1,015 1,133 
Evidence Processed & Inventoried 2,048 1,693 1,889 
Felony & Misdemeanor Arrests Department Total 203 171 191 
Petitions 226 178 183 
Station Adjustments 160 58 60 
Juvenile Contacts 2,837 938 966 
DUI Arrests 40 37 40 
Compliance Tickets Issued 6,764 7,528 8,400 
Compliance Ticekt Revenue $150,309 $136,063 $151,823 
Local Ordinance Tickets 1,381 1,922 2,145 
Cook County Moving Violations 11,020 7,963 8,885 
Graffiti Arrests 45 5 6 
Prisoners Processed & Housed 2,100 1,435 1,601 
Vehicles Impounded 969 1,258 1,404 
Impoundment Revvenue $484,600 $629,450 $702,361 
Parking Tickets 42,236 37,318 41,641 
Parking Ticket Revenue 1,731,425 1,597,779 1,782,855 
Animal at large calls 1,357 1,138 1,270 
Animal traps set 339 297 331 
Animal bites handled 50 26 29 
Wheel locks applied 688 635 709 
Wheel locks Revenue (Boot Fee Only) $31,320 $29,220 $32,604 
Abandon vehicles reported 438 306 341 
Graffiti photographed and removed 1,748 1,391 1,552 
Days assisted patrol with bond hearing 182 206 230 

88 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Initiated the creation of an electronic version of the Police Department's policy 
and procedure manual 

• Creation of several committees which include employees from every unit of 
assignment to bring forth new ideas and allow for more participation in the 
decision making process 

• Increased the Auxiliary Contingent with the addition of 30 new Auxiliary Officers 
• Increased staffing in the Traffic Unit with the addition of a supervising Sergeant 
• Addition of the 9-1-1 Systems Administrator position to maintain the integrity of 

the City's Emergency Communications System and Equipment 
• Active Participation in the Chicago /Cook County High Intensity Drug Trafficking 

Area Task force 
• Conducted 40 more search warrants than the previous year 
• Initiated a local gang intelligence database with gang stop cards to track gang 

activity 
• Began to work closely with the city's Building Department to keep gang members 

from using abandoned properties to conduct criminal activity 
• Established joint operations with the Cicero Gang/Drug Enforcement Team 
• Participated in a supervisory role over the WEDGE suburban task force 
• Contributed to a significant decrease in violent crime and gang related 

disturbances 
• Formed solid working relationships with federal and county law enforcement 

agencies 
• Addition of a Detective assigned to Youth Investigations due to an increase in 

youth related crimes in particular sex offenses 
• Increased presence in schools and provided more gang and drug related 

assemblies 
• Additional railroad safety education programs 
• Numerous Bullying seminars conducted in grade schools 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Continue to research and implement ideas and technology to assist in reducing 
crime 

• Complete the revision of the Police Department's Policy and Procedure Manual 
• Complete the final phase of the Mobile Field Reporting System 
• Complete the implementation of the departments internet based portal system 
• Implementation of the "Emergency Medical Dispatch" Protocol 

89 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Police Department 
20 

• Implementation of "Phase II Wireless" 9-1-1 Service 
• Implementation of a new citywide Emergency Notification System 
• Research alternative scheduling to maximize manpower 
• Coordinated effort with DEA Mobile Enforcement Team to further disrupt drug 

sales in the area 
• Continue to enhance gang intelligence and track gang activity to be able to 

monitor and combat gang activity 
• Expand the Internet Crimes Against Children program by assigning a dedicated 

detective to these investigations. 
• Expand youth education and bullying programs in schools 
• Create a youth mentorship program between the police department and the 

youth of our community 
• Increase the number of community programs regarding gang and drug 

awareness and crime prevention 
• Solicit more citizen Police Academy Alumni to expand our Volunteers in Policing 

Program 
• Streamline Neighborhood Watch Complaints and programs and look for more 

involvement from block captains in order to expand the program 
• Expand on the senior citizen initiative 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Increase in staffing in all units of the department both sworn and civilian to meet 
the increase in calls for service and to be able to provide the level of service our 
residents demand 

• Evaluation and needs assessment for an addition to the police facility 
• Implementation of citywide wireless mesh system to enhance emergency 

wireless communications to include video camera monitoring in hot spots for 
public safety 

• Implementation of photo railroad grade crossing enforcement 
• Electronic digitalization of department records to reduce storage and paper 

costs 
• Implementation of a Radio Based Alarm System to replace the current phone 

line based alarm system 
• Seek grant funding for the purpose of dedicating a Detective as a School 

Resource Officer (SRO) 

90 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Police 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-20-51-5000 Police - Admin - Ch of Police, Div Cdrs $ 565,731 $ 577,742 $ 665,882 $ 644,237 $ 726,501 $ 82,264 
100-20-53-5000 Police - Sprvsrs - Lieut's & Sergeant's 1,703,975 1,592,230 1,678,496 1,612,983 1,946,357 333,374 
100-20-55-5000 Police - Detectives 1,680,742 1,397,329 1,578,932 1,278,168 1,354,045 75,877 
100-20-57-5000 Police - Officers 5,476,818 4,439,443 4,305,701 4,695,127 4,218,258 (476,869) 
100-20-59-5000 Police - Auxiliary 130,780 127,154 192,365 174,691 200,000 25,309 
100-20-61-5000 Police - Radio operators/dispatchers 617,307 571,800 617,033 734,668 117,635 
100-20-63-5000 Police - Community service officers 399,747 438,384 439,141 450,986 11,845 
100-20-65-5000 Police - Parking enforcement personnel 75,370 68,664 90,488 96,000 5,512 
100-20-67-5000 Police - Lockup personnel 135,562 138,218 140,000 146,400 6,400 
100-20-69-5000 Police - Clerks 264,989 286,169 282,236 304,231 21,995 
100-20-71-5000 Police - Crossing Guards 239,588 256,302 260,000 323,863 63,863 
100-20-5005 Police - Out of Class 6,345 21,947 7,333 7,000 7,000 
100-20-5010 Police - Overtime 746,805 976,049 954,389 824,000 831,571 7,571 
100-20-5015 Police - Uniform stipend 101,500 104,500 54,500 54,000 115,000 61,000 
100-20-5020 Police - Education Stipend 48,500 50,000 56,000 55,000 57,700 2,700 
100-20-5030 Police - Buy back 501,563 604,926 600,000 710,000 695,897 (14,103) 
100-20-5035 Police - Benefits 2,600,635 2,872,051 2,797,840 2,845,159 2,874,728 29,569 
100-20-5040 Police - Tuition Reimbursement 71,444 35,005 84,397 65,000 75,000 10,000 
100-20-5045 Police - Pension 1,895,643 1,956,863 2,400,000 2,428,758 2,428,758 
100-20-5205 Police - Utilities 38,742 22,334 24,215 45,000 45,000 
100-20-5210 Police - Vehicle Gas and Oil 210,330 145,405 192,402 200,000 200,000 
100-20-5215 Police - Telephone 72,839 90,799 79,835 90,000 101,500 11,500 
100-20-5220 Police - Training, dues and publications 39,559 43,598 48,913 55,000 85,000 30,000 
100-20-5225 Police - Supplies 43,869 $54,287.12 34,465 55,000 59,600 4,600 
100-20-5235 Police - Postage & printing 19,813 19,314 50,419 18,000 25,000 7,000 
100-20-5290 Police - Other general expenses 70,741 544,332 76,422 150,000 162,000 12,000 
100-20-5300 Police - Professional Services 34,949 2,680 6,000 6,000 
1 00-20-5345 Police - Speed photo enforcement 156,528 177,205 89,612 135,000 135,000 
100-20-5400 Police - Repairs and maintenance 197,316 234,718 207,298 200,000 251,700 51,700 
100-20-5405 Police - Copier maintenance 27,478 24,120 20,447 14,000 23,000 9,000.00 
100-20-5500 Police - Equipment 270 2,275 30,000 30,000.00 
100-20-5625 Police - Internal service fund 1,170,098 1,057,448 1,705,221 1,862,907 1,462,509 (400,398) 

Police - Prior year seizure expenditures 234,000 276,318 
Police - Capital Expenditures 252,697 424,000 350,000 (74,000) 

Department Total $ 17,846,742 $ 18,901,632 $ 20,198,590 $ 20,464,928 $ 20,523,272 $ 58,344 

91 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Fire and Police Commission 
22 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Commission 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Board of Fire and Police Commissioners shall consist of three members plus a 
secretary to be appointed by the Mayor, by and with the consent of Council. The term of 
office of each member shall be three years and until his or her successor is appointed 
and qualified, provided that no appointment shall be made by the Mayor within thirty 
days of the expiration of his or her term of office. 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

• This department's other general expenses account varies annually based on the 
number of police or fire personnel the City will hire in a given year. 

92 



Account Number 

100-22-5500 
100-22-5035 
100-22-5225 
100-22-5235 
100-22-5290 

Department Total 

Account Name 

Fire and Police Commission - Salaries 
Fire and Police Commission - Benefits 
Fire and Police Commission - Supplies 

City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Fire and Police Commission 
12/31/2011 

2008 2009 

Balance Balance 

$ 16,090 $ 16,002 
3,821 4,445 

80 
Fire and Police Commission- Postage & Printing 2,432 
Fire and Police Commission - Other general expenses 2,709 48,950 

$ 22,620 $ 71,909 

93 

Requested 

2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Projected Budget Budget Change 

$ 16,002 $ 16,000 $ 16,000 $ 
4,835 1,224 1,232 8 

16 
1,569 
5,060 12,000 12,000 

$ 27,483 $ 29,224 $ 29,232 $ 8 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Building 
24 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Building Director 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Building Department is responsible for the administration and enforcement of City 
ordinances and Building Codes which establish minimum requirements for building 
construction, land use, signage, and property maintenance. The primary purpose of the 
ordinances is to establish requirements that safeguard public health, safety, sanitation, 
adequate light and ventilation, energy conservation, and safety from fire and other 
hazards attributed to the structural environment. Activities associated with the 
administration and enforcement of these ordinances include but are not limited to 
reviewing architectural and engineering plans for proposed projects, issuing permits, 
scheduling permit inspections, processing compliance information, scheduling 
compliance inspections, scheduling blight inspections, inspecting properties to identify 
violations and issuing citations for ordinance infractions. 

SERVICES: 

i. Conduct Code Enforcement 

*- Perform Building and Zoning Review 

Issue Building Permits 

Perform Permit Inspections 

Process Compliance Information 

Respond to FOIA Requests 

Process Blight and Building Adjudication Information 

94 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

STAFFING: 

Building 
24 

Position (FTE) 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Building Director 
Blight Coordinator 
Permit Clerk I 
Permit Clerk II 
Compliance Clerk II 
Compliance Inspector I 
Compliance Inspector II 
Building Inspector 
Blight Inspector 

Total 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
2.00 

10.00 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
2.00 

10.00 

Activity Measures 2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Projected 

Permits Issued 
Permit Revenue 
Blight Citations Issued 
Blight Citation Revenue 

4,087.00 
$549,487.45 

538.00 
$278,134.00 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

4,271.00 
$25,168,399.68 

400.00 
$339,965.00 

5,000.00 
$30,000,000.00 

750.00 
$300,000.00 

• Brought City Hall up to ADA compliance based on the requirements of the 
Attorney General's Office 

• Installed a new climate controlled document storage room at the Municipal 
Parking Garage 

• Hired an engineering firm to research and develop speCifications for a diesel 
generator for city hall 

• Hired an additional electrical inspector and hired our first roof inspector - both 
inspectors bill the city for their time and are not city employees 

• Decreased the permit approval wait time from ten to five days 
• Raised all permit and inspection fees to include processing fees 

95 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Building 
24 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Remove compliance inspections as we currently know them and do an inspection 
for zoning purposes only and implement comprehensive plumbing and electrical 
inspections 

• Install the rooftop diesel generator at city hall above the east Fire Department 
garage roof and a new roof on the same roof section 

• Revise the job description of our current residential compliance inspector 
• Implement clear guidelines and procedures for relocation of residents in 

emergency or uninhabitable situations 
• Revise the current sign ordinance 
• Establish a criteria and the necessary procedures to lien problem properties 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Replace all inspection vehicles with more efficient vehicles 
• Replace the antiquated city hall boiler with a more efficient electric one and also 

replace various radiators 
• Replace the front steps at city hall 
• Resurface both city hall parking lots 

96 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Building 1 Neighborhood Affairs 
12/31/2011 

Requested 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 
Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-24-5000 Building - Salaries $ 371,701 $ 386,118 $ 377,123 $ 430,021 $ 417,283 $ (12,738) 
100-24-5010 Building - Overtime 188 92 
100-24-5030 Building - Sick day buy back 4,797 5,530 7,500 7,500 
100-24-5035 Building - Benefits 149,733 165,968 244,927 178,639 259,264 80,625 
100-24-5205 Building - Utilities 7,007 8,868 11,413 6,000 10,000 4,000 
100-24-5210 Building - Vehicle Gas and Oil 17,152 16,631 23,201 16,000 16,000 
100-24-5215 Building - Telephone 4,550 4,896 4,000 4,000 
100-24-5220 Building - Training, dues, & publications 3,168 597 3,000 3,000 
100-24-5225 Building - Supplies 4,446 3,435 3,500 3,500 
100-24-5235 Building - Postage & printing 9,770 7,006 10,320 8,000 8,000 
100-24-5290 Building - Other general expenses 22,795 5,123 3,873 40,000 40,000 
100-24-5300 Building - Professional service 208,562 244,158 276,632 285,000 235,000 (50,000) 
100-24-5400 Building - Repairs and maintenance 95,665 123,072 130,320 65,000 55,000 (10,000) 
100-24-5405 Building - Copier maintenance 9,290 9,105 3,184 4,700 4,700 
100-24-5500 Building - Equipment 796 78 
100-24-5625 Building - Internal service fund 342,384 299,241 153,062 444,500 131,864 (312,636) 

Department Total $1,239,044 $ 1,283,872 $ 1,243,061 $1,495,860 $1,195,111 $ (300,749) 

97 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Public Works Department 
26 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Public Works 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Street Division provides the staff, equipment and materials to operate and maintain 
most of the public infrastructure in the City of Berwyn. Such infrastructure includes 
public roadways, signs, alleys, and City-owned lands. Other responsibilities include 
maintenance to all Water/Sewer systems, General Fund vehicles and select Fire 
Department equipment. 

SERVICES: 

• Administration 
o Management of 22.5 FTE employees 
o Management of the yearly budget for the Street, Fleet & Forestry 

Divisions 
o Coordination of all calls for service and/or repair. 
o Coordinate MFT and CDBG public improvement programs. 
o Monitors construction and utility cuts in the City rights-of-way. 
o Supervision of daily operations of all services provided by the Division 
o Respond to resident questions, inquiries and requests 

~ Street Maintenance 
o Street patching, repairs, and maintenance 
o Street striping and signage 
o Alleyway maintenance 
o Sweep all City streets 
o Pickup and discard dead animals and trash from City rights-of-way 

.. Forestry 
o Maintain City owned urban forest 
o Remove dead, dying or diseased trees 
o Coordinate the replanting of trees within the city owned rights of way 

• Ice and Snow Control 
o Provide prompt quality response for snow and ice issues to maintain safe 

vehicular travel. 

• Turf Maintenance 
o Cut grass and weeds in public areas. 

98 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Public Works Department 
26 

'* Traffic and Parking Control 
o Coordinate all traffic control and signage 
o Conduct traffic and safety studies 
o Installation, repair and replacement of street signs and posts. 
o Install and maintain all roadway and parking pavement markings and 

markers. 
o Install and repair parking meters 

• Fleet Maintenance 
o Maintenance and repair of all Public Works vehicles and equipment as 

well as Police, Building, Parking and select Fire Department vehicles. 
o Maintenance of City fueling station. 

~ Public Works Building 
o Maintain grounds at Public Works facilities 
o Storage of equipment and materials for Public Works and other 

departments. 

~ Work for Other Departments 
o Provide signage, manpower and cleanup for parades, block parties and 

special events. 
o Cleanup of debris and trash due to accidents or ordinance violations. 
o Assist elsewhere when requested 

STAFFING: 

Position (FTE) 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Secretary/Receptionist 0.50 0.50 
Traffic Engineer 1.00 1.00 
Fleet Manager 0.50 0.50 
Mechanic 2.00 2.00 
Working Foreman 4.00 3.00 
Drivers 14.50 15.50 

Total 22.50 22.50 

99 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Public Works Department 
26 

A f 't Meas res 2009 Actual 2010 Actual ~ 

Miles of Streets 
Street sweeping miles 
Miles of Alleys 
Miles of alleys swept 
Street Signs maintained 
Pavement Striping 
Crackfilling 
Vehicle/equipment work orders 
Service requests 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

110 
5,720 

55 
648 

4,891 
$22,000 

$0 
375 

2,800 

110 
7,000 

55 
220 

4,000 
$65,000 

$0 
400 

3,200 

110 
7,000 

55 
200 

5,000 
$60,000 

$0 
400 

3,800 

• Continued utilization of the Salt Storage Cover saving the City in both material 
and labor costs. 

• Completed replacement of one 5 ton dump truck to be used for maintenance 
activities and snow removal. 

• Completed replacement of one street sweeper to be used for maintenance 
activities throughout the city. 

• Improved level of street maintenance including repair, patching, and cleaning. 
• Traffic Engineer continuation of review to revise city wide parking and traffic 

related ordinances, regulations, and codes. 
• Further increase maintenance of public and commercial areas throughout the 

City. 
• Street surface replaced on East Ave. north of Cermak Rd. 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Enhanced cleaning and maintenance and Snow Removal programs. 
• Continue to improve the level of street maintenance including repair, patching, 

and cleaning. 
• Continue to update City signage to comply with MUTCD mandated regulations. 
• Modernize and enforce leaf collection ordinances. 
• Continue maintenance of public and commercial areas throughout the City. 
• Replace the city owned fueling station for fueling vehicles owned and operated 

by Police, Fire, Public Works, School Districts and other government entities. 

100 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

Public Works Department 
26 

• Replacement of one single axle dump truck and body due to age and wear. 
• Continue to re-forest where mature trees have been removed due to death or 

disease. 
• Monitor and maintain the City of Berwyn parking structure. 
• Continue to replace roadway signage to comply with FHWA requirements. 
• Provide quality snow removal to the residents at a reasonable cost. 

101 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Public Works 
12131/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-26-35-5000 Streets - Salaries $1,135,701 $ 1,233,763 $1,179,808 $ 1,187,370 $1,251,466 $ 64,096 
100-26-35-5010 Streets - Overtime 85,836 93,994 68,421 78,000 80,400 2,400 
100-26-35-5015 Streets - Uniform stipend 14,875 15,675 15,675 16,170 19,000 2,830 
100-26-35-5025 Streets - Other stipend 825 
100-26-35-5030 Streets - Sick day buyback 3,873 7,000 7,000 
100-26-35-5035 Streets - Benefits 486,762 560,060 584,457 520,593 603,519 82,926 
100-26-35-5205 Streets - Utilities 14,644 19,105 25,915 16,900 20,000 3,100 
100-26-35-5210 Streets - Vehicle gas & oil 174,337 94,905 134,280 125,000 125,000 
100-26-35-5215 Streets - Telephone 5,187 8,832 5,836 12,000 3,000 (9,000) 
100-26-35-5215 Streets - Training, dues, & publications 310 383 4,000 4,000 
100-26-35-5225 Streets - Supplies 29,589 74,180 54,000 97,000 43,000 
100-26-35-5235 Streets - Postage & printing 6,686 531 9,000 2,500 (6,500) 
100-26-35-5290 Streets - Other general expenses 74,696 17,861 9,212 5,000 (5,000) 
100-26-35-5300 Streets - Professional services 48,828 34,560 71,369 198,000 110,000 (88,000) 
100-26-35-5400 Streets - Repairs and maintenance 229,653 103,340 87,613 154,000 135,000 (19,000) 
100-26-35-5405 Streets - Copier maintenance 1,968 1,224 919 3,000 3,000 
100-26-35-5500 Streets - Equipment 1,085 3,095 4,000 (4,000) 
100-26-35-5505 Streets - EquIpment lease 95,778 93,875 100,000 65,000 (35,000) 
100-26-35-5625 Streets - Intemal service fund 124,879 199,827 270,390 347,847 319,320 (28,527) 

Streets - Stock expenditures 13,300 117,000 117,000 
Total Streets 2,411,491 2,520,467 2,625,960 2,830,880 2,962,205 131,325 

Forestry - Salaries $ 260,332 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
Forestry- Overtime 18,659 
Forestry- Uniform stipend 4,375 
Forestry - Benefits 111,234 
Forestry - Other general expenses 449 
Forestry - RepaIrs and maintenance 65,596 
Fleet - Intemal service fund 11,763 

472,408 

100-26-37-5000 Fleet - Salaries $ - $ 184,201 $ 180,020 $ 179,168 $ 187,831 $ 8,663 
100-26-37-5010 Fleet - Overtime 11,815 11,963 16,000 16,000 
100-26-37-5015 Fleet - Uniform stipend 2,475 2,475 3,080 3,080 
100-26-37-5025 Fleet - Other stipend 825 550 550 550 
100-26-37-5030 Fleet- Sick day buyback 1,685 1,500 1,500 
100-26-37-5035 Fleet - Benefits 83,315 95,725 78,555 101,908 23,353 
100-26-37-5225 Fleet - Supplies 1,327 23,489 10,500 10,500 
100-26-37-5235 Fleet - Postage & printing 519 439 1,000 1,000 
100-26-37-5290 Fleet - Other general expenses 9,720 2,590 12,000 9,000 (3,000) 
100-26-37-5300 Fleet - Professional services 4.408 2,336 10,000 12,000 2,000 
100-26-37-5400 Fleet - Repairs and maintenance 121,744 152,660 125,000 140,000 15,000 
100-26-37-5500 Fleet - Equipment 434 1,000 5,000 4,000 
100-26-37-5625 Fleet - Internal service fund 99,991 
100-26-37-5800 Fleet - Capital oulla) 5,000 5,000 

Total Fleet 422,469 572,238 425,803 493,369 67,566 

Department Total $ 2,883,899 $ 2,942,936 $3,198,198 $ 3,256,682 $3,455,574 $ 198,892 

102 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Board 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Zoning Board 
13 

The Zoning Board schedules and holds hearings in matters wherein citizens of the City 
are appealing a decision of the Building Department involving requests for variations 
from the terms of the Zoning Code, establishment of a Conditional Use or change in a 
Non-Conforming Use. All decisions with four (4) or more votes in favor or against, are 
submitted to the City Council with a resolution, a specific recommendation, and if 
applicable, an ordinance. If less than four (4) votes are made for or against, the board 
makes no recommendation. The City Council makes the final decision in all such 
matters as described above. 

The Board can reverse, affirm (wholly or partly), modify or amend any order or decision 
of a City Official in regard to matters that do not involve a Variation, Conditional Use or 
Non-Conforming Use; and also may make decisions in regard to the interpretation of the 
Zoning Code. In these matters, the Board has the powers of the City Official from whom 
the appeal is taken and the decision is final. 

The Board can also hold special hearings as requested by the City Council involving the 
Zoning code. The jurisdiction of the Board is terminated once a favorable decision is 
made and then the City Council can either affirm or reverse that decision, but cannot 
return the matter to the Zoning board for a re-hearing. If the decision is adverse to the 
applicant and the City Council concurs, then the applicant cannot ask for a hearing 
before the Board on the same issue for 5 years, unless the matter qualifies as a re
hearing petition under certain rules and regulations of the Board. The Executive 
Secretary is responsible for publishing notices of meetings, and is available to give 
instructions as to procedures of the Board, render legal opinions, and make 
recommendations for amendments to the Zoning Code. 

103 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Zoning Board 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-28-5000 Zoning - Salaries $ 6,178 $ 6,144 $ 11,709 $ 12,600 $ 12,600 $ 
100-28-5025 Zoning - Other stipends 5,565 4,505 
100-28-5035 Zoning - Benefits 898 917 964 964 971 7 
100-28-5235 Zoning - Postage & printing 1,663 2,229 
100-28-5290 Zoning - Other general expenses 2,057 1,810 1,358 2,500 2,500 

Department Total $ 14,698 $ 15,039 $ 16,261 $ 16,064 $ 16,071 $ 7 

104 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Committee and Planning 
30 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Mayor and City Council 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Committee and Planning department of the City of Berwyn is where economic 
development expenditures to third parties and expenditures for some city commissions 
and events are recorded. This department does not support any employees. 

SERVICES: 

Within this department the City records the following: 

~ Expenditures to affiliate organizations 

'* Utility tax rebates to other taxing units 

""*" Funding for City Commissions 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

Funding from the General Fund for the Mainstreet program has been eliminated 
for 2011. TIF funding of the program will continue. 

~ The National Night Out Program has been budgeted for in the Committee and 
Planning Department for 2011. 

105 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Committee and Planning 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change -

1 00-30-51 00-04 100th Anniversary Celebration $ 264,571 $ 884 $ - $ - $ - $ 
1 00-30-51 05 Committee & Planning - Berwyn Development Corp 86,000 
100-30-5105-01 National Night Out 85 20,000 6,000 (14,000) 
100-30-5105-02 Committee & Planning - Mainstreet 24,975 28,075 
1 00-30-51 05-03 Committee & Planning - Regional Housing Authority 250,000 104,233 
100-30-5105-04 West Central Municipal Conference 16,327 19,438 19,987 20,000 20,000 
1 00-30-51 05-05 Berwyn Historic Preservation Commission 6,444 5,000 5,000 5,000 
1 00-30-51 05-06 Utility Tax Rebate 135,605 128,831 48,874 80,000 80,000 
1 00-30-51 05-1 0 North Berwyn Park District 10,000 20,000 20,000 
100-30-5290 Committee & Planning - Other general expenses 3,041 7,400 22,301 6,500 10,000 3,500 

Department Total $ 786,963 $ 303,861 $ 91,247 $ 131,500 $141,000 $ 9,500 

106 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Recreation 
32 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Recreation 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The City of Berwyn provides comprehensive community-wide parks and recreation 
services through Parks and Recreation with policies and budget development 
determined by the City of Berwyn Mayor and the City council. The Recreation 
Department is committed to the effective and responsible management of parks, open 
space, facilities and resources to satisfy the recreational needs of the community; and 
to deliver quality, benefit-based leisure services and programs that meet the varied 
needs and interests of the community in a cooperative, innovative, and responsive 
manner. 

The Recreation Department is responsible for providing year round recreational 
programs and activities for all age groups. These include community special events, 
athletic programs, sports camps, day care camps, tot programs, swimming programs, 
adult athletic programs, family events, and senior adult activities. In addition, the 
Recreation Department collaborates with and assists many Berwyn groups, 
organizations, and clubs to provide recreation services throughout the community. 

The Recreation Department is responsible for 6 park sites, 3 pools, and a recreation 
center. Major responsibilities include routine maintenance of resources, facilities, and 
equipment, including and providing support services for recreation programs; and park 
improvements and development. 

SERVICES: 

4. Aquatic programs for youth, adult, and families 

Senior adult center operation and activities/programs 

• Community wide special events 
o Easter Egg Hunt 
o July 4th Fireworks Celebration 
o National Night Out 
o Opening Day Baseball Parade 
o Nick at Night "World-Wide day of Play" 
o Mayor's Halloween Party 
o Mayor's Halloween Teen Dance 
o Halloween Haunted Hallway or House 

107 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Recreation 
32 

o Mayor's Christmas party 
o Mayor's Christmas Brunch 
o Movie Nights at Pavek Pool 
o Holiday Camp and Christmas Classes 
o Depot District Oktoberfest 
o North vs. South Adult (ASA) Softball Tournament 
o Historic Society Antique Show 
o Adult Men's Baseball Wooden Bat Rec League 
o Adult Men's Midwest Fall Baseball League 

~ Collaborate and assist various community groups and organizations to promote 
and enhance recreational opportunities within the community 

Classes for various age groups in the community 
o School Pool and Park Rentals 
o Pool and Building Rentals 
o Game room Open Play 
o Weight room 
o Outdoor Sport Court Activities 
o Jr. Mustangs Sports Camps 
o Holiday Classes 

... The Recreation Center is home to various organizations within the community, 
including: 

o Berwyn Blazers (soccer) 
o Berwyn Bulldogs (baseball) 
o Champs Swim Club 
o Berwyn Bash (girls softball) 
o Berwyn Little League 
o Berwyn Mustangs (boys basketball) 
o Lady Mustangs (girls basketball) 
o Mustang Youth Football 
o Berwyn Art League 
o Hellonic Society 
o Morton Dance Team 
o District 100 5th through 8th grade school teams 
o Senior Clubs 

• VIP Club 
• ESP club 
• Young at Heart 

108 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

• Women's Club 

STAFFING: 

Recreation 
32 

F 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Director 1.00 1.00 
Janitor 2.00 2.00 
Maintenance Supervisor 1.00 1.00 
Office Manager 1.00 1.00 
Programmer 1.00 1.00 
Registration Clerk 1.00 1.00 
Head Counselor 1.00 1.00 
Camp Counselor 25.00 25.00 
Building Worker 3.00 3.00 
Cashier 10.00 10.00 
Concessions 12.00 12.00 
Life Guard Supervisor 6.00 6.00 
Life Guard 50.00 50.00 
Field Maintenance 10.00 10.00 
PT Maintenance 15.00 15.00 
Part Time 20.00 20.00 

Total 159.00 159.00 

109 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Little Hoops Basketball 
Jr. Hoops Basketball 
Youth Basketball 
Men's Basketball League 
Women's Basketball League 
Open Gym 
Norm Reissman Indoor Youth Soccer 
Youth Baseball 
PeeWee Soccer 
Men's 16" Softball- Summer 
Women's 12" Softball- Summer 
Men's 12" Softball- Summer 
Co-Ed Softball - Summer 
World Cup Summer Youth Soccer League 
Summer Camp 
Swim Lessons 
Fall Youth Baseball 
Kicker Outdoor Youth Soccer 
Men's 16" Softball- Fall 
Men's 12" Softball- Fall 
Women's 12" Softball- Fall 
Co-Ed Softball - Fall 
Basketball "1 0 Great Shootouts" 
Bernie Ness Boys Basketball Tournament 
Mini Mustang Basketball Camps 
Sunday Night Family Fun Days 
Youth Traveling Basketball Leagues 

Recreation 
32 

Nov-Mar 
Nov-Mar 
Nov-Mar 
Jan-April 
Jan-April 
Sept-May 
Dec-Mar 
April-July 
April-May 
May-Aug 
May-Aug 
May-Aug 
May-Aug 
May-Aug 
June-Aug 
June-July 
Aug-Oct 
Aug-Oct 
Sept-Nov 
Sept - Nov 
Sept - Nov 
Sept - Nov 
Oct-Dec 

Feb 
Sept, Jan, Apr 

Jan-April 
Nov-Jan; Jan-April 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

PreK-1st grade 
2nd-3rd grade 
4th-8th grade 

Adult 
Adult 

grade school 
K-8th grade 
K-8th grade 
K-4th grade 

Adult 
Adult 
Adult 
Adult 

K-8th grade 
3-14 yrs 
1-14 yrs 
7-11 yrs 

K-8th grade 
Adult 
Adult 
Adult 
Adult 

5th-8th grade 
5th-8th grade 

3-7 yrs 
Families only 
5th-8th grade 

95 
95 

300 
120 
120 
40 

500 
800 
250 
300 
200 
100 
200 
550 
125 
100 
250 
500 
350 
100 
100 
200 
800 
250 
200 
300 
250 

• Began a senior center programming schedule to provide luncheons, aerobics, 
bingo, free movies, craft classes, and exercise classes. 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Implement a 16 inch men's softball tournament. 
• Start a women's 12 inch softball tournament. 
• Add additional activities for the senior center. 

110 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Recreation 
32 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Provide additional activities for the senior center. 

11 1 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Recreation 
12/31/2011 

Requested 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-32-5000 Recreation - Salaries $ 577,073 $ 613,101 $ 631,354 $ 628,059 $ 700,000 $ 71,941 
100-32-5010 Recreation - Overtime 2,062 218 
100-32-5030 Recreation - Sick day buy back 11,381 11,375 12,000 12,000 
100-32-5035 Recreation - Benefits 140,248 162,616 183,991 161,594 192,030 30,436 
100-32-5100 Recreation - Special events 30,746 30,892 24,582 30,000 35,000 5,000 
100-32-5105 Recreation - Community programs 3,299 30 
100-32-5205 Recreation - Utilities 54,742 37,438 29,717 56,000 56,000 
100-32-5210 Recreation - Vehicle Gas and Oil 23,911 9,786 7,244 9,000 9,000 
100-32-5215 Recreation - Telephone 6,593 6,412 6,941 6,000 6,000 
100-32-5220 Recreation - Training, dues, & publications 2,597 550 2,500 2,500 
100-32-5225 Recreation - Supplies 83,979 100,290 39,948 80,000 120,000 40,000 
100-32-5225-02 Recreation - Supplies Progam (Concession) 14,653 14,010 73,210 18,000 (18,000) 
100-32-5235 Recreation - Postage & printing 1,902 3,262 3,327 3,000 3,500 500 
100-32-5290 Recreation - Other general expenses 88,038 105,140 72,258 105,000 10,000 (95,000) 
100-32-5400 Recreation - Repairs and maintenance 128,955 101,782 130,270 90,000 100,000 10,000 
100-32-5405 Recreation - Copier maintenance 12,182 13,097 4,683 6,000 6,000 
100-32-5500 Recreation - Equipment 243 
100-32-5625 Recreation - Internal service fund 31,889 17,674 63,879 38,937 54,004 15,067 
100-32-5800 Recreation - Capital outlay 24,574 40,000 40,000 

Department Total $1,208,352 $ 1,257,808 $1,271,984 $1,283,590 $1,346,034 $ 62,444 

112 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Community Relations 
34 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Community Relations 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Community Relations Director along with the Commissioners work to promote 
equal opportunity in employment, housing and access to public accommodations, 
combat unlawful discrimination and to enforce the Community Relations Ordinance. 

Persons who believe they have been discriminated against may file a complaint within 1 
year of the alleged violation. 

The Community Relations Ordinance and its policy is further outlined in the City of 
Berwyn's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 620 

SERVICES: 

The Community Relations Director is available to attend meetings as a representative of 
the Community Relations Commission as well as answers questions pertaining to City 
services. 

This department also administers the Home Equity Assurance Program. The records 
show the last request for Home Equity Assurance was in 2004. 

STAFFING: 

2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Director of Community Relations ________ 0~.2=5 ______ ~0~.2=5 ______ ~0~.2=5 

Total 0.25 0.25 0.25 

11 3 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Community Relations 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-34-5000 Community Relations - Salaries $ 5,028 $ 5,385 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 
100-34-5035 Community Relations - Benefits 385 449 942 383 386 3 
1 00-34-51 00 Community Relations - Special events 
100-34-5225-01 Community Relations - Postage & printing 93 
100-34-5290 Community Relations - Other general expenses 975 34 680 1,500 1,500 

Department Total $ 6,387 $ 5,960 $ 6,622 $ 6,883 $ 6,886 $ 3 

114 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Other City Departments 

The following departments are also included in the City's General Fund. These 
departments represent garbage expenditure, other statutory expenditures and 
departments no longer in operation. The costs charged to these departments are often 
City-wide costs. The City's general administration is responsible for monitoring 
expenditures within these departments. 

115 



City of Berwyn 
2011 Budgeted Expenditures by Department 

Garbage and Statutory 
12/31/2011 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

100-36-5300 Garbage - Waste Management $ 3,979,436 $ 4,004,624 $ 3,988,170 $4,005,000 $4,065,075 ! 60,075 

Benefits To be allocated to various depts $ 6,510,086 $ 6,954,172 $ 317,524 $ 986,469 $ - $ (986,469) 
100-17-5035 Benefit Pool (6,510,086) (6,954,621 ) (965,969) 965,969 
1 00-17-5300 Auditing & Actuarial expense 90,700 79,700 79,178 85,000 85,000 
100-17-5290 Other 8,565 40,583 13,180 13,500 7,500 (6,000) 
100-17-5300-10 New World Maintenance 30,280 33,520 33,520 33,520 
100-17-5800-01 Kronos Lease 24,165 
100-17-5800-20 Grant software 20,000 
100-17-5705 Interest on LOC 9,750 25,313 22,500 22,500 
100-17-5710 Bad debt expense 48,069 48,500 (48,500) 
100-17 -5895 Contingency 99,393 

Department Total $ 99,265 $ 303,421 $ 516,784 $ 223,520 $ 148,520 $ (75,000) 

116 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Library Fund 

This fund is used to account for the spending of funds for the operations of the Berwyn 
Public Library. The Berwyn Public Library is administered by a nine member board 
appointed by the City's Mayor, with the advice and consent of City Council. Additionally 
one Alderman is appointed to be the liaison between the City and the Berwyn Public 
Library. 

11 7 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

PROGRAM MANAGER: 

Director of Library Services 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Library 
Fund 205 

The Berwyn Public Library provides timely, accurate and useful materials to meet the 
informational, educational and recreational needs of the community. 

SERVICES: 

~ Administration: Administration provides planning, organizing, managing and 
directing services of the library. The Library Board provides governance though 
goals, policies and budgetary decision that are implemented by the Director and 
the Administrative staff. The department manages time sheet, attendance 
records, and personnel records, meeting rooms, payroll, invoices and purchase 
orders, check accounts, budget, accounts payable and all office functions. 

.... Audio visual: The video department of the library carries videos and DVDs--both 
newer releases and hard to find classics. Instructional videos ranging from PBS 
series to travel videos to exercise videos. The Department carries "Hooked on 
Phonics", which helps teach beginning readers, and "Ingles Sin Barreras", an 
instructional kit with a video, cassette and workbooks to assist those learning the 
English Language. Music CD's and cassettes for all tastes include Rock, 
Country, Popular, Jazz and Latin. Books on CD and MP3 are spoken recordings 
of published books; The department collects a wide range of titles, including Best 
Sellers, Classics, Self-help, Biographies, language instruction and business titles . 

.. Circulation: The Circulation department is the main contact point for patrons at 
the library. It is here that patrons receive library cards, check in and out their 
materials, pick up their reserve materials and receive general information about 
the library and its departments. 

'* Information Technology: The IT Department of the Berwyn Public Library is 
responsible for all computer and telephone communication throughout the 
building. The IT Department Supervisor acts as library Metropolitan Library 
System (MLS) liaison and performs necessary functions as the Illinois Century 
Network (ICN) liaison. The IT Department is responsible for maintaining the 
wireless network afforded to patrons and assists the patrons in the use of all 
technological equipment offered to them. The department is also responsible for 

118 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Library 
Fund 205 

providing basic instruction to staff for use of computers, printers, and 
applications . 

... Outreach: The Outreach Services Department is committed to promoting library 
services to the community both on and off-site. By providing direct service or 
acting indirectly through collaborative efforts with other organizations, the 
department serves those who are restricted from visiting the library as well as 
offering programming throughout the community. Outreach Services delivers 
materials and services to daycare providers, preschools, nursing homes, senior 
centers, and to the disabled and homebound, as well as plans and provides 
cooperative community programming with and to area organizations. 

,.. Periodicals: The Periodicals Department carries approximately 230 periodical 
titles and 44 newspapers. 

'* Processing: The Processing Department is responsible for all phases of book 
and library material management. This includes acquisitions, cataloging, material 
processing and preparation, repair and mending, weeding, and de-acquisition. 

.. Readers' Advisory: The Readers' Advisory Department is a patron-oriented 
library service committed to the promotion of lifelong reading. It provides monthly 
lists of new fiction acquisitions, "cheat sheets" for genre selections, annotated 
bibliographies and book lists, recommended reading lists, and facilitates book 
discussions. 

Reference: The Reference Collection includes a wide variety of resources in 
both print and electronic format. The Reference department also houses the 
nonfiction collection of the Library. Of special interest is our Foreign Language 
collection of Czech and Spanish materials. We offer three education and 
employment computer terminals for patron use to either search for jobs or to 
search for information about specific schools. We also have a senior Computer 
Center designed to provide internet access for patrons 55 years of age and older. 

,.. Youth Services: The Youth Services Department serves children ages birth 
through 17, their parents, and their teachers. The Primary Room, overflowing 
with picture books, easy non-fiction books, early chapter books, CD's, parenting 
magazines, puppets, and a wide assortment of Spanish books, is geared towards 
children from birth through second grade. The atmosphere in this room is fun and 
playful, perfect for getting youngsters interested in the magic of reading! Located 
in the main area of the Youth Services Department is the Intermediate Grades 

119 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Library 
Fund 205 

section, intended for children in third through sixth grades. This section houses 
our large juvenile non-fiction and fiction collections, along with our reference 
collection, school textbooks, science fair books, magazines, paperback series 
books, and books on tape. The Middle Grade section, which is intended for 
children 7-12, is the main portion of our collection. Complete with an interesting 
collection of reference and non-fiction resources, music CD's, contemporary 
books, pop fiction, classic novels, textbooks, and graphic novels. The Young 
Adult Room is a perfect stop for teens 12 and older looking for a place to read, 
study, or meet with friends. Relax on a couch in front of a crackling fire, spread 
out study materials on tables, or use the computers to access the Internet. The 
Young Adult Room is a place to do homework, to use a computer or to read a 
book. 

STAFFING: 

Position FTE 2010 Actual 2011 Bud et 

Library Director 1.00 1.00 

Head - Youth Services 1.00 1.00 

Head - AV 1.00 1.00 

Head - Outreach 1.00 1.00 

Head - Reader Advisory 1.00 1.00 

Head - Reference 1.00 1.00 

*Head -IT 1.00 0 

Circulation Supervisor 1.00 1.00 

Administrative Assistant 1.00 1.00 

Building Maintenance 1.50 1.50 

Librarian I - Processing 2.50 2.50 

Librarian I - Reference 3.00 3.00 

Librarian I-Youth Services 1.00 1.00 

Librarian II - Reader's Advisory 0.00 0.00 

120 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Library 
Fund 205 

**Librarian II - Literacy 
Services 1.00 

Librarian II - Youth Services 1.00 

Librarian II - Reference 1.00 

Library Asst I - Circulation 4.50 

Library Asst 1- AV/Computer 3.50 

Library Asst I - AV 0 

Library Asst. I - Reference .50 

Library Asst I - Reader's Adv .50 

Library Asst II - Circulation 0 

Library Asst II - Outreach .50 

Library Asst II - Youth Services 2.50 

Library Asst II - Reference 0 

Library Asst II - Audio Visual 1.00 

Library Asst II - Reader's Adv 2.50 

Clerk - Circulation 1.00 

Clerk - Periodical 1.00 

Clerk - AV/Computer 1.00 

Clerk - Audio Visual 1.00 

Clerk - Administrative 2.00 

Page - 5.50 

Total 47 

121 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

4.50 

4.50 

0 

0 

0.50 

0 

1.00 

2.50 

1.00 

0 

2.50 

1.00 

1.00 

0 

1.00 

2.00 

3.00 

43.50 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Library 
Fund 205 

~ 2009 Actual ~ 2011 Budget 

Circulation 433,856 475,334 480,000 
Reference Transactions 64,885 64,820 65,000 
User Visits 431,400 462,523 465,000 
Programs (adult and children) 462 667 700 
Open Hours 3,408 3,408 3,500 
*Registered borrowers 13,206 13,537 14,000 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Finalized a strategic plan, marketing plan, and rewritten policies 
• Completed the technology infrastructure project 
• Made significant strides with the library's role in adult and child literacy 
• Restructured the Library IT Department 
• Added a librarian who focuses on virtual library services 
• Hosted a success Fairy tale Ball and had a record number of participants in 

our Summer Reading Programs 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• Replace the Chiller and the elevators 
• Reseal the Limestone facade 
• Repair the carpet and replace worn furniture 
• With the help of Florian Architects, the library is looking at making work flow 

improvements and a more appeasing, user friendly layout. 
• Replace the Library sign on the corner of Harlem and Riverside Drive 
• Add a patio with an ADA compliant ramp for the Harlem exit 
• Get approved for two additional grants for construction projects 
• Continue to grow our literacy-based programs and services 
• Offer e-books and readers in April 2011 
• Research off site check outs and pickups 

122 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Library 
Fund 205 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• The Library Board Strategic Planning Committee is still developing a Strategic 
Plan to establish long range objectives for the library 

123 



City of Berwyn 
Library Fund 
2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
AlC irs Name Balance Balance Projected ~et Budget Amount 

Revenues 
205-40-4000 Library - Property Tax Revenue $ 2,453,242 $ 2,506,118 $ 2,497,312 $ 2,497,312 $ 2,891,312 $ 394,000 
205-40-4270 Library - Rental Revenue 23,371 1,827 500 500 
205-40-4350 Library - Book Fines 22,307 30,379 35,063 50,000 42,000 (8,000) 
205-40-4415 Library - Maintenance Revenue 12,584 13,438 10,855 955,000 15,000 (940,000) 
205-40-4420 Library - Per Capita Revenue 65,397 65,349 55,800 60,000 50,000 (10,000) 
205-40-4425 Library - Video Rental Revenue 2,222 
205-40-4430 Library - Building Revenue 16,931 10,756 12,472 16,000 15,000 (1,000) 
205-40-44800 Library - Interest Income 3,585 1,898 642 2,000 1,000 (1,000) 
205-40-4835 Library - Other Misc Revenue 34 (31) 

Total Library Revenues 2,597,452 2,631,955 2,612,144 3,580,812 3,014,812 (566,000) 

Expenditures 
205-40-5000 Library - Salaries 1,301,365 1,296,662 1,346,360 1,363,905 1,491,386 127,481 
205-40-5010 Library - Overtime 1,214 2,702 1,167 10,000 5,000 (5,000) 
205-40-5030 Library - Sick day buy back 12,296 12,125 14,000 14,000 
205-40-5035 Library - Benefits 522,663 555,039 736,142 578,737 814,343 235,606 
205-40-5105-07 Library - Programs adulVchildren 18,800 27,478 21,874 15,800 17,800 2,000 
205-40-5200-09 Library - Director expense 104 250 302 350 350 
205-40-5200-10 Library - Board expense 199 633 271 350 350 
205-40-5205 Library - Utilities 11,927 8,429 9,452 15,000 13,000 (2,000) 
205-40-5210 Library - Vehicle Gas and Oil 2,900 429 914 1,500 1,300 (200) 
205-40-5215 Library - Telephone 12,992 10,456 14,426 14,000 12,000 (2,000) 
205-40-5220 Library - Training, dues, & publications 4,096 4,791 9,291 12,000 11,000 (1,000) 
205-40-5225 Library - Supplies 99,306 91,476 95,968 101,337 72,837 (28,500) 
205-40-5235 Library - Postage & printing 6,874 6,696 2,287 6,000 6,000 
205-40-5245 Library - Books 183,774 187,773 149,177 141,910 149,910 8,000 
205-40-5250 Library - Audio visual 56,974 57,494 49,362 44,600 44,600 
205-40-5255 Library - Periodicals 19,194 21,690 29,095 22,600 22,600 
205-40-5290 Library - Other general expenses 547 1,222 2,805 
205-40-5400 Library - Repairs and maintenance 126,595 120,811 132,269 129,500 129,500 
205-40-5520 Library - Computer system 46,494 40,343 55,964 56,000 56,000 
205-40-5525 Library - Computer support databases 2,632 4,388 10,837 12,500 36,000 23,500 
205-40-5625 Library - Intemal service fund charge 62,956 29,443 101,749 69,179 85,310 16,131 
205-40-5660 Library - Promotions 17,677 12,102 16,347 17,000 16,000 (1,000) 
205-40-5665 Library - Reciprocal borrowing 4,449 5,806 4,656 4,500 5,700 1,200 
205-40-5800 Library - Capital improvement 4,583 946,000 5,000 ~OOO) 

Total Library Expenditures 2,516,028 2,502,821 2,790,714 3,576,768 3,009,986 (566,782) 

Revenues less Expenditures 81,424 129,133 (178,570) 4,044 4,826 

Fund Balance Beginning (33,092) 48,332 177,465 177,465 (1,105) 

PrOjected Ending Fund Balance $ 48,332 $ 177,465 $ (1,105) $ 181,509 $ 3,721 

124 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Senior Citizen's Program Fund 

The Senior Citizen's Program fund is used to account for the spending of funds on 
various senior programs including snow removal, lawn care services, the City's handy 
man program, and PACE busing services. Revenues include grant funding for senior 
programs, nominal fees received for assistance and a subsidy from the General Fund 
for operations. 

125 



City of Berwyn 
Senior Citizens Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 

AlC#'s Name Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 

202-4920 General Fund Subsidy $ 112,006 $ 112,006 $ 112,000 $ 205,000 $ 93,000 
202-4850 Senior Citizen - Contributions 100 
202-46-4255-03 Senior Citizen - Senior Breakfast 5,520 3,880 2,500 2,500 
202-46-4299 Senior Citizen - Other fees for service 15,689 18,873 15,000 15,000 
202-46-4400 Senior Citizen - Grant revenue 97,759 35,000 100,000 58,000 (42,000) 

Total Senior Citizens Fund 230,974 169,859 229,500 280,500 ~OOO 

Expenditures 
202-5000 Senior Citizens - Salaries 125,889 113,854 120,000 129,903 9,903 
202-5035 Senior Citizens - Benefits 52,279 34,288 50,000 53,035 3,035 
202-5100-03 Senior Citizens - Senior Breakfast 5,951 7,272 6,000 6,000 
202-5210 Senior Citizens - Vehicle Gas & Oil 110 
202-5215 Senior Citizens - Telephone 984 601 1,000 1,000 
202-5225-01 Senior Citizens - Supplies 572 347 600 600 
202-5235 Senior Citizens - Postage & Printing 974 2,715 500 500 
202-5290 Senior Citizens - Other General Expense 3,121 393 5,000 5,000 
202-5300 Senior Citizens - Professional Services 16,892 18,218 17,000 17,000 
202-5400 Senior Citizens - Repairs & Maintenance 8,299 2,591 10,000 10,000 
202-5400-04 Senior Citizens - Repairs & Maint. Landscape 15,508 26,760 16,000 16,000 
202-5405 Senior Citizens - Copier Maintenance 364 
202-5505 Senior Citizens - Equipment Lease 4,663 6,000 4,800 6,000 1,200 
202-5625 Senior Citizens - Internal Service Fund 8,360 6,967 __ 6,967 

Total Senior Citizens Expenditures 235,242 221,763 230,900 252,005 21,105 

Revenues less Expenditures (4,269) (51,904) (1,400) 28,495 $ 29,895 

Fund Balance Beginning (4,269) (4,269) (56,173) 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ (4,269) $ (56,173) $ (5,669) $ (27,678) 

126 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

Community Development 

This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures incurred under the 
City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. Revenues are received 
from the Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

127 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Community Development 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Administer Community Development Block Grant funds according to federally mandated 
guidelines required By HUD 

SERVICES: 

To provide 15% of allocated funds to Public Service Agencies, through a sub-recipient 
agreement (as approved by City CounCil), their monitoring and their reporting as 
required . 

.. Oversee a Blight Inspection within the low-mod federally designated of the Community. 
This program is tied into a community contact program. 

* Provide a Single Family Rehabilitation Program to those residents of Berwyn who qualify 
under the Federal Guidelines. 

.. Provide the City of Berwyn funds for infrastructure modifications with the federally 
designated low-mod population areas. 

STAFFING: 

Director 1.00 1.00 
Blight Inspector 1.33 1.33 
Clerk Typist 2.00 2.00 
SFR housing Supv 1.00 1.00 
SFR Housing Couns 1.00 1.00 

otal 6.33 6.33 

128 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

Area 

Program 
Management 

Community 
Outreach 

Progress 

• The City exceeded HUO's timeliness goal in expending its 
COBG funds several months ahead of schedule (a .1.13 
ratio in May, 2010). 

• Virtually 100 percent of the City's COBG allocation 
benefited low- and moderate-income households and 
individuals, or benefited areas designated as low- and 
moderate income, surpassing HUO's 75% requirement. 

• Combining stimulus funds with other funds leveraged from 
public and private organizations, the City benefitted from 
over $22 million that were applied to infrastructure, other 
public improvements, and direct services during PY 2009. 
Many of the funds supported the Roosevelt Streetscape 
Project. 

• The City has established long-term, productive 
relationships with its subrecipient partners, all but one of 
which successfully completed their PY 2009 public service 
grants during the program year. 

• Received an initial grant of $1.3 million from IHOA for NSP 
I funds. In June received $2.65 million additional NSP 
funds. Successfully obligated $4 million in NSP funds by 
September 4. 

• Hired part time workers for blight inspection to address 
overall increased work load of neighborhood stabilization 
program and other stimulus funding, 

• Initiated HPRP program with CEOA as the lead agency for 
Berwyn. 

• Actions were taken to develop the City's new Consolidated 
Plan, which includes an update to the "Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing." 

129 



Single-Family 
Reha bilitation 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

• The City completed the rehabilitation of 18 single-family 
homes during the program year. 

• In the 10 years since the beginning its CDBG program, the 
City has provided 143 grants to Berwyn low-income home 
owners to rehabilitate their homes. 

• The City continued an ongoing program to rehabilitate 
group homes for developmentally disabled persons. 

• With NSP funds, acquired 23 properties and 26 units 
during the program year. Conducted a bidding process and 
received bids for a) furnaces and boilers b) rehab of units. 
Properties will be re-appraised once the work is 
completed. Will purchase new high efficiency 
boilers/furnaces and appliances for all units once IHDA 
releases the funds. Contracts were entered for an 
additional four units, but IHDA has delayed closing due to 
national problems related to initial originations and 
closings. 

Blight Reduction • The City inspected 11,039 homes in low and moderate 
income neighborhoods during the year. The program 
plays an integral role in the City's efforts to maintain viable 
neighborhoods as incidents of foreclosure and 
abandonment grow. The program also serves as a 
gateway to the single-family rehabilitation program. 
Program area was expanded during year to confront 
foreclosure crisis. All blight inspections results are entered 
into a database. 

Public Facilities 
and 
Improvements 

• Completed Phase III renovations to Liberty Center that 
included upgrading bathrooms, doors and other 
impediments to make the community center fully ADA 
accessible 

• Purchased land next to new 16th Street Fire House in 
North Berwyn, which will be used to expand the fire house, 
and purchased additional firefighting and fire prevention 
equipment for the station. 

• Helped rehabilitate and improve accessibility of a group 

130 



Low- and 
Moderate
Income, 
At-Risk and 
Special Needs 
Populations 

City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

home housing physically and developmentally disabled 
persons. 

• Continued an on -going program to upgrade Sidewalks in 
low- and moderate income neighborhoods, replacing over 
1500 squares during the program year. Also, replaced 
sidewalk at building that serves persons with 
developmental and physical disabilities. 

• Removed architectural barriers in two community facilities 
(Liberty Center and Proksa Park), improving accessibility 
to seniors and persons with disabilities. 

• Completed the East Avenue Combined Sewer 
Rehabilitation and Pavement Base Reconstruction Project 
between 12th to 16th Street, which encompasses several 
low-and moderate- income neighborhoods using CDBG-R 
and other funds. 

• Berwyn provided 21 new grants to subrecipient 
organizations during the program year to improve the 
quality of life of low- and moderate-income persons and 
special needs populations, including: elderly and frail 
elderly, physically and developmentally disabled, youth, 
victims of domestic violence, and homeless persons. 

• COD staff helped link low-income seniors to needed 
services and transportation and funded direct services. 

OBJECTIVES TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN 2011: 

• To quantify the number of homeless persons by subpopulations in the Berwyn, assess 
the current homeless delivery system, and identify gaps and opportunities to address 
those gaps the City consulted: Alliance to End Homelessness in Suburban Cook 
County, West Suburban Council on Homelessness, Catholic Charities, and West 
Suburban PADS . 
• The City consulted with local public health agencies, including McNeal Hospital, on 
lead-based paint detection and prevention and the State of Illinois to discuss its capital 
improvement plans. 

131 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Community Development 
Fund 32 

• Other units of local government, including Cook County, the Cities of Cicero and Oak 
Park, and the State of Illinois were consulted about infrastructure and other priority 
needs and resources, as well as the Northeastern Illinois Planning Association (NIPC). 
• The City consulted with Vital Bridges to discuss the needs of persons living with 
HIV/AIDS and the Cook County Continuum of Care. 
• Because the City does not administer a public housing program, the City consulted 
with the Cook County Public Housing Authority to discuss referrals and alternative forms 
of assistance. 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

Meet the three national objectives of: 

• Decent Housing - housing activities designed to meet individual family or 
community needs that are not part of a broader effort. 

• Suitable Living Environment - activities designed to benefit communities, 
families, or individuals by addressing issues in the living environment. 

• Creating Economic Opportunity - activities related to economic development, 
commercial revitalization, or job creation. 

The City has categorized these objectives by the three national outcome categories 
identified by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in the 
March 7, 2006 Federal Register Notice on Performance Measurement Systems. The 
three Outcome Categories are: 

• Availability/Accessibility - Activities that make services, infrastructure, public 
services, public facilities, housing, or shelter available or accessible to low- and 
moderate-income people, including persons with disabilities. 

• Affordability - activities that provide affordability in a variety of ways in the lives of 
low- and moderate-income people. 

• Sustainability (Promoting Livable or Viable Communities) - projects where the 
activity or activities are aimed at improving communities or neighborhoods. 

132 



city of Berwyn 
Community Development Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 
Budget 
Change 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 
210-4920 General Fund Subsidy $ 26,358 S 28,706 S $ $ S 
210-4400 Grant Income 1,516,150 1,764,798 1,737,000 3,000,905 2,343,534 (657,371) 

Miscellaneous Revenues 23,295 224 40 

Total Communily Development Revenues 1,565,803 1,793,728 1,737,040 3,000,905 2,343,534 (657,371) 

Expenditures 
Fire 

210-18-5400 Fire - Repairs & mainlenance S S S 7,147 S $ S 
210-18-5800-10 Fire - Capital outlay 2,444 8,881 

Total Fire 2,444 16,028 

Administration 
210-42-5000 Community Developmenl - Salaries $ 272,418 $ 229,772 $ 289,871 $ 279,605 S 271,329 $ (8,276) 
210-42-5010 Community Development - Overtime 305 
210-42-5030 Community Development - Sick day buy back 1,610 4,964 5,500 5,500 
210-42-5035 Community Development - Benefits 109,047 98,440 150,515 65,000 114,084 49,084 
210-42-5205 Community Development - Utilities 1,834 2,695 2,000 2,000 
210-42-5210 Community Development - Vehicle Gas and Oil 1,520 1,681 2,108 2,500 2,500 
210-42-5215 Community Development - Telephone 4,375 4,738 5,362 3,000 3,000 
210-42-5220 Community Development - Training, dues, & publications 1,011 
210-42-5225 Community Developmenl - Supplies 4,570 7,604 1,800 1,800 
210-42-5235 Community Developmenl - Poslage & printing 2,021 6,997 30,000 8,000 (22,000) 
210-42-5290 Community Development - Olher general expenses 49,617 79,831 19,615 25,000 25,000 
210-42-5300 Community Development - Professional services 40,963 56,566 5,000 5,000 
210-42-5400 Community Development - Repairs & maintenance 186,174 42,089 
210-42-5400-01 Community Development - Repairs & maintenance Sewer 329,147 7,150 50,000 (50,000) 
210-42-5400-02 Community Development - Repairs & maintenance SlreeVSid 4,712 4,934 
210-42-5405 Community Development - Copier maintenance 8,207 10,511 3,184 9,000 9,000 
210-42-5625 Community Development - Intemal service fund 38,883 17,900 115,398 20,000 98,240 78,240 
210-42-5800-10 Community Development - Capital outlay 53,040 

Total Administration 485,981 1,071 ,309 714,088 498,405 545,453 47,048 

133 



City of Berwyn 
Community Development Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 
Budget 
Change 

Account Number Account Name Batance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Program expenditures 
210-42-5105 Community Development - Community Programs 

Alley Drainage Improvements 30,000 30,000 
Berwyn Bungalow Preservation 5,000 5,000 
Children's Center-Children's Clinic 32,500 32,500 
Demolition Fund 30,000 30,000 
CDBG HUD CY Admin 9,065 425,000 (425,000) 
CDBG HUD PY Admin 11,306 65,908 (65,908) 
Economic Development 250,000 100,000 (150,000) 
HPRP CEDA ESG 138,996 503,591 375,919 (127,672) 
HPRP Berwyn Admin ESG 2,666 27,977 12,264 (15,713) 
CDBR-R Admin 17,952 32,071 20,000 (12,071) 
CEDA Get the Lead Out Mitigation 30,000 (30,000) 
Proksa Park Activity Canter ADA tmprovements 15,000 15,000 (15,000) 
Youth Crossroads Internship Program 15,000 5,000 25,000 20,000 
Mothers on a Mission-Parent to Parent 10,000 (10,000) 
Sokol Tabor Seniors Program 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Berwyn Public Library-Early Childhood Literacy 3,922 7,551 3,500 1,403 (2,097) 
Berwyn Public Library-Handicapped Ramp 40,000 40,000 
Berwyn Public Library-Mark Get Ready 3,500 3,500 
Berwyn Park District -Liberty Cenler 30,953 10,000 75,000 75,000 
Berwyn Public Health-Doc in the Block 5,000 
Solution for Care 10,000 10,000 
HUD-NBPD Senior Center Expansion 59,217 15,000 15,000 (15,000) 
HUD- Way Back Inn 20,000 10,000 15,000 5,000 
HUD - Seguin Services 80,350 
HUD - Seguin Special Needs Citizens 20,000 4,700 5,000 14,000 9,000 
HUD - Oak Leyden Early Intervention 11,500 10,000 10,000 
HUD - West Suburban PADS 8,168 17,000 17,000 17,000 
HUD - Alley Repaving 30,000 (30,000) 
HUD - CY 16th Fire 275,000 22,350 179,837 157,487 
HUD - PY 16th Fire 3,837 9,028 (9,028) 
HUD - CY Seguin You Hotd the Key 45,871 99,000 81,950 (17,050) 
HUD - PY Seguin You Hold the Key 63,300 99,000 
HUD - CY Oak Leyden 25,917 
HUD - CY Sarah's Inn 18,379 20,797 25,000 25,000 10,000 (15,000) 
HUD - CY Infant 20,000 20,000 (20,000) 
HUD - PY Infanl 24,203 
HUD - PY Infant 20,000 
HUD-CYPADS 9,000 17,000 (17,000) 
HUD - CY Sidewalk 31,134 94,469 100,000 112,315 12,315 
HUD - PY Sidewalk 17,530 19,239 219,358 (219,358) 
HUD - CY Single Family Rehab 243,749 300,774 310,343 9,569 
HUD - Py Single Family Rehab 61,089 397,448 403,102 5,340 (5,340) 
HUD - CY Blight 460 70,000 100,049 30,049 
HUD - Py Blight 764 116 2,569 (2,569) 
HUD - CY Park District 100,000 
HUD - CY West Suburban Special Rec Year Round 29,000 6,618 5,000 5,000 10,000 5,000 
HUD - CY West Suburban Special Rec Summer 15,000 15,000 15,000 10,000 (5,000) 
HUD - CY West Suburban Sr. Svcs 15,426 8,000 8,000 
HUD - PY West Suburban Sr. Svcs 8,000 7,276 
HUD - CY Catholic Charities 11,044 15,000 10,000 (5,000) 
HUD - PY Catholic Charities 18,882 15,000 
HUD - CY Grateful House 13,000 
HUD - Bifingual Services 3,956 
HUD - City Hall ADA 10,977 
HUD - CY Youth in Crisis 10,000 
HUD - CY Suburban Primary Health Care 6,000 6,000 6.000 
HUD - PY Suburban Primary Health Care 6,272 6,000 
HUD - CY Pillars 6,000 7,000 62,000 55,000 
HUD - CY N. Berwyn Park Dist 5,000 5,000 
HUD - Py Pinars B&M 10,724 7,000 55,000 (55,000) 
HUD - CY Sr. Advocate 1,583 34,815 58,000 23,185 
HUD - PY Sr. Advocate 2,411 811 6,219 (6,219) 
HUD - CY Community Support Services 8,000 8,000 8,000 
HUD - CY Berwyn Park District 7,000 17,000 5,000 (12,000) 
HUD - PY Berwyn Cicero Council on Aging 6,248 4,545 
HUD - CY Berwyn Cicero Council on Aging 22,200 10,000 PO,OOO) 

Total program expenditures 1,079,821 719,975 1.006,925 2,502,500 1,798,081 1801 ,920) 

Total Community Development Expenditures 1,565,803 1,793,728 1,737,042 3,000,905 2,343,534 1754,872) 

Revenues Less Expenditures 0 (1) $ 97,501 

Fund Balance Beginning 10) 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ !O) $ $ 0 

134 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Foreign Fire Fund 

This fund accounts for the proceeds and spending of the foreign fire insurance tax. This 
fund is administered by the City's Foreign Fire Insurance Board. The board consists of 
the City's Fire Chief and three officers elected by the City's fire department staff. Funds 
must be used for the benefit of the Fire Department. 

135 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Foreign Fire 
Fund 255 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Foreign Fire Tax Board 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Berwyn Foreign Fire Tax Board shall consist of five members to be elected by the 
members of the Berwyn Fire Department. The offices shall consist of a President, 
Secretary-Treasurer and three Trustees (one from each shift). The terms of each office 
shall be two years and elections shall be staggered. 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

The Foreign Fire Tax Board's general expense account varies annually based on the 
dollar amount collected by the Illinois Municipal League. 

136 



City of Berwyn 
Foreign Fire Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
AlC #'s Name Balance Balance Projected BUdget ~et Amount 

Revenues 
255-4800 Foreign Fire - Interest Income $ 58 $ 17 $ - $ - $ - $ 
255-4055 Foreign Fire Insurance Tax 20,628 28,562 28,562 28,562 34,152 5,590 

Total Foreign Fire Revenues 20,686 28,579 28,562 28,562 34,152 5,590 

Expenditures 
255-5220 Foreign Fire - Training, dues, & publications 2,251 894 1,700 1,700 1,000 (700) 
255-5290 Foreign Fire - Other General Expenses 4,372 216 13,569 13,569 10,000 (3,569) 
255-5225 Foreign Fire - Supplies 1,068 4,627 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Foreign Fire - Furniture/Applicances 4,335 13,537 4,000 4,000 
255-5500 Foreign Fire - Tools and equipment 6,660 15,000 15,000 1,000 (14,000) 

Foreign Fire - Exercise equipment 3,376 
Foreing Fire - Cable services 1,312 
Foreign Fire - Repairs 393 
Foreign Fire - Capital improvements 29 

Total Foreign Fire Expenditures 17,136 25,934 32,269 32,269 18,000 (13,5€i9) 

Revenues less Expenditures 3,551 2,645 (3,707) (3,707) 16,152 $ 19,159 

Fund Balance Beginning 25,989 29,540 32,185 32,185 28,478 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 29,540 $ 32,185 $ 28,478 $ 28,478 $ 44,630 

137 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund 

This fund is used to account for the proceeds received from the State for the City's 
share of motor fuel taxes. Spending within this fund is restricted by state regulations. 
Generally speaking expenditures are for the maintenance and improvement of City 
streets. The City annually prepares a plan for the subsequent year's spending which is 
then submitted to the State for approval 

138 



City of Berwyn 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Change 

Revenues 

215-4410 MFT - State Allotment $ 1,587,463 $ 1,416,084 $ 1,630,000 $ 1,620,000 $ 1,420,000 $ (200,000) 
215-4800 MFT -Interest Income 48,713 3,578 200 4,000 4,000 

Sidewalk revenue 20,685 14,820 20,000 20,000 

Total MFT Revenues 1,636,176 1,440,347 1,645,020 1,644,000 1,444,000 (200,000) 

Expenditures 
215-5205 M FT - Utilities 141,731 671,342 579,343 420,000 375,000 (45,000) 
215-5225-05 MFT - Rock Salt 603,111 475,802 329,213 351,500 300,000 (51,500) 
215-5290 MFT- Other General 12,706 
215-5300 MFT - Professional services 135,827 225,559 65,000 65,000 
215-5400-01 MFT - Repair & Maintenance Sewer System 624,217 9,686 59,105 20,000 (20,000) 
215-5400-02 MFT - Repair & Maintenance Street/Sidewalk 42,076 229,885 187,568 260,000 110,000 (150,000) 
215-5400-03 MFT - Repair & Maintenance Traffic Control 173,781 187,181 190,000 240,000 50,000 
215-5800 MFT - Capital Projects (Project Construction) 65,875 34,829 35,000 35,000 

MFT - 16th St. Resurfacing Project 22,028 
MFT - Arterial Lighting 199,003 

215-5300 MFT - Engineering General 189,447 
215-5300 MFT - Contractual Tree Trimming 107,124 
215-5900 MFT - Transfer Out Salaries to General Fund 783,888 450,000 100,000 235,000 200,000 (35,000) 

Total MFT Expenditures 2,778,501 2,193,859 1,667,969 1,576,500 1,325,000 (251,500) 

Revenues less Expenditures (1,142,325) (753,512) (22,949) 67,500 119,000 $ 51,500 

Fund Balance Beginning 1,896,780 754,455 944 944 (22,006) 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ __ 754,455 $ 944 $ (22,006) $ 68,444 $ 96,994 

139 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

South Berwyn Corridor 
Tax Increment Financing District 

This fund is used to accumulate tax increment generated by the South Berwyn TIF 
district. The increment must be used for redevelopment costs within the geographical 
boundaries of the district and expenditures as outlined in the project plan. The district 
was created on January 28, 1997. The daily activities of the district are administered by 
the Berwyn Development Corporation and overseen by the City. 

Significant projects budgeted for in 2011 include the following: 

.. $35,000 for holiday decorations and planting 

.. $28,500 for the 2011 marketing campaign 

$223,819 in current project commitments to Sedgwick 

$250,000 set aside for Tier I and II project requests 

..l.; $410,000 for Century Station funding 

$401,824 for debt service payments for the parking deck 

140 



City of Berwyn 
South Berwyn TIF Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 

220-4000 Property Taxes - South Berwyn TIF $ 1,268,661 $ 972,559 $ 1,008,107 $ 1,250,000 $ 1,231,143 $ (18,857) 
220-4800 Interest Income 43,643 33,304 7,262 30,000 20,000 (10,000) 

Total South Berwyn TIF Revenues 1,312,304 1,005,863 1,015,369 1,280,000 1,251,143 (28,857) 

Expenditures 
220-5800 South Berwyn Corridor TIF 235,226 2,187,594 357,630 1,594,563 1,173,500 (421,063) 
220-5200 TIF Management Services - BDC 75,152 81,295 122,403 122,403 231,000 108,597 
220-5700 Sedgwick Project Installment Note - PrinCipal 155,161 155,161 155,161 155,161 155,161 
220-5705 Sedgwick Project Installment Note - Interest 136,832 106,392 87,034 77,968 68,658 (9,310) 
220- Interest on Advance 43,585 18,132 (18,132) 
220-5900 Transfer to Bond & Interest for Garage Debt 644,917 401,824 200,912 401,000 401,824 824 

Total South Berwyn TIF Expenditures 1,290,873 2,932,264 923,140 2,369,227 2,030,143 (339,084) 

Revenues less Expenditures 21,431 (1,926,402) 92,229 (1,089,227) (779,000) $ 310,227 

Fund Balance Beginning 2,763,772 __ 2,785,203 858,801 858,801 951,030 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 2,785,-203 $ 858,801 $ 951,030 $ (230,426) $ 172,030 

141 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Cermak Road 
Tax Increment Financing District 

This fund is used to accumulate tax increment generated by the Cermak Road TIF 
district. The increment must be used for redevelopment costs within the geographical 
boundaries of the district and expenditures as outlined in the project plan. The district 
was created on July 14, 1987. The daily activities of the district are administered by the 
Berwyn Development Corporation and overseen by the City. 

Significant projects budgeted for in 2011 include the following: 

.. $35,000 for holiday decorations and planting 

:$. $28,500 for the 2011 marketing campaign 

$1,030,000 for infrastructure improvements 

• $90,000 for land acquisition 

l. $250,000 for project costs related to Superblock 

* $170,000 for SLAP program 

$300,000 set aside for Tier I and II project requests 

142 



City of Berwyn 
Cermak TIF Fund 

2010 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 

225-4000 Property Taxes - Cermak TIF $ 1,708,605 $ 2,192,337 $ 1,739,678 $ 2,147,869 $ 2,170,000 $ 22,131 
225-4800 Interest Income on Advance 43,585 18,132 (18,132) 
225-4830 Property Damage 15,000 
225-4800 Interest Income 116,557 112,104 29,852 72,313 30,000 (42,313) 

225-4850 Contributions 900,000 

Total Cermak TIF Revenues 1,868,747 2,319,440 2,669,530 2,238,314 2,200,000 (81,126) 

Expenditures 
225-5800 Cermak TIF 1,560,513 1,553,963 5,505,579 5,699,824 2,680,500 (3,019,324 ) 
225-5800-25 Main Street TIF Portion 116,550 123,550 88,434 130,000 130,000 
225-5200 TIF Management Services - BDC 376,687 416,103 539,500 539,500 539,500 

225-5205 Utilities 2,479 

Total Cermak TIF Expenditures 2,053,750 2,093,616 6,135,991 6,369,324 3,350,000 (3,019,324 ) 

Revenues less Expenditures (185,003) 225,824 (3,466,462) (4,131,010) (1,150,000) $ 2,981,010 

Fund Balance Beginning 9,525,457 9,340,454 9,566,278 9,566,278 6,099,816 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 9,340,454 $ 9,566,278 $ 6,099,816 $ 5,435,268 $ 4,949,816 

143 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Roosevelt Road 
Tax Increment Financing District 

This fund is used to accumulate tax increment generated by the Roosevelt Road TIF 
district. The increment must be used for redevelopment costs within the geographical 
boundaries of the district and expenditures as outlined in the project plan. The district 
was created on January 28, 1997. The daily activities of the district are administered by 
the Berwyn Development Corporation and overseen by the City. 

Significant projects budgeted for in 2011 include the following: 

.. $35,000 for holiday decorations and planting 

,.. $28,500 for the 2011 marketing campaign 

,.. $300,000 set aside for Tier I and II project requests 

4. $490,700 for debt service payments 

..J.. $1,300,000 for Streetscape project 

144 



City of Berwyn 
Roosevelt TIF 
2011 Budget 

Requested 
2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget Change 

Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 

230-4000 Property Taxes - Roosevelt Road $ 537,082 $ 726,108 $ 555,694 $ 668,140 $ 721,780 $ 53,640 
230-4915 Bond Proceeds 139,297 1,626,167 2,200,000 (2,200,000) 
230-4917 Bond Issue Premium 45,906 
230-4800 Interest Income 37,061 31,382 8,526 28,000 30,000 2,000 

Total Roosevelt TlF Revenues 574,143 896,787 __ 2_,236,293 2,896,140 751,780 (2,144,360) 

Expenditures 
230-5800 Roosevelt Road - TIF Expenses 171,763 805,940 384,235 3,402,000 2,507,990 (894,010) 
230-5200 TIF Management Services - BDC 30,203 33,408 66,500 66,500 231,100 164,600 
230-5700 Voigt Project Installment Note - Principal 74,359 501,923 
230-5705 Voigt Project Installment Note - Interest 46,614 22,490 
230-5790 Bond Issuance Cost 52,073 
230-5900 Transfer to Bond and Interest 80,370 78,570 15,818 77,000 289,710 212,710 

Total Roosevelt TIF Expenditures 403,309 1,442,331 518,626 3,545,500 3,028,800 (516,700) 

Revenues less Expenditures 170,834 (545,544) 1,717,667 (649,360) (2,277,020) $ (1,627,660) 

Fund Balance Beginning 2,314,610 2,485,444 1,939,900 1,939,900 3,657,567 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 2,485,444 $ 1,939,900 $ 3,657,567 $ 1,290,540 $ 1,380,547 

145 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Ogden Avenue 
Tax Increment Financing District 

This fund is used to accumulate tax increment generated by the Ogden Avenue Road 
TIF district. The increment must be used for redevelopment costs within the 
geographical boundaries of the district and expenditures as outlined in the project plan. 
The district was created on May 25, 1993. The daily activities of the district are 
administered by the Berwyn Development Corporation and overseen by the City. 

Significant projects budgeted for in 2011 include the following: 

• $35,000 for holiday decorations and planting 

'* $28,500 for the 2011 marketing campaign 

$250,000 for Streetscape project 

• $300,000 set aside for Tier I and II project requests 

'* $725,000 for Kia, Brewery and Anderson Ford redevelopment projects 

$553,283 for debt service payments 

146 



City of Berwyn 
Ogden Ave TIF 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 

235-4000 Property Taxes - Ogden $ 1,074,961 $ 1,606,650 $ 1,076,106 $1,435,000 $ 1,464,000 $ 29,000 
235-4800 Interest Income 60,266 39,268 9,687 36,000 36,000 
235-4915 Debt Proceeds 4,000,000 

Total Ogden Ave TIF Revenues 1,135,227 1,645,918 5,085,792 1,471,000 1,500,000 29,000 

Expenditures 
235-5800 Ogden Ave TIF 1,011,825 869,959 1,021,833 1,004,800 1,997,500 992,700 
235-5200 TIF Management Services - BDC 376,687 408,603 504,500 504,500 231 ,101 (273,399) 
235-5900 Transfer to Other Funds 474,598 475,501 11,169 475,000 473,282 (1,718) 

Total Ogden Ave TIF Expenditures 1,863,110 1,754,063 1,537,502 1,984,300 2,701,883 717,583 

Revenues less Expenditures (727,883) (108,145) 3,548,290 (513,300) (1,201,883) $ (688,583) 

Fund Balance Beginning 2,621,262 1,893,379 1,785,234 1,785,234 5,333,524 

Projected Ending Fund Balance ~ 1,893,379 $ 1,785,234 $ 5,333,524 $ 1,271,934 $ 4,131,641 

147 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Capital Projects Fund 

The City has established a Capital Projects Fund. This fund was established to account 
for the proceeds of the 2007 A and 2007B bonds. The attached budget represents an 
annualized project budget for all projects which are anticipated to be funded with debt 
proceeds. Also included in the budget is the total project budget. As many of these 
projects will last over multiple years, it is often helpful to see the entire project's 
estimated costs and funding. 

148 



Account Number Account Name 

Revenues 
400-24-4400 Grant Revenue 

40-4-00-4820 Interest Income 

Total CapItal Projects Revenues 

Expenditures 
40-5-00-5609 DCEO - 16th SI. Fire Station 
40-5-00-5700 Parking Garage 
40-5-00-5705 Roosevelt Road Sewer Lining 
40-5-00-5706 Purchase of Property 
40-5-00-5710 Alleys/Alderman Projects 
40-5-00-5900 General Fund Capital Spent 
400-12-5800 General Ledger System 
400-18-5800-10 16th Street Fire Station 

IT Servers, etc. 
Streets 
Fuel Tank Replacement 
Signs 
Building Department car 
Oak Park Ave Lighting 
Salt Dome 
East Avenue 
Quiet Zone 
Public Works Trucks 
Fire Engine 
Generator 
Library electrical 
Library elevators 
ChiDer 
Master Meter Vault Replacement 
Removal of Lust Tank 
HVAC 

400-32-5800 Pool Renovation 

Total Capital Projects Expenditures 

Revenues less Expenditures 

Net Assets Beginning 

PrOjected Ending Net Assets 

General Fund Capital: 
Capital lease pnnclpal 
IT Hardware Purchases 
FIre EqUipment Purchases 
Pohce Vehicles & Other EqUIp 
PubhcWorks 
Total capital purchases 

City of Berwyn 
Capital Projects Fund 

2011 Budget 

2008 2009 2010 
Balance Balance Projected 

$ 259,789 $ 3,190,850 $ -
419,099 41,904 4,436 

$ 678,888 $ 3,232,754 $ 4,436 

$ 1,015,639 $ - $ -
1,000,579 8,983,293 151 ,942 

449,196 3,065,713 137,198 
212,971 121,826 1,215 

494,882 22,247 
476,947 443,894 500,000 
202,097 165,888 24,182 

1,741,292 430,513 
59,176 

7,656 
19,149 

777,038 1,599 
104,197 
181 ,031 1,639 
44,593 11,888 

155,854 358,093 

148,823 151,835 12,675 

5,247,544 15,139,706 1,289,510 

(4,568,656) (11,906,952) (1.285,074) 

21,715,835 17,147,179 5,240,227 

$17,147,179 $ 5,240,227 $ 3,955,153 

Requested 
Budget 

2010 2011 Change 
Budset ~et Amount 

$ - $ - $ 
10,000 5,000 1,054,000 

$ 10,000 $ 5,000 $ 1,054,000 

$ $ $ 
761,522 759,569 (1,953) 

885,000 830,000 (55,000) 
25,000 (25,000) 

100,000 150,000 50,000 
30,000 (30,000) 
30,000 15,000 (15,000) 

305,000 120,000 (185,000) 
800,000 800,000 
225,000 225,000 

88,000 225,000 137,000 
35,000 35,000 
35,000 35,000 

235,000 235,000 
150,000 150,000 

35,000 35,000 
12,000 (12,000) 

3,296,522 3,614,569 318,047 

(3,286,522) (3,609,569) $ 735,953 

17,147,179 3,955,153 

$ 13,860,657 $ 345,584 

149 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumulate resources for the repayment of the City's 
long-term obligations, including general obligation debt. 

150 



City of Berwyn 
Debt Service Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 
300-4000 Bond and Interest - Property Tax Revenue $ 6,348,299 $ 4,865,487 $ 4,173,536 $ 4,744,643 $ 4,744,643 $ 
300-4800 Interest Income 21,353 6,249 1,270 3,000 3,000 
300-4915 Bond Proceeds 7,830,000 12,885,000 6,554,639 3,037,770 3,000,000 (37,770) 

Bond Premiums (64,086) 210,889 185,035 
300-4900 Transfer from Other Funds 1,199,885 955,895 227,899 1,051,782 1,205,480 153,698 

Total Debt Service Revenues 15,335,451 18,923,521 11,142,379 8,837,195 8,953,123 115,928 

Expenditures 
300-5790 Bond Issue Costs $ 379,643 $ 381,331 $ 209,891 $ 170,000 $ 47,000 $ (123,000) 

Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow 7,379,125 9,317,377 
300-5900 Transfer to Other Funds 3,750,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 
300-5200 Paying Agent Fees 3,868 4,168 3,170 3,000 3,000 
300-5700-03 Principal G.O.Bonds Series 2001 Ogden 95,000 100,000 105,268 105,000 110,000 5,000 
300-5705-03 Interest G.O. Bonds Series- 2001 18,168 14,082 9,733 9,733 5,060 (4,673) 
300-5700-04 Principal G.O. Bonds Series 2002A Ogden 365,000 380,000 395,000 395,000 410,000 15,000 
300-5705-04 Interest -G.O.Bonds Series 2002 A Ogden 73,449 32,756 17,285 16,986 (16,986) 
300-5700-05 Principal G.O.Bond Series 2002 B 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 50,000 5,000 
300-5705-05 Interest - G.O. Bonds Series 2002 B 35,370 33,570 30,735 31,636 29,700 (1,936) 
300-5700-06 PrinCipal G.O.Bonds Series(Refunding) 04 75,000 75,000 4,480,000 4,480,000 2,645,000 (1,835,000) 
300-5705-06 Interest G.O.Bonds Series (Refunding) 04 662,438 660,562 658,750 658,500 479,300 (179,200) 
300-5705-07 Interest GO Bond Series 2007A 1,408,250 1,408,250 1,408,250 1,408,250 1,408,250 
300-5705-08 Interest GO Bond Series 2007B 1,230,987 1,230,987 1,230,987 1,230,987 1,230,987 
300-5705-09 Interest GO Bond Series 2008 412,312 360,273 360,273 360,273 
300-5700-11 Principal G.O. Bonds Series 2010 150,000 150,000 
300-4705-11 Interest G.O. Bonds Series 2010 508,683 508,683 
300-5705-10 Interest G.O. Bonds Series 2009 267,145 267,145 245,338 (21,807) 
300-5700-01 Principal G.O.Bonds Series 1998 1,445,000 
300-5705-01 Interest G.O. Bonds Senes 1998 329,500 150,250 
300-5705-02 Interest - G.O. Bonds Series 1999 328,525 328,526 256,387 256,397 278,850 22,453 

Total Debt Service Expenditures 12,429,323 19,769,169 10,477,873 9,434,9Q7 8,961,441 (473,466) 

Revenues less Expenditures 2,906,129 (845,648) 664,506 1,405,079 (8,318) $ 589,394 

Fund Balance Beginning _ (1,319,907) 1,586,222 740,573 $ 740,573 $ 1,405,079 

Projected Ending Fund Balance $ 1,586,222 $ 740,573 $ 1,405,079 $ 2,145,652 $ 1,396,761 

151 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Water and Sewer Fund 

This fund is used to account for the City's water and sewer operations. Revenues 
primarily represent charges for services paid by water and sewer customers. Expenses 
represent the costs of providing water and sewer service within the City's boundaries. 

152 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

PROGRAM MANAGER: Director of Public Works 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The Water and Sewer Division provides the community with safe, high quality drinking 
water at adequate pressure and sewage removal in an efficient manner 24 hours a day, 
365 days a year. 

SERVICES: 

'* Administration 
o Management of 13 full time employees 
o Management of the yearly budget for the Water and Sewer Division 
o Coordination of all calls for service. 
o Monitors construction and grant permits for utility cuts in the City rights-of

way. 
o Work with other City departments to ensure safety and efficient distribution 

of drinking water. 
o Supervision of daily operations of all services provided by the Division 

.. Water Maintenance 
o Operate and maintain two pumping distribution facilities. 
o Operate and maintain four water storage structures including in-ground 

and elevated tanks. 
o Maintain water distribution system and adequate and safe pressures. 
o Monitor water quality to meet or exceed all federal and state requirements. 
o Repair all distribution equipment including valves, hydrants and water 

mains. 
o Install and maintain water meter equipment. 
o Provide customer service and respond to service calls. 

~ Sewer Maintenance 
o Maintain combined sewer collection system and repair or replace as 

needed. 
o Clean and maintain storm inlets and catch basins. 
o Inoculate catch basins with larvacide for mosquito control. 
o Provide customer service and respond to service calls. 

153 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

STAFFING: 

Position (FTE) 2010 Actual 2011 Budget 

Public Works Director 1.00 1.00 
Secretary/Receptionist 1.00 1.00 
Working Foreman 1.00 1.00 
Dri\ers 4.00 4.00 
Pump Operators 6.00 6.00 

Total 13.00 13.00 

ACTIVITY MEASURES: 

Miles of water main 54 54 
Catch basins cleared 1,200 1,700 
Number of water main breaks 176 150 

Water and/or Sewer-related Service 
requests* 3,800 4,600 
Sewer Backups 50 50 
Leaking Service 100 93 
Buffalo Box repairs 200 155 
Miles of sewer main cleaned 2 4 

*Including Locates 

OBJECTIVES ACCOMPLISHED IN 2010: 

• Evaluate and recommend revised water and sewer rate structure. 

54 
1,200 

150 

4,600 
50 

100 
200 

3 

• Coordinate relining of sewer line and water main construction on Roosevelt 
Road. 

• Begin comprehensive analysis of water system infrastructure condition and 
develop long range improvement schedule. 

• Begin to develop a capital improvement program to address current and 
future needs. 

• Begin security upgrades and system improvements. 

154 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

LONG TERM OBJECTIVES (2-5 YEARS): 

• Begin program plan for regular pump and motor inspection and plans for a 
pump replacement program. 

• Initiate storage tank inspection and improvement program. 
• Complete security enhancements and upgrades. 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

• Replacement of the 19th Street pump station roof. 
• Continue to evaluate and upgrade the security system. 
• Contract consultant and develop plans to repair 30th Street storage tanks. 
• Coordinate reconstruction of approximately 150 feet of Pershing Rd sewer. 
• Repair sewer main on 32nd and Home Av. 

155 



City of Berwyn 
Water and Sewer Fund 

2011 Budget 
Requested 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Budget 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected ~et Budget Change 

Revenues 
500-4275 Water Sales - Commercial $ 1.446.400 $ 1.669.525 $ 1.853.650 $ 1.846.764 $ 1.846.764 $ 
500-4280 Water Sales - Residential 3.566.341 3.964.230 4.307.798 4,467.787 4.467.786 (1) 

Water Misc Charges 2.247 2.500 (2.500) 
500-4285 Plumbing Inspection 39.819 33.870 54.015 36.000 36.000 
500-4290 Sales. Meter 10.060 25.779 15.960 14.000 14.000 
500-4295 Parkway Use 535 675 2.460 500 500 
500-4305 Fees. Tap 14.500 10.500 9.477 10.000 10.000 
500-4355 Fines. Other 204.461 88.410 258.291 175.000 175.000 
500-4800 Interest Income 50.089 23.949 6.806 20.000 20.000 
500-4820 Sale of City Property 4.000 
500-4830 Damage to City Property 1.494 12.609 25.000 25.000 
500-4835 Miscellaneous 571 1.418 3.000 5.500 2.500 
500-4900 Transfer from other funds 2.713.262 

Total Water and Sewer Revenues 5.335,945 8.547.380 6.509.875 6.600.551 6.600.550 (1) 

Expenditures 
500-44-5000 Water and Sewer - Salaries 580.492 590.413 735.289 735.776 796.018 60.242 
500-44-5010 Water and Sewer - Overtime 80.905 100.775 85.880 78.000 78.000 
500-44-5015 Water and Sewer - Uniform Stipend 3.500 3.300 3.300 3.500 3.500 
500-44-5030 Water and Sewer - Sick Day Buyback 11.231 11 .266 10.000 10.000 
500-44-5035 Water and Sewer - Benefits 266.799 292.483 388.116 302.454 431 .505 129.051 
500-44-5205 Water and Sewer - Utilities 179.059 124.413 104.090 130.000 130.000 
500-44-5210 Water and Sewer - Vehicle Gas and Oil 2.961 1.528 1.796 65.000 65.000 
500-44-5215 Water and Sewer - Telephone 5.780 2.858 9.000 9.000 
500-44-5220 Water and Sewer - Training. Dues & Publications 1.741 382 5.500 10.000 4.500 
500-44-5225 Water and Sewer - Supplies 397 59.017 131.488 78.000 92.500 14.500 
500-44-5235 Water and Sewer - Postage & Printing 40.860 33.059 53.611 60.000 60.000 
500-44-5290 Water and Sewer - Other Gen Exp 68.174 1.764 41.713 32.000 32.000 
500-44-5300 Water and Sewer - Professional Services 77.180 164.696 229.411 116.000 200.000 84.000 
500-44-5400 Water and Sewer - Repairs & Maint 124.907 401.725 14.058 400.000 300.000 (100.000) 
500-44-5405 Water and Sewer - Copier Maint 9.183 12.891 3.184 12.000 12.000 
500-44-5500 Water and Sewer - Equipment 2.102 3.400 5.000 5,000 
500-44-5505 Water and Sewer - Equipment Lease 18.299 19.660 24.607 23.000 23.000 
500-44-5600 Water and Sewer - Cost of Water 3.049.611 3.272.948 3.577.379 3.874.252 3.874.252 
500-44-5605 Water and Sewer - Water Chemical Treatment 793 850 45.000 35.000 (10.000) 
500-44-5625 Water and Sewer - Intemal Service Fund 217.214 94.535 347.534 231 .193 289.775 58.582 
500-44-5690 Water and Sewer - Interdepartmental Charge 465.439 416.050 519.764 596.000 76.236 

Water and Sewer - Consulting & Engineering 35.000 (35.000) 
Water and Sewer - Water Maint 67.326 

500-44-5705 Water and Sewer - Interest Expense 40.665 40.665 
Water and Sewer - Bad Debt Expense 100.000 

500-44-5800 Water and Sewer - Capital Outlay 130.000 130.000 
500-44-5850 Water and Sewer - Depreciation 3.949.127 3.970.958 3.970.958 

Total Water and Sewer Expenditures 9.219.236 9.675.324 9.719.903 6.770,439 7.223.215 452.776 

Revenues less Expenditures (3.883.291 ) (1.127.944) (3.210.029) (169.888) (622.665) $ (452.777) 

Net Assets Beginning 46.818,486 42.935.195 41 .807.251 41 .807.251 38.597.222 

Projected Ending Net Assets $ 42.935~1~5 $41 .807.~1 $ 38.597.222 $ 41.637.363 $ 37.974.557 

156 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Parking Garage Fund 

This fund is used to account for the City's municipal parking garage. Revenues 
primarily represent charges for services paid by customers parking in the garage. 
Expenses represent the costs of operating and maintaining the garage. 

157 



City of Berwyn 
Parking Garage Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance Projected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 
Commuter Permits $ - $ - $ 74,457 $ 97,200 $ 97,200 $ 
Public Parking 15,695 15,695 
Retail Rent 36,851 36,851 

500-4900 Transfers In 10,166,732 

Total Parking Garage Revenues 10,166,732 74,457 149,746 149,746 

Expenditures 

550-5205 Utilities 2,651 25,551 17,000 30,000 13,000 
Supplies 2,500 2,500 
Professional Services 12,026 10,500 10,500 
Repairs & Maintenance 9,387 55,000 55,000 
Internal Service Charges 3,089 3,089 
Depreciation 101,667 98,000 

Total Parking Garage Expenditures 104,318 144,963 85,000 101,089 16,089 

Revenues less Expenditures 10,062,414 (70,507) 64,746 48,657 $ (16,089) 

Net Assets Beginning 10,062,414 10,062,414 9,991,907 

Projected Ending Net Assets $ - $ 10,062,414 $ 9,991,907 $ 10,127,160 $ 10,040,564 

158 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Internal Service Fund 

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the City's self insurance pool. The City 
is self insured for workmen's compensation as well as general liability coverage. 
Interfund charges represent charges to other City funds for insurance coverage. The 
City's current policy indicates that 115% of the prior year's expenses will be charged to 
participating funds and departments for their current year coverage. The interfund 
charges are allocated back to other departments based on a three year trend of claims 
incurred for workmen's compensation and based on department total expenditures for 
general liability insurance coverage. 

159 



City of Berwyn 
Internal Service Fund 

2011 Budget 

Requested 
Budget 

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 Change 
Account Number Account Name Balance Balance -f!2iected Budget Budget Amount 

Revenues 
600-4800 Interest Income $ 2,715 $ 299 $ - $ - $ - $ 
600-4250 Reimbursements 577,002 276,776 

Transfer from other funds 1,250,000 1,000,000 
600-4900 Interfund Charges 2,745,990 2,069,115 3,123,190 3,791,383 3,191,192 (600,191) 

Total Revenues 2,748,705 3,896,416 4,399,966 ---.! 791,383 3,191,192 (600,191) 

Expenditures 
600-5630 Premiums - Liability Insurance 276,141 260,584 249,602 227,350 285,000 57,650 
600-5635 Premiums - Boiler Coverage 11,856 11,856 10,980 12,000 12,000 
600-5640 Premiums - Property Insurance 160,933 168,408 223,180 178,330 225,000 46,670 
600-5645 Premiums - Workmen's Compensation 172,706 172,919 183,060 130,499 185,000 54,501 
600-5650 Claims - General Liability 1,275,142 1,675,705 908,108 650,000 650,000 
600-5655 Claims - Workmen's Compensation 2,001,735 1,833,718 1,200,000 2,033,817 1,500,000 101,171 

Total Expenditures 3,898,513 4,123,190 2,774,930 ---.!231 ,996 2,857,000 155,672 

Revenues less Expenditures (1,149,808) (226,774) 1,625,036 559,387 334,192 $ (155,672) 

Net Assets (Deficit) Beginning (1,580,051 ) (2,729,859) (2,956,633) (2,956,633) (1,331,597) -
Projected Ending Net Assets (Deficit) $ (2,729,859) $ (2,9Ej6,633) $ (1,331,597) $u (2y 397,246) $ (997,405) 

160 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Appendix A: Glossary 

The following is a summary of terms and acronyms used in this document. 

Accrual Basis Accounting - The most commonly used accounting method, which 
reports income when earned and expenses when incurred. 

Accrued Expenses - Expenses incurred but not due until a later date. 

AFSCME - American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees. A labor 
union representing some City of Berwyn employees. 

Assessed Valuation - A value that is assigned to real or personal property used as a 
basis for levying taxes. (Note: real estate property valuations are assessed by the 
Cook County Assessor's Office). 

Audit - An examination of an organization's financial statements and the utilization of 
resources. 

Bond Rating - An assessment of the likelihood that a bond issuer will pay the interest 
on its debt on time. Bond ratings are assigned by independent agencies, such as 
Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's. Ratings range from AAA (highest) to 
D (in default). Bonds rated below B are not investment grade and are called high-yield 
or junk bonds. Since the likelihood of default is greater on such bonds, issuers are 
forced to pay higher interest rates to attract investors. The City of Berwyn is rated A- as 
of 2010. 

Budget - A financial plan showing specific revenues, expenditures, and service levels 
for a specific fiscal time frame. The City of Berwyn budgets for a 12 month period 
beginning on January 1 SI. 

Budget Calendar - The pre-defined dates or milestones that determine the schedule 
by which the entity will prepare, present, and approve its' budget for the following year. 

Budget Message - The introduction of the budget wherein the reader will find a general 
summary of the most important aspects of the budget, including information from 
current and previous fiscal years. The Mayor's recommendations also appear in this 
section. 

Capital Outlay - Refers to the purchase of land, buildings, equipment and other 
improvements with an estimated useful life of three years or greater and belong to the 
class of property referred to as fixed assets. 

161 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Appendix A: Glossary 

Cash Basis Accounting - reports income when received and expenses when paid 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) - Federal funds made available to 
municipalities specifically for community revitalization. Funds may be used by internal 
City departments or distributed to outside organizations located within the City's 
boundaries. 

Contingency - A budgetary reserve set aside for emergencies or unforeseen 
expenditures not budgeted for. 

Debt Service - The City's obligation to pay the principal and interest of all bonds and 
other debt instruments according to a pre-determined payment schedule. 

Deficit - The excess of the liabilities of a fund over its assets; or the excess of 
expenditures over revenues during an accounting period; or, in the case of proprietary 
funds, the excess of expenses over income during an accounting period. 

Department - Administrative subsection of the City that indicates management 
responsibility for a specific set of operations. 

Depreciation - The portion of the cost of a capital asset that is charged as an expense 
during a particular period. This is a process of estimating and recording the lost 
usefulness, expired useful life, or diminution of service from a fixed asset that cannot or 
will not be restored by repair and will be replaced. The cost of the loss of usefulness of 
a fixed asset is the depreciation or the cost to reserve in order to replace the item at the 
end of its useful life. 

Fiscal Year (FY) - Any period of 12 months, without regard to the calendar year, for 
which an entity operates for financial purposes. The City of Berwyn happens to operate 
on a fiscal year ending on December 31 s . 

Fixed Assets - Assets of a long term character which are intended to continue to be 
held or used, such as: land, buildings, equipment, vehicles and machinery. 

Full Accrual Basis - The basis of accounting under which transactions are recognized 
when they occur, regardless of the timing of estimated cash flows. 

Fund - An accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures. 

162 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Appendix A: Glossary 

Fund Accounting - A governmental accounting system that is organized and operated 
on a fund basis. 

Fund Balance - The assets of a fund less liabilities, as determined at the end of each 
fiscal year. Any reservations of fund balance are deducted to result in an "unrestricted 
fund balance". 

Fund Type - In governmental accounting, all funds are classified into eight types: 
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, Special Assessment, 
Enterprise, Internal Service, and Trust and Agency. 

General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) - Uniform minimum standard of 
guidelines to financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content the 
basic financial statements of an entity. They encompass the conventions, rules, and 
procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practice at a particular time. They 
include not only broad guidelines of general application, but also detailed practices and 
procedures. They provide a standard by which to measure financial presentations. 

GFOA - Government Finance Officers Association. A professional organization for 
employees in the government finance industry. 

Grant - A contribution by a government or other organization to support a particular 
function. Typically, these contributions are made to local governments from the state 
and federal governments. 

Home Rule - It enables voters to adopt a home rule charter that acts as the city's basic 
governing document over local issues; however, state law continues to prevail over 
statewide concerns. The goal of municipal home rule is to facilitate local control and 
minimize state intervention into municipal affairs. 

IMRF - Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, a pension plan for employees of member 
cities within the State of Illinois. 

Interfund Transfers - Amounts transferred from one fund to another. 

Internal Service Fund - Fund used to account for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department on a cost reimbursement basis. The City of Berwyn uses 
an internal service fund to allocate costs for workmen's compensation and general 
liability insurance. 

163 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2011 

Appendix A: Glossary 

Levy - To impose taxes, special assessments, or service charges for the support of City 
services. 

Liabilities - Debts or other legal obligations arising out of transactions in the past which 
must be liquidated, renewed, or refunded at some future date. 

Long Term Debt - Debt with a maturity of more than one year after the date of 
issuance. 

MABAS - Mutual Aid Box Alarm System. This system was established to provide a 
swift, standardized and effective method of mutual aid assistance for extra alarm fires 
and mass casualty incidents. 

MFT - Motor Fuel Tax. Represents revenues fro the City's share of gasoline taxes, 
allotted by the state for street improvements. 

Modified Accrual Basis Accounting - The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the 
governmental fund type spending measurement focus. Under it, revenues are 
recognized when they become both "measurable" and "available" to finance 
expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund 
liability is incurred except for (1) inventories of materials and supplies which may be 
considered expenditures either when purchased or when used; (2) prepaid insurance 
and similar items which need not be reported; (3) accumulated unpaid vacation, sick 
pay, and other employee benefit amounts which need not be recognized in the current 
period, but for which larger than normal accumulations must be disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements; (4) interest on special assessment indebtedness which may be 
recorded when due rather than accrued, if offset by interest earnings on special 
assessment levies and (5) principal and interest on long-term debt which are generally 
recognized when due. 

Property Taxes - Used to describe all revenues received in a period from current 
taxes, delinquent taxes, penalties and interest on delinquent taxes 

Public Hearing - The portions of open meeting held to present evidence and provide 
information on both sides of an issue 

Reserve - An account used to indicate that a portion of fund balance is restricted for a 
specific purpose. An account used to earmark a portion of fund balance to indicate that 
it is not appropriate for expenditure. A reserve may also be an account used to earmark 
a portion of fund equity as legally segregated for a specific future use. 

164 



City of Berwyn 
2011 

Annual Budget 

For the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1,2011 

Appendix A: Glossary 

Revenues - All amounts of money earned or received by the City from external 
sources. It includes such items as tax payments, fees from specific services, receipts 
from other governments, fines, forfeitures, grants, shared revenues and interest income. 

Revenue Bonds - Bonds whose principal and interest are payable exclusively from a 
revenue source pledged as the payment source before issuance. 

ROI - Return on Investment. A method to assist management decision making by 
evaluating the return on various investment alternatives. 

Sales Taxes - The City receives two types of sales taxes - one from the state and the 
other from a home-rule sales tax. The state tax rate is 1 % and the local home rule 
sales tax rate is 1 %. 

Tax Base - The total value of all real and personal property in the City as of January 1 st 

of each year, as certified. The tax base represents the net value after all exemptions. 

Tax Levy - The resultant product when the tax rate per one thousand dollars is 
multiplied by the tax base. 

Tax Rate - A percentage applied to all taxable property to raise general revenues. It is 
derived by dividing the total tax levy by the taxable net property valuation. 

Taxes - Compulsory charges levied by a government for the purpose of financing 
service performed for the common benefit. The term does not include charges for 
services rendered only to those paying such charges, for example, water bills. 

TIF - Tax Increment Financing - the act of capturing the amount of property taxes 
levied by a taxing unit for the year on the appraised value of real property located within 
a defined investment zone. The tax increments are paid into the TIF fund and used to 
pay project costs within the zone, including debt service obligations. 

User Charges - The payment of a fee for direct receipt of a public service by the party 
benefiting from the service. 

165 



· ty of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

John Wysocki 
Finance Director 

6700 West 26'· Street Berwyn. Illinois IXH02'0701 Telttphone: (708) 788'2Gfi0 (70S) 788'027a 
www.berwyn·il .goy 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero and the City Council 

From: John Wysocki .~ ~ 
Subject American EX'S Commercial Account Program 

Date: February 17,20 II 

American Express has a program that will allow us to generate additional revenues for the City by 
simply paying a few of our largest bills by credit card. The program works very similar to the rewards 
programs that many people have associated with their individual credit cards. 

The City would be issued a single corporate credit card from American Express which would be used 
solely to pay the Waste Management bill (about $330,000 per month) and the City of Chicago water 
bill (about $320,000 per month). The City would receive 100 basis points redeemable for reward 
points or 50 basis points redeemable for Travelers Cheques. 

We propose to obtain Travelers Cheques which would be promptly deposited in the City's general 
bank account. This would result in approximately $39,000 of additional arumal revenues. 

American Express charges an annual fee of$110. The American Express bills would be paid off in 
fu][ each month so as not to result in any interest charges. 

Both Waste Management and the City of Chicago do accept credit cards for payment of their bills at 
no additional fee. Other mlUlicipalities have begun using this program. 

Staff requests that Council approve establishing an account with American Express and entering into 
the program. Andrea Randall from American Express will attend the Committee of the Whole 
meeting on February 22 to answer any questions about the program. 



Denis O'l1ullol'ulI 
Fire Chief ---

Ridulnl Swade 
11.<.,is/lIlI/ "'ifl! Chi,,/ 

February 22, 2011 

Mayor Lovere 
Members of City Council 

BERWYN 
fIKE DEPARTMENT 

6700 W. 26th Slrrel • Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

7()8.788.2660 ext 3281 

FAX 708.788.3039 • Emergency 9- J -1 

RE: Asbestos Inspection for 661916111 St. and garage, and 1539 Clarence 

Mayor Rohert J. Lovero 

With the danger of asbestos present in older homes it is recommended that the City of Berwyn have 
samples taken from the above City property before demolition occurs. This will prevent any 
environmental and hea Ith concerns for the residents in the immediate viCinity of the demolition. 

With the approval of the demolition last year, and spring approaching, the next step to complete the 
project is to retain a company who specializes in environmental Inspections. We feel JMS Environmental 
Assodates would be the best choice ofthe companies that responded. They have been In the bUSiness 
for over twenty years. Their scope of work clearly covered all aspects of the testing procedure. When 
compared to the other two companies that replied, they equaled or exceeded their competitors. JMS 
also had the lowest price of the three which is a total of $1125.00 

Due to the fact that these homes are older, it is a distinct possibility that contaminates will be found. If 
this is the case, depending on the extent of contamination, there will be additional costs associated with 
the removal, transportation, and disposal of the material. If asbestos is discovered, JMS will quote a final 
cost when the amount and extent of contamination is determined . 

In closing, please consider retaining JMS for the purpose of conducting a pre-inspection for asbestos. 
This should ensure a safe and healthy demolition, and In doing so, take the City of Berwyn a step closer 
to closing this project. If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. A copy of their proposal 
is enclosed. 

Thank you, 1 ~ _ 
.~~ 

Richard Swade 
Assistant Fire Chief 



JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. 
816 BUff Oak Drive. Westmont, Illinois 60559 • (630) 655-8500 • Fax: (630) 655-8724 

2S January 2011 

City of Berwyn 
Fire Department 
6700 West 26n Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Attn.: Richard Swade, 
Assistant Fire Chief 

RE: Revised Proposal For Environmental Consulting Services, 
Asbestos/ESA Building Surveys; 
Various House and Garage Sites; 
Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

JMS Proposal: J-11-0009~A 

Dear Chief Swade: 

JMS 

Per our recent telephone conversation, the following is our 
revised technical proposal for environmental consulting services 
related to an Asbestos/ESA Building Material Surveys that JMS 
Environmental Associates, Ltd. (JMS) has proposed for the City of 
Berwyn for the various house and garage' sites. The Asbestos/ESA 
Surveys would follow existing federal, state and county guidelines 
and consist of the following items: 

Scope of Asbestos Survey Work: 

1. ) Perform an Asbestos Building Survey for the site 
structures in accordance with current state and county 
regulations. All environmental reports will include any 
recommendations for further asbestos/environmental 
remediation, if necessary. The asbestos survey and report 
would be for each building structure and include the 
collection and analysis of suspect bulk material samples. 
The amount of samples will vary based upon the building 
construction and use of the structures. Twelve to fifteen 
(12-15) bulk samples are collected in a house of suspect 
flooring, walls, ceilings, thermal pipe insulation, 
exterior window/door caulks/glazings, roof shingles, roof 
tar flashings, exterior sidings. Only accessible and non
destructive samples would be collected per existing U.S. 
EPA sampling protocol. The person collected the samples 
and quantifying the materials will be licensed by the 
Illinois Department of Public health (IDPH) as an Asbestos 
Building Inspector. 

JMS Environmental is accredited by NVLAP (#102012) 



JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. 

City of Berwyn: House/Garage Asbestos/ESA Surveys 
JMS Proposal: J-ll-0009-A 
2S January 2011 
Page 2 

2.) The collected bulk materials samples would then be field 
logged into a Chain-of-Custody form for transport to the 
laboratory. The laboratory performing the asbestos analy
ses is required to be accredited by the Department of 
Commerce NIST/NVLAP Asbestos Program per U.S. EPA protocol; 

3.} Provide a final asbestos project report with all of the 
laboratory results indicating the type of asbestos. 
location and quantity in the building structure. 

The proposed costs for the described Asbestos/ESA Survey of the 
subject properties are as follows: 

Asbestos/ESA Building Survey: 
on-site Asbestos Inspection $ 
(Includes the collection/analysis 
of all Suspect Asbestos Materials.) 

Asbestos Garage Survey: $ 
(Includes 3 bulk samples) 
ESA Investigation $ 
Survey Report Preparation $ 

47S/house 

17S/garage 

no charge 
no charge 

[These unit costs per building structure type is a 
not to exceed cost.] 

Upon authorization, the on-site asbestos survey, laboratory 
testing and preparation and delivery of the written project report 
shall be performed within ten (10) working days. An original and 
an electronic version of the project report will be sent within 
ten working days of the authorization. 

Note, if asbestos is detected in the structure slated for 
demolition, it is required by the Cook Department of Environment 
and the Illinois EPA to properly remove all identified asbestos 
materials under a county/state permit notification. 

JMS Environmental, through it's subsidiary STEM Environmental 
Management, Inc.; can provide the required Asbestos/Environmental 
Project Construction Management for buildings that contain 
asbestos. This service includes the coordination; notification 
permit filings; on-site asbestos project management/monitoring; 
on-site asbestos removal and final project report. The cost for 
this service is based upon the quantity of asbestos materials in 
the building. A separate technical proposal will be provided at 
no cost to the city at the time of the asbestos inspection report. 



JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. 

City of Berwyn: House/Garage Asbestos/ESA Surveys 
JMS Proposal: J-11-0009-A 
25 January 2011 
Page 3 

There is a mandatory two week notification period prior to the 
removal of asbestos materials within a structure. 

JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. (JMS) provides professional 
environmental services to the public and private sector covering 
the fields of asbestos/lead, indoor air quality, industrial 
hygiene, environmental assessments, underground storage tank 
investigations, soil and groundwater analyses for petroleum 
products, clean coal technologies and water/wastewater services. 

Our staff is trained through U. S. E. P .A. /OSHA asbestos training 
centers and are licensed for work in Illinois, Indiana, Michigan 
and Wisconsin, and in other areas of the country. JMS offers the 
following services: 

On-Site Asbestos Project Management/Air Monitoring; 
- Mold Indoor Air Quality Monitoring & Industrial Hygiene; 
- Asbestos & Lead Building Inspection/Project Management; 
Airborne Fiber and Bulk Material Analyses, 
( PCM ,PLM & TEM) i 
- Asbestos & Lead Project Specification Preparation. 

Our laboratory is accredited by the U.S. E.P.A. and the American 
Industrial Hygiene Association (AIHA) for all aspects of asbestos 
laboratory analyses. The corporation also maintains general com
prehensive and professional liability insurance for environmental 
consulting. 

Over the past twenty years, our staff has been involved with 
several thousand asbestos and industrial hygiene related projects 
ranging from inspections and monitoring of small boiler rooms to 
entire industrial complexes and large school districts. We feel 
our experience and expertise can fully benefit the City of Berwyn. 

Should you approve this technical proposal, please sign the bottom 
contract portion of the proposal authorizing JMS to proceed on 
this project. JMS would be able to start the project immediately 
and provide a completed proj ect report within approximately one 
week of the project startup. Also our billing policy requires 
full payment for services rendered at the time of the on-site 
inspection unless other arrangements are made in advance of the 
project. 



JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. 

City of Berwyn: House/Garage Asbestos/ESA Surveys 
JMS Proposal: J-11-0009-A 
2S January 2011 
Page 4 

JMS/STEM currently have a Certificate of Insurance filed with the 
City of Berwyn along with a current city business license. Copies 
of insurance certificate, business license, state licenses and 
asbestos laboratory credentials have been included for review. 

JMS has and is currently 
consulting services for the 
districts/school districts: 

provided asbestos/environmental 
following municipalities/park 

City of Countryside 
City of Wheeling 
Village of Stickney 
River Forest School District 
Village of Stone Park 
Glencoe School District 
Downers Grove Park District 
St. Charles Park District 
Fox Valley Park District 

If you have any questions regarding this proposal or would like 
to meet to discuss any other environmental matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact us at JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd .. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

bb&v::. 
seph M. Sterner 

Environmental Director/President 

Client Acceptance of JMS Technical Proposal J-11-0009-A: 

Authorization Client Signature: ____ -==============-____ _ 

Date: ________________ __ 

Note, any outstanding JMS invoices relating to the project which 
remain unpaid for a period of thirty (30) days beyond the invoice 
date will incur a service charge of one and one half percent 
(1. S%) per month (an annual percentage rate of eighteen percent 
(18%» on the unpaid principal balance of such invoice. Client 
agrees to pay such service charges and further agrees to pay the 
reasonable costs for collection, including court costs and 
attorney's fees, incurred by JMS in the collection or enforcement 
of this agreement. 



.. . " , \ 

" .. , . . 
,~. . 

.. -........ ,.- -,.": ' . "', " , .... ,,' 

, ' . , 

, - , . , ,' " . ' -

.•• ~.~,::it}~~:,i;:1:;:;;~.j;~·j~ 
., \";.,~,r..,;,-, .. ,-),:,\",,\.,:. ,,,";.,;.,! ,'" co' •• ~. ,::' ,;"J,-;: .... .,' ... ,.,,:,' ... , " '<i' i·. ,: ' :.~." .. '. i "' , .-, :., : ,. ~~:: ~." ,,,,,::),,;. : .. : : i,: ;~; :. " ".,: '. . ' ~ .' I. " 

' .. - • I " :... '.',' '~ .. :.... .... '.~ ' 

. . 
' ,, 1 

t:- " 

i':' , 

, . 

3y A.m·herit)' Of The 

10.26.2010 City of Berwyn 

. . 

$30.00 

Expires: 12,31.2010 

----------------------------_._- -_._---- ----
" !STATELICENSE No--.. 

Environmenta,1 

Hereby Granted - Business ID #10018 

JMS Stem Environmental Management 
816 Burr Oak Drive 
Westmont, IL 60559 

subject to all provisions of the ordinances of the City of Berwyn -

certificate of Insurance Expires On: 4.3.2011 . , Bond Expiration is - 10,18.2011 

2010 

Void if bond . or state 
Ii--:er.~e is <?;I?irp.d . 

License 15 l\Jon - Trcnsferabie 

;:-.. _ .. ...-. ~,_~ __ ~ ..... '! ... ' .~ __ ~_r "<-....... -..... __ ........ > ............................. , ... -... .. ' .. _ ................ ___ • ___ ,< ........... ' ...... __ ~_~_ity..;-.._~Ierk_ ~J 

,.;>" 



ACORD
IIli 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
D .... n: (MMl'DDIYYYY) 

'---'" 10/25/2010 

PRODUCER. (312)263-3215 FAX: (312)263-0979 THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMAnON 

Myers-Briggs , Co, Inc. ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND EXTEND OR 

300 S. Wacker Drive ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POliCIES BELOW. 

Suite 2000 

_~~i:.cago IL 60606 INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# ._- .--_ .. - - - - _ . . _------- -
INSURED INSURER A.: Endurance American Speciality 41718 

JMS Environmental Associates INSuRER B: Peerless Insurance Company 24198 - -
Ltd. ; STEM Environmental Management INSuReR c:ACE Fire underwriters Ins Co 201D2 

. -
816 Burr Oak Drive INSIJREA D: -
Westmont IL 60559 INSURER E: 

COVERAGES 
THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR 
MAY PERT AlN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU. THE TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OISUCH 
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS, -- - .~~----

I~i: ~~~ii TYPE. OF INSURANCE POUCYIIUMBER ~~TLJ,CY EFfECTIVE I ~~y IOIPIAATlOt.I UNITS 

GENERAL UABILITY EA~ OCCuRRENce 5 ._._J.,.().9J).,J1.9 Il_ 
X ; COMMERCIAl. GEt-IEfUL UA8ILIT'f ~S~S(E~~.:!.!!cm .. _$ 50,~.Q 

A --=-=_ CLAIMS MADE IxlOCCllR eCC1D1OD658DDl 4/3/2010 4/3/2011 M&I EXP (Any ""$ !)elton) $ 5,000 
Profession Liab· CLA.I'MS MAD£ PERSONAL , ArN IHJ\.IRY S 1 000,000 - -. .. . 

Contractors Po11· GENERAl AGGRE.GATE S 2 000, .. 9_9Q. , ,,---
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ~·MOLD: $1,000,000 . LIMIT PROOUCTS . COMPIOP AGG S 2 OOO .. QOO_ 

XI POLICY I I ~~ Ii LOC Deduct: 5 000 

I 
I AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

I"".""", 
COMSlt-IED SINGLE LIMIT =1 my AUTO 
(Ea 8CCidenl) S 1,000 I 000 

,,-
B 

I 
.6LL OWt-lED AUTOS 4/3/2010 4/3/2011 800lLY INJURY _.-

(P", person) S 
SCtiEDULEO AUTOS 

I-
X iilREO AUTOS BOOILV INJURY I-

(Pst ea:ldenl) S 
X NON.QWNEO AUTOS -_. 

I-- _._- .. _ .. PROPEATY DAMAGe 
(Per aa:ldenl) S 

GARAGE UABIlITY AUTO ONt. Y • EA ACCloeN]'_ S 

1 ANY AUTO OTHER THAN EAACC , --I-. 
AUTO ONLY: AGG 5 

I EXC ES S I UMBRELlA LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE S 5 , 0 0 0 LQ.Q..Q. 

~ 0""" 0""", """ AGGREGAn: $ 5 ,..Q.Q.Q.,.O 00. 

s 
A 

I 
DE~UCTIBlE gxslO10065B10l 4/3/2010 4/3/2011 s 

X RETElfflOloi S ~ S 

C _'_"M"O' ~ ~.~_b.~iT~~ l°Jr-
AND EMPI.OYEI'{S· UABiUTY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERlEXECUT/I/€ D E,L EAC1-4 .ACCU~~NT , 500,000 
OFFICERIMEMSER EXCLUDED? 

4/3/2010 4/3/2011 E,L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYE!: S 500 ,..Q.Q.9_ (Mand.ile>ty In !lH) CC4 62 6718 7 

~~rC~R~I~~NS below E.L. DISEASE, POlICV UMIT S 500 000 

B I OTl4ER Property r"'''''' 4/3/2010 4/3/2011 Vuioue 

I 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS /VEttCl..ES I £!ICLUSIONS AllCEC BY ENDORSEMENT I SPECIAL PROVISIOHS 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Be.rvyn 
6700 W. 26th Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 

ACORD 25 (2009/01) 
INS025 (.100901) 

60402 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD AHY OF Tt(E ASOI/£ D€S<:Rl8EO POLICIES BE CANCELLEDBEl'ORE THE EXPIRATIOH 

DATE THu.EOF. THE ISSUING INSUA2R. WILL I!NDE.4.VOR TO IolAlL ~ DAVS WRITTEN 

HeTICE. 10 T1iE CERTlFlCAn: HOLDER NAMED TO T1iE LEFT, BUT FAltlMl.E TO DO &0 SliAU. 

IMPOSE NO OBUGAnOH OR LlA8IIJTY OF ANY KIND UPON THe INSURER. ITS AGENTS OR 

REPRESENTATMS. 
AUTHORIl£D REPR£SENTATIVE 

v..)~8· William Kamm/DJ K~ 

@1988-2009ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



IMPORTANT 

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must be endorsed, A statement 
on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may 
require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate 
holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

DISCLAIMER 

This Certificate of Insurance does not constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s). authorized 
representative or producer. and the certificate holder. nor does it affirmatively or negatively amend. 
extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed thereon. 

ACORD 25 (2009101) 
INS025 (200901) 



· . 
: . _-_.~ ~.-=- .=~._-:==,::= :":~:-",,,::=~~,:-=-= :'.~: =.' _~:~-=: :-.10 .. ~:=.:::~~::.:-_~~-:-=--: =.:...:.~: -.- :=-: .. '::~.~-':;'-::::'::.'::_:~ ':_-_" ::''':::-:-_'"'..-. .=. - --:7::. ~ .. : ~'_ =-=--:::-_-:-.:.::.:.=";"=-_:. .. ~_'== 

:= a1 '::I u j.t'! R. (; 011\1 (~r 

~Ct'I 7. ,!.lnola... M.,i.J •• M..:::h .. Dl~:::<l1" 

JOSEPH M STERNER 
816 BURR OAK DRIVE 
WESTh(ONT, IL 60559 

3117/2010 

ASBESTOS PROFESSIONAL LICENSE ID N1JtvfBER: 00209 

Enclosed is your Asbestos Professional L-icense that expiJes 05/1512011 

CERTIACATE EXPIRATION DAre 

" 

INSPECTOR 

NL~NAGEMENTPLN~NER 

PROJECT rviANAGER 
AIR SAlVfPLING PROFESSIONAL 

! . ... 

1/7/2011 

1/7/2011 
9/1 t/2010 

If you have any questions or need further assist3I1C~, contact the Asbestos Program 3I 
(217)782-3517 or fax (217)785-5897. 
Our WcB address is bttp j /www.idphsrate.il.us/envbealthlebhome.htm 

ASBESTOS 
PROFESSlONAL 

U~ENSE 

!O NUMBER ISSUED EXPIRES 
: ':0 - J{)20S- 3/17/2010 J5i1'512G1 ~ 

JOSEPH M STERNE.:Z. 
1316. aURR OAf!.. SR'L\AE 
WESTMONT, ! L ·aOS59z. 

.::''':wcr JTIE.'lf'8l. He2IUi 

'-



.... " II 

United States Department -of Commerce 
Natlonal Institute of Standards and Technology 

.-

C~rtificate -of Accred'itation to ISO/lEG 17025:20'05 , ' 

NVLAP LAB CODE: 102012-0 \ 

JMS Environrnentftl Assocjates, Ltd. 
Westmont, IL 

is accredited by the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program for specific servIces, 
IIstad on the Scope of Aocredltaflon" for: 

BULI( ASBESTOS FIBER ANALYSIS 
This laboratory is accredited in accordance wifl11he recognized tlltf?rnational Stalldard ISOIIEe 17026:2005. 

TlJis aacradllalfon demonslrfjtes teohnlcal camMtence for a dafinf3d ~cqp~ and the opera/lon of a laql(ratory qlJality 
managemenl sY8tem (rfJ{er (0 joint ISO-fLAC-IAP Communique d{3(ed January 20Q9). 

2010-04-0 I through 2011-03-31 

.0l{1 OP Do,_ 

Jf""'i" ~ 6 • 

~ ~ J 
1>0 ~'t 

8l".-Itea of t' 

~rlt~#y 
For (he NaUOna{ifis'uleo Standards and Technology Effective dales 

., ' 

IM.AP-OIC (REV. 2009·01·28\ 

" 



Asbestos Ana!ysts ' 

July 24, 2006 

Retain For Your Records 

Organization 10: 101176 
Analyst 10: 8861 

JMS Environmental Associates, Ltd. 
John Aschbacher 
816 Burr Oak Drive 
Westmont IL, 60559 

Dear Mr. Aschbacher: 
- I 

Congratufiltlonsl The American Industrial Hygiene Association (AlHA) Analytical Accreditation 
Board (AAE) has approved your listing in the Asbestos Analyst Registry (MR). This Board 
Approval takes effect July 24, 2006. You are now listed on the AIHA website as an Asbestos 
Analysts Registry (AAR) Board Approved Analyst 

http://www.aiha.orq/LaboratorvServices/htmllaarana.html. 

Your Board Approval status will remain current as long as you maintain two or less outliers in the 
two most oment consecutive Asbestos Analytical Testing (AAT) rounds. You will automatically 
lose your Board Approval status if you cease analyzing AAT samples with an approved 
organization, or you transfer to an unapproved organization. 

If you should receive m ore than two ouUie rs in two consecutive rounds, your AA T Perlormance 
Results report will show that you are "not acceptable." To regain your Board Approval, your 
options are: 

1) '.purchase the current round retest to successfully override the results; or 
2) Analyze the next regularly scheduled AAT round or next two consecutive AAT rounds 

(whichever is appropriate) with no more than 2 outliers cumulatively. to regain Board 
f\pproval status. 

If you fores~e non-participation in a Mure AAT round, in order to retain Board Approval status, 
AIHA requiFeS a letter .requesting an excused absence from that round befote the date that the 
results are due for that particular round. Please note that excused absences will not be granted 
for two conJecutive AA T rounds. 

Congratulations again and thank you for your continued participation in the Asbestos Analyst 
Registl)' program. If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact Mrs. Carter Oezjo, 
AAR Program Specialist at 703-846-0798 or cdezio@aiha.org. 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Peter Dragasakis 
Quality Systems Manager, LQAP 

AIHA 
2700 Prosperity Avenue, Suite 2S0 

Fairfax, VA 22031 
Phone: 703-849~888: Fax: 703·207-8558 

· r 



,- .F1(JJ1k Novotny &" Associate~ Inc. ___ II_ ---- --- ____ _ _____ _ ___ - - _ _ _________ _ 
Ii M idwJ)," J )1'; rp Wi/lUlr brook, 1L 605~7 'l'l'J('phOlIl>: (lj,'J()) H87-H(j.J() Jt}u.: (o.'JO) HH'I- OJ.']!! 

('il'i) l!Jn{.,JiUPf>ls/ 

~lIlInidjJH.} ('omil/IfJm~ 

Hon. Mayor & City Council 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, lIlinois 60402 

Re: Library Air Conditioning Chiller Replacement 
Energy Efficient & Conservation Block Grant Program 

Mesdames & Gentlemen: 

February 14, 2011 

The City of Berwyn received an Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
to replace the air conditioning chiller at the Library. Enclosed is a copy of the 
"Tabulation of Bids" for the bids that were received and opened for the above-captioned 
project at 10:00 a.m. on February 11, 2011 . Eight (8) bids were received, checked for 
accuracy, and found to be correct. 

The low bidder for the Library Air Conditioning Chiller Replacement project was 
International Piping Systems, Inc., which was $38,500.00 (26.55%) above the 
Engineer's Estimate of $145,000.00. Also included in the bid was an optional bid item 
as requested by the Library Board for the Building Automation System. The Library 
Board is reviewing their budget at this time to determine if they can fund the additional 
cost for the Building Automation System. 

Upon reviewing the references submitted by International Piping Systems, we 
find them to be well qualified to perform this type of work. We, therefore, recommend 
that the Contract be awarded to International Piping Systems, Inc., 444 E. State 
Parkway, Schaumburg, Il 60173 in the amount of $183,500.00 to cover the cost of the 
air conditioning chiller replacement at the Library. 

Please call if you have any questions regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~k (: q~~d~ACl-~~-h--

John E. Fitzgerald, P.E. 
JEF/kes 
Enclosure 
cc: Mr. Brian Pabst, Administrator, w/Encl. 

Ms. Tammy Clausen, Berwyn Library, w/Encl. 
File No. 10103 



Dolo: Zln~,. 

OWNER: 
PROJECT DeSCRlPTlON: 

TABULATION OF BIDS 

ClIy af Be!wyn 
UDI'III'/ AJr CondlUOhing DIller Replacemltl1! 
EflIIll!Y El!Idencv and Con&alWticn BIDeII Gmnl Program rEECBG) 

!lID DPEMNG: FoblUllt\/ 11 2011~1!L 

Engln __ 

~ .. 
118m Unit 
110 DoaOflllllon UftIt ~ Pr1ea _"nil 
1 UIIWIy NIl. CONIlI11ONINO CHIU£R IIa'UIC~T lGlAl • "'JlOO.oo 145.000.110 

I\EPlACEME.n' COIllPt.ETE \It 'lACE 

0l'Tl0t<AL BID 
Z BUilDING i'lJTOIOAY1ON SYSTEM L SIUII I 

........... _ ... 2y_C_C~ 

--~ 
I , 
I 

I 

I 

ToUI. .u.aao.OO 
Bid Emir C<>mIdIon.: 

ComH:1td TDCoII:II - - • 
o-I~· ... - .... 

Pagol01 2 

PROJIICT I0I0: 10103 

''-''lIIIanal Piping &y8t.wno Complola ro"",. S,.-... Oak B raak M""n. SMvICl .. 
oW4 E. _ """"""Y •• ';13 tau I rxllIO\I18I Dn.-. HI S. Roub III 
Sc:h""mbul'll. rL 8D173 ~.R. 81J466 Ehn hUm. IL &0128 
5!\.1IId Bond 5% BldE!an4 ~BldBond 

Unit I UnII Un/I 
~ Arn<>unt Pr1ea Amllllnt PriCII Amuunt 

.B3.6110JlO '&l.5OO.!I: 1890.5001 I •. O'~OC 2'2.«lO.OO ,,»100.0( 

74.800.00 1li,SU,LQ1 72JlOO'oo 

o.2Oeoo 

. 

l 

, 
I 

I 
'A,IDG.GII I , •• ".00 nUlD..DCI 

''''.&- UIIPTl.CIO a1UC1O.111 
3e.5tIO.OC '4,o.MCI 117 .1IOCI~ 

Z1III611 l!I..1G'J; 06.T~ 

McDonougb IIKIo. S.rvIc .. CI.-1I1y Co"btli BytI\IIIrIII _be, Mech. ContnclDrtI 
4C!&1 _ph Drive 21761111f1ln SlrtIiOt 111115D 9. C.ntrol Avo. 
-011011. 1'.. BIDJT 1II_n,l..G~ Alalp, IL &08113 
~BIdB_ ~ Bid Bond ~BldElDnd 

Unit Unit I unit 
PrlCI! """"1111 ~ Am ..... 1 Pr1 .. AmoLlflt 

2,4,IB:l.OO ~4.182.DJ ~'8,lW1l .' 2'U4Il.o! 17DJlOO.OO m.ooo.«J 

. , 
7<,!W.oo 1:!l.OOO.oo. n.eoo.1I 

: 
6284.01; 

, 

I 
tI.,,1Z.O! 211,_--'" 27D.00DJl0 

1,..IB1lJO 118.aoa.~ VII._" 
8II.11I2llIl 7J~0I ,Z5,OOD.DO 

47.711' -- ID~ 8I! 2!l! 



OWNER: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

:TABULATION OF BIIU 

CII)' afBen<yn 
Llllary AIr COIl <mIoNng Chilei' Replacement 
Energy Elflcleney and Corllill1V1llial1 Block Granl PfI)glllm (EECSGI 

IND OPI:NI NI3: ~" WLI! 10".!l\I-"!!l.. 

EDQi ..... 

~-
It.m \/nit 
No ~ 1I"1 _Qu_ _ "" .. Am ..... , lJIRARV o\R CO~DmOtlING C~l..ElIlW'I.ACEl!eNT l8UII 1 l~lO l I~.CXII.OI: 

IEPl.J<CEIE!(T. COWP\.£Tl! IN FUCe 

OPnONAlI\ID 
I 8l11.D1NG1A\lTOIOA noN SrS7EM lSUII , 

! 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
Tatl l .~ ,~ 

II" ~ Enor C«Tac:tlOns: 

Conwct.d Tota" _ .• 
o-'lIndw··· · _ •.... 

"-201 2 

P RO.JIECT NO ; 10,03 

Wea1aIde Mac:blDloaI, u.c P_r Moc:hanlcel. lne. 

I 
Z11117 C<IflXInrtII Lon. 1 \ 1 FlIlrtllllliuo 8_ 
Napwvtlllo, IL BD&13 AddI5on. It. 801 01 
"-BId &and n'.1I1C1 Bon~ 

Ullil I Unit Unit Unit Unit Un~ -.. - Pr10e AmDunt P~ ... AmOIm\ Prla: Amo ...... PrIce Amount Prico AmDUnC 
18G.oco.DO lOO.DDOJIO 311.oco.oo llo,oao,DQ 

I 

101_ In.ooo.oo 

I , 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

_0Il0..0. 
3~IIIa.aa 

IIII._D! ~,a.oaoAII 

151 ,1IOO.J)O 171.DC1O.OQ 

'0..""" "1.9!l! 



A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Additional parking signage - Vacin FailWay and Cermak Road Projects 

Nicole L. Campbell 
Traffic Engineer 

As the projects along the Vacin Fairway and Cermak Road continue towards their completion, additional parking signage 
is required on the sidestreets between the Vacin FailWay and Cermak Road. This additional signage will ensure that all 
parking areas are signed correctly and uniformly throughout this business corridor. The estimated cost for this work is 
approximately $21,000. The signing contractor currently performing the work in the Vacin FailWay and on Cermak Road 
is Traffic Control and Protection (TCP). TCP has successfully completed projects with the City in the past and has worked 
closely with the City in developing the sign layouts for the parking areas. 

Recommendations 
Since the signing work is an extension of the Vacin Fairway and Cermak Road projects within the TIF area, it is my 
recommendation to waive the bidding process and authorize TCP to complete the necessary work for payment through 
TIF funds. 

Sinqerely, 

~nginee( 

6700 West 2611> Street Ber\vy!1. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn-i1.gc>v 



A Century of Progress with Pride 
February 22, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Business Reserved Permit Parking 

Nicole L. Campbell 
Traffic Engineer 

Businesses near the 3200 Block of Grove Avenue have expressed a need for business parking and have inquired as to 
the possibility of installing such parking within the area. After investigation of the area; the Depot (f.k.a. Commuter) permit 
parking is heavily used along Windsor and Stanley Avenues, the Municipal Lot on 32nd Street is occupied on a daily basis, 
and the 2 hour parking on Grove and Stanley Avenues is regularly used with adequate turn-over. The existing 2 hour 
parking on 32nc1 Street between Oak Park Avenue and the alley west of Grove Avenue is rarely used and never observed 
at full capacity. It is suggested that these areas are signed as Business Permit Parking, which will yield an additional 6 
spaces. It is also suggested that the business reserved parking spaces be signed for street cleaning on an alternating 
Tuesday-Wednesday, 3am to 6am schedule. This schedule matches that on Oak Park Avenue in this area, 

Recommendations 
Revise the current 2 hour parking areas on 32M Street to Business Reserved Permit Parking, revise the street cleaning 
schedule and approve the updated ordinances facilitating these changes. 

Sincerely, 

~ 
Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26,h Street Berviyn,lIl!nois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70&) 788-2660 Fox: (70&) 711& .. 2567 www.bcrwyn-iLgov 



The City of Berwyn Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

To; Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Anthony Bertuca, City Attorney 
Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Updated Ordinance Sections 480.05, 480.07 and 484.03 

Attached are the updated Street Cleaning and Snow Emergency Parking Restrictions (480.05), Limited 
Parking (480.07) and Depot and Business Reserved Permit Parking (484.03) ordinances including the 
revisions to the business permit parking area as recommended by the traffic engineer. 

ReCQmmendation 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached ordinances and to authorize Public Works to purchase 
and install the signs necessary for these changes. 

Sincerely. 

~{~~ Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 480.05 OF THE CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN. COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

REGARDING STREET CLEANING AND SNOW EMERGENCY PARKING 

RESTRICTIONS 

ROBERT J. LOVERO. Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODOREJ.~LASHEK 

RAFAEL A VILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Ck!rk of the City of Berwyn, Illinois on 
February 22,2011 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 480.05 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS REGARDING STREET 

CLEANING AND SNOW EMERGENCY PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule municipality 

pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as 

such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its govemment and 

affairs (the uHome Rule Powers n
); and 

WHEREAS, the City regulates parking restrictions to enable maintenance procedures along 

City streets pursuant to Section 480.05 of its Codified Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, the City has found that the current regulations goveming parking to enable 

maintenance procedures along Grove Avenue and 320d Street are inadequate; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

AuthoritiesD

) has decided to modify Section 480.05 to allow for proper street maintenance 

activities along Grove Avenue and 32nd Street; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities determine that it is in the best interests of the 

residents of the City to amend the Codified Ordinances as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its Home Rule Powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated herein and 

made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2: Section 480.05 (E) (2) Street Cleaning and Snow Emergency Parking 

Restrictions is hereby amended to read as follows (with proposed additions underlined and 

proposed deleuons ~iGken): 

2 



480.05 STREET CLEANING AND SNOW EMERGENCY PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

(2) Between 3:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on the days and at the locations 
specified below: 

(a) On Thursdays on the west side of Highland Avenue, from Cermak Road 
north to the Vacin Fairway. 

(b) On Tuesdays on the east side of Highland Avenue, from Cermak Road 
north to the Vacin FailWay. 

tel On Tuesdays on the west side of Oak Park Avenue from 31 st Street to 
3300 Oak Park Avenue. 

(dl On Tuesdavs on the west side of Grove Ayenue from 32nd Street to 
34th Street 

(e) On Tuesda,ys on the north side of 32nd Street from Oak Park Avenue 
to the alley west. 

(f) On Wednesdays oflctbe east side of Oak Park Avenue from 31st Street 
to 3300 Oak Park Avenue. 

(al On Wednesdays on the east side of Grove Avenue from 32nd Street 
to 34th Street. 

(h) On Wednesdavs on the south side of 32nd Street from Oak Park 
Avenue to the alley west of Kenilworth Avenue. 

3 



Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovere) 

TOTAL 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this __ day of 

________ 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

4 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 



The City of Berwyn An thonv T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with P ride 
February 22, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Anthony Bertuca, City Attorney 
Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Updated Ordinance Sections 480.05, 480.07 and 484.03 

Attached are the updated Street Cleaning and Snow Emergency Parking Restrictions (480.05), Limited 
Parking (480.07) and Depot and Business Reserved Permit Parking (484.03) ordinances Including the 
revisions to the business permit parking area as recommended by the traffic engineer. 

Recomm endation 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached ordinances and to authorize Public Works to purchase 
and install the signs necessary for these changes. 

Sincerely, 

~{tt& Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 Wcst 26" Street Berwvn. lllinoil; 60402·0701 Telephon~ (70B) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.iLllov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY,ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 480.07 OF THE CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

REGARDING LIMITED PARKING 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PA VLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODOREJ.POLASHEK 

RAFAEL AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clark of the City of Berwyn, Illinois on 
February 22, 2011 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 480.07 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS REGARDING LIMITED 

PARKING 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City It) is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government and affairs (the "Home Rule Powers"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities") regulates short term parking in the City pursuant to Section 480.07 of its 

Codified Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities recognize that short term parking regulations 

require reevaluation from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities determine that it is in the best interests of the local 

businesses and residents of the City to amend the Codified Ordinances as set forth 

below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its Home Rule Powers, as follows: 

Section 1: Section 480.07 (c), Chapter 480, Limited Parking is hereby amended to 

read as follows (with proposed additions underlined and proposed deletions strioken): 

Section 2: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be 

held Invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of this 

Ordinance. 



480.07 LIMITED PARKING 

(c) Two (2) Hour Parking from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p,m .• Monday through Saturday, 
shall be designated In the following locations: 

(1 ) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11 ) 

(12) 

(1 ~) 

South side of 16th Street from Maple Avenue to Wisconsin Avenue, 

South side of 16th Street from Wenonah Avenue to Home Avenue. 

East sides of Maple Avenue and Wenonah Avenue from 16th Street 
south to the alley. 

North side of 16th Street from Wenonah Avenue to Home Avenue. 

South side of 16th Street from Clinton Avenue to Grove Avenue. 

North side of 16th Street from Oak Park Avenue to Euclid Avenue. 

South side of 16th Street from the alley east of East Avenue to 
Gunderson Avenue, 

South side of 16th Street from the alley east of Ridgeland Avenue to 
Cuyler Avenue. 

West side of Gunderson Avenue from 16th Street south to the alley. 

North side of 16th Street from Gunderson Avenue to Ridgeland 
Avenue. 

North side of 16th Street from the alley east of Ridgeland Avenue to 
Cuyler Avenue. 

East and West sides of Elmwood Avenue from 16th Street north to the 
alley. 

South side of a2nd Stroet froFR Gro\f{) 1\'.'eAUQ to Oak Park Avenue. 

f+4 11ID West side of Oak Park Avenue from the southern property line of 
3300 Oak Park Avenue to 31 st Street. East side from Stanley Avenue 
to 31 st Street. 



Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval 

and publication as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn. Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this day 

of 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 



The City of Berwyn Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert J . Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Anthony Bertuca, City Attorney 
Nicole Campbell, City TraHic Engineer 

Re: Updated Ordinance Sections 480.05, 480.07 and 484.03 

Attached are the updated Street Cleaning and Snow Emergency Parking Restrictions (480.05), Limited 
Parking (480.07) and Depot and Business Reserved Permit Parking (484.03) ordinances including the 
revisions to the business permit parking area as recommended by the traffic engineer. 

Recomm endation 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached ordinances and to authorize Public Works to purchase 
and install the signs necessary for these changes. 

Sincerely, 

~(£~ Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn. Illinois 604<)2-0701 Tdephont:! (708) 788.266{) Fax: (708) 788.2567 www.berwyn-iLgov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 484.03 OF THE CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

REGARDING DEPOT AND BUSINESS RESERVED PERMIT PARKING 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 

RAFAEL A VILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn, illinois on 
February 22, 2011 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 484.03 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS REGARDING DEPOT AND 

BUSINESS RESERVED PERMIT PARKING 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the uCity ") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois. and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government and affairs (the "Home Rule Powers"): and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities") operates parking spaces offering reserved vehicle parking for a permit fee; 

and 

WHEREAS, the depot and business reserved parking facilities are maintained by the 

City of Berwyn and such real property is subject to taxation as income-generating rental 

prope rty; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities recognizes the need for business reserved 

parking spaces, and that these designated areas be evaluated from time to time and 

adjusted as necessary. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County. '"inois, by and through its Home Rule Powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated herein 

and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2: Section 484.03 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Berwyn, Cook 

County, Illinois is hereby amended to read as follows (with proposed additions 

underlined and proposed deletions strislmn): 



484.03 DEPOT AND BUSINESS RESERVED PERMIT PARKING 

(A) Council shall establish certain parking spaces within the City as permit parking 
only spaces, such spaces to be designated by signs indicating "Depot Permit Parking 
Onlya or "Business Reserved Permit Parking". 

(B) Depot and busIness reserved permits to park in such spaces are available upon 
application to the City Collector on a form to be provided for this purpose, which 
application shall include the name, address and telephone number of the applicant. 

(C) Locations and Fees. 

(1) The fee for a Depot parking permit is one-hund red dollars ($100.00) per 
quarter or three hundred and seventy fIve dollars ($375.00) per year, and the number of 
permits shall be limited by availability. All parking spaces deSignated as "Depot Permit 
Parking" shall be used as public parking after 6:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m., Monday through 
Friday and all day Saturday, Sunday and holidays. 

(a) Depot Permit Parking is available along the north side of Windsor 
Avenue and the south side of Stanley Avenue, In which the designated spaces are 
clearly marked with signs. 

(b) Depot Permit Parking, also signed as Commuter Permit Parking, is 
available in the first 300 spaces of the Municipal Garage located at 3320 Grove Avenue. 

(2) The fee for a Business reserved parking permit is fifty dollars ($60.00) 
per quarter OF one hundred and seventy five dollars ($175.00) per year, and the number 
of permits shall be marked or otherwise limited by availability. Business Permit Parking 
shall be valid from 7am-7pm at these locations within the City: 

(a) West side of Kenilworth Avenue from Windsor Avenue to the first 
alley south (9 spaces). 

(b) East side of Clinton Avenue from Windsor Avenue to the first alley 
south (3 spaces). 

(c) East side of Home Avenue from Windsor Avenue to the first alley 
south (5 spaces). 

(d) South side of 32nd Street from Grove Avenue to the first alley 
west (3 spaces). 

(e) North side of 32nd Street from Oak Park Avenue to the first alley 
west (10 spaces). 

(f) South side of 32nd Street from Grove Avenue to Oak Park (3 
spaces). 



(g) Two (2) spaces on Stanley Avenue at Oak Park Avenue. 

(D) The Collector may prorate the yearly or quarterly fee on a weekly or monthly 
basis. Such permit shall not be issued or renewed until the required fee is paid, and the 
permit is not transferable. In the event of the loss of such permit, the fee for 
replacement shall be twenty five dollars ($25.00), and an application for such 
replacement shall be made to the Collector. 

(E) Depot and business reserved parking permits shall be in hangtag form and in 
colors designated by the City Collector, shall be numbered and shall state the date of 
issuance and date of expiration. Such permits shall be displayed from the rearview 
mirror of the vehicle where they may be visible from the exterior of the vehicles. 

(F) No vehicle which does not bear a Depot par\(jng permit or a Business reserved 
parking permit shail park in those spaces designated as "Depot Permit Parking Only- or 
"Business Reserved Permit Parking Only". All such spaces shall be designated as tow 
zones. 



Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval 

and publication as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this day 

of 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 



The Ci~ Berwyn 

./ ~\ 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
February 22, 2011 

To; Mayor Robert J . Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Parl<ing Revisions for 1400 Oak Park Avenue 

Nicole L. Campbell 
Traffic Engineer 

Prairie Oak School is located on Oak Park Avenue between 14th and 15th Streets. This school has a student population of 
nearly 900 students and accommodates various community events such as before and after school care, computer 
classes, school board meetings, ward meetings and athletic events. The west side of 1400 Oak Park Avenue is signed as 
superzone parking which hinders the parking availability for residents to take part in these events. This block contains 17 
houses, all of which have 1.5-3 car garages and/or carports. On-street parking counts for this block have been performed 
on multiple occasions. From 8am to 4pm, on-street parking counts have ranged between 9-11 cars and parked car counts 
between 4pm and 6pm have ranged between 4-5 cars . This block can house 23 parked cars. 

Revising the parking restriction on this block to resident parking only and no parking from 7am to gam and 2pm to 4pm 
Monday through Friday will allow a place for parents to pull-over when picking up/dropping off children for school, 
before/after school events or athletic events, therefore reducing the congestion on Oak Park Avenue. This will also allow 
residents a place to park when taking part in community events. 

Recommendations for the west side of the 1400 block of Oak Park Avenue: 
Remove the superzone parking restriction, install no parking from 7am to 9am and 2pm to 4pm Monday through Friday, 
install resident only parking and approve the updated ordinance facilitating these changes. 

SincQrely, 

~ 
Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26" Street BeN)'n. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fa'\(: (708) 788-2567 \~w.berwyn-il.go\' 



The City of Berwyn Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22, 2011 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Anthony Bertuca, City Attorney 
Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Updated Ordinance Sections 484.08A Resident Parking Only and 480.0B Prohibited Parking 

Attached are the updated Resident and Prohibited Parking ordinances which include revisions to parking 
on Oak Park Avenue as recommended by the traffic engineer. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached ordinances and to authorize Public Works to purchase 
and install the signs necessary for these changes. 

Sincerely, 

~{~~ Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26" Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 www.berwyn.iLgov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RESIDENT ONLY PARKING ON OAK 

PARK AVENUE AND AMENDING CHAPTER 484 OF THE TRAFFIC 

CODE OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONAN. CHAPMAN 

JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 

RAFAEL A VILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authorlty of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn, illinois on 
February 22, 2011 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RESIDENT ONLY PARKING ON OAK PARK 

AVENUE AND AMENDING CHAPTER 484 OF THE TRAFAC CODE OF THE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City ") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

govemment and affairs (the "Home Rule Powers"); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

AuthoritIes") has adopted a Traffic Code, which has been amended from time to time; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities recognize the need for resident parking; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities determine that it is in the best interests of the 

residents of the City to amend the Codified Ordinances as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County. Illinois, by and through its Home Rule Powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated herein 

and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2: Section 484.0BA of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Berwyn, Cook 

County, Illinois is hereby amended to read as follows (with proposed additions 

underlined and proposed deletions stFiolmn): 



484.08A RESIDENT PARKING ONLY 

2) RESIDENT PARKING ONLY. These locations are as follows: 

(a) 14th Street from Grove Avenue to Euclid Avenue. 

(b) Oak Park Avenue fef from 13th Street to +4~ 15th Street. 



Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval 

and publication as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County. Illinois this 

___ day of 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this day 

of 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 



The City of Berwyn Anthony T. Bertuea 
City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

February 22,2011 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & City Council Members 

From: Anthony Bertuca, City Attorney 
Nicole Campbell, City Traffic Engineer 

Re: Updated Ordinance Sections 484.0BA Resident Parking Only and 480.08 Prohibited Parking 

Attached are the updated Resident and Prohibited Parning ordinances which include revisions to parking 
on Oak Park Avenue as recommended by the traffic engineer. 

Recomm endatiQn 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached ordinances and to authorize Public Warns to purchase 
and install the signs necessary for these changes. 

Sincerely, 

~(£~ Nicole Campben, Traffic Engineer 

6700 West 26'" Stree[ Berwyn,lllinoi! 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-256i www.bcrwyn.ilgov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 480 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE 

OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN 

REGARDING PROHIBITED PARKING 

ROBERT J. LOVERO, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

JEFFREY G. BOYAJIAN 

MARGARET PAUL 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

CESAR A. SANTOY 

THEODORE J. POLASHEK 

RAF AEL AVILA 

NORA LAURETO 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn, Illinois on 
February 22,2011 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 480 OF THE TRAFFIC CODE OF THE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN REGARDING PROHIBITED 

PARKING 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule municipality 

pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as 

such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its govemment and 

affairs (the "Home Rule Powers n
); and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities") has adopted a Traffic Code, which has been amended from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities recognize that parking regulations should be 

reviewed from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities determine that it is in the best interests of the 

residents of the City to amend the Codified Ordinances as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its Home Rule Powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are incorporated herein and 

made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2: Section 480.08 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Berwyn, Cook 

County, Illinois is hereby amended by adding Section 480.08 (b) to read as follows: 

2 



480.08 PROHIBITED PARKING 

!Ql Parking Prohibited 7am to gam and 2pm to 4pm Monday through Friday: 

ill West side of Oak Park Avenue from 14th Street to 15th Street. 

3 



Section 3. All ordinances. resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of ________ 2011, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Poiashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

Approved by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn. Cook County, Illinois on this __ day of 

_______ 2011. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 

4 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 



CITY CLERK 

5 



/ \0 BERWYN 
PEllJleE DEPARTMENT 

We Serve and Proleel 6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
Fax (708) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

February 18,2011 

Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 

Re: Emergency Notification System 

As many of you are already aware the city' s current Emergency Notification System, 
"Reverse 9-1-1" is no longer functional. The data-base is corrupted, the technology is 
outdated and the costs associated for upgrading the current system far outweigh the 
benefits of changing technology with a new provider. The current system operates 
through on-site hardware with notifications being sent through dedicated phones lines 
which are maintained through AT&T. New systems are supported by the latest 
technology using Hosted Web Based products that do not require on-site hardware or 
dedicated phones lines, thus providing an additional savings to the city. 

We contacted five (5) vendors for information and proposals with responses from three 
(3) vendors being received. The responses were followed up with demonstrations of their 
respective systems. The vendor that stood out far and above all others was Global 
Connect Emergency Notification System. 

While all of the vendors offered "unlimited" notification packages. Global Connect was 
the only "all inclusive" vendor which did not have any restrictions placed on the number 
of calls or duration before additional minutes needed to be purchased. In addition, Global 
Connect offered in their package all of the "bells and whistles" that were optional costs in 
the other proposals, the biggest being a mapping tool to allow for specific target areas for 
calling. A unique feature only offered by Global Connect is the ability to translate text 
and voice messages from English to Spanish which would be very beneficial to the City 
of Berwyn. 

As we experienced during the Blizzard earlier this month. the need for a functioning 
notification system would have greatly enhanced communication with the citizens both 
before and after the storm. We have already started this process by obtaining a database 
from AT&T which would be necessary for creating a base starting point regardless of the 
system selected. 



We Serve and Protect 

Page #2 
February 18, 2011 
Emergency Notification System 

We also have available funding from the FFY09 Cook County Justice Assistance 
Stimulus Grant that would cover the proposed expenses from Global Connect. Therefore, 
we are requesting that the sealed bid process be waived, and authorization to enter into an 
agreement with Global Connect for their Emergency Notification System, be approved. 

Attached is a summary of the companies contacted along with related pricing along with 
the entire proposal from Global Connect including Terms and Conditions. The Terms and 
Conditions are reflective of a review already completed by the Legal Department 
including their requested changes. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~dP~ 
Thomas 1. O'Halloran 
Division Commander 
Administrative Services 



The following companies were contacted for further information on their Emergency Notification Systetm, otherwise referred to as UReverse 9-1- t ": 

Reverse 911 
W.A.R.N. 
EverBridge 
Global COllnect 
Code Red 
Twenty First Century 

The following are summaries on the infonnation andlor proposals lhat were received back from the contacted companies: 

Reverse 9-1-1 
The company did not respond to our request for information although it should be noted that this company was the provider of the system that is 
currently in place, albeit non-supported. 

W.A.R.N. 
"Broadcast" is a fully hosted, highly secure distributed application communication system that sends timely notifications to voice devices. including 
telephones and cellular phones. The system is designed specifically for public notification and is able to process thousands of phone calls in minutes. 

Subscription Fee" 
SubscriptJon Period 
Set Up Fee 
Call Budget 
Training (Online) 
Estimated Total F1~ Year 

OptloDS: 
WAR.N. Geo-Powered 
WAR.N. Geo-Tool bar 
API 
Signup Pro 
Training (Onsite) 
Database Set-up 
Database Management (Monthly) 
Custom Application Coding 

"Subscription includes: 
• Set-Up 
• Unlimited Initiators 

$ 12.5OO1annually Note I 
12 Months 
$ 300 
$ 5,660 Note 2 
$ 400 
$18.,860 

$ 20,000 
$ 6,000 
$ 3,000 
$ 3,000 
$ 1,250 (Plus net travel) 
$ 175 1 hr. (Est 5 hour) 
$ 2751 mth. 
$ 'Z]51 hr. 

• 500 free 3D-second phone calls 
• unlimited recipient accounts 
• unlimited notification creation 
• All standard upgrades to System 
• 24fl support 
• Free annual online training refresher course 
• Use of Voice XML text-to-speech gateway 
• Use of live Voice Recording option 

Note 1: Subscription Pricing assumes Client executes a WARN Service Agreement for minimum of 36 months. 
Note 2: Price Per Call: $0.125 per 30-second completed call. Voice messages are measured in 3O-second interVals and rounded up to the next 30-
second level. The minimum billable duration per message is 30 seconds. Billing is based on the average message per Broadcast. 

Estimated Totals Second and Third Years 
Subscription pricing remains the same. The annual price for WARN Gee-Powered is $12,000, starting with the second year (First Year·S20,000). 
The annual price for the Signup Page is $1,800, also starting with the second year (First Year-$ 3 ,000) 

Everbridge 
Although this company did not respond to the request for information, a Proposal from late 2009 was located and included for comparison. 

Everbridge "Aware" enables government agencies, corporations. he.althcare systems, and educatio!1al institutions to communicate more quickly in 
crises and achieve considerable bottom-line savings through rapid and efficient communication in routine, urgent, and emergency situations. 

Year One Annual Service Fee - Usage Based Special Configuration Package $11,000.00 
System Set-Up (One-Time) $ 2.200.00 
OngOing System Pricing $11,000.00 

Year One Annual Service Fee - Aware Usage Based 516,500.00 



System Set-Up (One-Time) 
Ongoing System Pricing 

Year One Annual Service Fee - Aware Unlimited 
System Set-Up (One-Time) 
Ongoing System Pricing 

Voice Minutes Block Pricing 

Global Connect 

$ 2,200.00 
$16,500.00 

$22,000.00 
$ 2,200.00 
$22,000.00 

10,000 
25,000 
50,000 
100,000 
500,000 

$0.28 per minute 
$0.24 per minute 
$020 per minute 
$0.17 per minute 
$0.13 per minute 

When disaster is threatening your jurisdiction, Global Connect's Emergency Notification System will allow for clear and timely pre-recorded 
messages to be delivered to your database. With Olobal Connect's web-based system, you have the ability to send calls, emails & text messages from 
any computer with Internet access, and if you are en route to an impending emergency, you have the abillty to deploy caUs directly from your mobile 
device. Global Connect's Emergency Notification System offers a number of Icey features that enhance your ability to communicate in a crisis, 
including: 
• Ability to make thousands of calls per minute 
• Customized mapping ability, including radius mapping 
• Email capability 
• Text messaging 
• Resident self registration 
• Direct connect to dispatch 
• Real time reporting 
• Employee interface with responder count 
• English to Spanish translation 
• Unlimited sub accountsllicenses 
• Free database manipulation 
• Free training and upgrades 
• Free 24{l live customer support 

UnUmlled Municipality NotljieQ/Joru 
Year 1 
Approximate' of HouseholdslBusinesses 
Price per HouseholdlBusioess 
Approximate # of employees 
Price per Employee 
Training 
Implementation 
OBta Manipulation 
Sub-accounts 
System UpgradesIMaintenance 
Customer Support 
Extended 24 Hour Support 
Weather Alerts 
Database 
2 months FREE 
Actual Price per HouseholdlBusinesslEmployee 
Year 1 Price 

Year 2 and Year 3: Rau GlUUalllee 

19,500 
$0.75 
100 
$I.()() 
Included 
Included 
Included 
Included 
Included 
Included 
Included 
Included 
CHeat ProvJdes 
2 ($2.454.17 Savings) 
$0.63 
$12.270.83 

Approximate 1# of HouseholdsIBusinesslEmployees 19,600 
Price per Household and Business $0.75 
Price per Employee $1.00 
Year 2 Price $14,725.00 
Year 3 Price $14,725,00 
The rates noted above are guanmteed for Berwyn,IL for 60 days from the date of proposal. These rates are fOf UNLIMITED Munlclpal 
Notification messages. Notifications include voice calls and emails. 



Code Red 
'The web-based CodeRED® service. from Emergency Communications Network Inc. (ECN), was designed specifically to enable local government 
officials to record, send and track personalized voice, email, lext and social media messages to thousands of citizens in minutes. ECN's dedicated, 
triple redundant nelwork is capable of sending critical communications at maximum throughput (as determined by local telephone infrastructure). 
The proprietary mapping technology and patented delivery methods employed by ECN acid 10 the value of this affordable, high-speed notification 
system lhat has been in operation since 1998 and is currently used every day by clients from coast to coast 

A three (3) year Ucense Includes 24n136S uninterrupted CodeRED system access and the following 
• CodeREO system set-up and training 
• System time. designed to be more than sufficient for oormal usage 
·62.500 minutes, replenished annually 
• Unlimited smtp text, email and social media messaging 
• Initial residential and business calling database supplied by ECN 
• Integration and geo-coding of customer supplied data (911 data, utility data. etc.) 
• ECN standard mapping and geo-coding 
• 24rl technical support 
• Complimentary system time for testing and training 
• Design and hosting of custom web page for community enrollment 
$17,500 = Annual Cost (based on 2008 U.s. Census Population of 49,664) 
A rurther d1soount may be obtaiDed by committing to an eItended contract term. 
Alternative Annual Pricing Plans 
$26.800 : UnHmJted Emergency Plus (all items listed above plus unHmited emergency caUln:g) 
$36,100 = Umitless (all twos Usted above plus unlimited system time for emergency and other uses) 

Option: 
"Weather Warning" is an innovative, geographically targeted weather warning product was built to alert citizens in the path of severe weather. 
Developed on the same calling network. infrastructure as the CodeRED solution for community notification and lapping into the National Weather 
Service's Storm Based Warnings. CodeRED Weather Warning automatically sends telephone messages to affected citizens momentli after a severe 
thunderstorm, flash flood or tornado warning has been iSSUed. 

A three (3) year add-on contract tor CodeRED customers includes 
• CodeRED Weather Warning system set-up 
• Free one time use of the CodeREO system 
• A community-wide call will be made to introduce the weather warning product and direct citizens 10 sign up to receive alertS 
• Unlimited severe weather warnings: 24 hours a day, 365 days a year 
• Detailed call statistics 
• Design and hosting of custom web page for community enrollment 
$8,750 = Annual Cost (based on 2008 U.s. Ceosos PopaJatfon of 49,664) 

Twenty First Century 
The company did not respond to our request for information. 



G-L..D-EI-A-L.. CDnn-e:CT 

Emergency Notification System Pricing 

Berwyn, IL: Unlimited Municipality Notifications 

Year 1 

Proposal Request for: 

Date: 

Emergency Notification System 

February 11,2011 

# of Households/Businesses 

Price per Household/Business 

Approximate # of employees 

Price per Employee 

Training 

Impleme ntation 

Data Manipulation 

Sub-accounts 

System Upgrades/Maintenance/fravel Expenses 

(Local Rep. to travel to Berwyn offices lfnecessary) 
Customer Support 

Extended 24 Hour Support 

Weather Alerts 

Database 

2 months FREE 

Actual Price per Household/Business/Employee 

Year 1 Price 

19,500 

100 

Year 2 and Year 3: Rate Guarantee 

# of Households/Business/Employees 

Price per Household and Business 

Price per Employee 

Year 2 PrIce 
Yearl Price 

19,600 

$0.75 
$1.00 

$0.75 

$1.00 
Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Client Provides 
2 Months 

$2,454.17 Savings 

$0.63 

$U,270.83 

$14,725.00 
$14,125.00 

The rates noted above are JUarantaed for Berwyn,ll f04" 60 days from the date of proposal. These rates are fOI' UNUMITED Munldpal NotJflcation 

messages. Notifications Include yoke calls and emans. 

Colleen Bresnahan 

Regional Sales Dir 
847-223-5225 ext. 13 

847-223-5281 Fax 

February 11, 2011 
Date 



LO-E3-RL COnn-ECT 

GLOBAL CONNECT USER AGREEMENT 

Global Connect 
5218 Atlantic Avenue 
Suite 202 
Mays Landing, New Jersey 08330-2003 

Phone: 609-625-7951 
Toll Free: 888-421-4151 

Fax: 609-625-4399 

Contract #: 

COMPANY and CONTACT INFORMATION 

City of Berwyn 

Company Name 

6401 W.31st Berwyn 

Street Address Oty 

708-795-2114 
----------------------

Contact Phone Number Contact Fax Number 

USER NAME and PASSWORD INFORMATION 

8667975100 Password: ____________________ __ 
User Name: 

Phone Number 
Kelly Quinn 

Must Be 10 Digits - No Spaces 

Fax Number 
888-421-4151 x260 

Global Connect Contact Person (Trainer) Phone Number 

BllLING INFORMATION 

Street Address City 

Contact Person Accounts Payable Phone Number 

Curtis Nekovar 

Contact Person 

IL 60402 

State Zip 

cnekovar@ci.berwyn.il.us 

Contact's Email Address 

Email Address 

609-432-1938 
Cell Phone Number 

.181 Billing Address Same As Above 

State Zip 

Fax Number 

[8] Bill By Invoice 0 Credit Card ______________________ _ 
Credit Card Number Expiration Date 

Type: 0 VISA 0 MC 0 AE 0 OTIIER ______ _ 
Name On Credit Card - Please Print 



TERMS AND CONDmONS 

1. The chargeable anmlaJ rate Is 5.75 cents per location (businesses and households) and 51.00 for 
each employee/volunteer. This provides the Oty of Berwyn. n. with Imlinrited munidpal calls to 
their database of households / businesses and unljmited calls and emails to their employees / 
volunteers using Global Connect"s Emergency Notification System. Total charges will be prorated 
based on the 12 month period ending December 31 It. In the event of renewal, charges will be based 
on the number of locations, employee/volunteer and self-registered cell phone numbers or emails 
as of the renewal date. The attached user agreement will automatically be renewed yearly, on 
January I·' unless terminated by either party as contained herem.. 

2. Global Connect rese.tVes the right to dissolve this agreement and eliminate associated passwords 
including customer accounts in the event of a breach of contract, which breach remains uncured for 
thirty (30) days fonowing written notice to the City of Berwyn, IL. Global Connect will protect the 
City of Berwyn, annual rate for a period of 3 years. In the event of renewal after this timeframe, 
Global Connect will provide the City of Berwyn, IT. wrttten notice of any increases or decreases to 
the annual rate at least (60) days prior to the renewal date, which is Dec. 31"" 2014. 

3. Information provided by the City of Berwyn, IT.. incruding but not limited to phone lists and data 
files will remain the exclusive property of the City of Berwyn, IT... Global Connect agrees not to rent, 
sell. loan or provide this information to any person or company without written permission by the 
City of Berwyn. n.. 

4. In no event shall Global Connect be liable for any incidental, special, consequential or punitive 
damages including loss of use, profits, revenue or goodwill. The total liability of Global Connect 
shall be Umited to the amount of payment for product or services received from the City of Berwyn., 
IT.. during the calendar month such liability arose. Global Connect shall not be liable for any failure 
of performance due to causes or circumstances beyond Global Connect's control. Nor shall Global 
Connect be liable for any act or Omission of any other person or company furnishing any portion of 
a product or service. All calls will be delivered. in the fastest amount of time. based on the local 
exchange carner's available bandwidth. 

S. The City of Berwyn, IT. will indemnify, save harmless and defend Global Connect from and against 
any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney's fees, damages, or injury including death and / or 
property loss, expense cla:Ims or demands arising out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in 
any manner by a defect in any equipment, materials or services supplied under this contract or by 
the performance of any work under this contract, including all suits or actions of every kind or 
description brought against Global Connect, either individually or jointly with for or on account of 
any damage or injury to any person or persons or property, caused or occasioned. or alleged to have 
been caused. by, or on account of, the performance of any work pursuant to or 1n connection with 
this contract, or through any negligence or alleged negligence in safeguarding the work area, or 
through any act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault 
of, its elected and appo1nted offidals, its employees, agents, volunteers and others working of 
behalf of the City of Berwyn, IT. or others under the Global Connect contract. 1b1s indemnification 
and hold harmless agreement shall apply in all instances whether Global Connect as well as it's 
agents and employees is made a direct party to the initial action or claim or subsequently is made a 
party to the action by third-party in-pleading or is made a party to a collateral action arising. in 
whole or in part, from any of the issues emanating from the original cause of action or claim. 

6. Global Connect shall indemnify, save harmless and defend the City of Berwyn. n., it's elected. and 
appointed offidals, its employees, agents, volunteers and others working of behalf of the City of 
Berwyn, IT.. from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney's fees, damages, or injury 
including death and! or property loss, expense claims or demands arising out of or caused or 
alleged to have been caused in any manner by a defect in any equipment, materials or services 
supplied under this contract or by the performance of any work under this contract, incruding all 
suits or actions of every kind or deScription brought against the City of Berwyn, IT.. either 
individually or jointly with for or on account of any damage or injury to any person or persons or 



property, caused or occasioned or alleged to have been caused by. or on account of, the 
performance of any work pursuant to or in connection with this contract, or through any negligence 
or alleged negligence in safeguarding the work area, or through any act. omiSsion or fault or alleged 
act. omission or fault or alleged act. omission or fault of Global Connect. its employees. 
subcontractors or agents or others under the Global Connect contract. This indemnification and 
hold harmless agreement shall apply in all instances whether the City of Berwyn, n.. as well as its 
agents and employees is made a direct party to the initial action or claim or subsequently is made a 
party to the action by third-party in-pleading or is made a party to a collateral action arising. in 
whole or in part. from any of the issues emanating from the original cause of action or claim. 

7. This agreement 15 subject to and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of 
New Jersey and any litigation arising out of this agreement shall be conducted in the Circuit Court 
of Cook County illinois. 

8. This agreement supersedes all prior agreements, representations and understandings of the 
parties. Global Connect agrees that the City of Berwyn, n. without cause and or prior notice may 
terminate this agreement at anytime. 

Government regulation prohibits sending messages before 8 AM or after 9 PM. Federal and State 
Regulatory Agencies prohibit the use of this product for calling persons or contacting persons with whom 
you do not have an ongoing or prior business relationship. If your message contains a promotion or 
information about your product or service. you cannot hang up on live answers under federal law. This 
does not apply to business-to-buslness calls, political calls. emergency calls, and calls made for non
profit organizations. 

I agree to the terms and conditions indudiDg governmental rules and regulations contained herein. 

On This Date: / / 
Month Day Year 

By: 
Please Print 

Signature: _______________ _ 

Accepted By: Global Connect, LLC 

On 1bis Date: I / 
Month Day Year 

By __________ ~Be~lli~F~wrin~~o~ ______________ __ 
Please Print 

Signahrre: __________________________________ _ 

By ____________ ~C~o~n~ee=n~B~r~~~n~ah~a~DL_ __________ __ 
Please Print 

Signanrre: ________________________________ __ 

Revised 1112107 



G-LO-E3RL conn-e:CT 
.. . 

me 'g ncy o I Icatlon ystem 

When crisis strikes, do your community leaders have the 
tools they need to respond? From terrorist threats to 
natural disasters, if an emergency affects your community, 
communication is crucial, and time is of the essence. 
When every second counts, an Emergency Notification System wlJl allow your community leaders to communicate 
with residents and first responders virtually instantaneously. Residents wlJI benefit from Increased safety levels and 
peace of mind, while community leaders see improved response planning, increased efficiency and profICiency. 

There are many notification systems 00 the market that require expensive hardware, software, and constant 
upgrades, but there are alternatives, such as Global Connect's 1.00% web-based Emergency NotJflcatlon System. 
Since Global Connect is a web-based provider. there is no need to purchase hardware or software. There are no 
set-up fees, and you pay nothing for Global Connect's upgrades throughout the year. To ensure that your community 
makes the most of your Emergency Notification System, Global Connect offers free ongoing train ing to a II personne I 
using the system, as well as exceptional 24-hour customer care. 

When disaster is threatening your jurisdiction, Global Connect's Emergency Nottflcatlon System will allow for clear 
and timely pre-recorded messages to be delivered to your database. With Global Connect's web-based system. 
you have the ability to send calls, emails and text messages from any computer with Internet access. and if you 
are en route to an impending emergency, you have the ability to deploy calls directly from your mobile device. 
Global Connect's Emergency Notification System offers a number of key features that enhance your ability to 
communicate during a crisis, including: 

AbIDty to make thousands of caDs per minute 

Customized mapping ability, InclucBng radius map~ 

EmaIl capability 

Text messagJng 

Resident self.reilstratlon 

Direct comect to dispatch 

Real time reportlnc 

Employee Interface wtth responder count 

English to Spanish translation 

Unlimited sub accounts/licenses 

Free database manipulation 

Free training and uP&r8des 

Free 24/7 live customer support 

Now. more than ever, it is crucial for leaders to have an Emergency Notlflcatlon System in place. Please allow 
Global Connect to provide you with a communication tool that allows you to reach your community residents quickly, 
efficiently and effectively. Global Connect looks forward to helpln& you protect and serve. 

Global Connect Emergency Notification System 





• FREE TRIAL PERIOD (with no obll&atlan) -
Global Connect removes the ~Isk of choosing 
an Emergency Notification System (ENS) arid 
saves municipalities up to 75% in the first year 
and considerable savings llilto the future. 

• UNLIMITED SYSTEM USAGE / FLAT ANNUAL 
FEES ~ No matter how many broadcasts sem, 
numbers dialed, duration of calls, speed of 
dellve~y, or emails sent, you will use Globat 
Connect's system for a flat annual fee. 

• MlJLTlm.E MEmODS &OR PERFORMING 
CRmC~ EMERGENCY NGTlFlCA1IIONS • 
Rapidly send eme~gency calls er general 
notifications in multiple message formats. 
.. Voice - Include up to 6 phone numbers per 

employee. Call residents on both landllnes 
and cell phones. 

.. Programmable to deliver messages to live 
answers and answe~ing machines. 

.. E-mail - Include up to 3 attachments per 
message. 

.. Text - Reaches residents on the go wlio 
wanUo stay informed. 

• DIREeT CONNECT TO DISPATCH - Receive 
Immediate feedback from your residents and 
staff by utilizing your Interactive Keypad which 
allows residents to press 9 on !heir phone' t~' 
link dlrectJy to your oommand center. 

"' • MAPPING - StJ:ategically creates lists of zones 
witlrlin your cammunlty utilizing state-o~the-art 
mapping feature. 

• RESPONDER· COUNT - Eliminate thousands of 
man-hours by automating overtime calls for 
open Shifts. Programmable to stop calU"'¥-Bfter 
the optimum number of staff members .ccept 
the open shifts. 

• RAOIUS MAPPING - Pr(!)vides the ability to 
sefid ~lIs to zones witJiJin a certain dIstance 
from a cei;tter point. 

• INSTANt. WEATHER ~ - Automatically 
send ~e weather SAMur;JCements to those 
residents tJ:1at have opted In. 

• MUUl-UNawu. MESSAGING - Resliients can 
hear messages in their ptilmary I~nguage With 
the pr.ess of a key. 

• POWNG-YSURVEv.ING - Reeeive ImmedIate 
survey ~ponses r,om commpnlty. BAd staff 
via real-time reports. 

• SEND IIJ' AGAIN - A~omatlC811y redial unco~ 
nected ~Is up to 1e·tlmes. 

• REAl. TIME REPORTS - Itlstantly know which 
nuliTlbers are answered, not answered, busy, 
picked !4P by ariswerir:1g mact:ilrnes, and which 
numbers are i~aljd. 

• SELF REGI$TRATION - Empower your residents 
to self-register their cell phones by 
completing the web-based form on your 
municipal website. 

• ESRI MAP IMPORT - Leverage your existing 
ESRI shape files by importing them into your 
site's Global Connect map. 

• AUDIT TAB - Provides the municipalItY with the 
ability to oversee individual sub-account use 
and message activity. 

• REMOTE DEPLOYMENT - You can deploy 
calls from any computer with Internet access 

or any phone. 



G-L..Oi3RL 

Atlantic County OEM 

Vincent Jones 

n e 

Emergency Management Coordinator 
Jones_vincent@aclink.org 
(609)407 -6940 

Tabernacle TWp. OEM 

William Lowe 
Emergency Management Coordinator 
wlowe@townshipoftabemacle-nj.gov 
(609)268-1220 ext.17 

Savannah, GA 

Tracy Walden 
Crime Free Programs Coordinator 
Tracy_ Walden@SavannahGa.Gov 
(912) 651-6653 

Wanaque PoBce Department 

captain Thomas Norton 
Detective Captain! OEM Coordinator 
tnorton@wanaqueborough.com 
(973)835-5600 

Consolidated Government of Columbus, GA 

Liz Turner 
Assistant to the City Manager 
Lturner@columbusga.org 
(706)653·4029 

Ocean city, NJ 

Detective Scott Morgan 
Emergency Management 
deltasm@comcast.net 
(609)525-9125 

COnn-ECT 
. 
Icatlon y 

Puyallup, WA 

Merle Frank 
Fire Chief 
merle@c1.puyallup.wa.us 
(253)841-5400 

PIscataway Township PoUce 

Phil Zmuda 
Sergeant 
pzmuda@piscatawaynj.org 
(732)562-2309 

Manchester Township 

Art Abline 
Municipal OEM Coordinator 
aabline@manchestertwp.com 
(732)657 -2009 

Township of East Brunswick, NJ 

John Kosik 
Municipal OEM Coordinator 
jkosi k@eastbrunswick.org 
(732)390-6947 

Ringwood Borough Police Dept 

Chief Bemard Lombardo 
Chief of Police 
lombardo@RingwoodPolice.com 
(973)962-4517 

carlisle Police Department, PA 

Lt. Mike Dzezinski 
Carlisle Police Dept 
mdzezi nSki@carlislepa.org 
717-243-5252 



GLD-B-A-L. COnn-ECT 
E erg nc otifica ion t m 

In today's technological environment, Global Connect takes the issue of data security and integrity extremely 
seriously. Global Connect makes every effort at all times to ensure that all client data transmitted and stored on 
any piece of the Global Connect network Is safe and secure. This document is intended to give each of our clients a 
better understanding of our security and network framework; however, this document is not intended to be all 
inclusive, but more of an overview of our security and network platform. Global Connect strives every day to meet 
and exceed the security requirements of each our clients. If there are areas that require further claritication or that 
you would like to discuss In greater detail. please contact our Director of Information and Security. Adrian Patten. 

Global Connect recommends to all of its customers that they only upload to us data essential for our voice 
broadcasting application. Typically this would be enough data to place a phOne call and identify a return cali to a call 
center. Normally a phone number, a name and an account number (If applicable) are the only data required. Hav
ing stated this. we also realize that even this limrted data is sensitive. All data uploaded to Global Connect is both 
secure on uplOad and secure when stored with us. 

Global Connect employs 80 full-time employees, and each of these employees sign a non-disclosure and 
confidentiality agreement as part of the hiring process. Each of our employees has been thoroughly trained and 
undergoes regular privacy and security training. 

Upon termination of any employee, user accounts are disabled, laptops and other equipment returned, and keys/ 
pass cards collected for all physical and electronic systems to which the terminated employee has access. From 
2001, Global Connect turnover Is less than 2%. 

Global Connect regularly updates its operating and procedures manual to reflect the current operating environment 
Global Connect employs an operational and technical writer to keep abreast of these changes and ensures that the 
manual Is consistently updated. 

During the first quarter of 2007. Global Connect completed an external Independent Systrust Audit with no significant 
issues notes and was granted the Systrust Seal as we[[ as a clean audit opinion letter. SysTrust is an assurance 
service that was jointly developed by the American Institute of Certified Publlc Accountants (AlCPA) and the 
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA). It is designed to increase the comfort of management, 
customers, and business partners with systems that support a business or particular activity. In a SysTrust 
engagement. the practitioner evaluates and tests whether or not a specific system is reliable when measured 
against four essential principles: availability, security, integrity, and maintainability. 

Global Connect utilizes a co-hosted data center from Level 3 with fu[[ security measures Including dual card key and 
palm scan for entry. Global Connect, together with level 3, insures that only authorized entry to the data center is 
permitted. This facility has automatic backup generators, as well heat and smoke detection alarms. automatic tire 
suppression system, and security cameras, as well as full-time 24/7 security. 

In January 2008. Global Connect opened a third data center in Toronto, Canada. This data center runs separate 
from its other data centers and will isolate and store all client data in Canada for clients who chose to use this 
facility. 

Global Connect's primary data site is located in a secure Level 3 facility in Philadelphia, PA with a full back-up site 
located in New York City. Global Connect uses multiple VOIPfTelecom providers to send its voice traffic with over 
20,000 lines of capacity. 

Global Connect Emergency Notification System 



Global Connect's website is tested and certified dally by ScanAlert to pass the FBJjSANS Intemet Security Test. The 
"live" HACKER SAFE mark appears on our website only when our security level meets the highest security scanning 
standards Of the U.S. government, Vlsa, MasterCard, American Express, Discover and JCB. 

All critlcal data Is backed up nightly to an off-site locatlon with back-up procedures and testing being done regularly. 
Global Connect never allows duplication of client data other than authorized back-up copies. 

The specifics of our firewalls are as follows: 
• Snort from Sourcefire/CheckPoint on our edge flrewalls. 
• Blink from eEye Digital Security for a host firewall on Windows systems. 
• Packet filtering Is performed on all Linux systems. 
• Edge firewall is OpenBSD. 
• Firewalls are monitored 24x7 by experienced security staff using MRTG statistical graphs, NAGIOS and an 

emall-based alerting system. 

Attached is an architectural diagram Showing our network configuration, illustrating that ail data stored Is not directly 
accessible from the Internet and is protected by Industry standard firewalls. 

All data uploaded to Global Connect is done via a secure 128 bit SSL connection, with id and password verification. 
Once uploaded, access to all data is restricted by Id and password verification. 

All information Is password protected. there is no Sharing of passwords among users, and after five failed login 
attempts, the user'S identifier Is disabled. Passwords have a maximum lifetime of less than 90 days. Per 
documented procedures. systems administrator reviews log files for any unusual events. To date. there have been 
no serious events that have occurred that require significant Investigation. 

Anti-virus software is installed on all windows machines with regular anti·virus updates. 

Through built-in security authorization levels, all users are limited to system processes and transactions that they 
are authorized to perform. 

All hard copy sensitive data Is shredded using a cross shredder. 

Additionally. Global Connect: 

• Does not sell, trade, lease or loan any data about its customers to any third party. 
• Is not a source of. nor does It deliver, any unsolicited e-mail, unsolicited voice mall or unsolicited faxes. 
a Does not disclose any client information except as mandated by law enforcement authorities and government 

agencies. 

Please provide any specific questions or security/due diligence forms for further inquiry into our security and control 
procedures. Again. please feel free to call our Director of Information and Security, Adrian Patten, to discuss any 
questIons or concerns. 

Global Connect Emergency Notification System 



Illinois References for Global Connect 

Ottawa, IL 
Diana Stiles 
commadmin@cityofottawa.org 
(815)433-0705 ext. 203 

Harwood Heights. IL 
LT. Larry Maraviglia 
maraviglial @harwoodheights.org 
708-867-4353 ext. 332 

Hawthorn Woods. IL (Very New) 
Chief Jennifer Paulus 
jpaulus@hwpd.com 
847 -438-9050 

Mendota. IT.. 
Brian Fisher 
bfisher@mendotafire.com 
815-539-3434 

Carlinville. IT.. 
Aaron Shipley 
ashipley@Karrnak.com 
217-854-4721 



Carlinvflle. Illinois 

Aaron ShIpley 217-854-4721 

02/07/2011 

1.) How many years have you been with Global Connect? 

Approximately 9 months 

2.) Did you come to Global Connect from another Emergency Notification vendor? 

No 

3.} If so, what vendor & why? 

N/A 

4.) Which package are you using? 

Unlimited Emergency 

5.} Overall experience with contract & Initial set-up 

Very Pleased - Up & running shortly after acceptance 

6.) Overall experience with training 

Very Pleased - Utilized notes from training to send out /lrst notification 

7.) Overall experience with support 

Very Pleased - Hod problems sending out notification, later In the evening. Called 24x7 

number, wolked through problem, found to be an Issue with boxes not being checked on 
notification set-up. 

8.) Buy in percentage from citizens 

Very poor, but not 0 lot of publldty/selling on their side yet 

g.) Amount of notifications made 

Quite 0 few, espedally in December when they hod numerous main breoks resulting In boll 

orders. In fact, after sending severol notifications he received a coil from GlobDl Connect who 

sow the increased octlvlty. Explolned what was going on, they offered to assist in anyway 

possible. 



lO.)Jssues with notIfications 

None 

11.)The Good 

Real good to deal with 

Had all of the features they wanted & need 

Unlimited mil lists - Other vendors had limits on the amount of lists you could create 

Pricing - Extremely affordable when compared to other vendors they IntetVlewed. No minutes 

to keep track of. (Note: Told Global Connect makes the majority 0/ their profit 01/ 0/ the Cluino 

Industry that utilizes calling systems for their high rollers to get out promotions - Due to high 

profitability, pass along affordable software for munldpalities to use for noti/lcotions) 

12.)The Bad 

Cannot cu"ently edit the master list obtained from the Telephone Company. Need to walk this 

list before getting It to Global Connect or you aJn walk the list afterwards & gille them the 

cleaned-up version which they will use to update the database. They advised they have system 

changes coming soon that will allow for the edit of the master list. 

13.)Given the opportunity. would you stay with Global Connect or look elsewhere? 

Stay with Global Connect very happy with the product, setVlce, etc. thus far 



Harwood Heights, illinoIs 

Ueutenant Larry MaravlgUa: 708-867-4353 Ext: 332 

02/07/2011 

1.) How many years have you been with Global Connect? 

Uttle Oller 1 yeor 

2.) Did you come to Global Connect from another Emergency Notification vendor? 

Yes 

3.) If so, what vendor & why? 

Code Red - Cost /octors, limitations on call packages. They were paying oller $5,000 for a 

package that had minutes - Always concerned about running out of minutes, needing to 

purchase mOTe, etc. WIth Global Connect unlimited calls, neller worried about notifications, 

using It more than Code Red 

4.) Which package are you usIng? 

Unlimited 

S.) Overall experience with contract & Initial set-up 

No Issues, coming off of a system had some famlllar/ty on how things operate. Simple system, 

easy to set-up & learn. Most of the set-up time was on his side, sorting the phone list from 

AT& T before giving it to Global Connect to build the Initial database 

6.) OVerall experience with training 

Good - Again, coming off of a system had familiarity. TIC's picked up quickly on the system. 

7.) Overall experience with support 

No need for support thus far 

8.) Buy in percentage from citizens 

Not sure, but some (espedolly seniors) had difficulty slgning-up online. He hod took down the 

Information & made the entry on the system himself. 

9.) Amount of notifications made 

Quite a few - Board meeting notices, main breaks, snow emeTJIendes, etc. 



10.) Issues with notifications 

None - Seamless 

1l.)The Good 

Mil you ore looklnfl Jo, a flood system that SDlIeS you a lot 01 money this ;5 the oneM Vel')' happy 

12.)The Bad 

Nothing to date 

13.)Glven the opportunity, would you stay with Global Connect or look elsewhere? 

Stay with Global Connect, !leI')' happy with the product, service, etc. 



Hawthorn Woods, illinois 

Chief Jennifer Paulus 847-438-goSO 

02/08/2011 

1.) How many years have you been with Global Connect? 

N/ A -New dlent, in the set-up process now 

2.) Did you come to Global Connect from another Emergency Notification vendor? 

No - Neller with another vendor due to high costs involved. Global Connect achieved the 

department's objectives while keepIng the cost mInimal. 

3.) If so, what vendor & why? 

N/A 

4.) Which package are you using? 

Emergency only, written In contract minimal additional per call fee for non--emergency calls 

(I.e. Farmers Market, IJoQrd meetings, etc.) During their test coils to be done In early March 

they are using one o/the features where a resident can select to rece;1Ie the non--emergency 

calls by hitting a number during the call. 

5.) Overall experience with contract & Initial set-up 

More than helpful - Majority 0/ worlc/conespondence has been done by email 

6.) OVerall experience with training 

Very easy - Web based, feels almost anyone In the department can send a message 

7.) OVerall experience with support 

N/A 

a.) Buy in percentage from citizens 

So far since publishing In the Village newsletter & placing the registration link on the Village 

webpage they have had 135 residents sign-up 

9.) Amount of notifications made 

N/A 

10.) Issues wit h notifications 



N/A 

1l.)The Good 

So for, all experieMes have been good. Since controct through set-up thus for 

12.)The Bad 

Not with the compony itselt but the cost of obtaining the phone database - They opted to use 

an address database they already hod" contracted with White Pages.com to gather hard line 

phone Information 

13.)Given the opportunity} would you stay with Global Connect or look elsewhere? 

N/A-



Ottawa, illinois 

Police: 815-433-2131 

Fire: 815-434-3785 

02/07/2011 

1.) How many years have you been with Global Connect? 

2-3 

2.) Did you come to Global Connect from another Emergency Notification vendor? 

No 

3.) if so, what vendor & why? 

N/A 

4.) Which package are you using? 

Unlimited Emergency 

S.) Overall experience with contract & initial set-up 

N/A - Nobody from Initial set-up with the organization anymore 

6.) Overall experience with training 

T /e Eddie - Would have liked a little more training from on end-user standpoint 

7.) Overall experience with support 

Chief Newberry - Very good support, they resolve issues quickly, If need be have sent a rep on 
site to solve Issue 

8.) Buy in percentage from citizens 

Not sure 

9.) Amount of notifications made 

Chief Newberry - Many, Village Is using It for quite Q few things now (boll orders, moln breaks, 

etc.) 



10.)lssues with notifications 

Chief Newberry - Ring bock option - Choosing ig' to speak with someone places person 

InstDntlyon hold until picked-up by I/WI rt1p. Could be ser.up Wu~ on thel, side. 

1l.)The Good 

Chief Newberry - Versotillty 01 system, using /t for MABAS call bock groups 

TIC Eddie - Ease oloperation, offered to halle the PO as a contact II we ever need help while 

trying to send out a notification 

12.)The Bad 

TIc Eddie - Be CtJrejul when setting up a boundary to make colis, on water shutoff notification 

accidentally went beyond the blodc boundary & several residents not affected by the outage 

received calls. 

13.)Glven the opportunity, would you stay with Global Connect or look elsewhere? 

Chief Newberry - Stay with Global Connect, very happy with the product, service, etc. 



K. Consent Agenda 



e Cit~ of Berwyn 

/ \ 
Nona N. Chapman 

1 d Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Street Berwyn, DUno!s 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 749-a401 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

WVIW .berwyn-U.gov 

February 18, 2011 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 

SUBJECT: Payroll February 16.2011 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payroll was prepared for review by the Finance Department and is ready for approval at 
the February 22. 2011 meeting 

Total Payroll: February 16, 2011 in the amount of $1 .726,273.69 

Respectful I y su bmi tted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



The City of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1·~ Ward Alderman 

/}. 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

8700 West 28" Street Berwyn. nUnols 604.02.0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6401 Fax: (70s) 788-2875 
www.oorwyn-U.gov 

February 18,2011 

Mayor Robert J. Levere 
Members of the City Council 

SUBJECT: Payables February 22, 2011 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payables were prepared for review by the Finance Department and are ready for approval 
at the February 22, 2011 meeting 

Total Payables: February 22, 2011 in the amount of $1,142,615.17 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



BERWYN CllY COUNCIL 
BILLS TO BE APPROVED ON 2/22/11 

1ST SOURCE AMERICA 
ABC AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRONICS 
ABC COMMERCIAL MAINTENANCE SVCS 
ACE HARDWARE 
ACS FIREHOUSE SOFTWARE 
AIRGAS 
AIR ONE EQUIPMENT 
AIRETITE HOME IMPROVEMENT 
ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT CORP 
A&M PARTS 
AMAUDIT 
AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING COMPANY 
AMY ALESSIO 
ANGEL & EULALIA LLAMAS 
ASSOCIATED TIRE 
AT&T 
AUDIO ADVENTURES LLC 
AVCAFE 
BAKER & TAYLOR 
BARGE TERMINAL TRUCKING 
BENNY'S PIZZA 
BERWYN ACE HARDWARE 
BERWYN WESTERN PLUMBING & HEATING CO 
BEST TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS 
BOURBONNAIS SUPPLY INC 
BRAKES PLUS AUTOMOTIVE INCE 
BRIAN PABST 
BRIAN PERLOT 
BROOKFIELD TREE SERVICE 
CARNOW CONIBEAR 
CASSIDY TIRE & SERVICE 
COW GOVERNMENT INC 
CHICAGO INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS LLC 
CHICAGO OFFICE TECHNOLOGY GROUP 
CIRCLE TRACTOR 
CITADEL INFORMATION MANAGEMENT 
CllY OF CHICAGO WATER DIVISION 
COMCAST 
COMED 
COMPLETE TEMPERATURE SYSTEMS 
CONDO ASSOCIATION FEES 
CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY 
CORNERSTONE INSTITUTIONAL LLC 
CUDA LAW OFFICES 
DEL GALDO LAW GROUP LLC 
DELL 
DIAMOND GRAPHICS 
DON MORRIS ARCHITECTS 
ED GIERUT 

$ 906.60 
$ 3,776.57 
$ 6,213.00 
$ 19.49 
$ 4,785.00 
$ 89.16 
$ 2,435.00 
$ 3,325.00 
$ 13.85 
$ 126.02 
$ 929.88 
$ 1,606.45 
$ 225.00 
$ 1,475.00 
$ 790.00 
$ 4,981.29 
$ 105.30 
$ 252.97 
$ 3,893.82 
$ 1,462.45 
$ 265.00 
$ 81 .60 
$ 2,076.60 
$ 7,762.50 
$ 1,414.29 
$ 30.00 
$ 307.55 
$ 30.00 
$ 1,680.00 
$ 1,325.00 
$ 673.02 
$ 1,080.00 
$ 1,170.12 
$ 18.96 
$ 9.00 
$ 183.00 
$ 259,530.00 
$ 11 .94 
$ 26,850.51 
$ 244.80 
$ 1,186.99 
$ 8,491 .69 
$ 928.00 
$ 1,235.00 
$ 8,793.27 
$ 4,950.62 
$ 4,160.00 
$ 6,396.69 
$ 200.00 



EDMUND P WANERDLING 
EQUILIBRIUM IT SOLUTIONS INC 
FEDEX 
FELCO 
FIGATNER-SCOTT DECORATING 
FIRE PERSONNEL TESTING SERVICE 
FLASH ELECTRIC 
FRANK NOVOTNY 
FREEWAY FORD 
FULLMER LOCKSMITH SERVICE 
GABRIEL SALES 
GALE GROUP I CHICAGO IL 
GATEHOUSE MEDIA SUBURBAN NEWSPAPERS 
GAVIN ZARBOCK 
GOLDSTINE, SKRODZKI, RUSSIAN, NEMEC & HOFF LTD 
GRAINGER 
GREY HOUSE PUBLISHING 
GURTNER PLUMBING 
HARRIS BANK 
HERBERT GAVARRETE 
HINKLEY SPRINGS 
HOME DEPOT 
HORIZON SCREEN PRINT 
ILLINOIS PAPER 
INFRASEARCH INC 
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 
INNOVATION CONSTRUCTION SERVICES INC 
INNOVATION EXPERTS 
INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF CENTRAL CHICAGO 
JACK SHAY 
JACK'S 
JACK'S RENTAL INC 
JANTELEZIO INSURANCE 
JEEP & BLAZER LLC 
JIM FRANK 
JNC CONSULTING 
JOANNE D GRANT CSR 
JORGE LEPE 
KB LAWN & MULCH 
KEVIN LORR 
KEY EQUIPMENT FINANCE 
KRIS CONIGLIO 
LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
LANER MUCHIN 
LANZILLOTTI, GRIBBEN, & MARCHUK 
LAWNDALE NEWS 
LIBRARY STORE INC 
LISA KOVACIK 
UTILE VILLAGE PRINTING 
LlZETTE ROLDAN 
lOUIS VILLALOBES 
LUCO'S 

$ 732.25 
$ 962.50 
$ 158.39 
$ 87.00 
$ 65.88 
$ 425.00 
$ 2,925.00 
$ 101,681 .69 
$ 118.40 
$ 837.75 
$ 626.92 
$ 282.70 
$ 76.00 
$ 1,000.00 
$ 210.60 
$ 1,48B.30 
$ 416.05 
$ 1,341 .00 
$ 31 .00 
$ 262.50 
$ 19.31 
$ 897.50 
$ 381.50 
$ 2,312.96 
$ 650.00 
$ 874.38 
$ 2,730.00 
$ 7,295.00 
$ 921.45 
$ 1,475.00 
$ 3,488.22 
$ 208.45 
$ 30.00 
$ 6,331.50 
$ 59.95 
$ 500.00 
$ 300.00 
$ 125.00 
$ 4,638.00 
$ 900.00 
$ 2,499.00 
$ 29.11 
$ 27.00 
$ 2,249.20 
$ 4,665.75 
$ 118.62 
$ 66.98 
$ 100.00 
$ 386.40 
$ 331.24 
$ 40.00 
$ 665.50 



MACNEAL PHY GRP 
MARTIN-AIRE HEATING & COOLING 
MCCANN INDUSTRIES INC 
MC DRYWALL FINISHERS INC 
MCDONALD MODULAR SOLUTIONS INC 
MCDONOUGH MECHANICAL SERVICES INC 
MCFARLANE DOUGLASS & CO 
MEILAHN MFG 
MENARD'S 
METRO GARAGE 
METROPOLITAN LIBRARY SYSTEM 
MICHAEL ANTHONY'S PIZZERIA 
MID AMERICAN WATER INC 
MIDTOWN PETROLUEM 
MIDWEST TAPE 
MIGUEL A SANTIAGO CONSULTING INC 
MI KE AN D SONS 
MJ WOODS 
MKSPORTS 
MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT 
MRA 
MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH 
& WEST SUBURBAN COOK COUNTY 

NATIONAL SEED 
NEAL & LEROY LLC 
NEW WORLD SYSTEMS 
NEW YORK TIMES 
NFPA 
NICOR 
NORA LAURETO 
NORTH AMERICAN SALT 
ODELSON & STERK LTD 
OFFICE DEPOT 
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 
ORLANDA DIAZ 
PARADISE 4 PAWS 
PERSONALIZED AWARDS 
PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE LLC 
PROFESSIONAL PEST CONTROL INC 
RAMON ORTIZ 
RANDOM HOUSE 
RDV ELECTRIC INC 
RICHARD C DAHMS 
RIZZA FORD 
ROBERT ANDREAS & SONS INC 
ROBERT LOVERO 
ROSCOE COMPANY 
RR DONNELLEY 
SAM'S CLUB 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 
SIMMONS PEST CONTROL 

$ 1,299.00 
$ 10,038.00 
$ 3,529.99 
$ 1,140.00 
$ 95.00 
$ 1,702.42 
$ 8,450.00 
$ 1,392.00 
$ 119.40 
$ 125.00 
$ 111 .50 
$ 295.90 
$ 2,043.00 
$ 1,604.98 
$ 362.81 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 1,446.50 
$ 16.41 
$ 2,912.00 
$ 733.02 
$ 22,267.33 

$ 66.00 
$ 1,784.00 
$ 3,172.41 
$ 5,000.00 
$ 766.76 
$ 270.00 
$ 20,318.79 
$ 939.19 
$ 57.623.45 
$ 313.90 
$ 228.87 
$ 198.55 
$ 2,320.00 
$ 75.60 
$ 489.17 
$ 4,388.00 
$ 65.00 
$ 805.60 
$ 339.84 
$ 90.00 
$ 2,010.00 
$ 118.01 
$ 1,315.00 
$ 206.44 
$ 2,044.09 
$ 394.64 
$ 1,067.22 
$ 10.00 
$ 103.24 
$ 150.00 



SNAPPY CONVENIENCE CENTER 
SPRINT 
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS 
STORINO, RAMELLO & DURKIN 
STRICTLY SEWERS 
SUE MARSCHALL 
SWAN 
TANTOR MEDIA 
TARGET AUTO PARTS 
TAZMAN CONSTRUCTION 
TELETRON ACE HARDWARE 
THE LAKOTA GROUP INC 
THE NEW SENECA RESTAURANT 
THOMAS FLEMING COMPANY 
THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION SERVICE INC 
TRESSLER LLP 
TRIPLE M MECHANIC INC 
UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC 
UPS 
US CELLULAR 
US GAS 
VEHICLE EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE INC 
VERMEER MIDWEST 
VERSATILE COMPUTER SERVICES 
VESCO 
VOLTEXX 
WALGREENS 
WARREN OIL INC 
WASTE MANAGEMENT 
WEIMER MACHINE 
YOUTH CROSSROADS INC 
ZEE MEDICAL INC 

TOTAL 

$ 909.95 
$ 1,525.66 
$ 571.47 
$ 4,639.76 
$ 1,200.00 
$ 44.50 
$ 276.00 
$ 207.56 
$ 207.35 
$ 2,B24.22 
$ 794.52 
$ 604.01 
$ 375.00 
$ 507.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 1,950.00 
$ 1,091 .80 
$ 232.70 
$ 23.87 
$ 405.96 
$ 329.60 
$ 92.00 
$ 48.93 
$ 1,605.14 
$ 207.00 
$ 208.67 
$ 23.9B 
$ 52,840.60 
$ 337,361.65 
$ 3,521.09 
$ 1B,730.00 
$ 155.20 

$1,142,615.17 



The ~Y of Berwyn 

IJ 
Jeffrey G. Boyajian 

2 nd Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Street Berwyn. illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6402 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-U.gov 

February 16, 2011 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request #714 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

Carol Garant 
3615 S. Elmwood Ave. 

I concur with the recommendations of the investigating officer in the attached application and 
ask that this request be Approved. 

Respectful I y, 

Jeffrey Boyajian 
2nd Ward Alderman 



'13erwgn 
Police f})epartment 

(1401 w",,(.\ I" Strre/ 
lknvyn. lIlInui!. Ml40H17.U 

!'hollC (7011) 795-,%110 
(Fu~. 795-5627 ElllHI!.~IIt) Q-l -1 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

February 15,2011 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Carol Garant # 716 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

3615 S. Elmwood 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALDERMAN Jeffrey Boyajian 



I. 

f}3erwgn 
Poilu 'lJepartment " ,,- '-f "j:' , ': ..). ,,'1 ': I; l LJ. r. 1- 1_ ~r - I I ~ . ~ . 

, • ." ',~ " ,- () L - \' .-r U -:. l'.!' ::, I' , '.J ' , 

6401 We.,1 -' I" StTett 
Berwyn, minol~ ti04OZ..fi733 

Phone (71)>1) 795-5600 

(Fox) 79S-5(,~7 Emcrgclltoy ()I J 

LUI \ Fl U \ \ P 2: t 2 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request & Report 

To : Mayor Robert J. Levero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: 10 February 20 II 

Name of Applicant: Carol Garant 

Address: 3615 S, Elmwood Ave, Berwyn, IL. 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note! Affidavit: 181 0 

Owner's Support Letter: rgj 0 

Garage: fZI 0 

Driveway: 181 0 

Off Street: ~ D 

On Street: rgj 0 

Meets Requirements: rgj D 

Recommendation: APPROVE ~ DENY 0 

Comments: 

Alderman: 

From: Berwyn Police Dep0l1ment 
Community Service Division 

Application: 716 

Information YES NO 

Interviewed: rgJ 0 
Handicap Plates: ~ 0 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: 
, 
-

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 11-01464 

Reporting Officer: Raimondi#192 

Ward: 



" 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mavor 

Jalnes D. Ritz 
Chief of Police 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

AFFIDA VIT FOR HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN 

You must have a Handicap State Plate or Handicap Card 
to park any vehicle in a designated Handicap Parking space 

CMOL 
(Name of Handicapped Applicant) 

(Name of caregiver, jf applicable) 

) 

(Illinois Handicapped License Plate Number) 

(Illinois License Plate Number) 

1 t:,' / .t, -/.-=-L/J1 /,(.1 11k? d /-I M-" 
(Address) 

(Telephone Nu-m~r) 

j ,-,-~ 2 tJ ,0/(/ -- ~ (./ ;" I 
(City Vehicle Sticker Number and Year) 

(Illinois Handicap Placard Number) 

] hereby affirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibited and unlawful for any 
person to file a sworn affidavit, which said person knows to be false or believes to be false. 

/ lit? /1/ , 
(Signature of handicapped person or their legal guardian) (Date) 

PhYSician must state, by printing below. the nature of the patient's handicap 
; I r> _ ' 

d J 
.s. 

I hereby certify that the physical conditions of the above named "Handicapped Person" constitutes himlher as a 
handicapped person as defined under the statutory provision Par, 1-159 (Physically Handicapped Person -
Every natural person who has permanently lost the use of a leg or both legs or an arm or both arms or any 
combination thereof or any person who is so severely disabled as to be unable to move without the aid of 
crutches or a wheelchair.) 

(Physician I s Signature) (Date) 
I 

(Print Physician's Name, Address and Telephone Number) 

Return the completed form to the Parking Division at the Berwyn Pollee Department 
6401 West 318t Street, Berwyn, DlinoJs 



13eTW!Jn Po{ice f})epartment 
640 I We.~t 31" Street 

Uerwyn, 1llinoL~ 60402-fi73J 
Phon!: (7011) 795-5600 

(Jo'ax) 795-5627 F.,mergency 911 

HANDICAPPED PARKING INTERVIEW FORM 
Name of Han<.iica(Jpcd Person: Carol Garant 

Applicant Addres.~ : 3615 S. Elmwood Ave. Berwyn, IL. 60402 

Appl icanl Phone #: 

Appl iean! DIL or 10#: NI A D.O.B: 

Caregivers Name: Richard P. Garant 

Caregivers DIL # : 

Vehicle Make: Chevrolet Vehicle Model: lmpala Vehicle Year: 2000 Vehicle Color: Silver 

License Plate: __ _ Handicapped Placard #: BD88669 

Docs Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair: Walker: Cane: Oxygen 

Parkjng Availability: 

Driveway: 0 Garage: f8I On Slreet: f8I Off Street; 0 

Notes: Richard Garant is requesting signs at his residence for his wife, Carol Garant who is not 
and currently utilizes '. There is very limited parking availablity on 

their block and the front entrance of their residence will have a ramp, making access through 
the front entrance easier. Carol Garant meets all the State and City reguirments at this time. 

Date: 02-10-2011 
Date: 
Date: 
Date: 
Dale : 

Time: 
Time: 
Time: 
Time: 

Complelion Date: 02-10-2011 

Logged In Book: 02- 10-2011 

Applicant Interview 
Time: 1200 Results: Approved(reccomendation) 

Resulls: 
Results: 
Results: 
Resulls: 

Application Number: 716 



.., 
\D ..,. 
~ ... .... 
$ 
<:: .. ... 
1: .. -

STATION COI6PV,INT UCR 

()()41 (ApplkIU\ll'ilc) 
RePOflTTYPf 

1I1Cidcni Rcpnrl 
WHENR!PORTED 

011J()/2()1I 10:59 
TlM£ OF OCCUIIAENCE 

0111 O/2!)1I 10:59 

INVOLVED ENTITIES 

~M1! 

GARANT. CAROL 
IlACE 

While. Caucasian 
CLOTllINO 

UCR 

Berwyn Police Department 
640 I West 31st Street Berwyn, I L 60402 (708) 795-5600 

~SCRtPTlON 

Applicant File 
I AI!LATED CAD.II 

I (.' 1I·{)06290 
I LOCATIOH Of OF)t1!NSE (HOUS! NO .• SlJIEET NAMEI 

. ~615 S ELM W()(?D A 'L B~rwy~: ~ L (,()402 
STATUSC~ 

008 AGE I.DDRItSS 

DOH 

IHCIDEHU 

11·01464 
HOW R.I!C.EfllEO 

In Progress 

STATUSOATE 

3615 S ELM WOOD AV Berwyn, I L 60402 
HGT 

5'9" 

weT 

111.1 

I TYPE 

lYE' PHONI! 

Fau 

9041 (Applican( Pile) • 0 counl(s) 

NAIIE 

GARANT. RlnlARO P 
/lACE 

M While. Caucasian 
CLOTHING 

UCR 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

STATI! 

It 
TEAR 

2000 
OWNER 

JoI.o\KE 

Chevrolcl 

Gamnl. Richard P 

NARRATlVES 

PIlIMARY Nl<IIIUITIVE 

In Summary: 

Richard P. Garant, d.o.b. 

DOB 

T'tPf 

Sedan.4-door 
MOoeL 

Impa.la 

HGT 

AIIIIRESS 

3615 S ELMWOOD AV Berwyn. I L 604()2 
WGT HAIR 

TYPE IU:LATI!D EVan" 

VIlU 

COLOR 

Silveri Aluminum 

I, who resides at 3615 S. Elmwood Avenue, Berwyn IL, 60402, is requesting 

handicapped parking signs to be placed in front of his residence. Mr. Garant's wife Carol (applicant, d.o.b 

suffered Carol utilizes r. Mr. Garant related there is a garage on premises which 

is currently being used to park their car, but it is very difficult to maneuver the r in the garage, and the rear walkway 

is narrow. Mr. Garant stated that it is easier to access the ramp, which will be placed in fronl of the residence. 

Carol Garant meets the State and City requirements for being handicapped. 

For the above listed reasons, this officer feels that this aprlication should be considered for approval at this time . 

STAA' DATEITlMl!' IIICGlENT. 

RAIMONDI, MARGOJ 192 02/1 0120 II J 0: 59 11-01464 Page J of2 



.... 
\CI 
:! S TATIOW CaMPUINT UtR 

! 1)()41 (AppliciUIl File) 
RfPORTTY~ 

hIe idellt Report 
vmS! REI'OItnO 

02/1 ()120 I I 10:59 
TIME 01' OCCIIlIIlENCE 

02/10120 II HUt) 

REPOIInNG OFfICeR 

RAIMONDI. MAIWO J 

ASSISTING OFFICERS 

RAIMONDI. MARGO J 

Berwyn Police Department 
640 I West 31 sf Street Berwyn, I L 60402 (708) 795-5600 

DESCRJPTIOH INCIOeNT • 

Applicunl File 11-01464 
RE1.ATIlO CAD ~ DOT /I 

(' I 1-(10621)0 
Loc ... nON OF OfFEHSE (HOUSE 110 .• STRUT NAMel 

J()IS S l!LMWOOIJ AV H~wYII. IL ('04(l2 
ST ... TUSCOO€ 

STAIU REVIEWER 

192 

OfFICERS 

Sn.A. O ... 1V11ME 

192 02110/2011 1059 

HOW RECEIVE!) 

In Progn:,;s 

STATUS DATE 

IHCIlENT. 

J 1-01464 

STAR' 

ST ... R. 

Pngc 201'2 









The y of Berwyn Theodore J. 
Polashek 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 28" Street Berwyn, Dllnols 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 749-6406 Fax: (70s) 788·267Ci 

www.berwyn-U.gov 

February 16,2011 

Honorable Mayor Robert J . Lavero and 
Members of City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No. 701 - Gudelia Alvarez 
1834 S. Gunderson Ave. 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

I concur with the investigating officers recommendations in the attached handicap sign 
application to Deny the request. 

Respectfully, 

Theodore Polashek 
6 th Ward Alderman 



J 

13eruyn 
Pofice tIJepartment 

MOl Wrs! Jl" Strcc( 
IIcrwpl, IIlinDi~ (\0402·117:", 

I'hullc (70111 795·5('(10 
(Fax) 7'JS·5fo27 Eru~r~cllq' 9·1·1 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

December 7J 2010 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: GudeIia Alvarez # 701 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 

ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

1834 S. Gunderson Ave. 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

CC: ALDERMAN Theodore J. Polashek 



6401 We1ItJl" Street 
Ruwyn, mlnols 60402-0733 
Phnne(7OS)795~OO 

(Fax) 795·5627 EmcrgCflCy 911 

r /-1 '.i I-:~ L', I ,'" , " 
..J I I ~ I u _1"\ I; I I , 

(~ I ~' R" " < rj :- f: ' (, ',..' , _" \ r\ ,) . I ,,' , , 

ZOiD DEC - 1 f·:> It: 22 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request & Report 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: December 7. 2010 

Name of Applicant: Gudelia Alvarez 

Address: 1834 S Gunderson Ave Apt 2 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: Unknown 

Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note! Affidavit: ~ 

Owner' 5 Support Letter: 0 

Garage: 0 

Driveway: 0 

Off Street: 0 

On Street ~ 

Meet'! Requirements: 0 

Recommendation: APPROVE 0 DENY ~ 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Comrnw1ity Service Division 

Application: 701 

Information YES NO 

Interviewed: ~ 0 

Handicap Plates: 0 0 

Wheelchair: 0 0 

Walker: 0 0 

Cane: 0 0 

Oxygen: 0 0 

Report Number: 10-16002 

Reporting Officer: T Young # 183 

Comments: Application denied due to incomplete information and inability to contact. 

..,.-----.,.9---~U .... ~=I .... U ..... • .. • ........ 'V'u 



'" § (STI .. TKHI COMPVoINT UCR 

d. 9041 (AppJicanl r'tC) 
~ , REPORT TVPI! 

~ i Incident Rcporl 
~ ; WIlEN AOORl1!D 

.s I 12/07/201011 :19 
[ 'TiMe oFcicciIRR!Ha! 

1 12/071201011 : 19 

IHVOLVI!D ENTITIES 

I NA.\oI! 

, ALvarez, Gudelia 
J , 

: sec I RACE 

! F i H i.'1ponic. Lalino 
, CLOTHING , 

Berwyn Police Department 
6401 West 31st Street Berwyn. II.. 60402 (108) 795-5600 

i Rl!1.AT!D CAD • 

CI0-064310 

OESCRIPTlOH i INC IO£HT .. 

Applicont File 10·10002 
DOH HOW RECEIVED 

I Telephone 
LOCATION OF OFFEHSE (ltOUSE ND., STRI!£T NA.\oI&1 

Doe 

HGT 

, AGe 

i 
1 WGT 

, I 
£10. 

, ADDRESS 

11134 Gunderson ST 2nd Floor BelWyn. IL 60402 
: HAIl i !YI!S ; PHON! 

I 
, DLIII Fa .. 

I 
I OCR 

I 9041 (Applicanl File) - 0 count(s) Reporling Purly 

I P1IH.AIn' HAllllAlJ\/1! 
I 
J 

I In summary: 

; Gudelia Alvarez of 1834 Gunderson Ave Apt#2 Berwyn 11 60402 had submitted a handicapped application on 0812412010. 

i On 10/07/2010 Cso Deleon made phone contact with Gudelia who advised him that she did not have the owners consent 
i 
! letter to process the application. Cso Deleon advised Gudelia to call back when she received an owners consent letter. 

Attempts were made by eso Deleon and alo to contact Gudelia and met with negative results . 

It is unknown at this time if Gudelia meets the requirements for being handicapped in the State of Illinois due to incomplete 

information . 

Alo recommends the application bc denied d~e to incomplete information submitted and inability to establish contact. 
RI!POR'TlNG OWICI!R 

YOUNG. TERRY 

ASSISTING Of'F1CERS 

RfPOR 111/0 Ofl'lCtII 

YOUN(j. rt:RRY 

, STAR' 

I 1&3 

STAA. 

I!O 

MVl!WI!R STAR. 

STAll. 

OATVnIII! 

11f01120tO II: 19 J o· t 0002 Pago! J or I 



*
: ..... ' ... , 

. . ' 
- • • l 

. . ~ . 

, . 

10": 

" 

Applicant Name: 

Applicant Address: ___ /-::?=--a~¥:...--_.s_. _6_'(./._'A./._~_I£_~.::..:-b_N~-.:.A..-:....;;t/-=p:..:~:..--.--.!oP,:::.......:../v._:.6~....:...,F,-=L::::..:..... __ 

- - -
Appli~tPhone#: ______ ~ __ ~~ ______________ __ 

Applicant DIL #: D.O.B. 
.; ,~ 

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Color: -------------------
License Plate # : Handicapped Placard #: 

.' 

Does Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair Walker ----- ----~ 
Cane _____ Oxygen __ _ 

Parking Ayailabilitv: 

Driveway 
-~-

Garage __ _ On Street ----- Off Street ---

Notes: esC) (Jz/t!u!',) tnctJ i ~lIcJt1!- Q.c.J .... r-1ft,'C c.....J,' fo ~ ("'J{ (., <--... Ac.1.4f4 e r ..... 4.w 

IHJ (,(e<.J.. erg R,Uk"'tV {'.(ta d;V< No.! li-frHl D, .r!ku.t Ca. E.<""r ..(e?!t'ec ~~e.r 

14&_ pte tMrl'/2 e {y Ced'"" Cay=>,! ',0. ~ -r 41/ b, - re .... s. C.,,_, t¥ r AII'Lic. of t,W 

APPLICANT INTERVIEW 

Date: rl:,1 7/i"u Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Date: Time: Results: 

Completion Date: (J..! / /£0 

logged In Book: fJ-I..)/!o 
Application Number: 

70t 1 
'-



--

crrx OF BERWYN - AJm])AVIT FOR IWIDICAPPED SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 

(lLmdioapped Person N~) 
I 8'3'1 GurJe(Soo Ave. 2" 

(Address) 

. . 
-Gild eltCt. N vgtCL 

(Applicant's Name) (Phone) 
. ' ;; 

( . 

PLEASE PRJNT ___ ......... *" 

that the information provided is true and correct, aDd it shall be prohibited and unlawful 
to file-a swom afftdavit which Wei person knows to be falae or believes to be false. 

I .: 

:-
PLEASE PRINT ---_ ......... 

Q sf 2-) )iO 
(Date) r I 

PBYsIaAN MUST FILL OUT THE NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP I . . 

I HEREBY CERTIFY. THAT THE PHYSICAL CONDmONS OF 1"HE ABOVE NAMES 
"HANDICAPPFD PERSON" CONs'I'l'nJT.FS BlMIBER. A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFJNED 
UNDER. TBB SA1Ul'ORY PROVISION PAR.. 1-159.1 (PlIYSICAll Y RANICAPPED PERSON -
Every Natural P.'JI'SOIl who has P'" 1U811Cntly lost 1be use of a leg or both lega or an um or both arms or any 
combinantioo. tbereot or my person who is 80 sevemly disabled sa to be 1lI18ble to move without the aid of 
·crutches or awbce1~.) _ 

(Date) 

(pLEASE PRlNT ,"': ~ -,-:,'11~'-- - (Phone) 

-l .' 
. ;l ~ :0. :. ~ 4' ' 

... -........... . 
) ,.. . 

HANDICAPPEP ~~A~ PLATE ___ _ VEHICLE TAG # YR'---__ 
, ' 

REGULAR STA-TE'P~~# ____ _ HANDICAP STATE 'CARD # -----

YOU MUST HA VE.AaANDlCAP $rATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK VEHICLE IN A 
IJANDICAPPmSPOT. 



, 

Office of the Secretary of State 

JESSE WHITE 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

Dear Parking Program for Persons with Disabilities participant: 

07/16/2010 

SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62756 

Enclosed is a renewal application for your permanent parking placard. In order to renew your 
placard, your physician/supervising physician must complete and sign the certification form 
verifying eligibility for the program. Fai/ure to use the provided renewal form will result in a 
delay of your new placard. 

To receive your new parking placard before the expiration date in 2010, the renewal 
application/physician's certification form must be received by my office 30 days prior to the 
expiration date. Please note the placard is no longer valid past it's current expiration date. 
Upon verification, a new placard will be mailed to you. The new placard will expire in 2014 on 
the last day of your birth month. 

Please note that Disability plates and placards are not transferable. The authorized holder 
of the plates or placard must be present and must enter or exit the vehicle at the time 
the parking privileges are being used. Unauthorized use of Disability plates or placards 
can result in a $500 fine, driver'S license suspension and the suspension Jrevocation of 
the placard or plates. 

Vehicles properly displaying Disability plates or a parking placard may park in spaces 
reserved for persons with disabilities and are exempt from parking meter fees and time 
limitations. except at meters, signs or other markings with time limitations of 30 minutes or 
less. 

My office is committed to improving the Parking Program for Persons with Disabilities. The 
fraudulent use of placards and Disability license plates is a serious problem. As a participant 
of this vital program, please ensure that your parking placard is bein~ used accordingly. 

Secretary of State Driver Services facilities are not authorized to issue Disability license 
plates or permanent parking placards. Disability plates and permanent placards may only be 
issued through our Springfield office at the address below. 

For mars information, please contact: Secretary of State, Vehicle Services Dept., Persons with 
Disabilities License Plates/Placard Unit. 501 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62756, 
217-782-2709,217-782-2887 or 217-782-2434. Information also is available at 
www.cyberdriveilljnQjs.com. 

Enclosures 

Sincerely, 

~W'..IA 
Jesse White 
Secretary of Stafe 



The C·ty 0 Theodore J. 

I Polashek 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
Berwyn, Dllnols 60402.-0701 Telephone: (708) 749·6406 Fax: (708) 788-26715 

www.berwyn-ll.gov 

February 16,2011 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 
Members of City Council 

Re: Handicap Sign Request No. 712 - Shirley Moreno 
1626 S. Scoville 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

I concur with the investigating officers recommendations in the attached handicap sign 
application to Deny the request. 

Respectfully, 

Theodore Polashek 
6u, Ward Alderman 



'Berwyn 
Po[ice 1Jepartment 

6401 \\'~.'I .11" Streel 
H~r\\' ~ r1. II lirwb 6U401·0' JJ 

rhlille ('UK I '95·5"'"1 
(Fu:'i I 71)5·S(,2' Errl(·rj!.clll")' 1).\·1 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

January 31, 2011 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Shirley Moreno #712 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

1626 S. Scoville 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Theodore Polashek 



6401 West 31" Street 
Rerwyn, DUnoi.~ 66402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-~OO 

(Fax) 795·5627 Emergency 9 J I 

ZOi I JAN 20 P ]. 08 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request & Report 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: 01-20-2011 

Name of Applicant: Shirley Moreno 

Address : 1626 S. Scoville Ave, Berwyn, lL 60402 

Telephone: . 

Nature of Disability: Unknown 

Information YES NO 

Doctor's Notel Affidavit: r8l 0 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 0 

Garage: 0 0 

Driveway: 0 0 

Off Street: 0 0 

On Street: 0 0 

Meets Requirements: 0 0 

Recommendation: APPROVE 0 DENY t8J 

Comments: 

Alderman: 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Application: 712 

Information YES NO 

In terviewed: 0 0 

Handicap Plates: 0 0 

Wheelchair: 0 0 

Walker: 0 0 

Cane: 0 0 

Oxygen: 0 0 

Report Number: J 1-00709 

'.il 

Reporting Officer: Raimondi #192 

Ward: 



Berwyn Police Department 
~ 
:; I STATION COMPlAINT ueR 

~ 9041 (Applicanl File) 
I R~PORT TYPE t 

~ Incidcnl Report 
'u _VI REPOfITED 
.:: 

I 

6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, II., 60402 (708) 795-5600 

A!LATI!D eM' 

('11-002920 

OESCRII'OON 

Appliclllli ~i Ie 

I lOCATIOIf Of OfFI!It!IE (HOOSE NO .• STR.I!eT NAMe) 

: 011l912()11 --,,15.:.::2=--1 _____ : 1626!§~O~~LEA.~Berw)'~, ! _L~~02 _______ _ 
~ JIM!! O;occUtuu;NC!! STATUS COOl! 

I 0111912011 15:21 

INVOLVED ENTITIeS 
NAMI! I DO. .... O!! ADDRElIS 

! 

I 11-00709 
• HOW RECENfD 

i Walk In 

- -STATUS DATE 

: MORENO, SIIIRLEY I 1626 S SCOVILLE AV Berwyn, IL 60402 
ItGT war HAIII ! EYES 

5'8" i Brown I Brown 
; 9';" ! IIU 

PHONE SEl( RAC1! 

I P While, CDllcasian 
I ClOTH..c; 

UCR TYpe RtiLATI!D El/EHT Ii 

9041 (Applic~nl File) - 0 count(~) Reporting Party 

NARRATIVES 

i PRIMAAY NARMltIIE 

In Summary: 

Shirley Moreno ___ , c-esides at 1626 S Scoville Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402. Ms Moreno is requesting 

handicapped parking signs to be placed in front of her residence. Ms Moreno provided a 

temporary handicapped placard and her doctor's notc indicates that her handicap may not be a permanent disability. 

For the above stated reasons, this officer feels that this application should be denied at this time. 
: R£PORTING OFFICER 

f RAIMONDI, MARGO J 

I ST.R _ 1 R£VIEW(!R , 
. 192 

,I STAA. 

ASSISTING OFf'ICERB 

OFflCl!RS STAR' 

I B'TAR. : DATVTIMI! INCIOENT J 

RAIMONDI. MARGO J 192 OI!IQI2011 15:21 11-{}O709 Page I of ! 



'l3erwgn Pofice 'lJepartment 
6401 w~ 31" Street 

llerwyn, Inlnoil> ~402-07JJ 
Phone (708) 7',15-5600 

("'"xl 795-S627 Kmergenl:Y 911 

HANDICAPPED PARKING INTERVIEW FORM 
Name of Handk:apJiC<.l Person: Shirley Moreno 

Applicanl Address : 1626 S. Scoville Ave, Belwyn, IL 60402 

Applicant Phone # 

Applicant DIL or 10#: NI A o.O.B: _ _ _ 

Caregivers Name: Shirley Moreno 

Caregivers OIL #: NI A 

Vehicle Make: NI A Vehicle Model: Vehicle Year: Veh icle Color: 

License Plale : Handicapped Placard #: UAI5579 

Doell Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair: 0 Walker: 0 Cane: 0 Oxygen: 0 

Parking Availability: 

Driveway: 0 Garag.e: 0 On Street: [gI Off Street 0 

Notes: Shirley Moreno is requesting handicapped parking signs in front of her residence. Ms 
Moreno does not have a pennanent handicapped placard. Moreno's doctor indicated that her 
disability may not be permanent. 

Date: 01 -20-1011 
Dllte : 
Date: 
Date: 

Date: 

Time: 

Time: 
Time: 
Time: 

Complelion Dale: 01-20-2011 

Logged In Book: 01-20-2011 

Applicant Interview 
Time: 1200 Results : Denied (Recommendation) 

Results: 
Results : 
Re~ults ·. 

Results: 

Applkalion Number: 712 



CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAYlT FOR HANDICAPPED SIGN ,; . 

PLEASE PRINT 

IWi ~t'l/leaw~? 
(Address) 

(./ . 

(phone) 

PLEASE PRINT 
**************.* 

I hereby affirm that . ormation provided is tru.e and correct, and it shall be prohlDited and unlawful 

~~u.-::~R...,....-to c • sworn affidavit which Raid - knows to be fB1se or belitv;;;!;;j/ 0 
ApplicaDt) (Dati) 

PLEASE PRINT 
••• ****.*-•• **** 

P·HYSIClAN MUST FILL OUT THE NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

I HEREBY CERTIFY. TIlAT THE PHYSICAL CONDITIONS OF THE ABOVE NAMES 
"HANDICAPPED PERSON" CONSTIruTES HIMIHER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED 
UNDER. TIIE SATIITORYPROVISIONPAR. 1-159.1 (pHYSICAILYHANICAPPED PERSON-

f Every Natural p bas permanently lost the use of a leg or both legs or an arm or both arms or any 
combinanti f. Y person who is so srerjly d~abled as to ~~le~.mo~ wi. u;the aid of 

crute .) - rt~-r 4.~' d'4..~ 
J- 0 

(Date) 

-- , 
/' J" 

(phone) 

....... ----- . . . ' 

HANDICAPPED STATE PLATE ____ _ VEHICLE TAG # ___ _ YR'---__ _ 

REGULARSTATE:PLATE# _____ _ 

YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK VEIDCLE IN A 
HANDICAPPED SPOT. 



15579 



,...n.o~ J. Lovero Michele D. Skryd 
ayor Fourth Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 Weet 2(111) Street &rwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 FBJI[: (708) 788-2675 

www_berwyn-il.gov 

February 18,2011 

Hon. Robert J. Lavero 

Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 

6700 W. 26th Street 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: Handicap Sign for Dolores A. Martell #714 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

I am at this time concurring with the investigating officer and approving the above request. 

Res pectfu IlV, 

M: O.e... 1J. eJLJ-
Michele D. Skryd 
Alderman 4th Ward 



e 
Pofice Vep r m nt-

64(H West 31" Street 
Berwyn,lIIlnois Ii0402·013~ 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax)79S·5627 Emergency 9· 1· t 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR ROBERT J. LOVERO AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORDINANCE DIVISION 

February 15, 2011 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Dolores A. Martell # 714 

ATTACHED IS A REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

2509 S. Elmwood 

PLEAS! ReviEW THE AnACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Michele Skryd 



'Berwyn 
Po[ice 'lJepartment 

C; I T Y [) F 8 E H '1 y, : 
:"' I F' f' IJ 

'(' 0 -- I- " ~ ,
( / _ ... , ;\ .) .. ; - 1-' II .... :: 

~"oll .JAN 2 I P ;~: I b 
(,.10 1 \V~!<t.H" Str~t 

Jlcrwyu, llUnol!lIffi.U)2-07JJ 
l'hont (7011) 795-5600 

(Fax.7'}S-S627 Eml:rgcllcy <) I t 

Handicapped Parking Sign Request & Report 

To: Mayor Robert J. Levero 
And Members of City Council 

Date: 01-21-2011 

Name of Applicant: Dolores A. Martell 

UJY\l0o::D 
Address: 2509 S. K~il~ Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: -

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES NO 

Doctor's Notel Affidavit: r8I 0 

Owner's Support Letter: ~ 0 

Garage: 181 0 

Driveway: 0 0 

Orf Street: 0 181 

On Street k8:I 0 

Meets Requirements: [8J 0 

Recommendation: APPROVE [8J DENY 0 

Comment": 

Alderman: 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Community Service Division 

Application: 714 

Information YES NO 

lnterviewed: ~ 0 

Handicap Plates: f8] 0 

Wheelchair: 0 0 

Walker: 0 D 

Cane: 0 0 

Oxygen: 0 0 
Report Number: 11-00787 

Reporting Officer: Raimondi#192 

Ward: 



, ' 

STATION COo\lPU.I~ IICR 

'>1)41 (Al1Jllicllllll'ilcl 
A6P01tT rtge 

InciuCll1 Rcporl 
W~N REPOfIttD 

UIf.!1/21l11 10 : ~7 

riMe Of OCCURRVlCIi 

n1/21f.!011 1t):27 

INVOLVED EN1TTIES 

NAME 

MARTELL, DOLORES 

P 
CLO~ 

utA 

lUG!! 

While. Cllucasian 

Berwyn Police Department 
11-'111 W('.~t JIst Street Berwyn, I L (1141)2 (708) 79S-S60() 

oeSCRIPTION INCIOEIIT. 

REL..AUOCA04 

; <.: 11·(103232 

'\I'lllic;1I\1 File 11 ·()()7K7 
DOT; HOW Ree~IVED 

In Person 
L.oc ... TlCHt Ol' O"(HSE JHOUSi NO~ URfET N,II...el 

ST",TUS 0"'l1! 

008 AOORIiBt aM\D~D 

2S0Q S~~ AV Berwyn. IL 60402 
HGT . wcrr , !YeS 

. StD. I DL.II . FBI' 

rtP& 

9041 (Applicllnl File)· Ocounl{s) Reporting Party 

INVOLVEO VEHICLES 

VEHIPlATti 

J076792 
STATE 

IL 
• YUR 

~()02 

OWNI!R 

~Ii 

Dodge 

MARTELL. DOLORES 

NARRATlVE9 

PRIMARY NAARATIIIE 

In Summary: 

lYl'1! 

I VoIR/Minivan 

MODEL 

(unknown) 

, INVOL.VUlEHT 

. C~JII 

Gold 

VlHII 

.C~I 

Dolores Martell . who resides at 2509 S. Elmwood Ave, Berwyn, IL 60402. is requesting handicapped 

parking signs 10 be placed in front of her residence at 2509 S . Elmwood Ave, Berwyn, It 60402. Ms Martell suffers from 

. ). which reduces her mobility on a daily basis. Ms Martell related that it is easier for 

her to access their residence from the front. 

Ms Martell meets the State and City requirements for being handicapped. 

For Ihe above staled rellsons. thiS officer feels that this applica.tion should. be considered for a.pproval at Ihis time. 
AEPOJrTING OFfICER 

RAIMONDI. MARGO J 

ASSISTING OFFICERS 

~.EPORTING OfflCl!lI 

R:\ IMONDI. MAtH;O J 

SUR. 

STAJII_ 

IHCIO!NT_ 

II·Olln7 r,we I ",- I 



rl n v _ j'n 'f)' 1 ;': I 4 ., 
~ . . 

~ -_.-

CITY OF BDWYN AFJI'IDAVIT FOR HANDICAPPED SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 

Wf~~ ~, [V1Q..(' +e { J 

(HandicappedPcrson N~) (Address) 

, 
.... ,-' •• I 

.. 

I hereby affirm that the infmmatioo :(:covidcd is 1:l'uc and com:ct, and it shall be Pl?hibitcd and unlawful 

~
or my to~file.a ~it which said penon mows to be false or believes to be false. 

~. /).-11)-/0 
~~~~~~~~~L-~ __ __ 

Sipture of AWliCatrt) . (Date) 

/ 

PLEASE PlUNT 
"'''11 1111 11""*,-* "''''* *'* 

PHYSICIAN MUST FILL OUT THE NATURE OF U~NT'S HANDICAP 

......... . 

i HEREsy CER~ 11lAT THE :mvSICAL 'CONDmo~ ~F ~ Aao\lE NAMES 
''HANDICAPPED PERSON" CON:mnrrBS H1MIBER. A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFrNED 
UNDER THE SATIJTORY PROVlSION PAR. 1-159.1 (pHYSICALLY HANICAPPED PERSON
Every Natural person who has permanCllily lost the use of a leg or both legs or an arm or both arms or any 
combinsotion ~f or any person who is SO severely disabled as to be unable to move without the aid of 
·":TUtches or ~~lchai:d 

~ Signature) 
~/ ~.,-/r_o_ 
(Date)-

( IPiEASE PRINT - PHYSICIAN'S Name and Address) - , ~.....,. J' ....,.;. :. . _ , 
. _ "..... _,. L 

REGULAR ST)'TE-JlI.ATE g 

YOU MUST HAVE.A :HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK VEmCLE IN A 
HANDICAPPED SP-OT. 

r. 



~ . . 

13erwgn Pouce 'Department 
fJ-4l11 Wr.uJI"Slretl 

lIerwyn, IIDnoL~ 6M02·tY133 
l'hon~ (708, 7?!!-S6tlO 

(Fall' 795·.5627 Rmergency? 11 

HANDICAPPED PARKING INTERVIEW FORM 
Name of Handicapped Perl>on : Dolore5 Mortell 

Applicanr Address: 2509 

Applicant Phone it: S. Elmwood Ave. Berwyn. lL 60402 

Applicant DIL ur 10#: D.O.E 

Caregivers Name: NI A 

Caregivers DIL 1#: N/A 

Vehicle Make: Dodge Vehide Model: Carryall Vehicle Year: 2002 Vehicle Color: Gold 

License Plate: 3076792 Handicapped Placard #: 8836689 

DQes Applicant Use: 

Wheelchair: 0 Walker: 0 Cane: 0 Oxygen: 0 

Parking Availability : 

Driveway: 0 Garage: ~ On Streel: ~ Off Street 0 

Noles: Dolores Mortell is requesting handicapped parking signs in front of her residence, due to 
her inability to walk long di~tances. as a result of s. There is limited parking on 
her block. Ms Martell related that the walking distance is shorter from the front of her 
residence than it is from the garage. 

D:lle: t{) {nOnO 11 
Dale: 

Date: 
Date; 

Dale: 

Time: 
Time: 

Time: 
Time: 

Complerilln Dare: () 112120 t 1 

Logged In Book: 01121120 t t 

Applicant Interview 
Time: J 200 Hrs Resull~ ; 

Results: 

Resulls : 
Result.~ : 

Results : 

Appliciltion Number: 714 


	pt3
	pt4
	2011-2budget.pdf
	pt1
	pt2


